
 

CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
Board of Commissioners Meeting    

 Conference Room, Fifth Floor, 121 N. 9th Street  
September 11, 2017 12:00 p.m. 

A G E N D A 

I.    CALL TO ORDER………………………………………………………………………………………….Chair Hale 

II.   AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS……………………………………………………..........................Chair Hale 

III.  CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Expenses 

1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report – August 2017 

B. Minutes and Reports 

1.  Approval of Meeting Minutes from August 29, 2017 
 
IV. ACTION ITEMS  

A. CONSIDER: Resolution 1503 Approving the Ash Street Property Disposition and Development 
Agreement (DDA) (10 minutes) …..………..……………………………………………...… Todd Bunderson 

B. CONSIDER: Resolution 1508 Approval of Amended 11th & Myrtle – Pioneer Corner – Type Four 
Participation Agreement with BVGC Parcel B, LLC (5 minutes) …………………………….. Matt Edmond 

C. CONSIDER: Resolution 1507 Approval of Master License Agreement between CCDC, City of Boise, and 
Ada County Highway District for Installation and Maintenance of Wayfinding Signage (10 minutes) 
……………………………………………………………………………..………………………… Matt Edmond 

V. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
A. Proposed Shoreline District Eligibility Report (20 minutes) ……..……….............................................. 

…………………………………………………………Geoff Dickinson, Senior Vice President, SB Friedman 

B. 8th Street Corridor Improvements (5 minutes) ………………………………………………...…. Karl Woods 

C. FY 18 Central District Improvements (5 minutes)…………………………………….……..... Doug Woodruff 

D. Operations Report (5 minutes)…………………………………………..…………..…………… John Brunelle 

 
VI. ADJOURN 
This meeting is being conducted in a location accessible to those with physical disabilities. Participants may request reasonable 
accommodations, including but not limited to a language interpreter, from CCDC to facilitate their participation in the meeting. For 
assistance with accommodation, contact CCDC at 121 N 9th St, Suite 501 or (208) 384-4264 (TTY Relay 1-800-377-3529). 

 

 



















MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 Conference Room, Fifth Floor, 121 N. 9th Street  

August 29, 2017 12:00 p.m. 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Chairman Hale convened the meeting with a quorum at 12:04 p.m.  
 
Present were: Commissioner David Bieter, Commissioner John Hale, Commissioner 
Gordon Jones, Commissioner Pat Shalz, Commissioner Ryan Woodings, and 
Commissioner Dana Zuckerman. 

 
Absent Were: Commissioner Maryanne Jordan, Commissioner Scot Ludwig, and 
Commissioner Ben Quintana. 

  
Agency staff members present were: John Brunelle, Executive Director; Todd 
Bunderson, Development Director; Max Clark, Parking & Facilities Director; Mary 
Watson, Contracts Manager/Attorney, Joey Chen, Controller, Matt Edmond, Project 
Manager; Doug Woodruff, Project Manager; Karl Woods, Project Manager; Laura 
Williams, Executive Assistant/Development Specialist. Also present were Agency legal 
counsel, Ryan Armbruster. 

 
II. AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS  
 

There were no changes/additions to the agenda. 
 

III. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

 A. Minutes and Reports 
1.  Approval of Meeting Minutes from August 14, 2017 

 
Commissioner Zuckerman made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Commissioner Shalz seconded the motion. 

 
All said Aye. The motion carried 6-0.  

 
 

IV. ACTION ITEMS 
 
A. PUBLIC HEARING: Proposed FY 2017 Amended Budget 

 
Chairman Hale opened the meeting to the public at 12:06 p.m. No public comment 
was made and no comment in writing was received.  
 



Public Hearing was closed at 12:13 p.m. 
 

B. CONSIDER: Resolution 1504 Adopt FY 2017 Amended Budget 
 
CCDC Controller, Joey Chen, gave a report 
 
Commissioner Zuckerman moved to adopt Resolution 1504 to approve the FY 2017 
Amended Budget and authorize the Executive Director to file copies of the budget as 
required by law.  

 
Commissioner Shalz seconded the motion. 
 
All said Aye. The motion carried 6-0.  

 
C. PUBLIC HEARING: Proposed FY 2018 Original Budget 

 
Chairman Hale opened the meeting to the public at 12:20 p.m. No public comment 
was made and no comment in writing was received.  

 
Public Hearing was closed at 12:21 p.m. 
 

D. CONSIDER: Resolution 1505 Adopt FY 2018 Original Budget 
 
CCDC Controller, Joey Chen, gave a report 
 
Commissioner Zuckerman moved to adopt Resolution 1505 to approve the FY 2018 
Original Budget and authorize the Executive Director to file copies of the budget as 
required by law.  

 
Commissioner Shalz seconded the motion. 
 
All said Aye. The motion carried 6-0.  
 

E. CONSIDER: Resolution 1506 Adopt FY 2018-2022 Original Capital Improvement 
Plan 
 
CCDC Director of Development, Todd Bunderson, gave a report 
 
Commissioner Zuckerman moved to adopt Resolution 1506 to adopt the Original 
CCDC Capital Improvement Plan for FY 2018-2022.  
Commissioner Shalz seconded the motion.  
 
All said Aye. The motion carried 6-0. 



 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by 
Commissioner Zuckerman to adjourn the meeting.  
 
Commissioner Shalz seconded the motion.  
 
All said Aye.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:26 p.m.  

 
- - - - 

 
 

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION ON THE 11th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2017.   

 
 

___________________________________ 
John Hale, Chair 

 
 
___________________________________ 
 
Ryan Woodings, Secretary/Treasurer  

 
 



Page 1 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution No.1503 Consider and Approve the Disposition & 
Development Agreement (DDA) between CCDC and Ash and River 
Investment, LLC for the Ash Street Townhomes. 

Date: 
9.11.2017 
 

Staff Contact: 
Shellan Rodriguez 

Attachments: 
1) Area Map 
2) Resolution 1503 
3) Disposition and Development Agreement 

  
Action Requested: 
Review key points of the DDA and approve Resolution No. 1503 
 

Background: 
 

I. Timeline 
 
Staff has been working diligently with the developer, deChase Miksis, throughout the term of the 
Exclusive Right to Negotiate Agreement (“ERN”) period. Below is a project timeline to illustrate progress 
made to date as well as future milestones based on the developer’s estimated schedule. 
 

Dates    Action 
 

September 2016   RFQ/P Published 
November 2016  Proposal Submitted, Board interviewed developers 
December / January 2016 CCDC Board Approved Resolution 1473, authorizing executing the 

ERN with deChase Miksis for the Ash Street Townhomes 
April 2017   Developer submits data for ReUse Appraisal as per ERN 
    (Attachment 2) 
May 5, 2017 CCDC staff approved Design Development Plan, as per ERN  
May 10, 2017   City of Boise Design Review Committee Approve 
July / August 2017  Re-Use Appraisal final/ ERN Deadline for draft DDA terms  
September 11, 2017   DDA Approval by CCDC Board, direction to staff 
 
*November / December 2017 Alley vacation completed 
*December 2017  Construction Drawings Submitted 
*March 2018   Land Close/ Construction Start 
*September 2019   Construction completion (but no later than 3/2021) 
*September 2026  Affordability Deed Restriction Expires (seven years post project  
    completion) 
*estimated based on expected schedule, for illustrative purposes only. 

 
II. Ash Street Workforce Housing RFQ/P Summary 

 



Page 2 
 

a) RFQ/P Minimum Thresholds were included and are listed below. The desire was to 
create a proposal that prescribed workforce housing specifically but allowed flexibility 
for development teams to be creative regarding mix of uses, neighborhood 
development, types of housing and number of units.   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

b) RFQ/P Stated Priorities: 
 
WORKFORCE HOUSING: The priorities below illustrate the Agency’s stated priorities in the 
RFQ/P, not requirements.  These priorities were used as a basis for selection. Definitions of 
the priorities are attached hereto. 
 

 
III. Hayman House - Adjacent CCDC owned property 

 
The property adjacent to the Ash Street Townhomes parcels is commonly known as the Hayman House, 
it is a small parcel with a single family home previously owned by Erma Hayman. It is currently owned by 
CCDC. This property was purchased by CCDC in 2011 from Erma Hayman’s grandson, Dick Madre, with 
the intent to preserve the home as a unique piece of Boise History and African American history. The 
home was constructed in 1907 and is one of the few remaining original residents in the River Street 
Neighborhood. It is currently vacant and in-tact but is in need of minor updates including replacing some 
plumbing, venting, windows, upgrading electrical and replacing the ageing roof as well as some paint 
repair on the exterior of the home.  
 
In 2016 the CCDC Board of Commissioners directed CCDC staff to work with the City Arts and History 
Department (A&H) as that entity is better suited to preserve maintain and operate the  property as a long 

Neighborhood 
Design & 
Context

45%

Catalyst 
Potential

15%

Investment
15%

Development 
Schedule

15%

Sustainability
10%

i. Cover Sheet ii. Acknowledgement & Release 
iii. Development Team Information iv. Portfolio / Resume 

 
v. Project Summary vi. Development Budget 

vii. Timeline viii. Green Building Certification 
ix. Project Drawings  



Page 3 
 

term asset to the community. A&H has been working closely with City Parks and Recreation, CCDC staff 
and the  Ash Street Townhomes Developer to design a landscape plan that compliments their future plan 
for the Erma Hayman house as well as the neighboring Kristen’s Park, the Pioneer Pathway and, of 
course, the Ash Street Townhomes.  
 
City of Boise and CCDC have drafted conveyance documents that transfer the property along with any 
restrictions associated with the Ash Street Townhomes to the City. The conveyance will hopefully occur 
in the next 6 months and has been on hold due to the encroachments the design of the Ash Street 
Townhomes requires of the Hayman House Property. The encroachments from the Townhomes 
consisted some utility needs and of approximately 35’ of landscaped berms encompassing the entire 
Hayman House property. The landscaping was designed to do two things: 
 

1) Provide a parklike environment in the backyard of the Hayman House 
2) Effectively screen the green roofed covered parking structure from sight lines from River Street 

Through a collaborative effort with CCDC staff, the developer and the Department of A&H, the successor 
of interest in the Hayman House property, the encroachments have been revised to enable more flexibility 
in use for A&H while still providing screening of the covered parking structure.  

IV. Summary of DDA  

The document is specific to the Ash Street Townhomes Project which met the requirements of the RFQ/P. 
Additionally, the document is based on the terms and conditions within previous Agreements that have 
led to successful disposition processes, including the Watercooler and The Afton.  

a) Workforce Housing:  
 

i. Deed Restricted Rents for Seven Years After Project Completion: As per the RFQ/P 
Submittal, rents will be restricted to be affordable to individuals and families earning 
between 80-120% of the area median income (AMI).  The rents are updated annually and 
determined by federal standards. A confirmation of leases and rent will be required to be 
submitted to the Agency annually.  
 
The DDA includes a Deed Restriction (Attachment 11 to the DDA) that will run with the 
land and will outline the restrictions, provisions, and penalties associated with the rent 
restrictions on the property. Staff has worked closely with the developer on this provision. 
Staff suggests a more lenient penalty for rents lower than 80% AMI, whereas stronger 
penalties (fees) will occur for any rents charged that exceed 120% AMI. In other words, if 
the owner chooses to charge rents lower than 80% rents, the owner will need CCDC 
approval but in the event the rents charged are higher than 120% rents monetary penalties 
will occur. 

 
Rents per HUD Published Income Limits for 2017, Ada County 
Source: Novogradac & Company LLP Rent & Income Limit Calculator 
4 Person AMI: $64,300 
 



Page 4 
 

 
 

b) Proof of Financing: The land will not be conveyed until all financing for the project is secured 
and construction documents are in place in a form acceptable to CCDC. 
 

c) Sales Price:  The framework for determining land sales price was outlined in the RFQ/P and 
meets the disposition requirements set forth in Idaho Code § 50-2011. The developer will 
purchase the property and pay the appraised value, $645,000 at the time of land conveyance 
plus the additional cost to vacate alley, currently estimated at $34,000.   

 
Staff recommends a total estimated initial sales price of $679,000.  

 
i. Additional Land (Alley): In addition to the land currently owned by CCDC, the developer 

requested the Agency vacate the adjacent ACHD controlled alley. Based on ACHD 
process, ACHD will vacate alleys in exchange for the agreed upon appraised value of the 
alley.   ACHD will not agree upon the alley’s value until the application is reviewed, but a 
completed third party appraisal concludes the value is $34,000.  The agreed upon value 
of the vacated alley will be included in the initial sales price of the land to the developer. 

 
d) Adjusted Land Price Upon Project Completion: After CCDC’s issuance of a Certificate of 

Project Completion (Attachment 9 of the DDA), CCDC may adjust the land price as per the 
DDA. CCDC cannot adjust to less than the value determined within the ReUse Appraisal and 
cannot adjust to less than $0. In other words, CCDC cannot pay the developer for the land. 
The Re-Use value is negative $1,160,000 and is attached hereto.  
 
Staff is recommending a reimbursement of the land price of $679,000 upon completion 
of the full project (all residential, commercial buildings). 
 

e) Public Improvements Reimbursement: The developer has requested approximately 
$318,000 in public improvements to be reimbursed by CCDC at project completion.  The 
reimbursement will only be for expenses CCDC staff deems eligible and will be outlined and 
depicted in the DDA as Attachments 17 and 18. The public improvements reimbursement 
will occur at the same time of any site write down and will be entirely based upon the 
completion of the entire mixed use workforce housing project. This includes Sidewalk and 
ROW work along Ash Street, some minor work within the Pioneer Pathway ROW allowing 
the patio to meet the pathway, and utility work that affects the Hayman House and 
modernizes it, including sewer and undergrounding electricity. 

 



Page 5 
 

Although the current ReUse Appraisal does include some of the public improvements as 
project cost staff is working with the appraiser to provide an amendment to the appraisal to 
revise the project costs appropriately and the amendment will be included in the final DDA.  
 
Staff is recommending a reimbursement of the qualified public improvements not to 
exceed $318,000 upon completion of the full project (all residential, commercial 
buildings, and public improvements). This would occur at the same time as the land price 
reimbursement all subject to the Schedule of Performance (Attachment 3 of the DDA). 
 

f) Project Design Revisions: As per the ERN, CCDC Staff reviewed the project drawings, the 
Design Development Plan (DDP) on May 5, 2017.  The DDP as approved by staff included 
minor revisions notably related to the Ash Street Townhomes off-site improvements. The 
modifications included a smaller landscape berming extending into the Hayman House 
property, this design modification has since been approved by both the developer and the 
Department of Arts and History staff.  Design Review will have the opportunity to review and 
comment on this modification, according to the developer, as part of the Design Review 
required 60% construction drawing approval in the coming months. Since the DDP was 
approved by CCDC the developer has recommended the off-site berm plantings be a 
temporary license agreement allowing for more robust future landscape improvements on the 
Hayman House property as designed by the Department of Arts and History and their design 
team.  

 
g) Green Building: The DDA will include the same requirements as advertised within the RFQ/P 

and that the developer committed to within their proposal. This includes committing to the 
City’s Green Building code or an approved equivalent, and committing to LEED certification. 

 

Fiscal Notes: 
 

I. Ash Street Townhomes 
 

Re Use Value:  Negative $1,160,000 
Land Value: $645,000 + $34,000* = $679,000 
Final Land Cost after full write down: $0 
Net Reuse Value: Negative $481,000 
Reimbursement of offsite public improvements: $318,000** 
Net value of the project: Negative $163,000 
 
Staff recommends full reimbursement of land value of $679,000.  
 
*The alley value will be determined by ACHD as per their alley vacation process. The cost to the 
agency will be slightly higher than the alley value in staff time, legal counsel review, administrative and 
application fees.  Estimated additional costs not greater than $5,000.    
 
**The off-site public improvements include: 
 
1. Landscaping / berms encroaching into the Hayman House 

property and providing a  visual barrier to the covered parking 
structure: 

$35,000 
 

2. Streetscape improvements on Ash Street: $134,00 
 



Page 6 
 

3. Water / Sewer Utility improvements in ROW $44,000 
4. Power utility improvements Ash Street, includes 

undergrounding Hayman House power: 
$54,000 
 

5. Pedestrian Connections in Pioneer Pathway Right of Way $24,000 
6. Contingency (10%) $27,000 
 TOTAL $318,000 

 
The DDA includes up to $318,000 in reimbursement for eligible public improvements upon completion 
of the Ash Street Townhomes Project. This is currently contemplated within the CIP for the RMOB 
District in FY 2019. The reimbursements will be based on acceptable proof of costs. 
 

II. Hayman House 
 

Hayman House Capital Improvements is itemized in the FY2018 budget for $70,000. Staff is working on 
completing those improvements in the next six months. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Direct staff to execute the Disposition and Development Agreement for the Ash Street Townhomes. 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to adopt Resolution No.1503 to authorize the Executive Director to execute the DDA and 
al associated documents as required to implement the Agreement. 

 



Ash Street 
Townhomes

Hayman House

Parks & Rec

Alley to be 
vacated

Attachment 1



RESOLUTION NO. 1503 - 1  
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 1503 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE 
CITY, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
APPROVING A DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 
OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AND ASH AND RIVER 
INVESTMENT, LLC; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR AND SECRETARY, RESPECTIVELY, TO 
EXECUTE AND ATTEST SAID AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO 
CERTAIN CONDITIONS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE ALL 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO IMPLEMENT 
THE AGREEMENT AND TO MAKE ANY NECESSARY 
TECHNICAL CHANGES TO THE AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO 
CERTAIN CONDITIONS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.    

 
THIS RESOLUTION, made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban 

Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and 
politic, authorized under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as 
amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code (the “Law”), as a duly created and 
functioning urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Agency”).   
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after 
notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the River Street-Myrtle Street 
Urban Renewal Plan (the “River Street Plan”) and following said public hearing, the City 
adopted its Ordinance No. 5596 on December 6, 1994, approving the River Street Plan 
and making certain findings; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 
the First Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan River Street-Myrtle Street Urban 
Renewal Project (annexation of the Old Boise Eastside Study Area and Several Minor 
Parcels) and renamed River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “River Myrtle-
Old Boise Plan”) and following said public hearing, the City Council adopted its 
Ordinance No. 6362 on November 30, 2004, approving the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan 
and making certain findings; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the jurisdictional area of the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan is referred 
to herein as the “Project Area”; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, in order to achieve the objectives of the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan, 
the Agency is authorized to acquire real property for the revitalization of areas within the 



RESOLUTION NO. 1503 - 2  
 

Project Area; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the Agency owns certain real property generally located at 503, 509, 
511, 623, and 647 South Ash Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (the “Site”) which parcels were 
acquired by the Agency between 2006 and 2011; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency seeks to initiate a redevelopment project to revitalize the 
Project Area, in compliance with the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan, through the 
redevelopment of the Site which could also serve as a catalyst for redevelopment of 
other properties in the Project Area; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, following the publication of a Request For Qualifications / Proposals 
(RFQ/P) in the Idaho Statesman newspaper on September 30, October 8, 14, and 19, 
2016, the Agency received two (2) proposals for redevelopment of the Site; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, at a special public meeting of the Agency Board on November 29, 
2016, the two (2) respondents delivered presentations; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, at a public meeting of the Agency Board on December 12, 2016, the 
Agency Board selected the proposal from J. Dean Papé, di Chase Miksis, which is the 
predecessor in interest to Ash and River Investment, LLC (“Developer”), as the highest 
ranked proposal; and, 
 

WHEREAS, as authorized by Resolution No. 1473 passed by the Agency Board 
on December 12, 2016, Agency staff and Developer executed the Agreement to 
Negotiate Exclusively (“Agreement”), effective as of February 1, 2017, which 
contemplated the negotiation of an agreement concerning the disposition of the Site to 
Developer by Agency and the development of the Site by Developer; and, 
 

WHEREAS, following negotiations over the terms between Agency staff and 
Developer, in compliance with the Agreement, Developer has provided Agency with a 
proposed final Disposition and Development Agreement (“DDA”), a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein as if set forth in full; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Agency staff recommends approval of the DDA by the Agency 

Board; and,  
  

WHEREAS, the Agency Board of Commissioners finds it in the best public 
interest to approve the DDA and to authorize the Executive Director to execute the 
DDA, subject to certain conditions, and to execute all necessary documents to 
implement the transaction, subject to the conditions set forth below.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 
OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, 
IDAHO, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct.   
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1503 - 3  
 

Section 2: That the DDA, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein as if set out in full, is hereby approved as to both form and content.   

Section 3: That the Executive Director and Secretary of the Agency is hereby 
authorized to sign and enter into the DDA and, further, is hereby authorized to execute 
all necessary documents required to implement the actions contemplated by the DDA, 
subject to representations by Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent to 
actions and any necessary technical changes to the DDA or other documents are 
acceptable and that said changes are consistent with the provisions of the DDA and the 
comments and discussions received at the September 11, 2017, Agency Board 
meeting.  
 

Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption and approval. 
 
 PASSED By the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on September 11, 
2017.  Signed by the Chair of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the 
Secretary to the Board of Commissioners on September 11, 2017. 

 
 

      URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY 
 
 

By:         
       John Hale, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
By:         
      Ryan Woodings, Secretary 



i 
 
 

 
 
 
 

DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
 

& 
 

ASH AND RIVER INVESTMENT, LLC, 
an Idaho Limited Liability Company 

 
 
 

____________, 2017 
 
 

Ash Street Development Project 
 

 



i 
 
 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 Site Plan of the Ash Street Development Project (“Site Plan”) 
 
Attachment 2 Legal Description of the Property (“Legal Description”) 
 
Attachment 3  Schedule of Performance 
 
Attachment 4  Design Development Plan 
 
Attachment 5  Title Report 
 
Attachment 6  Reuse Appraisal 
 
Attachment 7  Form of Deed 
 
Attachment 8  Form of Memorandum 
 
Attachment 9  Certificate of Completion 
 
Attachment 10 Green Building Certification 
 
Attachment 11 Form of Deed Restriction 
 
Attachment 12 Form of Annual Rent Report 
 
Attachment 13 Form of Landscape License Agreement 
 
Attachment 14 Form of Construction License Agreement 
 
Attachment 15 Form of Escrow Instruction Letter 
 
Attachment 16 Alley Vacation Map 
 
Attachment 17 Public Project Improvements Map and Description 
 
Attachment 18 Schedule of Eligible Public Improvement Costs 
 
 



i 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
1. DEFINITIONS .............................................................................................................. 1 
2. SUBJECT OF AGREEMENT ............................................................................................ 5 

2.1. Purpose of This Agreement. ................................................................................... 5 
2.2. The Redevelopment Plan. ....................................................................................... 5 
2.3. The Project Area. .................................................................................................... 5 
2.4. Parties to This Agreement. ..................................................................................... 6 

2.4.1. Agency ......................................................................................................... 6 
2.4.2. Developer .................................................................................................... 6 
2.4.3. Developer’s General Contactor .................................................................. 6 

2.5. The Project. ............................................................................................................. 6 
2.6. Disposition Does Not Contemplate Land Speculation. ........................................... 7 
2.7. Selection of Developer. ........................................................................................... 7 

3. RIGHT OF ENTRY/REVIEW OF TITLE ............................................................................. 9 
3.1 Right of Entry; Developer's Investigations .............................................................. 9 
3.2 Review of Title; Approved Title Exceptions .......................................................... 10 
3.3 Compliance with Laws. ......................................................................................... 11 

4. EVIDENCE OF PROJECT FINANCING ........................................................................... 11 
4.1. Submission of Preliminary Evidence of Financing ................................................ 11 
4.2. Time to Approve Evidence of Financing ............................................................... 11 
4.3. Public Records Law ............................................................................................... 12 
4.4. Lender Modifications. ........................................................................................... 12 

5. DISPOSITION AND CONVEYANCE OF THE PROPERTY ................................................. 12 
5.1. Disposition and Conveyance of the Property. ...................................................... 12 

5.1.1. Purchase Price ........................................................................................... 12 
5.1.2. Payment of Purchase Price ....................................................................... 13 

5.2. Escrow. .................................................................................................................. 13 
5.2.1. Payment of Costs ...................................................................................... 13 
5.2.2. Close of Escrow ......................................................................................... 14 
5.2.3. Deliveries by Agency ................................................................................. 14 
5.2.4. Deliveries by Developer ............................................................................ 14 
5.2.5. [RESERVED] ............................................................................................... 15 
5.2.6. Termination ............................................................................................... 15 
5.2.7. Amendment .............................................................................................. 16 
5.2.8. No Real Estate Commissions or Fees ........................................................ 16 

5.3. Conditions to Property Transfer ........................................................................... 16 
5.3.1. Conditions to Agency’s Obligations .......................................................... 16 
5.3.2. Conditions to Developer’s Obligations ..................................................... 17 

5.4. Satisfaction of Conditions ..................................................................................... 19 
5.5. Waiver ................................................................................................................... 19 
5.6. Termination ........................................................................................................... 19 

6. CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY ................................................................................. 20 
6.1. “As Is” .................................................................................................................... 20 



ii 
 
 

6.2. Agency Representations. ...................................................................................... 20 
6.3. Environmental Release and Waiver. ..................................................................... 20 

7. DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY ............................................................................ 20 
7.1. Scope of Development .......................................................................................... 20 
7.2. Local, State, and Federal Laws .............................................................................. 20 
7.3. Antidiscrimination During Construction ............................................................... 21 
7.4. Design Development Plan and Design Review Drawings ..................................... 21 
7.5. Final Construction Documents .............................................................................. 21 
7.6. Agency Approval of Plans, Drawings, and Related Documents ............................ 22 
7.7. Communication; Revisions .................................................................................... 22 
7.8. Prompt Review ...................................................................................................... 22 
7.9. Changes to Final Construction Documents ........................................................... 23 
7.10. Construction Reporting ......................................................................................... 23 

7.10.1. Developer’s Obligations ............................................................................ 23 
7.10.2. Agency’s Obligations ................................................................................. 24 
7.10.3. Meeting Attendance ................................................................................. 24 
7.10.4. Access to the Property .............................................................................. 24 
7.10.5. Reasonableness......................................................................................... 25 
7.10.6. Cost of Construction. ................................................................................ 25 

8. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION ........................................................................ 25 
8.1. Bodily Injury, Property Damage, and Workers’ Compensation Insurance ........... 25 
8.2. Indemnification ..................................................................................................... 27 

9. POST PROJECT COMPLETION PURCHASE PRICE ADJUSTMENT ................................... 28 
9.1. Certificate of Completion. ..................................................................................... 28 
9.2. Reuse Appraisal ..................................................................................................... 28 
9.3. Adjusted Purchase Price ....................................................................................... 28 
9.4. Request for the Purchase Price Adjustment ......................................................... 29 

10. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT .............................................................. 30 
10.1. Construction of the Public Project. ....................................................................... 30 
10.2. Commencement of the Public Project. ................................................................. 30 
10.3. Initial Construction Funding. ................................................................................. 31 
10.4. Approvals of Project and Public Project. .............................................................. 31 
10.5. Warranty on Public Project. .................................................................................. 31 
10.6. Maintenance. ........................................................................................................ 31 
10.7. Estimated Costs for Public Project. ....................................................................... 31 
10.8. Determining Actual Eligible Costs. ........................................................................ 32 
10.9. Conditions Precedent to Agency’s Payment Obligation. ...................................... 33 
10.10. Deadline to Complete Public Project. ................................................................... 33 
10.11. Payment Terms. .................................................................................................... 33 
10.12. Indemnification Regarding the Public Project. ..................................................... 33 
10.13. Default. .................................................................................................................. 34 

11. DEVELOPER’S POST-DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION OBLIGATIONS. ................. 34 
11.1. Estimated Value of Completed Project. ................................................................ 35 
11.2. Taxes, Encumbrances, and Liens. ......................................................................... 35 



iii 
 
 

11.3. Tax Appeals/Exemptions. ...................................................................................... 35 
11.4. In-Lieu-of Taxes. .................................................................................................... 35 
11.5. Use of the Property During Term of the Redevelopment Plan. ........................... 36 
11.6. Obligation to Refrain from Discrimination. .......................................................... 36 
11.7. Effect and Duration of Covenants. ........................................................................ 36 
11.8. Provisions That Run with the Land. ...................................................................... 37 
11.9. Deed Restriction Compliance................................................................................ 37 

12. DEFAULTS, REMEDIES, AND TERMINATION. .............................................................. 37 
12.1. Defaults—General. ................................................................................................ 37 
12.2. Written Notice. ..................................................................................................... 38 
12.3. No Waiver. ............................................................................................................ 38 
12.4. Materiality of Provisions. ...................................................................................... 38 
12.5. Legal Actions. ........................................................................................................ 38 

12.5.1. Institution of Legal Actions ....................................................................... 38 
12.5.2. Applicable Law .......................................................................................... 38 
12.5.3. Acceptance of Service of Process ............................................................. 39 
12.5.4. Rights and Remedies ................................................................................. 39 
12.5.5. Specific Performance ................................................................................ 39 
12.5.6. Limitation on Agency’s Remedies Prior to Developer’s Acquisition of the 

Property .................................................................................................... 39 
12.6. Remedies and Rights of Termination Prior to Conveyance of the Property to 

Developer. ............................................................................................................. 40 
12.6.1. Termination by for Cause Developer ........................................................ 40 
12.6.2. Termination for Cause by Agency ............................................................. 40 

13. GENERAL PROVISIONS. ............................................................................................. 42 
13.1. No Assignment of Rights. ...................................................................................... 42 
13.2. Notices, Demands, and Communications Between the Parties. .......................... 42 
13.3. Conflicts of Interest. .............................................................................................. 42 
13.4. Warranty Against Payment of Consideration for Agreement. ............................. 42 
13.5. Nonliability of Agency Officials and Employees. ................................................... 43 
13.6. Forced Delay; Extension of Times of Performance. .............................................. 43 
13.7. Inspection of Books and Records. ......................................................................... 43 
13.8. Reports, Studies and Test. .................................................................................... 43 
13.9. Attorney Fees. ....................................................................................................... 44 

14. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. ............................................................................................... 44 
14.1. Amendment of Redevelopment Plan. .................................................................. 44 
14.2. Submission of Documents for Approval. .............................................................. 44 
14.3. Computation of Time. ........................................................................................... 44 
14.4. No Third-Party Beneficiary. ................................................................................... 45 
14.5. Dispute Resolution. ............................................................................................... 45 
14.6. Good Faith and Cooperation................................................................................. 45 
14.7. Entire Agreement, Waivers, and Amendments. ................................................... 45 
14.8. Effective Date of Agreement. ............................................................................... 46 



1 
 
 

 
DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into by 
and between THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE, IDAHO, also known as the CAPITAL CITY 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION and ASH AND RIVER INVESTMENT, LLC, an Idaho limited liability 
company (“Developer”), individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively referred to as the 
“Parties.” The Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. DEFINITIONS  
 
“Actual Eligible Costs” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 11.1. 
 
“ACHD” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.1.1. 
 
“Adjusted Purchase Price” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 9.3. 
 
 
“Agency” means the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise, Idaho, also known as the Capital City 
Development Corporation, and any assignee of or successor to its rights, powers, and 
responsibilities under this Agreement. 
 
“Agency Closing Conditions” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.3.1. 
 
“Agreement” has the meaning ascribed to it in the first paragraph of this document. 
 
“Agreement to Negotiate Exclusively” means the Agreement to Negotiate Exclusively executed 
by the Agency on February 1, 2017, and by a predecessor of Developer on January 30, 2017. 
 
“Alley Vacation” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.1.1. 
 
“Alley Vacation Property” means certain real property currently owned by ACHD and located 
adjacent to the Site as depicted on Attachment 16.  
 
“Annual Rent Report” means the annual rent report in the substance and form of the draft annual 
rent report attached hereto as Attachment 12. 
 
“Approving Entities” has the meaning ascribed to them in Section 10.4. 
 
“Certificate of Completion” means the Certificate of Completion for the Project, as ascribed to it 
in Section 9.1 and in the substance and form of the draft certificate of completion attached to 
this Agreement as Attachment 9. 
 
“City” means the City of Boise, Idaho. 



2 
 
 

 
“Close” and “Closing” refer to that point in time when a deed held in Escrow is recorded in the 
office of the Recorder of the county in which the subject property is located and funds due to 
Agency upon delivery of the such deed are available for distribution from the Escrow to Agency, 
notwithstanding that such funds may not actually be distributed due to wire transfer deadlines 
or similar circumstances. 
 
“Closing” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.2.2. 
 
“Closing Date” means the date of the Closing. 
 
“Construction License Agreement” means an agreement in the substance and form of the draft 
construction license agreement attached hereto as Attachment 14. 
 
“Cost Documentation” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 10.8. 
 
“Deed” means the Special Warranty Deed. 
 
“Deed Restriction” means the deed restriction in the substance and form of the draft deed 
restriction attached hereto as Attachment 11. 
 
“Deposit” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.1.2. 
 
“Design Development Plan” means the Design Development Plan accepted by the Agency on May 
5, 2017, attached hereto as Attachment 4. 
 
“Design Review Drawings” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 7.4, including any approved 
revisions. 
 
“Developer” means Ash and River Investment, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, any 
Developer Affiliate that takes title to any portion of the Property under this Agreement, and any 
other permitted assignee or successor in interest as herein provided. 
 
“Developer Affiliate” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.4.2. 
 
“Developer Closing Conditions” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.3.2. 
 
“Effective Date” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 14.8. 
 
“Environmental Reports” means the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, Hayman Estate 
Property, 617 Ash Street, dated January 14, 2011, the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, 
511 Ash Street dated, August 1, 2011, and the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (Ash 
Street), dated July 27, 2016. 
 



3 
 
 

“Escrow” means the escrow set up by the Parties with the Escrow Agent with respect to the 
acquisition of the Property. 
 
“Escrow Agent” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.2. 
 
“Escrow Instruction Letter” means the joint escrow instructions for the Escrow signed by the 
Parties in the substance and form of the draft Escrow Instruction Letter attached hereto as 
Attachment 15.  
 
“Estimated Costs” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 10.9. 
 
“Estimated Value” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 11.1. 
 
“Final Construction Documents” means those drawings, plans, and specifications sufficient in 
detail to obtain a building permit for the Project, including a final landscaping and grading plan. 
 
“Green Building Certification” means the Green Building Certification executed by a predecessor 
of Developer on November 15, 2016, attached hereto as Attachment 10. 
 
“Green Building Code” means the Boise City Green Construction Code, Boise City Code, Title 4, 
Chapter 7, as amended. 
 
“Hazardous Materials” means any substance, material, or waste which is (1) defined as a 
“hazardous waste,” “hazardous material,” “hazardous substance,” “extremely hazardous waste,” 
or “restricted hazardous waste” under any provision of federal or Idaho law; (2) petroleum; 
(3) asbestos; (4) polychlorinated biphenyls; (5) radioactive materials; (6) designated as a 
“hazardous substance” pursuant to Section 311 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1251, et seq. 
(33 U.S.C. § 1321), or listed pursuant to Section 307 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. § 1317); 
(7) defined as a “hazardous substance” pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 
42 U.S.C. § 6901, et seq. (42 U.S.C. § 6903); (8) defined as a “hazardous substance” pursuant to 
Section 101 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, 
42 U.S.C. § 9601, et seq. (42 U.S.C. § 9601); or (9) determined by Idaho, federal, or local 
governmental authority to be capable of posing a risk of injury to health, safety, or property, 
including underground storage tanks. 
 
“Landscape License Agreement” means an easement in the substance and form of the draft 
landscape license agreement attached hereto as Attachment 13. 
 
“Memorandum” means a summary of this Agreement in the substance and form attached hereto 
as Attachment 8, to be recorded in the office of the Recorder of Ada County, Idaho. 
“Party” has the meaning ascribed to it in the first paragraph of this document. 
 
“Parties” has the meaning ascribed to it in the first paragraph of this document. 
 



4 
 
 

“Permitted Title Exceptions” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.3.2(d). 
 
“Plan Area” means the area under the jurisdictional scope of the Redevelopment Plan. 
 
“Project” means the project that is the subject of this Agreement and more particularly described 
in Section 2.5 below. 
 
“Project Area” means the Project Area identified in the Redevelopment Plan. 
 
“Project Budget” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4.1(a). 
 
“Property” means the real property legally described on Attachment 2, and is intended to include 
the Site and Alley Vacation. 
 
“Public Project” means the certain utility and public improvements in or adjacent to, or being 
relocated to, the public right-of-way adjacent to the Site and has the meaning ascribed to it in 
Section 10 and as further described in Attachment 17. 
 
“Public Project Construction Documents” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 10.1. 
 
“Purchase Price” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.1.1. 
 
“Purchase Price Adjustment Request” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 9.4. 
 
“Redevelopment Plan” means the River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Plan as recommended 
by Agency and approved by City on December 6, 2004. 
 
“Reuse Appraisal” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 9.2, and as attached hereto as 
Attachment 6. 
 
“Reuse Appraiser” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.1.1. 
 
“Reuse Appraisal Data” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 9.2. 
 
“Schedule of Eligible Public Improvement Costs” means the schedule of eligible costs for the 
Public Project attached hereto as Attachment 18.  
 
“Schedule of Performance” means the schedule attached to this Agreement as Attachment 3. 
 
“Schedule of Value” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 10.8. 
 
“Site” means certain real property located at Ash and River Streets (the "Site"), as depicted on 
Attachment 1. 
 



5 
 
 

“Special Warranty Deed” means a deed in the substance and form of the draft deed attached 
hereto as Attachment 7. 
 
“Supplemental Title Objections” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3.2. 
 
“Title Company” means TitleOne Corporation, having an address of 1101 W. River St., Suite 201, 
Boise, ID 83702. 
 
“Title Policy” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.3.2(d). 
 
“Title Report” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3.2 and as attached to this Agreement as 
Attachment 5. 
 
“Urban Renewal Law” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.4.1. 
 
“Workforce Housing” for purposes of this Project means housing for the workforce earning 
between 80% to 120% of the Area Median Income (“AMI”) that is rent restricted pursuant to the 
Deed Restriction and is intended to consume no more than 30% of a household’s income.   The 
AMI shall be established annually by the Department of Housing and Urban Development of the 
United States of America (“HUD”) for the Ada County – Boise City, Idaho Metropolitan Statistical 
Area.  
 
2. SUBJECT OF AGREEMENT 
 

2.1. Purpose of This Agreement. 
 
 The purpose of this Agreement is to effectuate the Redevelopment Plan by memorializing 
the disposition of Agency owned property to Developer to facilitate the Project, for construction 
of a mixed-use development within the Plan Area. 
 

2.2. The Redevelopment Plan. 
 
 This Agreement is subject to the provisions of the Redevelopment Plan. 
 

2.3. The Project Area.  
 

The Project Area is located in the Plan Area, and the exact boundaries thereof are 
specifically described in the Redevelopment Plan. 
 



6 
 
 

2.4. Parties to This Agreement. 
 

2.4.1. Agency 
 
 Agency is an independent public body, corporate and politic, exercising governmental 
functions and powers and organized and existing under the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, 
title 50, chapter 20, Idaho Code, as amended and the Local Economic Development Act, title 50, 
chapter 29, Idaho Code, as amended (collectively the “Urban Renewal Law”). The office of Agency 
is located at 121 N. 9th Street, Ste. 501, Boise, Idaho.  
 

2.4.2. Developer  
 
 Developer is Ash and River Investment, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company. The 
principal office of Developer is located at 4176 North Hackberry Way, Boise, Idaho, 83702. 
Developer reserves the right to transfer its rights under this Agreement as authorized herein, 
including the right to have the Property to which it is to take title hereunder conveyed to and 
developed by an affiliated entity that it has a majority ownership stake in and controls 
(“Developer Affiliate”). 
 

2.4.3. Developer’s General Contactor  
 
 Developer has selected Visser Building Co., L.C. as its general contractor on the Project as 
of this date. The qualifications and identity of Developer’s general contractor are of particular 
concern to Agency. In the event Developer desires to select another general contractor for the 
Project other than the contractor identified in materials supplied to the Agency by Developer, 
Developer agrees to notify Agency of such desire and provide the identity of the substitute 
general contractor for Agency’s approval in writing.  
 

2.5. The Project. 
 
The Project that is the subject of this Agreement is a mixed-use development project, 

which includes thirty-four residential units of Workforce Housing, 500 s.f. +/- retail space with 
patio, and pedestrian supported amenities. The Workforce Housing residential component of the 
Project includes twenty-three, three-bedroom townhomes with garage parking for one 
automobile, two two-bedroom apartments and nine one-bedroom apartments with covered 
surface level parking at one space per apartment. Additional Project improvements will include 
a covered carport with a green roof and solar panels to power on-site utilities. The Workforce 
Housing units will be rent restricted as set forth in the Deed Restriction (Attachment 11). The 
Project shall be LEED Certified. Developer is bound by the Green Building Certification, dated 
November 15, 2016, executed by a predecessor of Developer and submitted with the response 
to the Request for Proposal, Workforce Housing Development, 503, 509, 511, 623 and 647 Ash 
Street. (Attachment 10). The Project shall be constructed consistent with the City of Boise’s 
Green Construction Code. In the event the Green Construction Code does not pertain to the 
construction type, Developer will obtain written confirmation from a Boise City building official 



7 
 
 

that the Project meets or exceeds the Green Construction Code consistent with the requirements 
set forth in Boise City Code, Title 4, Chapter 7 as if the Project was governed by the Green 
Construction Code. 

 
Additional improvements include updated streetscape improvements, native 

landscaping, and bicycle and pedestrian access to Ash Street and Pioneer Pathway.  
 
In addition to the mixed-use development project, including Workforce Housing and 

retail, the Project also includes the Public Project as more specifically described in Section 10.  
Collectively, the mixed-use development and the Public Project are referred to as the “Project.” 

  
The Project will substantially conform to the Design Development Plan, attached hereto 

as Attachment 4 (the “Design Development Plan”). 
 

2.6. Disposition Does Not Contemplate Land Speculation. 
 
Developer represents and warrants that each of its undertakings pursuant to this 

Agreement are and will be used for the purpose of the development of the Project in compliance 
with the Urban Renewal Law, and not for speculation in landholding. The Agency’s conveyance 
of the Property to Developer is for the express purpose of constructing the Project and no 
substitution or replacement project is permitted under the terms of this Agreement without the 
express written permission from the Agency Board of Commissioners. 

 
2.7. Selection of Developer. 
 
Developer further recognizes that in view of: 

 
 (1) The importance of the Project as part of the development of the Property to the 

general welfare of the community; 
 
 (2) the reliance by Agency on the real estate expertise of Developer and the 

continuing interest which Developer will have in the Project to assure the quality 
of the use, operation, and maintenance of the development thereof; and 

 
 (3) the fact that a change in control of Developer or any other act or transaction 

involving or resulting in a significant change in the ownership or a change with 
respect to the identity of the parties in control of Developer or the degree thereof 
may be for practical purposes a transfer or disposition of any portion of the 
Project; 

 
the qualifications and identity of Developer are of particular concern to Agency, and it is because 
of such qualifications and identity that Agency has entered into this Agreement with Developer. 
No voluntary or involuntary successor in interest of Developer shall acquire any rights or powers 
under this Agreement except as expressly set forth herein. Except as provided herein, Developer 



8 
 
 

shall not assign all or any part of this Agreement without the prior written approval of Agency, 
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 
 
 Developer warrants and represents to Agency that Developer is a manager-managed 
limited liability company. The sole manager of Developer is Ash and River Developer, LLC, an 
Idaho limited liability company, whose manager is J. Dean Papé. The manager of Developer has 
full and exclusive authority, power and discretion to manage and control the business and affairs 
of Developer relating to the acquisition and development of the Project, without the need for 
approval by the members of Developer. Although the manager is and intends to remain a 
member of Developer, the authority of the manager of Developer is not dependent upon the 
manager’s ownership of a membership interest in Developer. The following shall not be changed 
without the prior written approval of Agency until the Certificate of Completion and Temporary 
Certificate of Occupancy: (a) the structure of Developer as a manager-managed limited liability 
company; (b) the identity of the manager of Developer; (c) the number of managers of Developer; 
and (d) the authority of the manager as it relates to the Property and the Project. The 
representations and warranties made in this paragraph are true and correct as of the Effective 
Date.  
 

It shall not be unreasonable for Agency to withhold its approval when using criteria such 
as those used by this and other redevelopment agencies in selecting redevelopers for similar 
developments, or because the proposed transferee does not have a current financial strength, 
experience, or reputation for integrity equal to or better than J. Dean Papé as the manager of 
Ash and River Developer, LLC, the sole manager of Developer as of the date this Agreement has 
been executed by Agency. Developer shall promptly notify Agency of any and all changes 
whatsoever in the identity of the parties having control of Developer. This Agreement may be 
terminated by Agency if there is any significant change (voluntary or involuntary) in the 
management or control of Developer in violation of this Agreement (other than such changes 
occasioned solely by the death or incapacity of an individual) that has not been approved by 
Agency prior to the time of such change, if such change occurs prior to the issuance of the 
Certificate of Completion referred to in Section 9.1. 
 
 Notwithstanding any other provisions hereof, Developer reserves the right, at its 
discretion and without the prior written consent of Agency, subject to the disclosure 
requirements set forth below, to join and associate with other persons in joint ventures, 
partnerships, or other entities for the purpose of acquiring and developing the Property, or 
portions thereof, provided that Developer maintains operating control of such entities and 
remains fully responsible to Agency as provided in this Agreement with respect to the Property. 
This section is not deemed to preclude mortgage-lender participation and conditions therein, 
provided such mortgage-lender participation complies with this Agreement. 
 
 Provided further, however, Developer is required to make full disclosure to Agency of its 
principals, officers, managers, joint venturers, and key managerial employees involved in the 
Project and all similar material information concerning Developer, to the extent relevant to the 
performance hereunder. 



9 
 
 

 
3. RIGHT OF ENTRY/REVIEW OF TITLE 
 

3.1 Right of Entry; Developer's Investigations.  
 
Subject to the conditions set forth herein, including the insurance and indemnity 

provisions set forth in Section 8, Developer and its agents, contractors, consultants, and 
employees are hereby given permission to access the Property at all reasonable times until the 
Closing (or earlier termination of this Agreement), during normal business hours, for the purpose 
of conducting tests and inspections of the Property, including surveys and architectural, 
engineering, geotechnical and environmental inspections and tests; provided, however, any 
intrusive or invasive investigations (e.g., core sampling, and including, without limitation, any 
environmental testing other than a Phase I or Phase II Environmental Site Assessment or update 
to any prior environmental assessments) shall be subject to Agency's prior written consent, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
Developer shall provide to Agency, promptly upon completion and at no cost or expense 

to Agency, a list of all reports, studies and test results prepared by Developer's consultants and 
copies of any of the above-listed materials Agency might request. All of the foregoing inspections 
shall be performed by Developer at Developer's sole cost and expense.  

 
As a condition to any such entry, inspection or testing, Developer shall (a) notify Agency 

in advance of the date and purpose of the intended entry and provide to Agency the names 
and/or affiliations of the persons entering the Property; (b) conduct all studies in a diligent, 
expeditious and safe manner and not allow any dangerous or hazardous conditions to occur on 
the Property; (c) comply with all applicable laws and governmental regulations; (d) keep the 
Property free and clear of all materialmen's liens, lis pendens and other liens arising out of the 
entry and work performed by or on behalf of Developer; (e) maintain or assure maintenance of 
workers' compensation insurance on all persons entering the Property in the amounts required 
by the State of Idaho; and (f) promptly repair any and all damage to the Property caused by 
Developer, its agents, employees, contractors, or consultants and return the Property to its 
original condition following Developer's entry.  

 
Developer shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency, and its officers, officials, 

representatives, members, employees, volunteers and agents from and against any and all loss, 
cost, liability or expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising from the entries of 
Developer, its agents, contractors, consultants, and employees upon the Property or from 
Developer's failure to comply with the conditions to Developer's entry onto the Property 
provided for herein; provided, however, the indemnity shall not extend to protect Agency from 
any pre-existing liabilities for matters merely discovered by Developer (e.g., latent environmental 
contamination). Such indemnity shall survive the Close of Escrow or the termination of this 
Agreement for any reason. 
 



10 
 
 

3.2 Review of Title; Approved Title Exceptions.  
 
Prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement, Developer reviewed the Commitment for 

Title Insurance (Attachment 5) and underlying title documents disclosed therein for the Property, 
issued by the Title Company under File No. 15262350, having an effective date of 
___________________ (the "Title Report"). Developer agrees it shall accept title to the Property 
with the exceptions disclosed in the Title Report and the Permitted Title Exceptions, as defined 
herein. 
 

Not less than fifteen business days prior to the Close of Escrow, Developer shall obtain a 
supplement to the Title Report (with the understanding that Developer shall have the right to 
order updates to the Title Report at any time prior to Close of Escrow) disclosing any new title 
matters that will adversely affect the development of the Project, not disclosed to Developer 
prior to the expiration of the Effective Date, Developer shall have five (5) business days from 
receipt of such supplemental title report (and all underlying documents referenced therein) to 
notify Agency of any objections ("Supplemental Title Objections") it may have with respect to the 
supplemental title report. Agency shall cause an updated Title Report to be delivered to 
Developer 15 days prior to the Closing Date to allow Developer to confirm there has been no 
changes to the Title Report. 

 
If Developer does not give such notice within such five (5) business day period, such 

failure shall be conclusively deemed to be Developer's approval of those matters.  
 
If Developer has any Supplemental Title Objections, Agency shall have five (5) business 

days after receipt thereof to notify Developer that Agency (a) will cause or (b) elects not to cause 
any or all of the Supplemental Title Objections disclosed therein to be removed or insured over 
by the Title Company in a manner reasonably satisfactory to Developer. Agency's failure to notify 
Developer within such five (5) business day period as to any Supplemental Title Objections that 
Agency is willing to cure or cause to be insured over shall be deemed an election by Agency not 
to remove or have the Title Company insure over such Supplemental Title Objections.  

 
If Agency notifies or is deemed to have notified Developer that Agency shall not remove 

nor have the Title Company insure over any or all of the Supplemental Title Objections, Developer 
shall have three (3) business days after the expiration of Agency's five (5) business day period to 
respond to Developer's Supplemental Title Objections to either (a) terminate this Agreement; or 
(b) waive such Supplemental Title Objections and proceed to Closing, without any abatement or 
reduction in the purchase price on account of such Supplemental Title Objections; or (c) propose 
an abatement or reduction in the purchase price on account of such Supplemental Title 
Objections, which the Agency shall have 10 days to accept or reject.  

 
If Developer does not give notice within said period, Developer shall be deemed to have 

elected to waive the Supplemental Title Objections. 
 



11 
 
 

3.3 Compliance with Laws. 
 
Developer shall comply with applicable laws and building codes with respect to any work 

or investigations on the Property prior to Closing, including the City’s Erosion Control Program 
and Green Building Code. 
 
4. EVIDENCE OF PROJECT FINANCING 

 
4.1. Submission of Preliminary Evidence of Financing.  
 
No later than one hundred eighty (180) days after the Effective Date or such later time as 

may be approved by Agency, Developer shall submit to Agency's Executive Director evidence 
satisfactory to the Executive Director that Developer will have at or before Closing the financial 
capability necessary for the acquisition of the Property and the development of the Project 
thereon pursuant to this Agreement. Such preliminary evidence of financial capability shall 
include all of the following: 

 
(a) Reliable cost estimates for Developer's total cost of acquiring the Property and 
developing the Project (including both "hard" and "soft” costs) ("Project Budget"). 
 
(b) A copy of the loan commitment or commitments obtained by Developer from a 
qualified lender supervised, approved, regulated, or insured by any agency of the Federal 
government, or proof of funds from an equity partner, for all of the sources of funds to 
finance acquisition of the Property and construction of the Project, including those from 
public agencies. Each commitment for financing shall be in such form and content 
acceptable to Agency's Executive Director and shall reasonably evidence a firm and 
enforceable commitment, with only those contingencies and conditions that are standard 
or typical for similar projects prior to land closing. 
 
(c) If the total Project Budget exceeds the amount of financing commitments received 
pursuant to subparagraph (b) above, evidence satisfactory to the Executive Director 
demonstrating that Developer has adequate funds available and committed to cover such 
difference. 
 
(d) For purposes of compliance with this Section 4.1, non-binding loan commitments 
or loan term sheets from a qualified lender will be acceptable. 
 
4.2. Time to Approve Evidence of Financing. 
 
Agency shall approve or disapprove of Developer's evidence of financing within twenty 

(20) days of receipt of a complete submission. Agency's approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. If Agency's Executive Director shall disapprove such evidence of financing, he or she 
shall do so by written notice to Developer stating the reasons for such disapproval and Developer 
shall promptly resubmit its evidence of financial capability, as modified to conform to Agency's 
requirements, not more than twenty (20) days after receipt of the Agency Executive Director's 
disapproval. 



12 
 
 

 
4.3. Public Records Law.  
 
All information submitted to Agency may be subject to the Idaho Public Records Law. As 

an alternative to formal submittal of this required information, Developer may allow an 
inspection and review of such information by Agency. In such case, Agency shall provide a notice 
of approval of the evidence of financing in writing within the time allotted in Section 4.2. 

 
4.4. Lender Modifications. 
 
The Parties acknowledge that substantial debt financing will be necessary for the 

development of the Project. Developer may submit for Agency approval, and Agency shall 
reasonably consider, modifications to this Agreement requested by Developer’s lenders or 
prospective lenders for the Project. 
 
5. DISPOSITION AND CONVEYANCE OF THE PROPERTY 
 

5.1. Disposition and Conveyance of the Property. 
 
 In accordance with and subject to all the terms, covenants, and conditions (including the 
attachments) of this Agreement, Agency agrees to convey the entire fee estate of the Property 
in the condition required pursuant to Section 6 of this Agreement to Developer. 
 

Developer agrees to develop the Property and complete construction of the Project 
within twenty-four (24) months from the Closing Date, for the consideration, and subject to the 
terms, conditions, and provisions of this Agreement, including, without limitation, as provided in 
the Schedule of Performance (Attachment 3) and the other attachments. Agency agrees to meet 
its obligations herein provided with respect to the Property including, without limitation, as 
provided in the Schedule of Performance. The time periods set forth in the Schedule of 
Performance may be extended for up to 90 days in total if the delays are caused by matters 
beyond Developer’s reasonable control or otherwise consented to by Agency. Any extension 
must be agreed upon in writing by Agency’s Executive Director. 
 

5.1.1. Purchase Price 
 
The purchase price for the Property (the “Purchase Price”) is estimated to be Six Hundred 

Seventy-Nine Thousand Dollars ($679,000). The Purchase Price includes the fair market value of 
the Property unencumbered by this Agreement, as determined by the Parties based upon the 
commercial appraisal obtained by Agency from Valbridge Property Advisors/ Mountain States 
Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. (the “Reuse Appraiser”) dated July 20, 2017, in the amount of Six 
Hundred Forty-Five Thousand Dollars ($645,000), plus the cost to acquire the Alley Vacation 
Property from the Ada County Highway District (“ACHD”) through the vacation process (the 
“Alley Vacation”) in the estimated amount of Thirty-Four Thousand Dollars ($34,000), provided 



13 
 
 

however, the Alley Vacation Property acquisition price comprising a portion of Purchase Price 
shall be adjusted at Closing to reflect the actual amount paid by Agency to ACHD. 
 

5.1.2. Payment of Purchase Price 
 
(a) Deposit. Developer previously deposited with Agency the sum of Ten Thousand 
Dollars ($10,000) under the terms of the Agreement to Negotiate Exclusively. Upon full 
execution of this Agreement, the Agreement to Negotiate Exclusively shall be of no 
further effect and such sum shall become a deposit under this Agreement ("Deposit"). 
The Deposit shall be credited to the Purchase Price upon the Closing. 

 
(b) Closing Funds. Prior to the Closing, the balance of the Purchase Price shall be 
deposited into Escrow by Developer by (i) a wire transfer of funds, (ii) cashier's or certified 
check drawn on or issued by the offices of a financial institution located in the State of 
Idaho, or (iii) cash. 
 
5.2. Escrow. 
 
Within five (5) business days after the Effective Date of this Agreement, the Parties agree 

to open an escrow (the “Escrow”) with TitleOne Corporation (the “Escrow Agent”). A duplicate 
original of this Agreement and the Escrow Instruction Letter (Attachment 15) shall be delivered 
to the Escrow Agent upon the opening of the Escrow. Agency and Developer shall provide such 
additional escrow instructions as shall be necessary and consistent with this Agreement. The 
Escrow Agent hereby is empowered to act under this Agreement and the Escrow Instruction 
Letter and, upon indicating its acceptance of the provisions of this Section in writing delivered to 
Agency and to Developer within five (5) days after the opening of the Escrow, shall carry out its 
duties as Escrow Agent hereunder. 
 

5.2.1. Payment of Costs 
 

Developer and Agency shall each pay one-half of the Escrow fee, any charges for recording 
the Deed, the Memorandum, the Deed Restriction and the other documents to be recorded 
hereunder (to the extent the County Recorder’s Office does not waive such charges). Agency shall 
pay the charge for an ALTA standard owner’s policy in the amount of the Purchase Price. 
Developer shall pay the charge for any additional title coverage requested by Developer, 
including an ALTA extended owner’s policy, if Developer obtains such policies. Developer will be 
responsible for paying endorsements desired by Developer except for the cost of any 
endorsements Agency agrees to provide to cure any Supplemental Title Objections pursuant to 
Section 3.2. Agency and Developer shall each be responsible for their respective attorneys’ fees 
and costs. Taxes and assessments, if any, applicable to periods before and after Closing shall be 
allocated to the Property and prorated between the Parties in an equitable manner. Agency shall 
cause all utilities serving the Property to be terminated on or before Closing and shall be 
responsible for costs associated with such utility services prior to Closing. All other costs of the 



14 
 
 

Escrow not specifically allocated in this Agreement shall be allocated to the Parties as is 
customary in a commercial real estate transaction in Ada County, Idaho. 

 
5.2.2. Close of Escrow 

 
The Close of Escrow (“Closing”) shall occur within ten (10) days after the date all of the 

Agency Closing Conditions and the Developer’s Closing Conditions in Sections 5.3.1 and 5.3.2 
(other than the conditions on the delivery of documents and funds into Escrow, which shall occur 
during said ten (10) day period) are satisfied or waived by the benefited party, but in no event 
later than the date that is ten (10) months after the Effective Date. The Close of Escrow means 
the fulfillment of the Escrow terms and conclusion of the Escrow, including, without limitation, 
the execution of unexecuted documents, the recordation of documents specified for recording, 
the issuance of title insurance policies, the payment of fees and the delivery of funds and 
documents as directed in the Escrow Instruction Letter. The Escrow shall close as provided in the 
Escrow Instruction Letter on or before the Closing. 

 
5.2.3. Deliveries by Agency 

 
On or before the scheduled Closing Date, Agency shall deliver the following to Escrow 

Agent:  
 
(a) the Special Warranty Deed, duly executed and acknowledged by Agency;  

 
(b) the Memorandum, duly executed and acknowledged by Agency;  

 
(c) the Deed Restriction, duly executed and acknowledged by Agency; 

 
(d) Construction License Agreement (Attachment 14), duly executed and 
acknowledged by Agency; 
 
(e) Temporary license agreement for landscaping and berm to be installed on 
adjacent property owned by Agency (the “Landscape License Agreement”) (Attachment 
13);  
 
(f) all documents necessary to replat the Property into one single legal parcel as of 
the Closing, which shall be completed at Agency’s sole cost and expense; and  

 
(g) all other documents reasonably required by Escrow Agent from Agency to carry 
out and close the Escrow pursuant to this Agreement, including Agency’s portion of the 
Escrow fees and prorations  

 
5.2.4. Deliveries by Developer 

 
On or before the scheduled Closing Date, Developer shall deliver the following to Escrow 

Agent: 



15 
 
 

 
(a) the balance of the Purchase Price;  
 
(b) the Special Warranty Deed, duly executed and acknowledged by Developer;  

 
(c) the Memorandum, duly executed and acknowledged by Developer;  

 
(d) executed construction loan documents for the Project consistent with the 
evidence of financing as approved by Agency pursuant to Section 4;  

 
(e) the Deed Restriction, duly executed and acknowledged by Developer; 

 
(f) Construction License Agreement, duly executed and acknowledged by Developer;  

 
(g) Landscape License Agreement, duly executed and acknowledged by Developer; 
and 
 
(h) all other sums and documents reasonably required by Escrow Agent from 
Developer to carry out and close the Escrow pursuant to this Agreement, including 
Developer’s portion of the Escrow fees and prorations. 
 

5.2.5. [RESERVED] 
 

5.2.6. Termination 
 
If the Escrow is not in condition to close before the time for conveyance established in 

this Agreement, either Party who then shall have fully performed the acts to be performed before 
the Closing, may, in writing, terminate this Agreement in the manner set forth in Section 12.6 
hereof, and demand the return of its money, papers, and documents. Thereupon all obligations 
and liabilities of the Parties under this Agreement shall cease and terminate in the manner set 
forth in Section 12.6 hereof. If neither Agency nor Developer shall have fully performed the acts 
to be performed before the time for conveyance established in the Schedule of Performance, no 
termination or demand for return shall be recognized until ten (10) days after the Escrow Agent 
shall have mailed copies of such demand to the other Party or Parties at the address of its or their 
principal place or places of business. If any objections are raised within the 10-day period, the 
Escrow Agent is authorized to hold all money, papers, and documents until instructed in writing 
by both Agency and Developer or upon failure thereof by a court of competent jurisdiction. If no 
such demands are made, the Parties shall cause the Closing to occur as soon as possible. The 
terms of this paragraph shall not affect the rights of Agency or Developer to terminate this 
Agreement under Section 12 hereof. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to impair or affect 
the rights or obligations of Agency or Developer to specific performance. 

 



16 
 
 

5.2.7. Amendment 
 
Any amendment to the Escrow Instruction Letter shall be in writing and signed by both 

Agency and Developer. At the time of any amendment, the Escrow Agent shall agree to carry out 
its duties as Escrow Agent under such amendment. 
 

5.2.8. No Real Estate Commissions or Fees 
 
Agency represents that it has not engaged any broker, agent, or finder in connection with 

this transaction. Developer represents that it has not engaged a broker in connection with this 
transaction. Developer agrees to hold Agency harmless from any claim concerning any real estate 
commission or brokerage fees arising out of Developer’s actions and agrees to defend and 
indemnify Agency from any such claim asserted concerning the commission or brokerage fees. 
Agency agrees to hold Developer harmless from any claim concerning any real estate commission 
or brokerage fees arising out of Agency’s actions and agrees to defend and indemnify Developer 
from any such claim asserted concerning the commission or brokerage fees. Provided, however, 
nothing herein shall prevent Developer from preleasing or preselling space within the Project, 
thus incurring real estate commissions or brokerage fees. In no event, though, shall Agency be 
liable for any real estate commission or brokerage fees on account of any such preleasing or 
preselling activity. 

 
5.3. Conditions to Property Transfer. 
 

5.3.1. Conditions to Agency’s Obligations 
 
In addition to any other condition set forth in this Agreement in favor of Agency, Agency 

shall have the right to condition its obligation to convey the Property to Developer and close the 
Escrow upon the satisfaction, or written waiver by Agency, of each of the following conditions 
precedent on the Closing Date or such earlier time as provided for herein (collectively, the 
“Agency Closing Conditions”):  

 
(a) Permits and Approvals. Developer shall have obtained all land use approvals and 
entitlements for the conveyance of the Property and for the development of the Project 
from all governmental agencies with jurisdiction, with the exception of grading permits, 
building permits and final condominium plat approvals. The time period for appealing or 
challenging such approvals and entitlements shall have expired with no challenge 
outstanding. Developer shall have obtained approval of its final grading plans and building 
plans for the Project and grading permits and building permits shall be ready to be issued 
upon payment of fees on or after Closing. If available, Developer shall provide written 
confirmation from the City that the permits and approvals are ready to be issued upon 
the payment of fees on or after Closing. 

 
(b) Developer Deliveries Made. Developer has deposited with Escrow Agent all sums 
and documents required of Developer by this Agreement for the Closing.  



17 
 
 

 
(c) Insurance. Developer shall have timely submitted and obtained Agency’s approval 
of the insurance required pursuant to Section 8.1 of this Agreement.  

 
(d) Evidence of Financing. Agency shall have approved Developer’s evidence of 
financing in accordance with Section 4 of this Agreement, and the financing for the Project 
shall close and be available to Developer upon Developer’s acquisition of the Property. 

 
(e) No Default. Developer shall not be in material default of any of its obligations 
under this Agreement (and shall not have received notice of a default hereunder which 
has not been cured or is in the cure process), and all representations and warranties of 
Developer contained herein shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date 
of this Agreement and the Closing Date.  

 
(f) Construction Contract. Prior to Closing, Developer shall submit to Agency a 
construction contract, or other evidence satisfactory to Agency, with Visser Building Co. 
for the Project that requires the Project to be constructed for an amount that does not 
substantially exceed the Project Budget, as described in Section 4.1(a). 

 
(g) Alley Vacation. Developer shall have obtained from ACHD evidence of the 
vacation of the Alley Vacation Property vacating all of ACHD’s right, title and interest into 
the Alley Vacation Property as further shown and described in Attachment 16.  Agency 
has agreed to submit to ACHD the application to vacate the Alley Vacation Property 
prepared by Developer within fifteen (15) days of the Effective Date. 
 

5.3.2. Conditions to Developer’s Obligations 
 
In addition to any other condition set forth in this Agreement in favor of Developer, 

Developer shall have the right to condition its obligation to purchase the Property and close the 
Property Escrow upon the satisfaction, or written waiver by Developer, of each of the following 
conditions precedent on the Closing Date or such earlier time as provided for herein (collectively, 
the “Developer’s Closing Conditions”):  

 
(a) Permits and Approvals. Developer shall have obtained all land use approvals and 
entitlements for the conveyance of the Property and for the development of the Project 
from all governmental agencies with jurisdiction, with the exception of grading permits, 
building permits and final condominium plat approvals. The time period for appealing or 
challenging such approvals and entitlements shall have expired with no challenge 
outstanding. Developer shall have obtained approval of its final grading plans and building 
plans for the Project and grading permits and building permits shall be ready to be issued 
upon payment of fees on or after Closing. 
 
(b) Replatting of Property. Developer shall have received confirmation that the City 
of Boise has approved the consolidation and replatting by Agency of the parcels currently 



18 
 
 

comprising the Property to create one legal parcel concurrently with the Closing, which 
shall be completed at Agency’s sole cost and expense. 
 
(c) Agency Deliveries Made. Agency has deposited with Escrow Agent all documents 
required of Agency by this Agreement for the Closing.  

 
(d) Title Policy. The Title Company is unconditionally and irrevocably committed to 
issue to Developer at Closing an ALTA standard coverage owner’s title policy, or, upon 
Developer’s request, an ALTA extended coverage owner’s policy of title insurance (“Title 
Policy”), insuring Developer’s title to the Property in the amount of the Purchase Price, 
subject only to the following (collectively, the “Permitted Title Exceptions”): the standard 
exceptions and exclusions from coverage contained in such form of the policy; matters 
created by, through or under Developer; items disclosed by the Survey; items that would 
have been disclosed by a physical inspection of the Property on the Effective Date; real 
estate taxes not yet due and payable; any deed restrictions, including the declaration of 
deed restriction preventing Developer from erecting a fence, hedge, or any other 
landscape plantings that would restrict vision and that exceed three feet in height; the 
documents to be recorded under this Agreement; any mutually agreed upon 
Supplemental Title Objections; and the exceptions disclosed in the Title Report. If 
Developer requests ALTA extended coverage, any standard exceptions shall not be 
Permitted Title Exceptions. 

 
(e) No Default. Agency shall not be in material default of any of its obligations under 
this Agreement (and shall not have received notice of a default hereunder which has not 
been cured or is in the cure process), and Agency’s representations and warranties 
contained herein shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date of this 
Agreement and the Closing Date.  

 
(f) Debt and Equity Financing. That Developer is able to obtain financing reasonably 
acceptable to Developer, and submit to Agency reasonably acceptable evidence of 
financing pursuant to Section 4.1 and as approved by the Agency, and that all conditions 
to any financing commitments for the Project are satisfied and such commitments are 
fulfilled by the lenders and other third parties involved. A commitment to make a 
construction loan shall be considered fulfilled upon execution of the loan agreement by 
Developer and the lender and depositing with Escrow Agent the mortgage or deed of trust 
securing the loan to be executed by Developer as of the Closing Date. 

 
(g) Adjacent Property Easement Agreements. That Developer is able to obtain utility 
and sewer usage and easement agreements with the City of Boise related to the joint use 
of those utilities on the adjacent property to the Project more commonly known as the 
Hayman House property.  

 
(h) Alley Vacation. Developer shall have obtained from ACHD evidence of the 
vacation of the alleyway vacating all of ACHD’s right, title and interest into the alleyway 



19 
 
 

running along the boundary of the Property as further shown and described in 
Attachment 16.  Agency has agreed to submit to ACHD the application to vacate the 
alleyway prepared by Developer. 

 
5.4. Satisfaction of Conditions.  
 
Where satisfaction of any of the foregoing conditions requires action by Developer or 

Agency, each party shall use its diligent efforts, in good faith, and at its own cost, to expeditiously 
satisfy such condition. If a party is not in a position to know whether or not a condition precedent 
has been satisfied, then the party that is aware of the status of the condition shall immediately 
notify the other party.  

 
5.5. Waiver.  
 
Agency may at any time or times, at its election, waive any of the Agency Closing 

Conditions set forth in Section 5.3.1, but any such waiver shall be effective only if contained in a 
writing signed by Agency and delivered to Developer. Developer may at any time or times, at its 
election, waive any of the Developer’s Closing Conditions set forth in Section 5.3.2, but any such 
waiver shall be effective only if contained in a writing signed by Developer and delivered to 
Agency.  

 
5.6. Termination.  
 
In the event each of the Agency Closing Conditions set forth in Section 5.3.1 is not fulfilled 

by the outside date for the Closing Date, or such earlier time period as provided for herein, or 
waived by Agency pursuant to Section 5.5, and provided Agency is not in default of this 
Agreement, Agency may at its option terminate this Agreement and the Escrow opened 
hereunder. In the event that each of the Developer’s Closing Conditions set forth in Section 5.3.2 
is not fulfilled by the outside date for the Closing Date, or such earlier time period as provided 
for herein, or waived by Developer pursuant to Section 5.5, and provided Developer is not in 
default of this Agreement, Developer may at its option terminate this Agreement and the Escrow 
opened hereunder. No termination under this Agreement shall release either party then in 
default from liability for such default. In the event this Agreement is terminated, all closing 
documents and funds delivered by Agency to Developer or Escrow Agent shall be returned 
immediately to Agency and all closing documents and funds delivered by Developer to Agency or 
Escrow Agent shall be returned immediately to Developer; provided, however, that Agency shall 
retain the Deposit so long as Agency has fully performed the obligations required to be 
performed by Agency prior to that time. 
 



20 
 
 

6. CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY. 
 
6.1. “As Is”. 
 
Subject to Agency’s representations and warranties expressly set forth in this Agreement, 

Developer acknowledges and agrees that any portion of the Property that it acquires from Agency 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be purchased “as is.”  

 
Agency makes no representations or warranties with respect to whether the Property is 

currently, or in the future, located either wholly or partially in a flood plain or a flood hazard 
boundary or similar area. 

 
6.2. Agency Representations. 
 
Agency represents and warrants to Developer as follows: (1) Agency has given Developer 

complete copies of the Title Report and the Environmental Reports; (2) the Title Report and 
Environmental Reports constitute all information of which Agency has actual knowledge 
concerning the physical condition of the Property, including, without limitation, information 
about any Hazardous Materials or violations of any applicable laws; (3) the individuals entering 
into this Agreement on behalf of Agency have the authority to bind Agency; (4) entering into this 
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly 
authorized by all necessary Agency action and do not violate the laws governing Agency’s 
activities or any other agreement to which Agency is a party; (5) upon Close of Escrow, there will 
be no tenants, occupants or other parties in possession of the Property. These representations 
and warranties shall survive Close of Escrow and delivery of the Deed to Developer. 

 
6.3. Environmental Release and Waiver. 
 
Subject to Agency’s representations and warranties expressly set forth in this Agreement, 

Developer hereby releases and waives all rights, claims, or causes of action Developer may have 
in the future against Agency arising out of or in connection with any Hazardous Materials at, on, 
in, beneath, or from the Property. 
 
7. DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY. 

 
7.1.  Scope of Development. 
 
The Property shall be developed subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
7.2. Local, State, and Federal Laws. 
 
Developer shall carry out any required construction of the Project in conformity with all 

applicable laws, including all applicable federal and state labor standards. 
 



21 
 
 

7.3. Antidiscrimination During Construction. 
 
Developer, for itself and its successors and assigns, agrees that in the construction of the 

improvements provided for in this Agreement, Developer will not discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of physical disability, race, color, creed, religion, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity/ expression, marital status, ancestry, or national origin. 

 
7.4. Design Development Plan and Design Review Drawings. 
 
The Parties acknowledge Developer has submitted to Agency the Design Development 

Plan (Attachment 4). Agency approved the Design Development Plan for development of the 
Property. Prior to submitting or re-submitting design review drawings to the City Design Review 
Committee (the “Design Review Drawings”), Developer shall provide Agency all updated and 
revised Design Review Drawings and a clear chart showing itemized changes from the approved 
Design Development Plan. Agency shall have fifteen (15) days to review, approve, disapprove, or 
modify the Design Review Drawings, or any changes thereto. Any disapproval shall state in writing 
the reasons for disapproval and the changes which Agency requests to be made. Such reasons 
and changes must be consistent with any items previously approved or deemed approved 
hereunder. Developer, upon receipt of a disapproval based upon powers reserved by Agency 
hereunder, shall revise such plans, drawings, and related documents (or such portions thereof) 
and resubmit them to Agency as soon as possible after receipt of the notice of disapproval. 
Developer shall not submit any Design Review Drawings to the City without Agency’s prior 
approval of such Design Review Drawings.  
 

7.5. Final Construction Documents.  
 
Thirty (30) days prior to Closing, Developer shall submit to Agency Final Construction 

Documents and a clear chart showing changes from the Design Development Plan including: 
 
• square footage by type of uses 
• number of parking spaces 
• perspective renderings 
• floor plans 
• site plan 
• elevations/sections listing exterior finishes 
 
The Final Construction Documents shall be approved, approved conditionally, or 

disapproved within the time established in the Schedule of Performance and subject to the 
provisions of Sections 7.6, 7.7, 7.8, and 7.9, provided, City’s approval of the Final Construction 
Documents shall constitute Agency’s approval unless Agency notifies Developer in writing within 
fifteen (15) days after Developer notifies Agency that City has approved the Final Construction 
Documents that Agency disapproves of the Final Construction Documents. 

 



22 
 
 

7.6. Agency Approval of Plans, Drawings, and Related Documents. 
 
Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Agency shall have the right of reasonable 

architectural review of all plans and drawings, including any substantial changes therein. In 
reviewing the Final Construction Documents, Agency shall be guided by the Redevelopment Plan 
for the Project Area and Developer’s Ash Street – Workforce Housing Development Proposal 
dated November 15, 2016, and approved by the Agency on December 12, 2016. Developer shall 
make every reasonable effort to present drawings and plans in compliance with the guidelines. 
In the event Developer seeks deviation or waiver from those guidelines, Developer shall so 
indicate when those drawings and plans are submitted. The guidelines shall be applicable unless 
specifically waived by Agency. 
 

7.7. Communication; Revisions. 
 
Agency and Developer shall communicate and consult informally as frequently as is 

necessary to ensure that the formal submittal of any documents to Agency can receive prompt 
and speedy consideration. If any revisions or corrections of plans approved by Agency shall be 
required by any government official, agency, department, or bureau having jurisdiction or any 
lending institution involved in financing, Developer and Agency shall cooperate in efforts to revise 
or correct the plans or obtain a waiver of such requirements or to develop a mutually acceptable 
alternative. 

 
7.8. Prompt Review.  
 
Agency shall promptly approve (but in not less than 20 days) the Final Construction 

Documents to the extent such plans, drawings, and related documents are consistent with plans 
(including the Design Development Plan) previously approved by Agency. Agency may designate 
a committee of its members and staff to expedite plan approvals. Failure by Agency either to 
approve or to disapprove plans that are consistent with plans previously approved by Agency 
within the times established in the Schedule of Performance shall be deemed an approval. Any 
such approved plans, drawings, and related documents shall not be subject to subsequent 
disapproval. Provided, however, if Developer proposes or advances any material change to the 
exterior design of the Project previously approved by Agency, Agency shall have the right to 
review and approve or disapprove such changes within the time frames and in compliance with 
the procedures stated herein. Any disapproval shall state in writing the reasons for disapproval 
and the changes which Agency requests to be made. Developer, upon receipt of a disapproval 
based upon powers reserved by Agency hereunder, shall review such plans, drawings, and related 
documents (or such portions thereof) and resubmit them to Agency as soon as possible after 
receipt of the notice of disapproval. Plans approved or deemed approved hereunder shall be 
deemed in all respects to be in accordance with the Redevelopment Plan. 

 



23 
 
 

7.9. Changes to Final Construction Documents. 
 
If Developer desires to make any substantial change in the Final Construction Documents 

after their approval, such proposed change shall be submitted to Agency for approval. For 
purposes of this section, and this section only, “substantial change” is defined as any change in 
the Final Construction Documents which by such change will revise the value or cost of the 
Project (following completion) by more than fifteen percent (15%), change the size of the Project 
by more or less than fifteen percent (15%), or any change to the number of residential and retail 
units in the Project (such numbers and anticipated uses are set forth in Section 2.5). If Final 
Construction Documents, as modified by the proposed change, conform to the requirements of 
Section 7.5 of this Agreement, the proposed change shall be approved and the Party submitting 
such change shall be notified in writing within ten (10) days after submission. Such change in the 
Final Construction Documents shall, in any event, be deemed approved unless rejected, in whole 
or in part, by written notice thereof setting forth in detail the reason therefore, and such rejection 
shall be made within such 10-day period. 

 
7.10. Construction Reporting.  
 
The Parties acknowledge and agree that communication and cooperation between the 

Parties is imperative to the successful completion of the Project and to achieve the objectives of 
the Redevelopment Plan. Therefore, the Parties shall endeavor to keep the other Party 
sufficiently informed regarding matters related to the development and construction of the 
Project so the other Party can have a meaningful opportunity to review, comment, and respond 
on matters relating to the other Party’s performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
7.10.1. Developer’s Obligations 

 
Developer, as requested by Agency, shall: 
 
(a) Permit Agency staff to attend weekly and/or monthly construction progress and 
design meetings for the Project to permit Agency to assess the progress of development 
and construction and assess compliance with the Schedule of Performance, and the 
adherence of the development and construction to the plans approved by Agency; 

 
(b) Provide Agency with a monthly written status report on the Project (consisting of 
a simple narrative of the status, an update as to the progress on the schedule of 
performance and a summary of the percentage of completion) in sufficient time to allow 
for their distribution to Agency’s board of directors prior to their regular monthly 
meetings; such monthly report shall include any photos taken by Developer in the normal 
course of project supervision that would be helpful to supplement the simple written 
narrative in the monthly status reports; 
 
(c) If requested, attend and provide oral status reports on the Project at regular 
monthly meetings of Agency’s board of directors;  



24 
 
 

 
(d)  To the extent the meetings described in Section 7.10.1(a) above are not adequate 
as determined by Agency, schedule and attend meetings at the request of the Agency 
with Agency’s staff, Agency’s consultants, and representatives from the City of Boise or 
other public entities (if necessary) for general coordination and review of the progress 
and schedule of the Project, any implementation agreements or other documents to be 
submitted by either Party, and any other tasks necessary or convenient for development 
of the Project to achieve the objectives of the Redevelopment Plan; and 

 
(e) If requested, include Agency name and logo on construction signs, fencing and 
other locations in and around the Project Site during construction. 
 

7.10.2. Agency’s Obligations 
 

In furtherance of this Section, Agency shall: 
 
(a) provide timely and meaningful comments to the information, reports, and other 
documents submitted to Agency by Developer; and 
 
(b) upon Developer’s request, provide Developer with all of Agency’s comments, 
conditions, and requirements regarding Developer’s plans for the Project in sufficient 
time (provided that Developer provides Agency with a reasonable period of time for 
Agency to review Developer’s plans) for Developer to respond to Agency’s comments, 
conditions, and requirements prior to filing an application with City for the Project. 

 
7.10.3. Meeting Attendance 

 
The Parties shall use their best reasonable efforts to have their respective principals and 

staff members available, as needed, to participate in meetings, hearings, and work sessions if 
requested by the other Party. 

 
7.10.4. Access to the Property 

 
For the purpose of assuring compliance with this Agreement, agents and employees of 

Agency shall have the reasonable right of access to the Property without charges or fees and at 
normal construction hours during the period of construction for the purposes of this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to, the inspection of the work being performed in constructing the 
improvements. Agency shall cause anyone who comes onto the Property on Agency’s behalf to 
comply with applicable OSHA or other safety regulations, and to provide no less than 48 hours’ 
notice prior to exercising its rights of access pursuant to this Section. To the extent permitted by 
law, Agency shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Developer and its respective officers, 
officials, representatives, members, employees, and agents from and against any and all loss, 
cost, liability or expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising from the gross negligence 
or willful misconduct of Agency, its agents, and employees upon entry on the Property pursuant 



25 
 
 

to this Section. Such indemnity shall survive the Close of Escrow or the termination of this 
Agreement for any reason. 
 

7.10.5. Reasonableness 
 
Developer shall reasonably comply with the requirements of the Redevelopment Plan and 

shall prepare Final Construction Documents consistent with the Design Development Plan. 
Agency will not unreasonably impose requirements regarding materials, design elements, 
construction methods or other elements that materially affect the costs of the Project, or which 
would cause development of the Project to become economically infeasible as set forth in 
Subsection 12.6.1(d). Nothing herein shall limit the reviewing authority of Agency granted under 
this Agreement, provided, however, that Agency and, Developer acknowledge that cooperation 
between the Parties is essential to the development of the Project. 

 
7.10.6. Cost of Construction. 

 
As between the Parties the cost of developing and constructing all improvements on the 

Property under this Agreement shall be borne by Developer unless agreed to otherwise in 
writing. 

 
8. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION.  
 

8.1. Bodily Injury, Property Damage, and Workers’ Compensation Insurance. 
 
Developer shall, or through its contractor shall, at its sole cost, obtain and maintain in 

force from and after the Closing (as specified below) insurance of the following types, with limits 
not less than those set forth below with respect to the Project, and with the following 
requirements: 
 

(a) Commercial General Liability Insurance (Occurrence Form) with a minimum 
combined single limit liability of $2,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury and 
property damage; with a minimum limit of liability of $2,000,000 each person for personal 
and advertising injury liability. Such policy shall have an aggregate products/completed 
operations liability limit of not less than $2,000,000 and a general aggregate limit of not 
less than $2,000,000. The products/completed operations liability coverage shall be 
maintained in full force and effect for not less than eighteen months following completion 
of the Project issuance of a certificate of occupancy, whichever is later. The policy shall 
be endorsed to name Agency, including its respective affiliates, the financing parties and 
the respective officers, directors, and employees of each as additional insureds. All 
policies shall be occurrence form policies and not a claims-made policy. 
 
(b) During the construction of the Project, Builder’s Risk Insurance upon the Project 
covering one hundred percent (100%) of the replacement cost of the Project. This policy 
shall be written on a builder's risk "all risk" or open peril or special causes of loss policy 



26 
 
 

form that shall at least include insurance for physical loss or damage to the construction, 
temporary buildings, falsework, and construction in transit, and shall insure against at 
least the following perils: (i) fire; (ii) lighting; (iii) explosion; (iv) windstorm or hail; (v) 
smoke; (vi) aircraft or vehicles; (vii) riot or civil commotion; (viii) theft; (ix) vandalism and 
malicious mischief; (x) leakage from fire extinguishing equipment; (xii) sinkhole collapse; 
(xiii) collapse; (xiv) breakage of building glass; (xv) falling objects; (xvi) debris removal; 
(xvii) demolition occasioned by enforcement of laws and regulations; (xviii) weight of 
snow, ice, or sleet; (xx) weight of people or personal property;  
 
(c) Workers’ Compensation Insurance, including occupational illness or disease 
coverage, in accordance with the laws of the nation, state, territory, or province having 
jurisdiction over Developer’s employees, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with 
minimum limits as required by law. Developer shall not utilize occupational accident or 
health insurance policies, or the equivalent, in lieu of mandatory Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance or otherwise attempt to opt out of the statutory Workers’ Compensation 
system. 
 
(d) Automobile Liability Insurance covering use of all, non-owned, and hired 
automobiles with a minimum combined single limit of liability for bodily injury and 
property damage of $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
(e) All insurance provided by Developer under this Agreement shall include a waiver 
of subrogation by the insurers in favor of Agency. Developer hereby releases Agency, 
including its respective affiliates, directors, and employees, for losses or claims for bodily 
injury, property damage, or other insured claims arising out of Developer’s performance 
under this Agreement or construction of the Project unless otherwise as the result of the 
negligence or willful misconduct of Agency or its respective affiliates, directors, and 
employees. 
 
 (f) Developer (or Developer’s contractor(s), as applicable) shall provide certificates of 
insurance satisfactory in form to Agency (ACORD form or equivalent) to Agency 
evidencing that the insurance required above is in force, that, to the extent commercially 
reasonable, not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice will be given to Agency prior to 
any cancellation or restrictive modification of the policies, and that the waivers of 
subrogation are in force. Developer (or Developer’s contractor(s), as applicable) shall also 
provide, with its certificate of insurance, executed copies of the additional insured 
endorsements and dedicated limits endorsements required in this Agreement. At 
Agency’s request, Developer shall provide a certified copy of each insurance policy 
required under this Agreement.  
 
(g) All policies of insurance required by this Agreement shall be issued by insurance 
companies with a general policyholder’s rating of not less than A and a financial rating of 
AAA (or equivalent ratings if such are changed) as rated in the most current available 
“Best’s Insurance Reports” and qualified to do business in the State of Idaho.  



27 
 
 

 
(h) The foregoing insurance coverage shall be primary and non-contributing with 
respect to any other insurance or self-insurance that may be maintained by Agency. 
Developer’s General Liability Insurance policy shall contain a Cross-Liability or Severability 
of Interest clause. The fact that Developer has obtained the insurance required in this 
Section shall in no manner lessen or affect Developer’s other obligations or liabilities set 
forth in the Agreement. 

 
8.2. Indemnification. 
 
Developer shall indemnify and hold Agency, and its officers, agents, and employees 

harmless from and against all liabilities, obligations, damages, penalties, claims, costs, charges, 
and expenses, including reasonable architect and attorney fees (collectively referred to in this 
Section as “claim”), which may be imposed upon or incurred by or asserted against Agency, or its 
respective officers, agents, and employees by reason of any of the following occurrences: 

 
(a) Any work or thing done in connection with the Project by or at the direction of 
Developer, including, without limitation, inspection of the Property prior to Closing, any 
work on the Property prior to Closing, and the construction of any improvements, or any 
tenant improvements, in each case by or at the direction of Developer; or 
 
(b) Any use, nonuse, possession, occupation, condition, operation, maintenance, or 
management of the Project or any part thereof by Developer; or 
 
(c) Any negligence on the part of Developer or any of its agents, contractors, servants, 
employees, subtenants, operators, licensees, or invitees; or 
 
(d) Any accident, injury, or damage to any person or property occurring in, on, or 
about the Property or any part thereof during construction of the Project by or at the 
direction of Developer; or 

 
(e) Any failure on the part of Developer to perform or comply with any of the terms, 
provisions, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement to be performed or 
complied with on its part. 
 
(f) In case any action or proceeding is brought against Agency, or its respective 
officers, agents, and employees by reason of any such claim for which Developer is 
required to provide indemnification hereunder, Developer, upon written notice from 
Agency shall, at Developer’s expense, resist or defend such action or proceeding. 
 
(g) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer shall have no obligation to indemnify 
and hold Agency and its respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and 
against any matter to the extent it arises from the negligence or willful act of Agency, or 
its respective officers, agents, or employees or from conduct resulting in an award of 



28 
 
 

punitive damages against Agency. The obligations of Developer under this Section are not 
intended to run with the land or to be binding upon subsequent owners of portions of the 
Property. 
 

9. POST PROJECT COMPLETION PURCHASE PRICE ADJUSTMENT. 
 

9.1. Certificate of Completion.  
 
Promptly after completion of all construction and development to be completed by 

Developer for the Project, Developer shall submit to Agency a request for a certificate of 
completion for the Project (“Certificate of Completion”). A form of the Certificate of Completion 
is attached hereto as Attachment 9. Subject to Agency discretion, Agency shall promptly issue 
the Certificate of Completion if (a) City has issued a temporary certificate of occupancy for 100% 
of the residential units of the Project and a certificate of completion of at least the shell and core 
of the retail use of the Project, and (b) if Developer is not in default under this Agreement and 
Agency has not sent notice to Developer of any event which with the passing of time could give 
rise to a default under this Agreement. The Parties acknowledge the failure to construct the 
Project within the time frame set forth in the Schedule of Performance may, after Agency 
provided Developer with written notice of default and an opportunity to cure any such default 
as set forth in Sections 12.1 and 12.2, be considered by Agency as a default by Developer under 
this Agreement. Agency shall not unreasonably withhold the Certificate of Completion. 
 

The Certificate of Completion shall not constitute evidence of compliance with or 
satisfaction of any obligation of Developer to any holder of a mortgage or any insurer of a 
mortgage securing money loaned to finance the improvements or any part thereof. Such 
Certificate of Completion is not notice of completion as referred to under other laws of the State 
of Idaho. 
 

9.2. Reuse Appraisal.  
 
By law, Agency may dispose of real property for no less than the fair reuse value. In order 

to determine the fair reuse value, Agency engaged the Reuse Appraiser to determine the fair 
reuse value for the Property (the “Reuse Appraisal”) at Agency’s expense. Developer submitted 
data required by the Reuse Appraiser, which data (the “Reuse Appraisal Data”) was used by the 
Reuse Appraiser to prepare the Reuse Appraisal. That report was done by the Reuse Appraiser 
and dated July 20, 2017. The Reuse Appraisal is attached hereto as Attachment 6. 

 
9.3. Adjusted Purchase Price. 
 
The adjusted purchase price for the Property (the “Adjusted Purchase Price”), subject to 

the conditions set forth in the following section, shall be Zero Dollars ($0.00). 
 
The Adjusted Purchase Price is based upon Reuse Appraisal Data including but not limited 

to market conditions; density of development; costs expected to be incurred and revenues 



29 
 
 

expected to be realized in the course of developing and disposing of the Project; sizes and 
expected sales prices or rents; square footages of uses of the residential spaces; leasing or sales 
prices for other uses and assets such as commercial and retail spaces; assumptions regarding soft 
costs such as marketing and insurance; risks of Agency; risks of Developer; Developer 
participation in the funding of public facilities and amenities; estimated or actual Developer 
return including assumptions regarding entrepreneurial incentive, overhead and administration; 
and restrictions, limitations, or requirements upon use and development of the Property as these 
factors apply to the Project; estimated market value for the Property as a part of the Project; and 
estimated costs for any anticipated public improvements. 

 
9.4. Request for the Purchase Price Adjustment. 
 
Upon completion of the construction of the Project and Agency’s issuance of the 

Certificate of Completion, Developer shall submit to Agency a request for a purchase price 
adjustment for the Property (the “Purchase Price Adjustment Request”). The Purchase Price 
Adjustment Request shall include a written explanation of the final completed Project with 
emphasis on how the final completed Project as built construction substantially conforms to the 
Design Development Plan and Final Construction Documents approved by Agency. 

 
(a) The request shall include a detailed statement of construction costs, including, but 

not limited to, contractor payment requests, construction draws and change orders approved for 
payment, evidence of payment and determination whether certain expense items were incurred 
which were not previously identified in the construction and renovation estimate or within the 
drawings and construction plans submitted pursuant to this Agreement. In the event Agency is 
unsatisfied with the information, Agency may request and Developer shall provide such 
information as certified by an independent certified public accountant who is a member of the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

 
(b) Upon Agency’s request, Developer shall coordinate a tour of the completed 

Project by Agency Board members and/or staff to review the Project and assess whether or not 
the completed Project conforms to the Design Development Plan and the Final Construction 
Documents. 
 

(c) Developer shall provide written confirmation to the Agency from ACHD that the 
necessary approvals for all encroachments along the Pioneer Pathway have been approved by 
ACHD. 

 
(d) Agency shall have thirty (30) days to review the Purchase Price Adjustment 

Request and confirm Developer’s performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
(e) The purpose of the written explanation and the tour is to allow Agency to 

determine whether or not the as built Project substantially conforms to the Design Development 
Plan and Final Construction Documents. If the as built Project substantially conforms to the 
Design Development Plan and Final Construction Documents, the Purchase Price shall be 



30 
 
 

adjusted and Agency shall, within thirty (30) calendar days of Agency’s receipt of the Purchase 
Price Adjustment Request, remit to Developer the difference between the Purchase Price and 
the Adjusted Purchase Price. If the Project, as built, does not substantially conform to the Design 
Development Plan and the Final Construction Documents, the Purchase Price shall not be 
adjusted. 

The Purchase Price shall not be adjusted unless and until Developer acknowledges and 
certifies in writing that the Project shall adhere to the requirements set forth in the Master 
License Agreement for Regulation and Control of the Sidewalk and Parking facilities in the Greater 
Downtown Area. 
 
10. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT 

 
Developer intends to construct certain utility and public improvements in or adjacent to, 

or being relocated to, the public right-of-way adjacent to the Site (the “Public Project”). The 
Public Project is more accurately depicted on Attachment 17. 

 
 Agency will reimburse the Developer for the cost of the Public Project consistent with the 
Agency’s  obligations set forth in Section 10. Agency’s commitment in this Section 10 is designed 
to comply with Agency’s authority under the Act and the Redevelopment Plan and is intended to 
constitute an expenditure of Agency funds for a public purpose and not be deemed a gift or 
donation of public funds. 

 
10.1. Construction of the Public Project. 

 
 The Public Project shall be constructed in accordance with the overall City infrastructure 
plans, policies, and design standards and in conjunction with the Project. Upon Agency’s request, 
Agency shall have the right and the opportunity to review Developer’s construction plans, 
budgets, and bids for the Public Project (collectively the “Public Project Construction 
Documents”). Developer will utilize commercially reasonable contracting, budgeting, and bidding 
practices to ensure that the Public Project is constructed consistent with the Public Project 
Construction Documents and are undertaken in a commercially reasonable manner. Developer 
shall be presumed to have utilized commercially reasonable contracting, budgeting, and bidding 
practices if its general contractor solicits or solicited competitive bids for the Public Project and 
such work is not performed by an affiliate or subsidiary of Developer. 

 
A Schedule of Estimated Eligible Costs is described and set forth on Attachment 18. Any 

other public improvements constructed by Developer as part of the Project are not eligible for 
reimbursement pursuant to this Agreement. Additionally, Agency’s reimbursement obligation is 
limited to the Estimated Costs set forth in Section 10 of this Agreement. 

 
10.2. Commencement of the Public Project. 
 
Developer shall commence construction of the Public Project consistent with the 

timelines set forth in the Schedule of Performance. In the event Developer fails to construct the 



31 
 
 

Public Project within the time period set forth in Section 5.1, Agency will not reimburse Developer 
for the costs of the Public Project.  

 
10.3. Initial Construction Funding. 
 
Subject to Agency’s reimbursement obligation, Developer shall pay for all of the costs of 

construction for the Public Project. The reimbursement payment to Developer by Agency shall 
be made pursuant to subections 10.8 – 10.11. Agency acknowledges the Schedule of Eligible 
Public Improvement Costs (Attachment 18) is an estimate by Developer and that actual total 
costs, as well as each line item of cost, may be more or less than is shown on Attachment 18. 

 
10.4. Approvals of Project and Public Project. 
 
Developer shall be responsible for obtaining necessary approvals for design, construction, 

installation and operation of the Public Project from the governmental and other entities, 
including to the extent necessary, but not limited to, City, ACHD, Idaho Transportation 
Department, and other governmental entities having approval authority for the Public Project 
(“Approving Entities”). 
 

Developer shall keep Agency advised of the approval process of the Approving Entities 
and advise Agency immediately if any action of Approving Entities shall affect the scope and 
purpose of this Agreement. 
 

10.5. Warranty on Public Project. 
 
Developer warrants that the materials and workmanship employed in the construction of 

the Public Project shall be good and sound and shall conform to generally accepted standards 
within the construction industry. Such warranty shall extend for a period of one (1) year after the 
issuance of the Certificate of Completion by Agency, provided nothing herein shall limit the time 
within which Agency may bring an action against Developer on account of Developer’s failure to 
otherwise construct the Public Project in accordance with this Agreement or the Public Project 
Construction Documents. The one-year warranty period does not constitute a limitation period 
with respect to the enforcement of Developer’s other obligations under the Agreement. 

 

10.6. Maintenance. 
 
Developer recognizes Agency has no authority to accept maintenance responsibility of 

the Project and therefore does not accept any maintenance obligations for the Project.  
 

10.7. Estimated Costs for Public Project. 
 
Developer has estimated the cost of the Public Project to be Three Hundred Eighteen 

Dollars and No Cents ($318,000.00) (the “Estimated Costs”), as set forth on Attachment 18. 



32 
 
 

  
10.8. Determining Actual Eligible Costs. 
 
Developer is responsible for submitting invoices or receipts for work performed as part 

of the Public Project (the “Cost Documentation”) at the time Developer submits to Agency a 
request for a Certificate of Completion as set forth in Section 9.1. Cost Documentation shall 
include the following: 

 
(a) Schedule of values that includes line items for the Public Project improvements 
approved by Agency for reimbursement so they are identifiable separate from other line 
items (“Schedule of Values”). 
 
(b) Invoices from Developer’s general contractor, subcontractor(s) and material 
suppliers for each type of eligible cost item (e.g. concrete, pavers, benches, historic street 
lights, overhead). Invoices shall specify quantities and unit costs of installed materials, 
and a percentage estimate of how much installed material was used for the Public Project 
in comparison to the amount used for the remainder of Developer’s Project. 

 
(c) Explanation of any significant deviation between the Schedule of Eligible Public 
Improvement Costs and the actual costs in the Cost Documentation. 

 
Agency shall have the right to review the Cost Documentation and to obtain independent 

verification that the quantities of work claimed, the unit costs and the total costs for eligible costs 
are commercially reasonable and consistent with the cost estimates provided by Developer to 
Agency prior to construction. In the event Developer fails to timely deliver the Cost 
Documentation, Agency may, in its discretion, elect to terminate its payment obligations under 
this Agreement by providing Developer with written notice of such default. Developer shall have 
thirty (30) days from such written notice to cure the default. In the event Developer fails to timely 
cure such a default, Agency’s payment obligations under this Section 10 may be terminated in 
Agency’s sole discretion. 
 

Within fifteen (15) days of Agency’s receipt of the Cost Documentation, Agency will notify 
Developer in writing of Agency’s acceptance or rejection of the Cost Documentation and Agency’s 
determination of the “Actual Eligible Costs” to be reimbursed. Agency shall, in its discretion, 
determine the Actual Eligible Costs following its review of the Cost Documentation, verification 
of the commercial reasonableness of the costs and expenses contained in such Cost 
Documentation, and comparison of the amounts in the Cost Documentation to the amounts in 
the Schedule of Eligible Public Improvement Costs. In no event will the Actual Eligible Costs 
exceed the Estimated Costs. 

 
If Developer disagrees with Agency’s calculation of the Actual Eligible Costs, Developer 

must respond to Agency in writing within three (3) days explaining why Developer believes 
Agency’s calculation was in error and providing any evidence to support any such contentions 
Developer wants Agency to consider. Agency shall respond to Developer within three (3) days 



33 
 
 

with a revised amount for the Actual Eligible Costs or notifying Developer that Agency will not 
revise the initial amount calculated. At that point, the determination of the Actual Eligible Costs 
will be final.  

 
Agency’s determination of the Actual Eligible Costs is within its sole discretion. 

 
10.9. Conditions Precedent to Agency’s Payment Obligation. 
 

 The conditions set forth in Section 5 and Section 9 must be met before Agency has any 
obligation to reimburse Developer for the Actual Eligible Costs for the Public Project. 

 
Failure to comply with all Agreement provisions shall be a basis for termination of 

Agency’s reimbursement obligation. 
 
10.10. Deadline to Complete Public Project. 

 
 In order to be eligible for any reimbursement for the Public Project under this Agreement, 
Developer must complete the Project within the timeframe set forth in the Schedule of 
Performance, but in no event later than twenty-four (24) months from the Closing Date. Upon 
written request, Agency may grant extensions as set forth in Section 5.1. If Developer does not 
complete the Project within the time period set forth in the Schedule of Performance, Agency 
shall have no obligation to reimburse Developer for the costs of the Public Project.  

 
10.11. Payment Terms. 
 

 Upon completion of the construction of the Project and Agency’s issuance of the 
Certificate of Completion Agency shall reimburse Developer for the amount of the Actual Eligible 
Costs up to, but not exceeding, the amount of Estimated Costs.   

 
10.12. Indemnification Regarding the Public Project. 
 

 Developer shall indemnify, defend, and hold Agency and its respective officers, agents, 
and employees harmless from and against all liabilities, obligations, damages, penalties, claims, 
costs, charges, and expenses, including reasonable architect and attorney fees, which may be 
imposed upon or incurred by or asserted against Agency or its respective officers, agents, and 
employees relating to the construction or design of the Public Project. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Developer shall have no obligation to indemnify and hold Agency and its respective 
officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against any matter to the extent it arises from 
the negligence or willful act of Agency or its respective officers, agents, or employees or from 
conduct resulting in any award of punitive damages against the Agency. In the event an action or 
proceeding is brought against Agency or its respective officers, agents, and employees by reason 
of any such claims, Developer, upon written notice from Agency, shall, at Developer’s expense, 
resist or defend such action or proceeding. 

 



34 
 
 

10.13. Default of Section 10. 
 

 Section 10.13 shall be limited solely to defaults under Section 10 and no default under 
Section 10 shall be governed by any other provision in this Agreement.  Neither Party shall be 
deemed to be in default of this Section 10 except upon the expiration of forty-five (45) days (ten 
[10] days in the event of failure to pay money) from receipt of written notice from the other Party 
specifying the particulars in which such Party has failed to perform its obligations under this 
Section 10 unless such Party, prior to expiration of said 45-day period (ten [10] days in the event 
of failure to pay money), has rectified the particulars specified in said notice of default. In the 
event of a default, the nondefaulting Party may do the following: 

 
(a) The nondefaulting Party may terminate the agreement to reimburse Developer 
for the costs of the Public Project set forth in Section 10 upon written notice to the 
defaulting Party and recover from the defaulting Party all direct damages incurred by the 
nondefaulting Party. 
 
(b) The nondefaulting Party may seek specific performance of those elements of the 
reimbursement agreement set forth in Section 10 which can be specifically performed, in 
addition, recover all damages incurred by the nondefaulting Party. The Parties declare it 
to be their intent that elements of Section 10 requiring certain actions be taken for which 
there are not adequate legal remedies may be specifically enforced. 
 
(c) The nondefaulting Party may perform or pay any obligation or encumbrance 
necessary to cure the default and offset the cost thereof from monies otherwise due the 
defaulting Party or recover said monies from the defaulting Party. 
 
(d) The nondefaulting Party may pursue all other remedies available at law regarding 
a default of Section 10, it being the intent of the Parties that remedies be cumulative and 
liberally enforced so as to adequately and completely compensate the nondefaulting 
Party. 
 
(e) In the event Developer defaults under the requirements set forth in Section 10, 
Agency (the nondefaulting Party) shall have the right to suspend or terminate its payment 
as set forth in Section 10, for so long as the default continues and if not cured, Agency’s 
obligation for payment as set forth in Section 10 may be deemed extinguished by Agency 
in its discretion. In addition, if Agency funds shall have been paid, Developer shall 
reimburse Agency for any such funds Developer received. 
 

11. DEVELOPER’S POST-DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION OBLIGATIONS. 
 
Anything to the contrary in this Agreement notwithstanding, the following provisions set 

forth in this Section are the only obligations of Developer intended to survive with respect to the 
Property following the issuance of a Certificate of Completion. 

 



35 
 
 

11.1. Estimated Value of Completed Project. 
 
For purposes of this Agreement, Developer estimates the total value of the Project upon 

completion will be at least Seven Million Five Hundred Thousand ($7,500,000.00)  (the 
“Estimated Value”). 

 
11.2. Taxes, Encumbrances, and Liens. 
 
Developer or Developer Affiliate shall pay when due all real estate and personal property 

taxes and assessments assessed and levied on the Property for any period subsequent to 
Developer’s acquisition of the Property from Agency. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed 
to prohibit Developer from contesting the validity or amounts of any encumbrance, or lien or to 
limit the remedies available to Developer with respect thereto. Provided, Developer may appeal 
the assessed values or seek any property tax exemption for the Property if the Ada County 
Assessor determines the value of the Property is greater than the Estimated Value upon receipt 
of Agency’s written authorization, such authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld and 
shall be provided in timely manner.  Any appeal of an assessed value or request for property tax 
exemption for the Property for an assessment less than the Estimated Value requires Agency’s 
written authorization, which shall be provided in Agency’s sole discretion.  

 
11.3. Tax Appeals/Exemptions. 
 
Developer, Developer Affiliate, or their successors shall not, without Agency’s written 

authorization, contest or appeal the assessed value or seek any property tax exemption for any 
of the parcels within the Site, including but not limited to an exemption or reduction under Idaho 
Code § 63-602NN or Idaho Code Section 63-606A, for property taxes assessed for any property 
tax year up to and including property tax year 2025, seeking a lower tax assessment for any of 
the parcels within the Site. The property tax year runs from January 1 to December 31.  

 
11.4. In-Lieu-of Taxes. 
 
In the event the Property or any improvements thereon or any possessory interest therein 

should at any time be subject to ad valorem taxes or privilege taxes levied, assessed, or imposed 
on the Property, Developer shall pay taxes upon the assessed value of the entire Property and 
any improvements thereon and not merely upon the assessed value of its ownership of the 
Property interest. In the event the Property or any portion of the Site not dedicated to the City, 
or leasehold interest is leased, conveyed, or transferred to an entity exempt or partially exempt 
from ad valorem taxes and to the extent that ad valorem, privilege, or any other taxes or 
assessments levied on the Property or any improvements thereon are of a lesser amount than 
would be levied if the Property or any portion thereof were entirely in private, nonexempt 
ownership, the then owner of the Property shall be responsible to pay as in-lieu-of taxes the 
difference between the taxes and assessments actually levied and the taxes and assessments 
which would be levied if the Property or any portion thereof were privately owned. Developer 
shall pay such difference to Agency within thirty (30) days after the taxes for such year become 



36 
 
 

payable to the taxing agencies and in no event later than the delinquency date of such taxes 
established by law. Any in-lieu-of taxes received by Agency pursuant to this Section shall be 
treated by Agency as incremental tax revenues and promptly deposited upon receipt into the 
appropriate Agency account. The obligation set forth in this Section shall terminate and cease to 
be of any effect upon the payment of taxes for tax year 2025, the date upon which the current 
Redevelopment Plan expires. Developer acknowledges payments in lieu of taxes for taxes levied 
and imposed in 2025 are due and payable in 2026. 
 

11.5. Use of the Property During Term of the Redevelopment Plan. 
 
Developer covenants and agrees for itself, its successors, its assigns, and every successor 

in interest that during construction and thereafter, Developer, its successors, and assignees shall 
devote the Property to the uses specified in the Redevelopment Plan, the Deed, the Deed 
Restriction and this Agreement for the periods of time specified therein. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Developer shall have no obligation or liability for the failure of any unrelated third-
party successor, assign or successor in interest in the Property to adhere to this Section and shall 
be limited as provided in Section 11.8 to those periods Developer or Developer Affiliate, or other 
related entity, owned the Property. 
 

11.6. Obligation to Refrain from Discrimination. 
 
Developer covenants by and for Developer and any successors in interest that there shall 

be no discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of persons on account of 
physical disability, race, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity/ 
expression, marital status, ancestry, or national origin in the sale, lease, sublease, transfer, use, 
occupancy, tenure, or enjoyment of Property, nor shall Developer establish or permit any such 
practice or practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, 
number, use, or occupancy of tenants, lessees, subtenants, sublessees, or vendees of the 
Property. The foregoing covenants shall run with the land. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
Developer shall have no obligation or liability for the failure of any unrelated third-party 
successor, assign, or successor in interest in the Property to adhere to this Section and shall be 
limited as provided in Section 11.8 to those periods Developer or Developer Affiliate, or other 
related entity, owned the Property. 
 

11.7. Effect and Duration of Covenants. 
 
Except as otherwise provided in this Section and the Deed, the covenants contained in 

this Section shall remain in effect until December 31, 2025 (the termination date of the 
Redevelopment Plan). The covenants provided in the Deed Restriction shall remain in effect until 
seven (7) years after the Agency issues its Certificate of Completion. The covenants against 
discrimination shall remain in effect in perpetuity. The covenants established in this Agreement 
that expressly run with land and the Special Warranty Deed and Deed Restriction shall, without 
regard to technical classification and designation, be binding for the benefit and in favor of 



37 
 
 

Agency, Agency’s successors and assigns, City, and any successors in interest to the Property or 
any part thereof. 

 
11.8. Provisions That Run with the Land. 
 
Agency is deemed the beneficiary of those terms and provisions of this Agreement that 

expressly run with the land for and in its own rights and for the purposes of protecting the 
interests of the community and other parties, public or private, in whose favor and for whose 
benefit this Agreement and the covenants running with the land have been provided. The 
covenants that expressly run with the land shall run in favor of Agency without regard to whether 
Agency has been, remains, or is an owner of any land or interest therein in the Property, any 
parcel or subparcel, or in the Project Area. Agency shall have the right, if the covenants that 
expressly run with the land are breached, to exercise all rights and remedies and to maintain any 
actions or suits at law or in equity or other proper proceedings to enforce the curing of such 
breaches to which it or any other beneficiaries of such covenants may be entitled. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Developer or any subsequent owner of any portion of the 
Property conveys any portion of the Property, such owner shall, upon the conveyance, be 
released and discharged from all of its obligations in connection with the portion of the Property 
conveyed by it arising under this Agreement after the conveyance but shall remain liable for all 
obligations in connection with the portion of the Property so conveyed arising under this 
Agreement prior to the conveyance. The new owner of any such portion of the Property shall be 
liable for all obligations arising under this Agreement with respect to such portion of the Property 
after the conveyance. 
 

11.9. Deed Restriction Compliance. 
 

For the duration of the rent restriction as set forth in the Deed Restriction, within sixty 
(60) days of the close of Developer’s fiscal year, Developer shall submit to Agency an Annual Rent 
Report (Attachment 12) certifying compliance with the Deed Restriction. 

 
12. DEFAULTS, REMEDIES, AND TERMINATION. 

 
12.1. Defaults—General. 
 
Failure or delay by either Party to perform any term or provision of this Agreement after 

receiving notice and an opportunity to cure as set forth herein shall constitute a default under 
this Agreement. Upon receipt of such notice, a Party must immediately commence to cure, 
correct, or remedy such failure or delay and shall complete such cure, correction, or remedy with 
reasonable diligence. A Party so acting and during any period of curing shall not be in default as 
further set forth in Section 12.2. 

 



38 
 
 

12.2. Written Notice. 
 
The Party claiming a failure or delay in performance shall give written notice of default to 

the Party failing or delaying performance specifying the default complained of by the injured 
Party. Except as required to protect against further damages, the Party claiming default may not 
institute proceedings against the Party in default until sixty (60) days after giving such notice, said 
sixty (60) days constituting the period to cure any default, provided, however, in the event such 
default cannot be cured within said sixty (60) days and diligently pursues the same to cure. 

 
12.3. No Waiver. 
 
Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any failure or delay by either 

Party in asserting any of its rights or remedies as to any default shall not operate as a waiver of 
any default or of any such rights or remedies or deprive such Party of its right to institute and 
maintain any actions or proceedings that it may deem necessary to protect, assert, or enforce 
any such rights or remedies. 

 
12.4. Materiality of Provisions. 
 
It is expressly understood and agreed that each of the covenants, promises, stipulations, 

and agreements of the Parties hereto and under the provisions of this Agreement are an integral 
and indivisible part of the consideration given by each to the other and that each covenant, 
promise, stipulation, and agreement of the Parties shall be deemed and construed as material. 
Subject to Sections 12.1 and 12.2 above, it is further understood and agreed that time is of the 
essence of this Agreement; that failure, refusal, or neglect for any reason whatsoever of either 
Party hereto to perform any of the covenants, promises, stipulations, or agreements to be 
performed by the Party pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall constitute 
a material default on the part of the Party failing to perform such covenant, promise, stipulation, 
or agreement; and that the occurrence of any such default on the part of either Party shall give 
the other Party the right to terminate or otherwise enforce this Agreement in accordance with 
the provisions of this Section. 

 
12.5. Legal Actions. 
 

12.5.1. Institution of Legal Actions 
 
Subject to the express limitations herein, either Party may institute legal action to cure, 

correct, or remedy any default or recover damages for any default or to obtain any other remedy 
consistent with the purpose of this Agreement. 

 
12.5.2. Applicable Law 

 
The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the interpretation and enforcement of this 

Agreement. 



39 
 
 

 
12.5.3. Acceptance of Service of Process 

 
In the event that any legal action is commenced by Developer against Agency, service of 

process on Agency shall be made by personal service upon the Chair of Agency or in such other 
manner as may be provided by law. In the event that any legal action is commenced by Agency 
against Developer, service of process on Developer shall be made by personal service upon 
Developer or in such other manner as may be provided by law and shall be valid whether made 
within or without the State of Idaho. 

 
12.5.4. Rights and Remedies 

 
Subject to the express limitation herein, the rights and remedies of the Parties are 

cumulative, and the exercise by any Party of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not 
preclude the exercise by it, at the same time or different times, of any other rights or remedies 
for the same default or any other default by the other Party. 

 
12.5.5. Specific Performance 

 
If any Party has provided notice and an opportunity to cure to the other Party pursuant 

to Section 12.1 and 12.2, the default is not cured, the nondefaulting Party, at the nondefaulting 
Party’s option, may institute an action for specific performance of the terms of this Agreement 
provided that specific performance shall be limited to those actions which necessitate action on 
the part of a Party but not for any action where damages (including, without limitation, liquidated 
damages pursuant to Section 12.5.6 below) are otherwise available. 

 
12.5.6. Limitation on Agency’s Remedies Prior to Developer’s Acquisition of the 

Property  
 
If Developer defaults in its obligation to acquire the Property or to satisfy any conditions 

relating to the acquisition of the Property, Agency’s sole and exclusive remedy shall be to 
terminate this Agreement and retain the Deposit relating to the Property as liquidated damages. 
Such amount to be retained by Agency has been agreed by the Parties to be reasonable 
compensation and the exclusive remedy in those events, because the precise amount of damages 
in those events would be difficult to determine. 

 



40 
 
 

12.6. Remedies and Rights of Termination Prior to Conveyance of the Property to 
Developer. 

 
12.6.1. Termination for Cause by Developer  
 

 In the event that prior to Closing for the Property, as applicable: 
 

(a) Agency does not tender title to the Property, as applicable, or possession thereof 
in the manner and condition and by the dates provided in this Agreement, on or before 
the Closing Date; or 

 
(b) Agency is unable to perform its obligations as set forth in this Agreement subject 
to any cure periods, provided such cure periods shall not extend the outside Closing Date; 
or 

 
(c) the zoning of the Property, as applicable, does not permit the development, 
construction, use, operation, or maintenance of the Project and improvements specified 
in this Agreement to be developed and constructed thereon; or  

 
(d) Developer, after and despite reasonably diligent effort and prior to the dates 
established therefore in the Schedule of Performance, is unable to obtain and submit the 
evidence of financing reasonably acceptable to Agency or on or before Agency’s approval 
of Developer’s evidence of financing, Developer notifies Agency in writing that, in 
Developer’s judgment, it is not economically or financially feasible for Developer to 
perform (or cause Developer to perform) or finance its obligations under this Agreement 
in the time established therefore in the Schedule of Performance;  

 
then this Agreement may, at the option of Developer, be terminated by written notice thereof 
to Agency. Upon such termination, neither Agency, Developer shall have any further rights 
against or liability to the other under this Agreement, unless otherwise specifically identified to 
survive Closing or an earlier termination or expiration of this Agreement. In the event this 
Agreement is so terminated, all closing documents and funds delivered by Agency to Developer 
or Escrow Agent shall be returned immediately to Agency and all closing documents and funds 
delivered by Developer to Agency or Escrow Agent shall be returned immediately to the 
delivering Party; provided, however, that Agency shall retain any Deposit so long as such 
termination did not arise from Sections 12.6.1(a) or 12.6.1(b). 
 

12.6.2. Termination for Cause by Agency 
 

In the event that prior to the conveyance of the Property, as applicable, to Developer: 
 
(a) Developer fails to pay the Deposit as required by Section 5.1.2(a) of this 
Agreement; 
 



41 
 
 

(b) Developer transfers or assigns or attempts to transfer or assign this Agreement or 
any rights herein or in the Property or the buildings or improvements thereon in violation 
of this Agreement; or 
 
(c) there is any significant change in the legal structure or control of Developer 
contrary to the provisions of Section 2.7 hereof; or 
 
(d) Developer, after and despite reasonably diligent effort and prior to the dates 
established therefore in the Schedule of Performance, is unable to obtain and submit the 
evidence of financing reasonably acceptable to Agency or on or before Agency’s approval 
of Developer’s evidence of financing, Developer notifies Agency in writing that, in 
Developer’s judgment, it is not economically or financially feasible for Developer to 
perform (or cause Developer to perform) or finance its obligations under this Agreement 
in the time established therefore in the Schedule of Performance;  
(e) Developer fails to submit to Agency Final Construction Documents subject to the 
cure provisions set forth in Section 12 of this Agreement; or 
 
(f) Subject to the cure provisions set forth in of Section 12 of this Agreement, 
Developer does not pay the Purchase Price and take title to the Property under tender of 
conveyance by Agency pursuant to this Agreement; or 
 
(g) Developer is in breach or default with respect to any other obligation of Developer 
under this Agreement, subject to the cure provisions set forth in of Section 12 of this 
Agreement; or 
 
(h) the zoning of the Property does not permit the development, construction, use, 
operation, or maintenance of the improvements specified in this Agreement to be 
developed and constructed thereon; 

 
then this Agreement may, at the option of Agency, be terminated by Agency by written notice 
thereof to Developer. Upon such termination, neither Agency nor Developer shall have any 
further rights against or liability to the other under this Agreement, unless otherwise specifically 
identified to survive Closing or an earlier termination or expiration of this Agreement. In the 
event this Agreement is so terminated, all closing documents and funds delivered by Agency to 
Developer, or Escrow Agent shall be returned immediately to Agency and all closing documents 
and funds delivered by Developer to Agency or Escrow Agent shall be returned immediately to 
the delivering Party so long as Developer has fully performed the obligations required to be 
performed by Developer prior to that time. 
 



42 
 
 

13. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 
13.1. No Assignment of Rights. 
 
Prior to the issuance by Agency of a Certificate of Completion pursuant to Section 9 with 

respect to the Property, Developer shall not, except as expressly permitted by this Agreement, 
sell, transfer, convey, assign, or lease the whole or any part of such Property or the buildings or 
improvements thereon without the prior written approval of Agency, which approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. Conveyance to Developer Affiliate shall be permitted and shall not be 
subject to further review or approval by Agency. This prohibition shall not apply subsequent to 
the issuance of the Certificate of Completion, which shall signify Agency’s acknowledgment that 
the work required on the Property has been completed. This prohibition shall not be deemed to 
prevent the granting of easements or permits to facilitate the Project or to prohibit or restrict 
the leasing of any part or parts of a building or structure when said improvements are completed 
or to prohibit or restrict the preleasing or preselling of any part or parts of the structure so long 
as the lessee or buyer shall obtain no rights under this Agreement and that any right to occupy 
or acquire any part of the Project prior to Developer completing all the necessary improvements 
shall be terminable by Agency in the event Developer fails to complete all the necessary 
improvements. In the absence of specific written agreement by Agency, no such transfer, 
assignment, or approval by Agency shall be deemed to relieve Developer from any obligations 
under this Agreement until completion of the Project as evidenced by the issuance of a Certificate 
of Completion. 

 
13.2. Notices, Demands, and Communications Between the Parties. 
 
Formal notices, demands, and communications between the Parties shall be sufficiently 

given upon dispatch if dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 
requested, to the principal offices of the Parties as set forth in Section 2.4 hereof. Such written 
notices, demands, and communications may be sent in the same manner to such other addresses 
as either Party may from time to time designate by mail. 

 
13.3. Conflicts of Interest. 
 
No member, official, or employee of Agency shall have any personal interest, direct or 

indirect, in this Agreement, nor shall any such member, official, or employee participate in any 
decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interests or the interests of 
any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she is directly or indirectly involved. 

 
13.4. Warranty Against Payment of Consideration for Agreement. 
 
Developer warrants that it has not paid or given, and will not pay or give, any third person 

any money or other consideration for obtaining this Agreement other than normal costs of 
conducting business and costs of professional services such as for architects, engineers, and 
attorneys. 



43 
 
 

 
13.5. Nonliability of Agency Officials and Employees. 
 
No member, official, or employee of Agency shall be personally liable to Developer in the 

event of any default or breach by Agency or for any amount which may become due to Developer 
or on any obligations under the terms of this Agreement. 

 
13.6. Forced Delay; Extension of Times of Performance. 
 
In addition to the specific provisions of this Agreement, performance by any Party 

hereunder shall not be deemed to be in default where delays or defaults are due to war; 
insurrection; strikes; lock-outs; riots; floods; earthquakes; fires; casualties; acts of God; acts of 
the public enemy; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; freight embargoes; lack of transportation; 
governmental restrictions or priority; unusually severe weather; inability to secure necessary 
labor, material, or tools; acts of another Party; proceedings before or acts or failures to act of any 
public or governmental agency or entity, including approvals by any historic preservation agency 
(other than acts or failures to act of Agency shall not excuse performance by Agency); approvals 
by building officials for issuance of building permits; and temporary cessation of work for 
archeological digs, environmental analysis, or removal of hazardous or toxic substances; or any 
causes beyond the control or without the fault of the Party claiming an extension of time to 
perform. An extension of time for any such cause shall only be for the period of the forced delay, 
which period shall commence to run from the time of the commencement of the cause. Times of 
performance under this Agreement may also be extended in writing by the Parties. 

 
13.7. Inspection of Books and Records. 
 
Agency has the right, upon not less than seventy-two (72) hours’ notice, at all reasonable 

times, to inspect the books and records of Developer pertaining to the Project as pertinent to the 
purposes of this Agreement. Developer also has the right, upon not less than seventy-two (72) 
hours’ notice, at all reasonable times, to inspect the books and records of Agency pertaining to 
the Project as pertinent to the purposes of this Agreement. 

 
13.8. Reports, Studies and Test. 
 
If Developer does not proceed with the purchase of the Property and development of the 

Project, Agency may retain possession of any reports, studies and test results prepared by 
Developer's consultants, including any soils or engineering tests concerning the Property, 
previously submitted by Developer. Building and improvement designs, plans and specifications 
are not intended to be covered by the preceding sentence. However, Developer agrees not to 
prevent Agency from obtaining building and improvement designs, plans, and specifications from 
Developer’s design professionals if Agency and such design professionals enter into a separate 
arrangement for Agency to obtain such designs, plans, and specifications. Agency or any other 
person or entity designated by Agency shall be free to use such reports, studies, and test results 
for any reason whatsoever without cost or liability thereof to Developer or any other person, 



44 
 
 

except to the extent Agency may have to reach agreement with Developer’s consultants. 
Developer does not make and hereby expressly disclaims any representation or warranty as to 
the accuracy of any such information or Agency’s right to rely thereon. 

 
13.9. Attorney Fees. 
 
In the event of any action or proceeding at law or in equity between the Parties to enforce 

any provision of this Agreement or to protect or establish any right or remedy of any Party 
hereunder, the unsuccessful Party to such litigation shall pay to the prevailing Party all costs and 
expenses, including reasonable attorney fees incurred therein by such prevailing Party (including 
such costs and fees incurred on appeal), and if such prevailing Party shall recover judgment in 
any such action or proceeding, such costs, expenses, and attorney fees shall be included in and 
as a part of such judgment. 
 
14.  SPECIAL PROVISIONS. 

 
14.1. Amendment of Redevelopment Plan. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Redevelopment Plan or modification or amendment 

therefore, Agency agrees that no amendment that changes the uses or development permitted 
on the Property or changes the restrictions or controls that apply to the Property or otherwise 
affects the Property shall be made or become effective without the prior written consent of 
Developer. Amendments to the Redevelopment Plan applying to other property in the Project 
Area shall not require the consent of Developer. Additionally, an amendment to the 
Redevelopment Plan seeking to deannex the Property from the revenue allocation area shall not 
require Developer consent provided however the affected portion of the Property shall no longer 
be subject to Section 11.4 regarding the payment of In-Lieu-of Taxes upon the deannexation. 

 
14.2. Submission of Documents for Approval. 
 
Whenever this Agreement requires any Party to submit plans, drawings, or other 

documents to another Party for approval, which shall be deemed approved if not acted on by the 
approving Party within a specified time, said plans, drawings, or other documents shall be 
accompanied by a letter stating that they are being submitted and shall be deemed approved 
unless rejected by the approving Party within the stated time. If there is no time specified herein 
for such Party’s action, the approving Party may submit a letter requiring approval or rejection 
of documents within thirty (30) days after submission or such documents shall be deemed 
approved. 

 
14.3. Computation of Time. 
 
In computing any period of time prescribed or allowed under this Agreement, the day of 

the act, event, or default from which the designated period of time begins to run shall not be 
included. The last calendar day of the period so computed shall be included, unless it is a 



45 
 
 

Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, in which event the period runs until the end of the next day 
which is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. As used herein, “legal holiday” means a legal 
holiday recognized by Agency on which the offices of Agency are closed for regular business. 

 
14.4. No Third-Party Beneficiary. 
 
The provisions of this Agreement are for the exclusive benefit of Agency, Developer and 

their successors and assigns, and not for the benefit of any third person; nor shall this Agreement 
be deemed to have conferred any rights, express or implied, upon any third person except for 
provisions expressly for the benefit of a mortgagee or lender of Developer, or its successors and 
assigns. 

 
14.5. Dispute Resolution. 
 
In the event that a dispute arises between the Parties concerning (i) the meaning or 

application of the terms of, or (ii) an asserted breach of this Agreement, the Parties shall meet 
and confer in a good faith effort to resolve their dispute. The first such meeting shall occur within 
thirty (30) days of the first written notice from either Party evidencing the existence of the 
dispute. The Chair of Agency and the manager of Developer shall both be included among the 
individuals representing the Parties at the first such meeting. If the Parties shall have failed to 
resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days after delivery of such notice, the Parties agree to first 
consider settling the dispute in an amicable manner by mediation, as the Parties may mutually 
agree before resorting to litigation. The costs of such mediation shall be equally split between 
the Parties. Should the Parties be unable to resolve the dispute to their mutual satisfaction within 
thirty (30) days after such completion of mediation, or if the Parties cannot mutually agree to 
attempt to settle any dispute by mediation, each Party shall have the right to pursue any rights 
or remedies it may have at law or in equity. 

 
14.6. Good Faith and Cooperation. 
 
It is agreed by all Parties hereto to act in good faith in compliance with all of the terms, 

covenants, and conditions of this Agreement and shall deal fairly with each other. 
 

14.7. Entire Agreement, Waivers, and Amendments. 
 
This Agreement integrates all of the terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental 

hereto and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the Parties with respect 
to all or any part of the subject matter hereof including, without limitation, the Agreement to 
Negotiate Exclusively. All waivers of the provisions of this Agreement must be in writing and 
signed by the appropriate authorities of Agency and Developer, and all amendments hereto must 
be in writing and signed by the appropriate authorities of Agency and Developer. 

 



46 
 
 

14.8. Effective Date of Agreement. 
 
This Agreement, when executed by Developer and delivered to Agency, must be 

authorized, executed, and delivered by Agency within forty-five (45) days after the date of 
signature by Developer or this Agreement shall be void, except to the extent that Developer shall 
consent in writing to further extensions of time for the authorization, execution, and delivery of 
this Agreement. Developer recognizes that Agency must comply with certain notice, solicitation, 
and comment periods and a disclosure process as required by law. Because of that process 
Agency may be unable to execute this Agreement as proposed, and in such event, this Agreement 
shall be void. The effective date of this Agreement (the “Effective Date”) shall be the date when 
this Agreement has been signed by Agency. 

 
 

[signatures on following page]  



47 
 
 

AGENCY: 
 
 THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION  
 
        

By ________________________________ 
     John Brunelle  
     Executive Director 

 
________________________, 2017 

 
 

DEVELOPER: 
 
 ASH AND RIVER INVESTMENT, LLC, 
 an Idaho limited liability company 
 
 By: ASH AND RIVER DEVELOPER, LLC, 
  an Idaho limited liability company, Manager 
 
 
  By        

     J. Dean Papé 
     Its: Manager 
 
________________________, 2017 

 
  



48 
 
 

 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   )  ss. 
County of ______ ) 
 
 On this _____ day of ____________, 2017, before me, _________________________, the 
undersigned notary public in and for said county and state, personally appeared John Brunelle, 
known or identified to me to be the Executive Director of THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE 
CITY OF BOISE, IDAHO, ALSO KNOWN AS THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, the 
public body, corporate and politic, that executed the within instrument on behalf of said Agency, 
and acknowledged to me that such Agency executed the same for the purposes herein contained. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Notary Public for Idaho 
      Residing at __________________________ 
      Commission Expires __________________ 
 
 
  



49 
 
 

 
 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   )  ss. 
County of ______ ) 
 
 On this _____ day of __________, 2017, before me, ____________________________, 
the undersigned notary public in and for said county and state, personally appeared J. Dean Papé, 
known or identified to me to be the manager of ASH AND RIVER DEVELOPER, LLC, an Idaho limited 
liability company, the manager of ASH AND RIVER INVESTMENT, LLC, an Idaho limited liability 
company, “Developer” herein, and acknowledged to me that he executed the within instrument 
on behalf of such Developer for the purposes herein contained. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Notary Public for Idaho 
      Residing at __________________________ 
      Commission Expires __________________ 
 
 



 

 

Attachment 1 Site Plan of the Ash Street Development Project 
 



This area needs to be revised to show what has been agreed upon.



 

 

Attachment 2 Legal Description of the Property 
 
 
  



File Number:   15262350

SCHEDULE C

Legal Description:

Parcel I:

Lots 1 and 2 in Block 1 of Lover’s Lane Addition, according to the official plat thereof, filed in Book 2 of Plats at Page 90, official records 
of Ada County, Idaho.

Except a triangular strip of Lot 2 in Block 1 of Lover’s Lane Addition, described as follows:

Beginning at the Southeast corner of Lot 2; thence 6 feet in a Northerly direction along the East boundary; thence Northwesterly (formerly 
shown as Southwesterly) to a point 37 feet 9 inches from East boundary and connecting with South boundary line at this point; thence 38 
feet 6 inches Southeasterly to Southeast corner of Lot 2 in Block 1 to the Point of Beginning.

Parcel II:

Lots 3 and 4 in Block 1 of Lover’s Lane Addition, according to the official plat thereof, filed in Book 2 of Plats at Page 90, official records 
of Ada County, Idaho.

Together with a triangular strip of Lot 2 in Block 1 of Lover’s Lane Addition, according to the official plat thereof, filed in Book 2 of Plats at 
Page 90, records of Ada County, Idaho, being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the Southeast corner of Lot 2 in Block 1 of Lover’s Lane Addition; thence 6 feet in a Northerly direction along the East 
boundary; thence Northwesterly (formerly shown as Southwesterly) to a point 37 feet 9 inches from East boundary and connecting with 
South boundary line at this point; thence 38 feet 6 inches Southeasterly to Southeast corner of Lot 2 in Block 1 to the Point of Beginning.

Parcel III:

Lots 5 and 6 in Block 1 of Lover's Lane Addition to Boise City, Idaho, and that portion of Lot 7 in Block 1 of Lover's Lane Addition to Boise 
City, according to the official plat thereof, filed in Book 2 of Plats at Page 90, official records of Ada County, Idaho, and more particularly 
described as follows:

Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Lot 7; running thence in a Southerly direction along the alley line a distance of 20 feet; 
running thence in an Easterly direction to a point on the boundary line between said Lots 6 and 7, which point is 93 feet and 9 inches 
distant from the Place of Beginning; running thence Westerly along said boundary line between Lots 6 and 7 to the Place of Beginning.

Excepting from said Lot 6 all that portion thereof described as follows:

Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Lot 6; running thence Northerly along the Westerly line of Ash Street a distance of 6 feet; 
running thence Westerly to a point on the boundary line between said Lots 6 and 7 which point is 93 feet and 9 inches distance from the 
Northwest corner of said Lot 7 and the Southwest corner of said Lot 6; running thence Easterly along the boundary line between said Lots 
6 and 7 to the Place of Beginning.

Parcel IV:

Lot 2 of Tiffany Subdivision, according to the official plat thereof, filed in Book 53 of Plats at Page 4586, official records of Ada County, 
Idaho.

6

srodriguez
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2 Legal Descriptions of site and alley

srodriguez
Typewritten Text



File Number:   15262350

Parcel V:

A parcel of land being a portion of Lot 12 in Block 1 of Lover's Lane Addition, recorded in Book 2 of Plats at Page 90 of Ada County 
Records, and a portion of Lot 1 in Block 1 of Tiffany Subdivision, recorded in Book 83 of Plats at Page 4586 of Ada County Records, 
located in the Northwest quarter of Section 10, Township 3 North, Range 2 East, Boise Meridian, City of Boise, Ada County, Idaho, being 
more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Southeast corner of Lot 12 in Block 1 of said Lover's Lane Addition (from which point the West quarter corner of said 
Section 10 bears South 16°05'19" West, 563.32 feet distant), said point being common with the Westerly right-of-way line of South Ash 
Street, and being the Point of Beginning; thence
North 67°21'14" West, a distance of 118.01 feet; thence 
North 20°07'50" East, a distance of 77.15 feet on the Westerly lot line of Lot 1 in Block 1 of said Tiffany Subdivision to the Northwest 
corner of said Lot 1 in Block 1; thence 
South 69°51'54" East, a distance of 26.00 feet on the Northerly line of said Lot 1 in Block 1; thence 
South 64°50'45" East, a distance of 52.13 feet on the Northerly line of said Lot 1 in Block 1; thence 
South 67°18'53" East, a distance of 40.00 feet on the Northerly line of said Lot 1 in Block 1 to the Northeast corner of said Lot 1 in Block 1; 
thence
South 20°07'50" West, a distance of 75.98 feet on the Easterly line of said Lot 1 in Block 1 to the Point of Beginning.

7







 

 

Attachment 3  Schedule of Performance 
 
  



Action Due Date Section

1
Execution & Delivery of Agreement bv Developer.  Developer shall execute and 
deliver this Agreement to Agency.

2
Execution and Delivery of Agreement bv Agencv.   Agencv shall consider approval 
of this Agreement, and if approved, shall deliver one executed original to Developer. 

Within fourty-five (45) days of execution and 
delivery by Developer to Agency. 

3 Effective Date Upon Execution by Agency

4 Escrow Opening. Agencv shall open escrow for the sale of Parcel to Developer.
Within 5 business days of Execution of Agreement 
by Agency.

5

 Submission of Final Construction Documents. Developer shall prepare and submit 
to Agency and City for review and approval construction plans sufficient to obtain a 
building permit for the Project.  Agency's approval shall be presumed upon City's 
approval unless otherwise indicated by Agency in writing within fifteen (15) days of 
Developer's written notice to Agency of City's approval.  30 days prior to Closing 

6
Developer Submission of Evidence of Financing. Developer shall submit its 
evidence of financing for the Project. 

Within one hundred eighty (180) days of Execution 
of Agreement by Agency

7
Agencv Approval of Developer Evidence of Financing.  Agency shall approve or 
disapprove Developer's evidence of financing.

Within twenty (20) Days of submission by the 
Developer. 

8
 Insurance.   Developer shall furnish evidence ofthe insurance required under the 
Agreement to Agency. Prior to Closing. 

9
Citv and Government Permits.   Developer shall secure all necessary permits, other 
than building permits and condominium plat approvals, for the Project. Prior to Closing. 

10
Construction Loan Closings. Developer shall have closed its loan for the 
construction of the Project Concurrently with Closing

11
Conditions Precedent to Closing. All Conditions Precedent to Closing shall be 
satisfied or waived as appropriate. Prior to Closing. 

12 Closing. Agency shall close escrow and convey Parcel to Developer. 
In no event later than ten (10) months after the 
Effective Date.

13 Commencement of Construction of the Proiect Within 30 days following Closing. 

14 Completion of Construction. Developer shall complete construction of Project. Within twenty-four (24) months after Closing Date

Schedule of Performance, Ash Street Townhomes; CCDC DDA



15
Certificate of Completion.  Agency shall provide Certification of Completion to 
Developer. 

Subject to Agency discretion, Agency shall promptly 
issue the Certificate of Completion if (a) City has 
issued a temporary certificate of occupancy for 
100% of the residential units of the Project and a 
certificate of completion of at least the shell and 
core of the retail use of the Project, and (b) if 
Developer is not in default under this Agreement 
and Agency has not sent notice to Developer of any 
event which with the passing of time could give rise 
to a default under this Agreement. 

16

Purchase Price Adiustment. Subiect to the terms of the Agreement, Agency shall 
reimburse Developer the difference between the Purchase Price and the Adjusted 
Purchase Price. 

Within thirty (30) days of receipt of Developer's 
Request



 

 

Attachment 4  Design Development Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Letter from Gunnar Gladics, Pivot North Architecture



EcoEdge LEED for Homes Checklist









srodriguez
Polygon

srodriguez
Polygon



12

UPUPUPUPUPUPUPUPUP

UPUPUPUP

UP

B1
L-301

A1
L-301

C1
L-301

TYP
1'-0"

TYP

20'-0"
19'-0"

22
'-0

"

TY
P6"

TY
P

1'-
0"

TY
P

8'-
0"

TY
P

6'-
0"2'-

6"

TY
P

1'-
0"

CIP CONCRETE SIDEWALK
PER CCDC TYPE 4 
NEIGHBORHOOD STREETSCAPE 
STANDARDS, TYP

1'X4' CIP CONCRETE PAVEMENT, 
COLOR PER ARCHITECT, TYP

PLANTING AREA WITH NATIVE, 
DROUGHT-TOLERANT PALETTE, TYP

CIP CONCRETE STAIRS
WITH METAL HANDRAILS AND
WALL, TYP

CIP CONCRETE PAVEMENT
SIDEWALK

18" HT CIP CONCRETE
SEAT WALL WITH STONE 
VENEAR FACE, TYP

S ASH STREET

PIONEER PATHWAY

EXISTING PIONEER PATHWAY IMPROVEMENTS
TO REMAIN, TYP

NEW STRIPING FOR 
S ASH STREET PARKING, TYP

CIP CONCRETE STRIP PER
CCDC STANDARDS, TYP

PEDESTRIAN POLE LIGHT
PER CCDC STANDARDS, TYP

TYP

6'-0"

TY
P

6'-
0"

6'-6" TO 10'-0" CIP CONCRETE
CAR PORT WITH
GREEN ROOF, TYP

ACCESSIBLE VAN PARKING STALL

(4) COMPACT PARKING STALLS, 
(6) STANDARD PARKING STALLS

CIP CONCRETE VEHICULAR
CURB RAMP, TYP

SIDEWALK PLANTING 
PER CCDC STANDARDS, TYP

BOISE CITY PARK PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING TREE TO BE REMOVED

TY
P

20
'-0

"

TYP

20'-0"

CONNECT TO EXISTING PIONEER
PATHWAY, TYP

TYP

5'-6"

TYP

4'-0"

STRUCTURAL COLUMN, TYP

NATIVE COLUMNAR TREE AT 
AUTO COURT, TYP

3'-6" HT METAL UNIT
IDENTIFIER, TYP

CIP CONCRETE RETAINING WALL;
6" TO1'-6" HT

6'-0"

4'-
0"

TYP

3'-6"

TYP

4'-0"

TYP

12'-0"

4'-
0"

TY
P

1'-
0"

TYP

8'-0"

TYP
1'-0"

TYP
2'-0"

5'-
9"

1'-
0" 9'-

6"1'-
0"

9'-
6"1'-

0"
TYP
1'-0"

TYP

8'-0"

TYP

10'-6"4'-0" 11'-3"

METAL TREE GRATE AT 
EXISTING TREE, MATCH 
EXISTING TREE GRATE, TYP

BUILDING ROOF LINE, TYP

NON-RESIDENTIAL
USE

TYP

5'-6"

HAYMAN HOUSE
PROPERTY

TRASH
ENCLOSURE

MIN

10'-0"

TYP

20'-0"

TYP

20'-0"

TYP

10'-0" MIN

TYP

25'-0"

TYP

25'-0"

36'-0"

PA

HR PG MWSTPA

PA

PG

CS

CP

PA

PV PV PV PAPAPA

PA PA

PAPA

PA

ME
PC

ME

PA

PA PA PAPAPAPAPA

PA

PA

PA

PA

PG

WS

MW

PG

PG

PG PC PV

MOVEABLE FURNITURE
BY OWNER, TYP

PA

PG

RC

PG

PG

PG PG

PG

PG

PG

PA

TYP
2'-0"

TY
P

2'-
0"

MW

GS GS PG GS GS GS GS GS GS

GS

PG PG PG PG PG PGGS

WS

CU WS

CU

TY
P

3'-
3"

TY
P

4'-
9"

TY
P

8'-
0"

TY
P

6'-
0"

TYP

7'-5"

TYP

3'-0"

TYP
1'-7"

TYP

4'-0"

8' HT CIP CONCRETE
WALL

16 15 14 13 12 11 10 9 8

6

5

7

4 3 2 1

F

E

D

C

B

A

WS

CU CU

9'-6"

WS

CU

WS

CU

WS

CU CU WS

BUILDING ROOF LINE, TYP

PG

PG

MP

WS

20'-0" TYP

TYP

4'-0" 11'-3"

TYP

12'-0"

EXISTING PAVEMENT TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREE GRATES TO REMAIN, TYP

EXISTING LIGHT TO REMAIN, TYP

ME ME ME ME ME ME ME

PAPAPAPAPA
PA PA

ME ME

CU WS

PC CU

WS

PG ME

PG PA
PASTPGPAPAPAPAPAPA

PA

20'-0" MAX

PA
PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV PV

PV

PV

PV PV PV

PVPV

PV

PV

PV PV PV

PV

PV

PV PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV PV

PV PV

PV PV

PVPV

PV

PG

PG

PG

PG PG
PGPGPG

PG
PGPGPGPG

PG PG
PG

PG PG

PG

PV

PV

TY
P

4'-
6"

TYP

4'-0"

GUARDRAIL, TYP

8'-0" 8'-0"

18
'-0

"

4'-0" MIN

BD

8'-
0"

 M
AX

12' HT STRING 
LIGHT, TYP

TYP
2'-0"

6'-0"

3'-
0"

TY
P

2'-
0"

BR

PV PV

PG PG

PV

PV

PV

PVPGPVPG

LAYOUT AND MATERIALS LEGEND
TAG VISUAL DESCRIPTION DETAIL

CG

WG

WS

MW

TAG VISUAL DESCRIPTION DETAIL

PG

PA

CP

RCST

HR

CIP CONCRETE CURB ON GRADE

CIP CONCRETE WALL ON GRADE

18" HT CIP CONCRETE SEAT WALL ON GRADE

6" TO 24" HT METAL PLANTER WALL

CIP CONCRETE STAIR

HANDRAILS

CIP CONCRETE PAVING ON GRADE

PLANTING AREA

6"X12" SAND-SET CONCRETE PAVERS

CRUSHED ROCK

CONTROL JOINT

CIP CONCRETE VEHICULAR PAVING ON GRADEPV

PC 4"X8" CONCRETE PERMEABLE PAVER BANDME 6" METAL PLANTER WALL

GS 8' HT METAL MESH GREEN SCREEN

CU 3' HT CIP CONCRETE UNIT IDENTIFIER

6'X18"X30" METAL PLANTERMP

METAL BOLLARDBD

BIKE RACKBR

A

B

C

E

A

B

C

E

1 2 3 4 5

1 2 3 4 5

COPYRIGHT GGLO. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE IS 30"x42"

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

GGLO PROJECT MANAGER:
GGLO PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE:
PROJECT NO.:

OWNER APPROVAL:

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUE INFORMATION

REVISIONS

PROJECT:

OWNER:

PROJECT ADDRESS:

PL
OT

 D
AT

E/
TI

M
E:

A 03/24/2017 CUP/VARIANCE APPLICATION

6

6

D

D

1301 First Avenue, Suite 301
Seattle, WA 98101

http://www.gglo.com

3/
23

/2
01

7 
4:

24
:2

4 
PM

JENNIFER M WATT
TOM SHELDON

2017001.00

503, 509, 511, 623, 647 ASH STREET
BOISE, IDAHO 83702

L-111

LAYOUT AND
MATERIALS PLAN -
GROUND LEVEL

ASH STREET WORKFORCE
HOUSING

CU
P/

VA
RI

AN
CE

 A
PP

LI
CA

TI
ON

 3/
24

/20
17

DEAN PAPE, DECHASE MIKSIS
P.O. BOX 11942
EUGENE, OR 97440

PLAN
NORTH

0' 5' 10' 20'

 1" = 10'-0"B1 LAYOUT AND MATERIALS PLAN - GROUND LEVEL

1. IT IS THE INTENT OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS THAT ALL WORK COMPLY WITH THE IDAHO STATE BUILDING CODE, 
THE IDAHO STATE ENERGY CODE, AND OTHER APPLICABLE CODES, RULES, AND REGULATIONS OF JURISDICTIONS HAVING
AUTHORITY.

2. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY PORTION OF THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
IMMEDIATELY WHEN FOLLOWING ISSUES ARE NOTED: ANY DISCREPANCIES NOTED AMONG OR BETWEEN THE CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS, OWNER-PROVIDED INFORMATION, SITE CONDITIONS, MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDATIONS, OR CODES, 
REFULATIONS, OR RULES OF JURISDICTIONS HAVING AUTHORITY.

3. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY PORTION OF THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BECOME FAMILIAR WITH THE CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS, OWNER-PROVIDED INFORMATION, AND SITE CONDITIONS, INCLUDING TAKING FIELD MEASUREMENTS AS 
NECESSARY.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE AND PAY FOR ALL GOVERNMENTAL PERMITS, FEES, LICENSES, AND INSPECTIONS NECESSARY 
FOR PROPER EXECUTION AND COMPLETION OF THE WORK, EXCEPT FOR THE GENERAL BUILDING PERMIT.

5. REPETITIVE FEATURES NOT INDICATED IN THE DRAWINGS EVERYWHERE THAT THEY OCCUR SHALL BE PROVIDED AS IF DRAWN
IN FULL.

6. DO NOT SCALE THE DRAWINGS.

7. SITE PLAN INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO DIMENSIONS AND LOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES, 
IS BASED UPON SURVEY INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE OWNER. THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT TAKES NO RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR ITS ACCURACY.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES. CARE SHOULD BE TAKEN TO AVOID DAMAGE TO OR 
DISTURBANCE OF EXISTING UTILITIES.

9. WHERE POSSIBLE, RUN IRRIGATION AND ELECTRICAL CONDUIT UNDER DECKING OR PLANTING AREAS.

10. DRAINAGE FEATURES WITH PROPOSED ON-SITE RETENTION PER CIVIL.

LANDSCAPE GENERAL NOTES:

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

srodriguez
Polygon



S ASH STREET

12" DEPTH GREEN ROOF, TYP

BOISE CITY PARK PROPERTY LINE

HAYMAN HOUSE
PROPERTY

GROUND LEVEL 
LAYOUT, SEE 
SHEET L-111

PA

16 15 14 13 12

F

E

D

C

B

A

ROOF TIE-OFFS, TO BE 
DETERMINED, TYP

LAYOUT AND MATERIALS LEGEND
TAG VISUAL DESCRIPTION DETAIL

PLANTING AREA ON STRUCTUREPA

A

B

C

E

A

B

C

E

1 2 3 4 5

1 2 3 4 5

COPYRIGHT GGLO. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE IS 30"x42"

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

GGLO PROJECT MANAGER:
GGLO PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE:
PROJECT NO.:

OWNER APPROVAL:

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUE INFORMATION

REVISIONS

PROJECT:

OWNER:

PROJECT ADDRESS:

PL
OT

 D
AT

E/
TI

M
E:

A 03/24/2017 CUP/VARIANCE APPLICATION

6

6

D

D

1301 First Avenue, Suite 301
Seattle, WA 98101

http://www.gglo.com

3/
23

/2
01

7 
4:

24
:3

0 
PM

JENNIFER M WATT
TOM SHELDON

2017001.00

503, 509, 511, 623, 647 ASH STREET
BOISE, IDAHO 83702

L-112

LAYOUT AND
MATERIALS PLAN -
ROOF LEVEL

ASH STREET WORKFORCE
HOUSING

CU
P/

VA
RI

AN
CE

 A
PP

LI
CA

TI
ON

 3/
24

/20
17

DEAN PAPE, DECHASE MIKSIS
P.O. BOX 11942
EUGENE, OR 97440

 1" = 10'-0"B1 LAYOUT AND MATERIALS PLAN - ROOF LEVEL PLAN
NORTH

0' 5' 10' 20'

1. IT IS THE INTENT OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS THAT ALL WORK COMPLY WITH THE IDAHO STATE BUILDING CODE, 
THE IDAHO STATE ENERGY CODE, AND OTHER APPLICABLE CODES, RULES, AND REGULATIONS OF JURISDICTIONS HAVING
AUTHORITY.

2. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY PORTION OF THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
IMMEDIATELY WHEN FOLLOWING ISSUES ARE NOTED: ANY DISCREPANCIES NOTED AMONG OR BETWEEN THE CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS, OWNER-PROVIDED INFORMATION, SITE CONDITIONS, MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDATIONS, OR CODES, 
REFULATIONS, OR RULES OF JURISDICTIONS HAVING AUTHORITY.

3. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY PORTION OF THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BECOME FAMILIAR WITH THE CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS, OWNER-PROVIDED INFORMATION, AND SITE CONDITIONS, INCLUDING TAKING FIELD MEASUREMENTS AS 
NECESSARY.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE AND PAY FOR ALL GOVERNMENTAL PERMITS, FEES, LICENSES, AND INSPECTIONS NECESSARY 
FOR PROPER EXECUTION AND COMPLETION OF THE WORK, EXCEPT FOR THE GENERAL BUILDING PERMIT.

5. REPETITIVE FEATURES NOT INDICATED IN THE DRAWINGS EVERYWHERE THAT THEY OCCUR SHALL BE PROVIDED AS IF DRAWN
IN FULL.

6. DO NOT SCALE THE DRAWINGS.

7. SITE PLAN INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO DIMENSIONS AND LOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES, 
IS BASED UPON SURVEY INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE OWNER. THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT TAKES NO RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR ITS ACCURACY.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES. CARE SHOULD BE TAKEN TO AVOID DAMAGE TO OR 
DISTURBANCE OF EXISTING UTILITIES.

9. WHERE POSSIBLE, RUN IRRIGATION AND ELECTRICAL CONDUIT UNDER DECKING OR PLANTING AREAS.

10. DRAINAGE FEATURES WITH PROPOSED ON-SITE RETENTION PER CIVIL.

LANDSCAPE GENERAL NOTES:

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION



CIP CONCRETE SEAT WALL
WITH STONE VENEER 
FACE, TYP

NATIVE DROUGHT-TOLERANT 
PLANTING, TYP

CIP CONCRETE CAR PORT,
PER ARCHITECTURAL

GREEN ROOF ON TOP OF CAR PORT AT 
6:1 SLOPE, TYP

PROPERTY LINE

1'-
6"

1'-
6"

M
IN

3'-
6"

CAR PORT

8'-0" MAX

1'-6" TYP
3:1 SLOPE

3'-6" @

1'-0" MIN
HAYMAN HOUSE CAR PORT

CIP CONCRETE UNIT 
IDENTIFIER / SEAT WALL PROPERTY LINE

CIP CONCRETE 
SIDEWALK

6'-0" 1'-6"

3'-
0"

METAL PLANTER

BOISE CITY PARK

UTILITY EASEMENT

16'-0" OUTDOOR PATIO GARAGE

PROPERTY LINE GREEN ROOF ON TOP OF CAR PORT
AT 6:1 SLOPE, TYP

PLANT BERM AT 
4:1 SLOPE, TYP

HAYMAN HOUSE

CIP CONCRETE RETAINING CURB, 
HEIGHT VARIES, SEE PLAN

4'-
6"

CAR PORT

2'-
0"

HAYMAN HOUSE CAR PORT

A

B

C

E

A

B

C

E

1 2 3 4 5

1 2 3 4 5

COPYRIGHT GGLO. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE IS 30"x42"

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

GGLO PROJECT MANAGER:
GGLO PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE:
PROJECT NO.:

OWNER APPROVAL:

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUE INFORMATION

REVISIONS

PROJECT:

OWNER:

PROJECT ADDRESS:

PL
OT

 D
AT

E/
TI

M
E:

A 03/24/2017 CUP/VARIANCE APPLICATION

6

6

D

D

1301 First Avenue, Suite 301
Seattle, WA 98101

http://www.gglo.com

3/
23

/2
01

7 
4:

24
:5

3 
PM

JENNIFER M WATT
TOM SHELDON

2017001.00

503, 509, 511, 623, 647 ASH STREET
BOISE, IDAHO 83702

L-301

SITE SECTIONS

ASH STREET WORKFORCE
HOUSING

CU
P/

VA
RI

AN
CE

 A
PP

LI
CA

TI
ON

 3/
24

/20
17

DEAN PAPE, DECHASE MIKSIS
P.O. BOX 11942
EUGENE, OR 97440

 1/4" = 1'-0"B1 AMPHITHEATER SECTION

 1/4" = 1'-0"A1 WESTERN UNIT FRONTAGE SECTION

 1/4" = 1'-0"C1 ASH STREET ENTRY SECTION

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

srodriguez
Typewritten Text
BERM PLAN ON HAYMAN HOUSE PROPERTY

srodriguez
Typewritten Text

srodriguez
Polygon

srodriguez
Line

srodriguez
Line

srodriguez
Text Box
MUST BE REVISED



srodriguez
Polygon











3/23/17 CCDC APPLICATION



 

 

Attachment 5  Title Report 

srodriguez
Typewritten Text
PLACEHOLDER WILL BE UPDATED BEFORE EXECUTING

srodriguez
Typewritten Text



 

 

Attachment 6  Reuse Appraisal 
  



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Appraisal Report 
 
 

Ash Street Townhomes (Proposed) 

Re-Use Appraisal 

503-647 Ash Street 

Boise, Idaho 83702 

  

July 20, 2017 

 

 

 
 
 

FOR: 

John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Capital City Development Corporation 

121 N. 9
th

 Street, Suite 501 

Boise, Idaho 83702 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Valbridge Property Advisors | 

Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. 

1459 Tyrell Ln., Suite B 

Boise, ID  83706 

208-336-1097 phone  

208-345-1175 fax  

valbridge.com  

  
 Valbridge Job No:  ID02-17-0060-000 



 

 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS: AKRON ● ATLANTA ● BATON ROUGE ● BOISE ● BOSTON ● BOULDER ● CENTRAL VALLEY CA/CENTRAL COUNTIES ● CHARLESTON ● CHARLOTTE ● CINCINNATI ●  

COEUR D'ALENE ● DALLAS-FORT WORTH ● DAVENPORT ● EAST LANSING ● GREENVILLE ● HARTFORD ● HILTON HEAD ● HOUSTON ● INDIANAPOLIS ● JACKSONVILLE ● KANSAS CITY ● KNOXVILLE ● 

 LAS VEGAS ● LOS ANGELES ● ORANGE COUNTY ● LOUISVILLE ● LUBBOCK ● MEMPHIS ● MILWAUKEE ● MINNEAPOLIS ● MONTEREY/CARMEL ● MONTGOMERY ● NAPLES ● NASHVILLE ● NEW ORLEANS ● 

NORFOLK/VIRGINIA BEACH ● NORWALK/STAMFORD ● OLYMPIA ● ORLANDO ● PHILADELPHIA ● PITTSBURGH ● RALEIGH ● RICHMOND ● ROANOKE ● SACRAMENTO ● SALT LAKE CITY ● SAN ANTONIO ●  

SAN DIEGO ● SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA/EAST BAY ● SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA/SILICON VALLEY ● SEATTLE ● SHREVEPORT ● SPOKANE ● SOUTHERN UTAH ● TAMPA/ST. PETERSBURG ● TUCSON ●  

TULSA ● WASHINGTON DC/BALTIMORE  

July 20, 2017 

 

John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Capital City Development Corporation  

121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 

Boise, Idaho 83702Sunwest Bank File No. 14-733unwest Bank File No. 14-733 

 

RE: Appraisal Report 

Ash Street Townhomes (Proposed) 

Re-Use Appraisal 

503-647 Ash Street 

Boise, Idaho 83702 

Valbridge Job #ID02-17-0060-000 

 

Mr. Brunelle: 

 

In accordance with your request, we have prepared an appraisal of the above-referenced real property.  

The subject of this appraisal is a proposed 45,299 square foot townhome project to be situated on a 0.81-

acre site.  The project will contain 34 residential apartment units and 1 commercial unit.  The project will 

be subject to workforce housing requirements with rental rates affordable to households earning 80% to 

120% of Area Median Income (AMI).   

 

The subject was appraised using generally accepted principles and theory.  We developed our analyses, 

opinions, and conclusions and prepared this report in conformity with the Uniform Standards of 

Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) of the Appraisal Foundation; the Code of Professional Ethics and 

Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute; and the requirements of our client 

as we understand them.  The report is presented in Appraisal Report format and complies with the 

requirements set forth under Standards Rule 2-2(a) of USPAP.  It presents a narrative discussion, in 

condensed format, of the pertinent data gathered, the techniques employed, and the reasoning leading 

to our value opinions.  The depth of the discussion contained in this report is specific to the needs of the 

client and the intended use.   

 

The purpose of this appraisal is to provide an opinion of Fair Re-Use Value for the subject property.  Fair 

Re-Use Value is the most probable sale price of a property (or rights to develop) assuming a specific 

future development or redevelopment of the property.  Fair Re-Use Value is typically a residual value 

derived by subtracting total development costs, including an allowance for developer profit, from the 

estimate of market value of the property assuming the proposed development is complete.  If the seller is 

a public agency, the exact terms of the sale are typically set forth in the Disposition and Development 

Agreement executed by the buyer and seller.  Redevelopment of a given property may include 

extraordinary restrictions agreed to by the parties, such as historic preservations, revitalization, rent or sale 

price limits, and employment among others.  As such, highest and best use and market value are not 

considered in the appraisal or conclusions.  

Joe Corlett, MAI, SRA 

Moe Therrien, MAI 

Kevin Ritter, MAI 

Derek Newton, CGA 

Jeff Vance, MAI 

Dave Pascua, RT 

Paul Dehlin, MAI 



Capital City Development Corporation 

Mr. John Brunelle 

July 20, 2017 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC) is the client in this assignment.  The intended use is to 

provide a basis for negotiating a potential sale of the property to the developer Dean Pape.  The effective 

date of value is October 1, 2017, prospective to the date title to the property is projected to be transferred 

to the developer.  The intended users of this report include the client and any duly appointed 

representatives of the client, specifically authorized by the client to view or use this appraisal in 

accordance with the stated purpose or function.   

 

The value opinions reported herein are subject to the definitions, assumptions and limiting conditions, 

and certification contained in this report.  

 

The acceptance of this appraisal assignment and the completion of the appraisal report submitted 

herewith are contingent on the following extraordinary assumptions and/or hypothetical conditions: 

Extraordinary Assumptions: 

1) The project is proposed.  The appraisal and its conclusions relied upon preliminary construction 

plans, projected construction costs, and development specifications provided by the developer.  

This appraisal is subject to the extraordinary assumption that the improvements will be 

constructed as described herein.   

 

2) A public alley extends along the west boundary of the subject.  Ownership of the public alley is 

vested in the Ada County Highway District (ACHD).  The developer, Dean Pape’, plans to purchase 

the northernmost 3,225 square feet for vacation of the public alley to be developed in 

conjunction with the proposed Ash Street Townhome Project.  Our conclusion of Fair Re-use 

Value includes the extraordinary assumption the developer will purchase the aforementioned 

portion of the alley.  The purchase represents an additional cost to the development resulting in a 

pro rata reduction of the Fair Re-Use Value.  

 

3) A portion of the project will encroach onto the CCDC owned property adjoining the subject to the 

south; the adjoining property is known as the Hayman House property.  This appraisal is subject 

to the extraordinary assumption that the project will be allowed to encroach on the Hayman 

House property as shown on the site plan.   

 

4) As per the developer’s proposed schedule, transfer of title to the property is projected to occur by 

October 1, 2017, which is the prospective date of value in this appraisal.  Construction is projected 

to begin shortly thereafter and is anticipated to be complete by September 1, 2018.  As presented 

in this report, we anticipate the subject to reach stabilized occupancy by December 1, 2018.  The 

stabilization period inherently assumes the local economy will continue to improve and demand 

will remain at minimum consistent with the past one to two years.   

 

The use of these extraordinary assumptions might have affected assignment results.  If any of these 

extraordinary assumptions are later proven to be false, the value conclusion(s) reported herein could be 

rendered invalid, and further valuation analysis would be warranted.  

 

Hypothetical Conditions: 

None   

  



Capital City Development Corporation 

Mr. John Brunelle 

July 20, 2017 

Page 3 

 

 

 

Based on the analysis contained in the following report, our value conclusion(s) for the subject property 

are summarized as follows: 

 

   
 

This letter of transmittal must be accompanied by all sections of this report as outlined in the Table of 

Contents for the value opinions set forth above to be valid.   

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. 

 

 

 

 

Jeff Vance, MAI 

Senior Appraiser 

State of Idaho Certification No.  CGA-2828 

Certification Expiration Date:  4/18/18 

E-mail: jvance@valbridge.com 

 

 Moe Therrien, MAI 

Senior Managing Director 

State of Idaho Certification No.  CGA-8 

Certification Expiration Date:  12/31/17 

E-mail: mtherrien@valbridge.com 

 

 

 

Valuation Premise Interest Effective Date Value

Premise Qualifier Appraised of Value Conclusion

Fair Re-Use Value Prospective To Date Of Acquisition Fee Simple 10/1/2017 Negative $1,160,000

(Includes $679,000 land purchase price as a cost to the developer)

Value Conclusion(s) 

mailto:jvance@valbridge.com
mailto:mtherrien@valbridge.com


503-647 ASH STREET 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page i 

Table of Contents 

Cover Page 

Letter of Transmittal 

Table of Contents .................................................................................................................................................................................. i 

Summary of Salient Facts .................................................................................................................................................................. ii 

Aerial and Front Views ....................................................................................................................................................................... iii 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................................................ 1 

Neighborhood Description............................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Site Description ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Improvements Description ............................................................................................................................................................ 16 

Real Estate Assessment & Tax Data ........................................................................................................................................... 25 

Appraisal Methodology .................................................................................................................................................................. 26 

Market Value: Upon Stabilization ............................................................................................................................................... 27 

Income Capitalization Approach ................................................................................................................................................. 27 

Reconciliation – Market Value: Upon Stabilization .............................................................................................................. 49 

Development Cost Estimates ........................................................................................................................................................ 51 

Fair Re-Use Value Conclusion....................................................................................................................................................... 55 

General Assumptions & Limiting Conditions ......................................................................................................................... 57 

Certification.......................................................................................................................................................................................... 63 

Addenda 

 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

SUMMARY OF SALIENT FACTS 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page ii 

Summary of Salient Facts 

 
Property Description

Property name Ash Street Townhomes

Property type Multi-family 

Address 503-647 Ash Street

City & state Boise, Idaho 

Parcel number(s) R5336500012, R5336500022, R336500031, R8453210051, R8453210010

Zoning R-ODD; Residential Office District with Downtown Design Review District Overlay

Land size 35,374 square feet; 0.81 acres (includes portion of vacated alley at 3,225 sf or 0.074 acres)

Property owner Capital City Development Corporation (CCDC); Ada County Highway District (ACHD) owns alley

Proposed Improvements

Gross building area 45,299 sf (per building plans)

Rentable building area Apartments: 37,067 sf; Garages: 6,777 sf; Commercial: 519 sf

No. of units 34 apartment units plus 1 commercial unit

Unit mix (9) 1BR,1BA; (2) 2BR,2.5BA; (23) 3BR,2-3.5BA

Style Flats to 3-story townhomes

Average unit size 1,090 sf

Year built To be completed September 1, 2018; stabilized occupancy by December 1, 2018

Quality/condition Good quality construction; new condition

Common amenities None

Appraisal Description

Scope of Work

Purpose of the appraisal Provide an opinion of Fair Re-Use Value

Extraordinary assumptions Yes, see letter of transmittal

Hypothetical conditions None

Interest valued Fee Simple

Valuation methods completed Cost Approach: Not applicable

Income Capitalization Approach: Yes

Sales Comparison Approach: Not completed

Appraisal Dates

Property inspection date May 31, 2017

Date of value October 1, 2017, prospective to date of acquisition

Date of report completion July 20, 2017

Value Summary

Market Value: Upon Stabilization $8,050,000

Less: Development Costs Including Profit ($9,280,000)

Add: Non CCDC Cost Reimbursements $70,000

Fair Re-Use Value (Includes $679,000 Land Purchase Price) ($1,160,000)



503-647 ASH STREET 

AERIAL AND FRONT VIEWS 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page iii 

Aerial and Front Views 

AERIAL VIEW 

 
ELEVATION VIEW 

(As Proposed) 

 
 

 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

INTRODUCTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 1 

Introduction 

Client and Other Intended Users of the Appraisal 
The intended users of this report include the client, Capital City Development Corporation, and any duly 

appointed representatives of the client, specifically authorized by the client to view or use this appraisal in 

accordance with the stated purpose or function.   

Intended Use of the Appraisal 
The intended use is to provide a basis for negotiating a sale of the site subject to a specific development 

proposal.  

Real Estate Identification 
The subject is comprised of five parcels located at 503-647 S. Ash Street, Boise, Idaho 83702.  The Ada 

County Assessor identifies the subject as Parcel Numbers R5336500012, R5336500022, R336500031, 

R8453210051, and R8453210010.  These parcels are owned by the Capital City Development Corporation 

(CCDC), Boise’s redevelopment agency.  CCDC owned properties are exempt from taxation.   

 

The subject also includes a portion of a public alley extending between River Street and the Pioneer 

Pathway in Boise, Idaho.  No parcel number is associated with the alley.  The alley is owned by the Ada 

County Highway District (ACHD).  ACHD owned properties are exempt from taxation.   

Legal Description 
The subject is legally described as: 

Lots 1-7, Block 1, Lover’s Lane Addition, Lot 2, Block 1, Tiffany Subdivision, and Parcel A, Record of Survey 

Property Boundary Adjustment for Capital City Development Corporation, Boise, Idaho  

 

The metes and bounds legal description for the public alley is presented following.  The subject includes 

the northernmost 3,225 square feet (approximate). 

 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

INTRODUCTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 2 

Real Property Interest Appraised 
We have appraised the fee simple interest in the subject property. 

Type and Definition of Value 
We developed opinions of the following types of value for the subject property.  

VALUATION SCENARIOS 

Valuation Completed 

Fair Re-Use Value Yes 

 

Fair Re-Use Value – Fair Re-Use Value is the most probable sale price of a property (or rights to develop) 

assuming a specific future development or redevelopment of the property.  If the seller is a public agency, 

the exact terms of the sale are typically set forth in the Disposition and Development Agreement executed 

by the buyer and seller.  Redevelopment of a given property may include extraordinary restrictions agreed 

to by the parties, such as historic preservations, revitalization, rent or sale price limits, and employment 

among others.  As such, highest and best use and market value are not considered in the appraisal or 

conclusions.  

 

The re-use appraisal encompasses a review of the developer’s proposal, including preliminary estimates of 

development costs and cash flow considerations.  This information was then gauged against prevailing 

costs, sales, rents, and expenses for similar or competing developments.  The reconciled data was then 

submitted to a valuation process, primarily relying on the Income Capitalization Approach, to yield an 

estimate of property value following completion of the proposed project.  The process compares 

development cost to the value estimate with the difference representing value for the property prior to 

development.  The conclusion is termed Fair Re-Use Value.  Significant assumptions to the process 

specific to the subject are outlined within the report. 

 

Please refer to the Glossary in the Addenda section for further definitions for terms employed in this 

report. 

Effective Date(s) of Value 
The effective date of value is October 1, 2017, prospective to the date title of the property is projected to 

be transferred to the developer Dean Pape. 

Date of Report 
The date of this report is July 20, 2017.  Our conclusions are reflective of market conditions as of the 

effective date of value. 

Scope of Work 
The scope of work includes all steps taken in the development of the appraisal. This includes 1) the extent 

to which the subject property is identified, 2) the extent to which the subject property is inspected, 3) the 

type and extent of data researched, 4) the type and extent of analysis applied, and the type of appraisal 

report prepared.  

 

The subject site was legally identified via city, county, and public records.  Architectural drawings and 

specifications provided by the developer were relied upon for describing the proposed improvements.   

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

INTRODUCTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 3 

Jeff Vance, MAI, completed a site inspection of the subject on May 31, 2017.  This included viewing the 

property from several different angles and driving the neighborhood.  Moe Therrien, MAI, also completed 

a current inspection of the subject property.  

 

We researched and analyzed: 1) market area data, 2) property-specific, market-analysis data, and 3) 

current data on comparable listings, sales, and rentals in the competitive market area.  We then appraised 

the subject considering the proposed re-use, relying on the Income Capitalization Approach to value.  

Direct and indirect costs, including an allowance for developer’s profit, were then deducted from the 

estimate of market value resulting in a residual value prior to development, also termed Fair Re-Use Value.   

 

This is an Appraisal Report as defined by Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice under 

Standards Rule 2-2(a) of USPAP.  It presents a narrative discussion, in condensed format, of the pertinent 

data gathered, the techniques employed, and the reasoning leading to our value opinions.  The depth of 

the discussion contained in this report is specific to the needs of the client and the intended use.   

 

Use of Real Estate  
As of the Date of Value: The subject site is currently vacant.  The subject site is proposed to be developed 

with a 45,299 square foot townhome project.  The project will contain 34 residential apartment units and 1 

commercial unit.  The project will be subject to workforce housing requirements with rental rates 

affordable to households earning 80% to 120% of Area Median Income (AMI).   

 

As of the Date of this Report: Same as above. 

Person Property/FF&E 
As is typical in apartment complexes, personal property includes appliances and window coverings.  These 

items are typically included in sale; the segregation of the personal property from the real estate was not 

completed in this assignment. 

Ownership and Sales History 
According to Ada County Assessor records, title in the subject is vested in Capital City Development 

Corporation, which purchased the properties in several transactions over the past decade.  Parcel 

R5336500012 was purchased in June 2006 for $128,249 or $32.71/sf.  The site was improved with an 816 

square foot house built in 1895.  Parcel R5336500022 was purchased in May 2007 for $197,000 or 

$38.00/sf.  The site was unimproved.  Parcel R5336500031 was purchased in August 2011 for $265,948 or 

$38.64/sf.  The site was improved with a 2,192 square foot house/apartment built in 1939.  Parcels 

R8453210051 and R8453210026 (now R8453210010) were purchased in June 2013 for $301,129 or 

$39.81/sf and $300,000 or $39.10 respectively.  Each was improved with a 3,360 square foot 4-plex 

apartment building built in 1985.   

List of Items Requested but Not Provided 
None. 

Extraordinary Assumptions: 
1) The project is proposed.  The appraisal and its conclusions relied upon preliminary construction 

plans, projected construction costs, and development specifications provided by the developer.  

This appraisal is subject to the extraordinary assumption that the improvements will be 

constructed as described herein.   

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

INTRODUCTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 4 

2) A public alley extends along the west boundary of the subject.  Ownership of the public alley is 

vested in the Ada County Highway District (ACHD).  The developer, Dean Pape’, plans to purchase 

the northernmost 3,225 square feet for vacation of the public alley to be developed in 

conjunction with the proposed Ash Street Townhome Project.  Our conclusion of Fair Re-use 

Value includes the extraordinary assumption the developer will purchase the aforementioned 

portion of the alley.  The purchase represents an additional cost to the development resulting in a 

pro rata reduction of the Fair Re-Use Value.  

 

3) A portion of the project will encroach onto the CCDC owned property adjoining the subject to the 

south; the adjoining property is known as the Hayman House property.  This appraisal is subject 

to the extraordinary assumption that the project will be allowed to encroach on the Hayman 

House property as shown on the site plan.   

 

4) As per the developer’s proposed schedule, transfer of title to the property is projected to occur by 

October 1, 2017, which is the prospective date of value in this appraisal.  Construction is projected 

to begin shortly thereafter and is anticipated to be complete by September 1, 2018.  As presented 

in this report, we anticipate the subject to reach stabilized occupancy by December 1, 2018.  The 

stabilization period inherently assumes the local economy will continue to improve and demand 

will remain at minimum consistent with the past one to two years.   

 

The use of these extraordinary assumptions might have affected assignment results.  If any of these 

extraordinary assumptions are later proven to be false, the value conclusion(s) reported herein could be 

rendered invalid, and further valuation analysis would be warranted.  

Hypothetical Conditions 
None. 



503-647 ASH STREET 

NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 5 

Neighborhood Description 

Neighborhood Map 

 
  



503-647 ASH STREET 

NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 6 

Neighborhood Aerial 

 

Immediate Neighborhood 
The subject is located in the southwest peripheral area of downtown Boise.  Downtown Boise has four 

Urban Renewal Districts, which the City of Boise created to regulate, stimulate, and assist in 

redevelopment.  Development is subject to approval by the Capital City Development Corporation 

(CCDC).  The subject area is a part of the River Myrtle – Old Boise Urban Renewal District, which was 

established in 1996. 

 

The immediate area is primarily developed with a mix of apartment complexes, 2-4 story office buildings, 

and some older single-family residences.  The immediate neighborhood is in a stage of revitalization as 

evidenced by a number of recently renovated and newly constructed buildings south of River Street and 

east of 13
th

 Street.  A mixed-use building was recently completed at the corner of 13
th

 Street and River 

Street.  The building includes a mix of office space and a dormitory for students of Riverstone 

International School, a private school in east Boise.  Idaho Self Storage was recently completed adjacent 

south of this building, fronting River Street.  Further south, an older 36,000 square foot office/warehouse 

building was recently renovated for brewery use.  Payette Brewery, which is the largest micro-beer 

producer in the state, occupies the building. 



503-647 ASH STREET 

NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 7 

Recent Downtown Boise Development: There are several significant developments that have been 

recently completed or are currently under construction in downtown Boise.  The 17-story 8
th

 & Main 

Building is located at the corner of 8
th

 Street and Main Street.  It was completed in early 2014 and reached 

stabilized occupancy in late 2015.  Notable tenants include Ruth’s Chris Steakhouse, Holland and Hart 

Attorneys LLP, First American Title, and Zions Bank.  Also completed in early 2014 was a Trader Joe’s store 

located at the corner of Capitol Boulevard and Front Street.  Whole Foods and Walgreens, located at the 

eastern fringe of downtown along Broadway Avenue, were completed in late 2012.  Jacks Urban Meeting 

Place (JUMP), a $100 million mixed-use development located at 9
th

 and Front Street, was completed in 

2016.  The JR Simplot Company corporate office headquarters building was recently completed at 9th and 

Front Street adjacent to the JUMP project.  The building is 9-stories and contains 334,000 square feet of 

office space to be occupied by more than 900 Simplot Co. employees.  Simplot Co. will 

consolidate/expand to the headquarters building from other locations in Boise.  City Center Plaza, a $70 

million mixed-use development located at the southeast corner of 8
th

 Street and Main Street was 

completed in late 2016.  City Center Plaza includes a nine story, 206,000 square foot office/retail building, 

an underground urban transit mall, and a second multi-story office building with two levels of parking.  

The project was nearly 100% pre-leased.  Construction of the OneNineteen Condominiums began in 2015 

at the northwest corner of Grove Street and 10
th

 Street.  The project is six-stories and includes 26 

residential condominium units and two levels of garage parking.  It is nearing completion.  Construction 

recently began on The Afton Condominiums at the northeast corner of River Street and 9
th

 Street.  The 

project will contain 67 residential condominium units to be developed in two phases over a five year 

period.  Two large scale hotels are currently under construction at the corner of Capitol Boulevard and 

Myrtle Street.  The Inn at 500 Capitol is a six-story, 112-room boutique hotel. It was complete at year-end 

2016.  The Residence Inn by Marriott will be a 10-story, 186-room hotel, and is scheduled for completion 

in the spring of 2017.  Another large scale hotel, Hyatt Place, is under construction on Bannock Street 

between 10
th

 Street and 11
th

 Street.  The hotel will feature 152 rooms, and is scheduled for completion in 

2017.  Four apartment complexes were recently completed between Ann Morrison Park and S. Capitol 

Boulevard (across the Boise River).  The complexes total 541 units and space for nearly 1,500 beds.  The 

apartments are targeted for Boise State University students.  In 2016, construction began on the Fowler 

Apartments located at the corner of Myrtle Street and S. 5
th

 Street.  The Fowler Apartments will be a 7-

story, 159-unit, luxury apartment complex with main level commercial and two levels of garage parking.  

Construction is scheduled for completion in August 2017.  Construction recently began on the 

Watercooler Apartments located at the corner of Idaho Street and S. 14
th

 Street.  The Watercooler 

Apartments will be a 3-story, 37-unit, apartment complex with main level commercial.  Construction is 

scheduled for completion in mid-to-late 2017.  The Gardner Company recently broke ground on a large 

scale $70 million mixed-use development called Pioneer Crossing.  Pioneer Crossing, located adjacent 

west of JUMP between Front Street and Myrtle Street, will include a 5-story, 135,000 square foot office, a 

650 space parking garage, retail, and a 150 room Hilton Garden Inn hotel.   

 

  



503-647 ASH STREET 

NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 8 

Subject Location: The subject has an interior block location just north of the intersection of Ash Street 

and River Street, approximately 1/2 mile southwest of Boise’s downtown core.  Located east of the subject 

across Ash Street are apartment buildings constructed in the 1980’s and several single-family residences 

constructed in the early 1900’s.  South is the historic “Hayman House” constructed in 1895.  Further south 

across River Street is Forest River, an office subdivision containing several 2-4 story office buildings 

constructed in the 1990’s.  North is the Pioneer Community Center and several low-moderate income 

apartment complexes.  West is a city park and senior low income apartments constructed in 2012.  Further 

west across River Street is Payette Brewery and the Boise River and Greenbelt.  The Pioneer Pathway 

extends along the north boundary of the subject.  It is a new pathway connecting the Boise Greenbelt to 

Front Street, and will eventually extend to the downtown core.   

Conclusion 
The subject location is rated good.  It is located approximately 1/2 mile southwest of Boise’s downtown 

core in a transitioning mixed-use neighborhood.  A desirable amenity in the immediate neighborhood is 

the Boise River and Greenbelt, an extensive walking and biking path which parallels the river.   The greater 

downtown Boise market has experienced significant new commercial development during the past several 

years with several large projects recently completed, under construction, or planned near-term.    

 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

SITE DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 9 

Site Description 

Assessor’s Parcel Map 
 

 

 
 



503-647 ASH STREET 

SITE DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 10 

Record of Survey 

 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

SITE DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 11 

Record of Survey 
(Close-up) 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  



503-647 ASH STREET 

SITE DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 12 

General Data  
Street Address: 503-647 Ash Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 

Assessor Parcel Number(s): R5336500012, R5336500022, R336500031, R8453210051, 

R8453210010 

Adjacent Land Uses  
North: Apartments 

South: Hayman House, office uses across River Street 

East: Apartments and single-family residential  

West: Senior apartments and Pioneer Community Center 

Physical Characteristics 
Site Area: 32,149 square feet; 0.74 acres (Ash Street Parcels) 

3,225 square feet; 0.074 acres (subject portion of alley) 

Gross Land Area: 35,374 square feet; 0.81 acres 

Land Size Determination: Record of survey  

Usable Land Area: All of the land is usable/developable 

Configuration: Slightly irregular (triangular north portion) 

Topography: Generally level 

Primary Access/Exposure  
Street Name/Type: Access is from Ash Street which connects to River Street to the south, 

an arterial street extending through the southwest periphery of 

downtown Boise.  Ash Street connects to Grand Avenue and Miller 

Street to the north, which are secondary arterials. 

At Signalized Intersection: No 

Overall Visibility: The subject does not front an arterial street, but visibility is rated 

average.   

Access: Average   

 

Site Improvements  
Utilities: All typical utilities are available to the subject including municipal 

water and sewer, electricity, gas, and telephone service.   

On-Site Improvements: None   

Flood Zone Data 
Flood Map Panel: 16001C0277H; 2/19/2003 

Flood Zone: The subject property is located within an “X500” flood zone, an area 

of 0.2% annual chance of flood; areas of 1% annual chance of flood 

with average depths of less than one foot or with drainage area less 

than one square mile; areas protected by levies from 1% annual 

chance of flood.  Properties within an “X500” flood zone are not 

required to carry flood insurance.  The flood map and definitions are 

located in the addenda of this report. 

 

  



503-647 ASH STREET 

SITE DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 13 

Other Site Conditions 
Soils: Subsoil and drainage appear adequate to support the existing use. 

Environmental Issues: During the property inspection, we did not observe any obvious 

environmental concerns.  As real estate appraisers, we are not 

qualified to determine if any environmental hazards exist on the 

property, whether such hazards are obvious or not.  Therefore, this 

appraisal assumes any environmental hazards to be nonexistent or 

minimal. 

Easements & Restrictions: The property has one known atypical easement or restriction. 

The alley way portion of the subject is encumbered by a public 

utilities easement which limits development potential.  No building 

improvements can be developed on the site.  The land area can be 

used to help satisfy set back and density requirements (as a part of 

the larger parcel).  This area can also be improved with hard surface 

site improvements and landscaping.  

A title report was not provided in connection with this assignment, 

which may confirm possible atypical easements or restrictions not 

reported herein.  Based on our own observations, no other adverse 

easements or restrictions exist.  This appraisal assumes only standard 

utility easements and governmental restrictions exist, none of which 

are assumed to impact value.  An A.L.T.A survey is recommended if 

further assurance is needed.  If questions arise regarding easements, 

encroachments, or other encumbrances, further research is advised. 

Earthquake Zone: The subject is located within Earthquake Zone 2B, considered a 

moderate zone with respect to seismic activity. 

Zoning Designation 
Zoning Code: R-ODD, Residential Office District with Downtown Design Review 

Overlay District 

Zoning Jurisdiction: City of Boise 

Zoning Definition: R-O, Residential Office District 

According to Boise City zoning, this zone is defined as “established to 

fulfill the needs of providing an urban transitional buffer between 

high intensity commercial areas and adjacent higher density 

residential areas, or institutional and government uses; and to 

implement mixed use development in those areas identified for mixed 

use in the Comprehensive Plan, the Downtown Boise Plan and the 

River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Design Plan.  The R-O zone is 

intended to provide for higher density residential and office uses with 

an emphasis on high quality urban design and pedestrian 

orientation.” 

DD; Downtown Design Review District 

Boise City zoning defines this zone as “established to insure that the 

general appearance of the development on the land shall not be in 

conflict with the Comprehensive General Plan or other development 

plans adopted by Boise City for specific areas.  It shall be further 

purpose of this act to protect property rights and values, enhance 

important environmental features of the city and the physical 



503-647 ASH STREET 

SITE DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 14 

characteristics of the land; and further to insure that the general 

appearance of buildings and structures, and the development of land, 

shall not impair or preclude the orderly and harmonious development 

of the community.  To accomplish said objectives, it shall be the 

further purpose of this act to coordinate design input from other 

jurisdictions, to regulate landscaping, to review building design, site 

planning, sign grading, development and beautification, including but 

not limited to the regulation and restriction of the type, number of 

stories, size, construction, reconstruction, alteration, repair or use of 

buildings and structures to insure compliance with the requirements 

of the respective use district with which the “D”, “HD”, and “DD” 

district is combined. 

Permitted Uses: This zoning allows for office, boarding house, nursing home, single-

family, and multifamily uses.  Restaurant and retail uses are allowable 

uses via a conditional use permit.  

Zoning Map 

 

Parking Requirements 
On-site Parking: 33 spaces; 22 garage, 11 carport (5 spaces reserved for visitors) 

Parking District: The subject is located in the P-3 parking district which reduces 

required on-site parking from standard.   

Zoning Required Parking: As stated on the building plans, 45 on-site parking spaces are 

required by zoning.  However, it is assumed the subject will be 

granted a parking variance which would approve the proposed 

development with 33 on-site spaces.  In addition to on-site parking, 9 

on-street parking spaces fronting Ash Street will be available to 

tenants.  Thus, one parking space (garage, covered, or on-street) will 

be available to each subject unit, which meets minimum market 

expectations for multi-family projects in the downtown market. 



503-647 ASH STREET 

SITE DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 15 

Site Rating 
Location: Good 

Access: Average 

Exposure: Average 

Functional Utility: Average 

Overall Site: Average 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

IMPROVEMENTS DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 16 

Improvements Description 

Proposed Improvements Description 
The subject is a proposed 45,299 square foot, two-building, townhome apartment project.  The project 

will contain 34 residential apartment units and 1 commercial unit.  The apartments include a mix of 1, 2, 

and 3 bedroom unit types.  Construction will be wood frame with 12” standing seam vertical metal and 

cement board horizontal plank lap siding.  Roof cover will be white rubber membrane (TPO) and HVAC 

will be rooftop condenser units with in-unit heat pumps.  The buildings will include various energy 

efficient upgrades including R-30 walls, R-50 roof, high performance windows, outside air infiltration 

control, and solar photovoltaics and green roof above the covered parking area.   LEED Gold certification 

will be targeted.  Interior finishes will be of good quality.  Flooring will be laminate and/or carpet with 

laminate or ceramic tile in bathrooms.  Each full bathroom will include a shower/tub, sink, and toilet.  The 

kitchen and bathrooms will have quartz or granite countertops and wood cabinetry.  Appliances will 

include refrigerator, oven/range, microwave, dishwasher, garbage disposal, and washer/dryer.  Each unit 

will have a small patio or balcony (<50 sf).  The 22 – 3 bedroom townhome units will include a single car 

garage on the main level.  The project will also include an 11-space covered parking area.  The 519 square 

foot commercial space, located at the corner of Ash Street and Miller Street, is planned for coffee shop or 

deli/sandwich shop use and will include an outdoor patio area.    

 

Building Size (per building plans) 

 
 



503-647 ASH STREET 

IMPROVEMENTS DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 17 

Apartment Unit Mix 

 

 
 

Age / Life Analysis 
Year Built: To be 2017/2018 

Actual Age: 0 years at completion 

Effective Age: 0 years at completion 

Typical Economic Life: 60 years 

Remaining Economic Life: 60 years 

Improvement Ratings  
Quality/Design: Good 

Age/Condition: New at completion 

Deferred Maintenance: No deferred maintenance at completion.   

Overall Rating: Good 

 

Color renderings and architectural drawings of the site plan, floor plans, and elevation plans are provided 

on the following pages.  Individual unit floor plans are included in the addenda section.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Unit Type Count AVG SF % of Total

1BR,1BA Flat (FL-1, FL-2, FL-4, FL-5) 9 543 26%

2BR,2.5BA TH (TH-4) 2 1,130 6%

3BR, 2BA Flat (FL-3) 1 1,048 3%

3BR,3BA TH (TH-E2) 4 1,206 12%

3BR,3BA TH (TH-W) 9 1,302 26%

3BR,3.5BA TH (TH-E1) 9 1,370 26%

Unit Total 34 37,067 100%

Average Unit SF 1,090

Unit Mix



503-647 ASH STREET 

IMPROVEMENTS DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 18 

Color Renderings 

 

 
 



503-647 ASH STREET 

IMPROVEMENTS DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 19 

Site Plan 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

IMPROVEMENTS DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 20 

Level 1 Floor Plan 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

IMPROVEMENTS DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 21 

Level 2 Floor Plan 
 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

IMPROVEMENTS DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 22 

Level 3 Floor Plan 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

IMPROVEMENTS DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 23 

Elevation Plan 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

IMPROVEMENTS DESCRIPTION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 24 

Elevation Plan 
 



503-647 ASH STREET 

REAL ESTATE ASSESSMENT & TAX DATA 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 25 

Real Estate Assessment & Tax Data 

Assessed Value and Property Taxes: Upon Stabilization 
The subject’s projected assessed value and real estate taxes upon stabilization were based on assessment 

comparables of newer apartment buildings in the local market.  The comparables are presented in the 

following table.  Note, the assessment comparables exclude the land component and represent the 

assessed values of the improvements only.   

 

 

Projected Assessed Value and Property Taxes Conclusion: Upon Stabilization 
The comparables exhibit improvement assessed values ranging from $106,165 to $137,426 per unit, with an 

average of $114,851 per unit.  Considering the subject’s large average unit size, high building 

quality/design, and new age/condition at completion, the assessed value for the subject improvements is 

projected near the upper-tier of the range at $130,000 per unit.  Based on similar commercial sites located 

adjacent to the subject, the assessed value for the subject’s land component is projected to be $20.00 per 

square foot.  Projected real estate taxes were based on the 2017 preliminary levy rate of 1.58%.  Projected 

stabilized assessment and real estate taxes for the subject are summarized in the following table.  Note, we 

have excluded the one commercial unit from the projected assessment and related real estate taxes.  This 

unit will be rented on a NNN lease type, wherein the tenant will be responsible for the real estate tax 

expense.  Furthermore, this expense will minimal with respect to the larger project overall. 

 

 

Assessor's 2017 2017

No. of Improvements Assessment

Property Address Built Units Assessment Per Unit

Bown Crossing Townhomes 3000 S. Bown Way, Boise 2016 10 $1,156,500 $115,650

Fields at Gramercy 2020 S. Luxury Ln., Meridian 2014-2016 276 $30,487,500 $110,462

Eagle River 827 E. Riverside Dr., Eagle 2015 80 $10,994,100 $137,426

Crossfield Apartments 980 W. Parkstone St., Meridian 2012 80 $9,039,000 $112,988

951 Apartments 951 Front St., Boise 2014 68 $8,139,900 $119,704

Red Tail Apartments 121 E. Victory Rd., Meridian 2014-2015 220 $26,125,600 $118,753

Heron Village 2250 N. Meridian Rd., Meridian 2015 108 $11,484,900 $106,342

Regency at River Valley, Phase 1 3400 E. River Valley St., Meridian 2013-2014 240 $25,479,700 $106,165

Minimum $106,165

Average $114,851

*assessments exclude land component Maximum $137,426

2017 Assessment Comparables

Improvement Value/Unit # Units Improvement Value Land Value/SF Land Size (AC) Land Value Total Assessed Value Levy Rate Projected Taxes

$130,000 34 $4,420,000 $20.00 $0.738 $642,980 $5,062,980 1.58% $79,995

Projected Assessed Value and Property Tax Estimate



503-647 ASH STREET 

APPRAISAL METHODOLOGY 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 26 

 

Appraisal Methodology 

Approaches to Value 
There are three traditional approaches typically available to develop indications of real property value: the 

Cost, Sales Comparison, and Income Capitalization Approaches.  

 

Cost Approach - The Cost Approach is based upon the principle of substitution, which states that a 

prudent purchaser would not pay more for a property than the amount required to purchase a similar site 

and construct similar improvements without undue delay, producing a property of equal desirability and 

utility. For proposed or new facilities that have suffered little or no depreciation, this approach is 

meaningful, though it is rarely used by investors.   

 

Sales Comparison Approach – The Sales Comparison Approach involves the direct comparison of sales 

and listings of similar properties, adjusting for differences between the subject property and the 

comparable properties. It is based on the Principle of Substitution. This principle states that no one would 

pay more for the subject than the value of a similar property in the market. In active markets with a large 

number of physically similar comparables, this approach is generally considered to be a good indicator of 

value. However, the use of this approach is limited, because many properties have unique characteristics 

that cannot be accounted for in the adjustment process. In addition, market data is not always available. 

Both of these factors may reduce the validity of this approach.  This is often a secondary approach for 

income-producing properties.   

 

Income Capitalization Approach - The Income Capitalization Approach is based on the principle of 

anticipation, or the assumption that value is created by the expectation of benefits to be derived in the 

future, such as expected future income flows including the reversion, or future resale of the property 

appraised.  Its premise is that a prudent investor will pay no more for the property than he or she would 

for another investment of similar risk and cash flow characteristics.  The Income Capitalization Approach is 

the primary method used by investors in valuing income producing properties. 

Subject Valuation – Fair Re-Use Value 
Fair Re-Use Value is the most probable sale price of a property (or rights to develop) in anticipation of a 

specific future development or redevelopment of the property.  Fair Re-Use Value is typically a residual 

value derived by subtracting total development costs, including an allowance for developer profit, from 

the estimate of market value of the property assuming the proposed development is complete.  This 

process involves the steps listed below: 

 

 1) The Income Capitalization Approach was employed to estimate market value of the 

proposed project assuming it is complete and at stabilized occupancy. 

 2) Development costs were estimated, which include all direct and indirect costs and an 

allowance for developer profit. 

 3) Developments costs are then deducted from the estimate of market value resulting in a 

residual value for the property (and/or development rights for the property) prior to 

redevelopment.  The conclusion is termed Fair Re-Use Value. 



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 27 

Market Value: Upon Stabilization 

Income Capitalization Approach 

Methodology 
The Income Capitalization Approach is based on the principle of anticipation.  Its premise is that a prudent 

investor will pay no more for the subject property versus another investment property of similar risk and 

cash flow characteristics.  It is generally considered to be the best and most accurate measure of value for 

income-producing properties such as the subject.  The steps taken to apply the approach are as follows: 

 

1. Estimate potential gross income (i.e., market/contract rent, ancillary income). 

2. Consider an appropriate allowance for vacancy and collection loss to calculate effective 

gross income. 

3. Estimate operating expenses. 

4. Calculate net operating income by deducting operating expenses from effective gross 

income. 

5. Apply the most appropriate capitalization method(s) to convert anticipated net income to 

an indication of value.   

Potential Gross Income – Apartment Component 
Comparable Selection - The first step is to estimate the subject’s potential gross income, (PGI) which is 

derived by comparing the subject property with rentals of similar properties.  The subject features six unit 

types as summarized below.  Note, the 1BR/1BA units range from 484 to 627 square feet; the unit sizes for 

each of the remaining unit types are nearly identical. 

 

 
 

1 bedroom and 3 bedroom floor plans have been selected as “base” comparison units.  The average size 

of the 9 – 1 bedroom units is 543 square feet; the average size of the 23- 3 bedroom units is 1,301 square 

feet.  The base comparison units represent the average unit in terms of location (view/floor level) within 

the project.  Market rent for these units will be estimated via direct comparison to competing apartments 

in the local market.  Concluded market rent for the 3 bedroom base unit is utilized as a basis for 

estimating market rent for the 2 bedroom units.   

 

In researching rental comparables, an effort was made to locate apartment complexes of similar location, 

age, quality and design.  The selected comparables are located in downtown Boise or nearby peripheral 

areas.  The developers’ estimates of market rent for the subject units were also considered. 

Unit Type Count AVG SF % of Total

1BR,1BA Flat (FL-1, FL-2, FL-4, FL-5) 9 543 26%

2BR,2.5BA TH (TH-4) 2 1,130 6%

3BR, 2BA Flat (FL-3) 1 1,048 3%

3BR,3BA TH (TH-E2) 4 1,206 12%

3BR,3BA TH (TH-W) 9 1,302 26%

3BR,3.5BA TH (TH-E1) 9 1,370 26%

Unit Total 34 37,067 100%

Average Unit SF 1,090

Unit Mix



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 28 

Adjustments - Quantitative adjustments are applied for differences in location, age/quality/condition and 

unit size.  This is followed by adjustments for differences in utilities (included in rent), heating/cooling 

system, appliances, presence of an in-suite washer/dryer, patio/balcony, covered parking, common 

amenities and bathroom count.  Adjustments are based on paired analysis, owner/management responses 

and the appraisers’ experience in the market. 

Comparative Analysis – 1 Bedroom Units 
 

Market Conditions (Time) - This category accounts for rent differences due to rent changes over time.  

The comparables are current rents and representative of the current market.  During the past few years, 

rental rates have been appreciating at an estimated rate of +3% per year.  This appreciating trend is 

projected to continue through at least mid-2018, which was applied as the adjustment moving forward.   

 

Location – This category accounts for property value differences associated with location quality and 

desirability, including proximity to transportation routes, neighborhood services and major employers, 

and also considers surrounding land uses.  The subject has a good location approximately ½ mile 

southwest of the center of the downtown pedestrian core.  Comparable 1 has a similar downtown 

peripheral location.  Comparables 2 and 4 have superior locations, located nearer the downtown pedestrian 

core.  Downward adjustments of $50 were applied.  Comparable 3 is inferior to the subject.  It is located 

outside the immediate downtown area beyond convenient walking distance to downtown services.  An 

upward adjustment of $100 was applied.  

 

Age/Condition – The subject will be a new project.  Typically, there is a positive correlation between effective 

age/condition and rent.  The adjustments are based on market participant (tenant and managers) 

responses over the years emphasizing rent differences for new carpet, paint, window covers versus 

standard original finishes within the same complex, and with general support by paired property analysis.  

Comparables 2-4 are inferior to the subject for age/condition.  Upward adjustments ranging from $10 to 

$125 were applied. 

 

Quality/Appeal - The subject will be of good quality and design.  Comparables 1, 2, and 3 are similar for 

construction quality and appeal.  Comparable 4 has inferior interior and exterior finishes.  An upward 

adjustment of $75 was applied.   

 

Size – Unit size has an impact on rent.  Our paired property analysis shows rent differences in an approximate 

range of 25% to 50% of the comparable rent/SF. Larger units/older projects trend to the lower end of the 

adjustment range, and vice versa.  Given the physical characteristics of the subject and smaller size of the one 

bedroom units, an adjustment rate at the upper mid-range of the paired analysis, or 40% is most appropriate.   

 

Bedroom Count – No adjustments warranted. 

Bathroom Count – No adjustments warranted. 

 

Patio/Balcony – Each subject unit will have a small patio/balcony.  Comparables 1 and 2 lack this amenity. 

Upward adjustments of $20 were applied. 

 

Parking – It is assumed three of the subject 1 bedroom units will include a carport in base rent.  Parking 

for the balance (6 units) will be on-street along Ash Street.  The comparables vary with respect to parking 

in terms of type (i.e., open, carport, garage).  We conclude a contributory rent premium of $20 for a 



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 29 

suburban open space, $40 for carport, $100 for shared garage, and $120 for individual direct access 

garage.  The adjustments were applied at a blended rate between the subject’s carport and open space 

units. 

 

Project Amenities – The subject does not have any notable amenities.  Comparables 1-3 are superior for 

amenities.  Downward adjustment ranging from $20 to $30 were applied. 

 

Base Utilities – The tenants for the subject units are responsible for heat and electric (tenants pay directly).  

The landlord pays for all other expenses.  In addition to gas and electric, the comparable complexes do not 

include water, sewer, and trash in the monthly base rent.  The tenants reimburse the landlord for water, sewer, 

and trash expenses. Considering the smaller unit sizes, upward adjustments of $35 were applied.  The 

adjustments are based on reimbursement rates reported at other complexes in the subject market.  

 

Presentation – Presented on the following pages are the Rent Comparable Summation Table and Rent 

Comparable Map, followed by the discussion and analysis of the comparables, and conclusion(s) of 

market rent. 



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 30 

 
 

 

Subject Comp #1 Comp #2 Comp #3 Comp #4

Data Data Adjust Data Adjust Data Adjust Data Adjust

Project Name Ash Street Townhomes Watercooler Apartments Owyhee Plaza Apartments The 951 Apartments CW Moore Apartments

Address 503-647 Ash Street 1401 W. Idaho Street 1109 W. Main Street 951 E. Front Street 450 W. Grove Street

Town/City Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho

General Location Good Similar Superior ($50) Inferior $100 Superior ($50)

Type of Project Townhomes Apartment/commercial Apartment/commercial Apartment/commercial Apartment

# of Stories 3 Story 3 Story 4 Story 4 Story 4 Story (parking garage main level)

Tot. Units in Project 34 37 36 61 47

# of Units this Type 9-1 bd/1 ba flats 14-1 bd/1 ba flats 32-1 bd/1 ba flats 30-1 bd/1 ba flats 47-1 bd/1 ba flats

Eff. Date of rental September-18 July-17 $38 January-17 $49 January-17 $39 June-17 $30 

Current Vacancy -This Type n/a Initial absorption 3-1BR preleased 1-Unit 1-Unit 0-Units

Data Source n/a Manager Manager Manager Manager

Year Built/Condition 2017/2018/new 2017/new Fully renovated 2014; very good $10 2015; very good $10 1998; average $125 

Project Quality/Appeal Good Good Good Good Average $75 

Apartment Size(S.F.) 543 648 ($83) 700 ($103) 675 ($72) 709 ($92)

Number of Bedrooms 1 1 1 1 1

Number of Baths 1 1 1 1 1

Balcony/Patio Balcony/Patio None $20 None $20 Balcony/Patio Balcony

Type of Parking Provided 3 Carport; 6 On-street open Carport ($25) None (leased separately) $15 Carport ($25) Shared garage ($85)

Kitchen Appliances All Standard All Standard All Standard All Standard All Standard

Other Unit Amenities:

   Heat Type GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA

   Air-conditioned CAC CAC CAC CAC CAC

   Washer/Dryer Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

   Fireplace No No No No No

   Cable TV in Rent No No No No No

   View No No No No No

   Other n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Project Amenities: None Use of fitness center in Owyhee 

Plaza (3 blocks SE)

($20) Common lobby/lounge, fitness 

center, adj. plaza grill

($30) Fitness center; bike storage ($20) None

Services: i.e.-Ten. Pays Heat & Electric WST; Heat & Electric $35 WST; Heat & Electric $35 WST; Heat & Electric $35 WST; Heat & Electric $35 

Rent Range Assume Market $1,265-$1,350 $1,075-$1,250 $875-$960 $905-$1050

Standard Rent @ Turnover Assume Market $1,275 $1,150 $925 $985

Concessions Assume Market $0 $0 $0 $0

Rent/S.F Assume Market $1.97 $1.64 $1.37 $1.39

Net Adjustments Assume Market ($34) ($54) $67 $37 

Indicated market rent for subject $1,241 $1,096 $992 $1,022

ESTIMATES OF MARKET RENT BY COMPARISON

1 BEDROOM/1 BATH



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 31 

RENT COMPARABLE MAP 

 

 
 

 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 32 

Comparative Analysis – 3 Bedroom Units 
 

Market Conditions (Time) - This category accounts for rent differences due to rent changes over time.  

The comparables are current rents and representative of the current market.  During the past few years, 

rental rates have been appreciating at an estimated rate of +3% per year.  This appreciating trend is 

projected to continue through at least mid-2018, which was applied as the adjustment moving forward.   

 

Location – This category accounts for property value differences associated with location quality and 

desirability, including proximity to transportation routes, neighborhood services and major employers, 

and also considers surrounding land uses.  The subject has a good location approximately ½ mile 

southwest of the center of the downtown pedestrian core.  Comparable 1 has similar downtown 

peripheral locations.  Comparables 2 and 4 are inferior to the subject.  They are located outside the 

immediate downtown area beyond convenient walking distance to downtown services.  Upward adjustments 

of $100 were applied.  Note, Comparable 3 is also located outside the immediate downtown area; however, 

the three bedroom units in this project are located along the Boise River, providing a desirable view amenity.  

No adjustment for location was applied. 

 

Age/Condition – The subject will be in new at completion.  Typically, there is a positive correlation between 

effective age/condition and rent.  The adjustments are based on market participant (tenant and managers) 

responses over the years emphasizing rent differences for new carpet, paint, window covers versus 

standard original finishes within the same complex, and with general support by paired property analysis.  

Comparables 2-4 are inferior to the subject for age/condition.  Upward adjustments ranging from $10 to 

$125 were applied. 

 

Quality/Appeal - The subject will be of good quality and design.  Comparable 1 is similar for construction 

quality and appeal.  Comparables 2-4 have inferior interior and exterior finishes.   Upward adjustments of 

$75 were applied.   

 

Size – Unit size has an impact on rent.  Our paired property analysis shows rent differences in an approximate 

range of 25% to 50% of the comparable rent/SF. Larger units/older projects trend to the lower end of the 

adjustment range, and vice versa.  Given the physical characteristics of the subject and larger size of the three 

bedroom units, an adjustment rate at the upper mid-range of the paired analysis, or 35% is most appropriate.   

 

Bedroom Count – No adjustments warranted. 

Bathroom Count – An adjustment of $50 was applied for full bathroom count differences; $25 for half 

bathroom differences. 

 

Patio/Balcony – Each subject unit will have a patio/balcony.  Comparable 1 lacks this amenity. An upward 

adjustment of $20 were applied. 

 

Parking – All 22 of the 3 bedroom townhome units have a single car garage.  It is assumed that the 1- 3 

bedroom flat will include a carport in base rent.  The comparables vary with respect to parking in terms of 

type (i.e., open, carport, garage).  We conclude a contributory rent premium of $20 for a suburban open 

space, $40 for carport, $100 for shared garage, and $120 for individual direct access garage.   

 

Project Amenities – The subject does not have any notable amenities.  Comparables 1 is superior for 

amenities.  A downward adjustment of $20 was applied. 



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 33 

Base Utilities – The tenants for the subject units are responsible for heat and electric (tenants pay directly).  

The landlord pays for all other expenses.  In addition to gas and electric, the comparable complexes do not 

include water, sewer, and/or trash in the monthly base rent.  The tenants reimburse the landlord for water, 

sewer, and/or trash expenses. Considering the larger unit sizes, upward adjustments of $15 for trash expense 

and $45 for water, sewer, and trash combined were applied.  The adjustments are based on reimbursement 

rates reported at other complexes in the subject market.  

 

Presentation – Presented on the following pages are the Rent Comparable Summation Table and Rent 

Comparable Map, followed by the discussion and analysis of the comparables, and conclusion(s) of 

market rent. 



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 34 

 

Subject Comp #1 Comp #2 Comp #3 Comp #4

Data Data Adjust Data Adjust Data Adjust Data Adjust

Project Name Ash Street Townhomes Watercooler Apartments Falling Brook Townhomes Clearwater Apartments Logger Creek Apartments

Address 503-647 Ash Street 1401 W. Idaho Street 2211 E. Warm Springs Avenue 660-690 S. Clearwater Lane 332 Hale Street

Town/City Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho Boise, Idaho

General Location Good Similar Inferior $100 Similar (river frontage units) Inferior $100 

Type of Project Townhomes Apartment/commercial Townhomes Apartment Apartment

# of Stories 3 Story 3 Story 2 Story 3 Story 3 Story

Tot. Units in Project 34 37 48 60 112

# of Units this Type 23-3 bd/3 ba 2-3 bd/2 ba 23-3 bd/2.5 ba 6-3 bd/2 ba 2-3 bd/2 ba

Eff. Date of rental Mid-2018 July-17 $50 July-17 $44 July-17 $42 July-17 $48 

Current Vacancy -This Type n/a 0-Units (both preleased) 0-Units 0-Units 0-Units

Data Source n/a Manager Manager 3rd party source 3rd party source

Year Built/Condition 2017/2018/new 2017/new Ph 1 2007; Ph 2 2016; very good $10 1993; average $125 2002; average $100 

Project Quality/Appeal Good Good Average $75 Average $75 Average $75 

Apartment Size(S.F.) 1,301 1,156 $72 1,400 ($37) 1,250 $20 1,646 ($117)

Number of Bedrooms 3 3 3 3 3

Number of Baths 3 2 $50 2.5 $25 2 $50 2 $50 

Balcony/Patio Balcony/Patio None $20 Balcony/Patio Balcony/Patio Balcony/Patio

Type of Parking Provided 22 Single car garage; 1 Carport Carport $80 Single car garage Carport $80 Open $120 

Kitchen Appliances All Standard All Standard All Standard All Standard All Standard

Other Unit Amenities:

   Heat Type GFA GFA GFA EFA EFA

   Air-conditioned CAC CAC CAC CAC CAC

   Washer/Dryer Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

   Fireplace No No No No No

   Cable TV in Rent No No No No No

   View No No No No No

   Other n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Project Amenities: None Use of fitness center in Owyhee 

Plaza (3 blocks SE)

($20) None None None

Services: i.e.-Ten. Pays Heat & Electric WST; Heat & Electric $45 WS; Heat & Electric $15 WST; Heat & Electric $45 WST; Heat & Electric $45 

Rent Range Assume Market $1,640-$1,660 $1,400-$1,500 $1,310-$1,465 $1,600

Standard Rent @ Turnover Assume Market $1,650 $1,475 $1,400 $1,600

Concessions Assume Market $0 $0 $0 $0

Rent/S.F Assume Market $1.43 $1.05 $1.12 $0.97

Net Adjustments Assume Market $297 $233 $437 $421 

Indicated market rent for subject $1,947 $1,708 $1,837 $2,021

ESTIMATES OF MARKET RENT BY COMPARISON

3 BEDROOM/3 BATH



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 35 

RENT COMPARABLE MAP 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 36 

Market Rent Conclusions - The following table summarizes the adjusted rents for the base unit types: 

 

 
 

1 Bedroom (Base Unit) - After adjustments, the comparables bracket a supportable range from $992 to 

$1,241, with a mean and median of 1,088 and 1,059 respectively.  Preliminary developer pricing is below 

the adjusted range at $950.  Considering the smaller average unit size and availability/type of parking, 

average market rent for the subject 1 bedroom units is concluded at $1,050, nominally below the average 

of the adjusted range.   

3 Bedroom (Base Unit) - After adjustments, the comparables bracket a supportable range from $1,708 to 

$2,021, with a mean and median of 1,878 and 1,892 respectively.  Preliminary developer pricing is near the 

average of the adjusted range at $1,850.  Considering the large average unit size and direct access garage 

parking, average market rent for the subject 3 bedroom units is concluded at $1,875, near the average of 

the adjusted range.   

2 Bedroom Units – The subject has 2- 1,130 square foot, 2BR/2.5BA units.  It is assumed that the 2 

bedroom units will include a carport in base rent.  The average 3 bedroom unit has 3 bathrooms and is 

171 square feet larger than the 2 bedroom units.  Parking is via a single car garage.  Adjustments for these 

differences are as follows:  Rent premiums typically range from $70 to $150 for an additional bedroom 

and resulting moderate larger unit sizes.  Considering the subject’s high rent levels, we conclude at the 

upper-tier of the typical rent premium range and apply a downward adjustment of $150 to the 3 

bedroom base unit market rent.  Downward adjustments were applied for a ½ bathroom at $25 and 

garage versus carport parking at $80.  Applying the total downward adjustment of $255 to the 3 bedroom 

base unit average rent, suggests a rental rate for the 2 bedroom units at $1,620.  Preliminary developer 

pricing is below the adjusted rental rate at $1,500.  Based on a cursory review of 2 bedroom units in 

competing projects in the downtown market, the adjusted rent at $1,620 is supported for the subject 2 

bedroom units.  Thus, market rent for the 2 bedroom units is concluded to be $1,620.     

Comment: Our estimates of market rent are trended forward to December 1, 2018, the prospective date 

of stabilization.  Moderate increases in market rents are projected during the next 12-18 months. 

 

 

  

Unit Type Ave Size (SF) Low Max Mean Median

1 Bedroom 543 $992 $1,241 $1,088 $1,059

3 Bedroom 1,301 $1,708 $2,021 $1,878 $1,892

Adjusted Base Comparable Rent Summary 



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 37 

Workforce Housing Restrictions - The project will be subject to workforce housing requirements with 

rental rates affordable to households earning 80% to 120% of Area Median Income (AMI).  Based on the 

AMI income limits, the rental rate range for each of the subject unit types are presented below.   

 

 

Our conclusions of market rent for each unit are within the restricted ranges.   

 

 

Unit Type Ave Size (SF) 80% AMI Market Rent 120% AMI

1 Bedroom 543 $1,028 $1,050 $1,542

2 Bedroom 1,130 $1,158 $1,620 $1,737

3 Bedroom 1,301 $1,286 $1,875 $1,929

AMI Income Limits - Market Rent Conclusions



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 38 

Potential Gross Income – Commercial Component (519 SF Unit) 
The subject has a 519 square foot commercial unit located near the corner of Ash Street and Miller Street 

(northernmost portion of subject).  It has an interior location with no arterial street visibility.  Its location 

outside the downtown core is less ideal for retail use.  The most probable use for this space is for coffee 

shop or deli/sandwich shop use.    

 

Presentation – Presented following are the Commercial Rent Comparable Table and Rent Comparable 

Map, followed by our conclusion of market rent.  The comparables are all located in the downtown Boise 

market. 

 

 
 

RENT COMPARABLE MAP 

 

 

Count Use Building Location Size Lease Start Term NNN Rent

1 Sandwich shop Sonna Building 902 W. Main St., Boise 1,597 3/15 2 yrs $14.00

2 Retail Block 44 210 N. 9th St., Boise 1,057 4/15 2 yrs $16.00

3 Sandwich shop U.S. Bank Plaza 101 S. Capitol Blvd., Boise 415 1/16 1 yr $16.34

4 Restaurant BoDo W. Broad St., Boise 1,791 11/16 5 yrs $20.00

5 Coffee shop Fowler 505 S. 5th St., Boise 1,405 10/17 5 yrs $20.00

6 Coffee/sandwich shop Watercooler 1401 W. Idaho St., Boise 682 Listing n/a $20.00

Average $17.72

Minimum $14.00

Maximum $20.00

Commercial Rent Comparables



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 39 

Market Rent Conclusion: Commercial Unit - The comparables bracket a supportable range from $14.00 

to $20.00, with an average of $17.72 NNN.  The following factors were considered to estimate market rent 

for the subject commercial unit: 1) the subject is located outside the downtown core; it has limited arterial 

street visibility and no-site parking is allocated to the commercial unit, 2) the commercial unit is relatively 

small, and 3) tenant improvement cost/allowance is projected to be lower considering the most probable 

use.  With these considerations, market rent for the commercial unit is concluded at $14.50 NNN, near the 

lower-tier of the comparable range.  

Other/Miscellaneous Income – Other/miscellaneous income to the apartments includes revenue from 

credit report income, late fees, month-to-month fees, lease termination fees, forfeited security deposits, 

and past tenant collections.  Based on the comparables presented in the table below, revenue generated 

from these sources is concluded near the mid-tier of the comparable range at $250 per unit per year.   

 

 

Estimated Vacancy and Collection Loss 
The vacancy and credit loss reflects the estimate of lost rent versus scheduled rent.  This includes lost 

revenue due to vacancies as well as credit loss (non-payment by tenants).  The estimate of vacancy and 

credit loss is over the economic life of the property, and is not over a short term.  It also includes “vacancy 

lag”, which is the time necessary to release space after a vacancy occurs.  The subject’s stabilized 

occupancy level over the long term will likely mirror market averages.  This is attributable to normal 

tenant turnover and shifts in supply and demand.  Based on historical vacancies in the local market, a 

stabilized vacancy rate of 5% is concluded for subject.   

 

Operating Expenses - Apartments 
To estimate operating expenses, we have relied upon expense comparables from the market, with an 

emphasis placed on generally newer and similarly sized complexes.  Six expense comparables are 

summarized in the table below, with more detailed descriptions provided on the following pages.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Confidential Confidential Confidential Confidential Confidential Confidential

Location Boise, ID Boise, ID Boise, ID Boise, ID Nampa, ID Boise, ID

Income Year 2016 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015

# Units 100 to 150 100 to 150 200 to 250 50 to 100 100 to 150 Less than 50

Per Unit/Year $242 $236 $235 $254 $311 $258

Other/Miscellaneous Income Comparables



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 40 

 
  

Our expense conclusions are discussed on the following pages: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Category

Name

Type

Location

Year Built

Design

Size (# Units)

Expense Year

Category Per Unit % of EGI Per Unit % of EGI Per Unit % of EGI

Real Estate Taxes $1,903 14.1% $1,210 15.0% $990 12.5%

Insurance $172 1.3% $118 1.5% $198 2.5%

Utilities $380 2.8% $313 3.9% $281 3.5%

Repairs & Maintenance $1,369 10.2% $582 7.2% $977 12.3%

Payroll $692 5.1% $422 5.2% $283 3.6%

Professional Management $408 3.0% $422 5.2% $311 3.9%

Advertising $118 0.9% $3 0.0% $80 1.0%

General/Administrative $246 1.8% $59 0.7% $216 2.7%

Reserves For Replacement $0 0.0% $0 0.0% $0 0.0%

TOTAL $5,289 39.3% $3,129 38.7% $3,337 42.1%

Category

Name

Type

Location

Year Built

Design

Size (# Units)

Expense Year

Category Per Unit % of EGI Per Unit % of EGI Per Unit % of EGI

Real Estate Taxes $922 12.7% $1,383 13.5% $1,210 15.0%

Insurance $158 2.2% $113 1.1% $118 1.5%

Utilities $381 5.2% $401 3.9% $313 3.9%

Repairs & Maintenance $816 11.2% $1,147 11.2% $582 7.2%

Payroll $364 5.0% $511 5.0% $422 5.2%

Professional Management $436 6.0% $511 5.0% $422 5.2%

Advertising $8 0.1% $1 0.0% $3 0.0%

General/Administrative $107 1.5% $34 0.3% $59 0.7%

Reserves For Replacement $0 0.0% $0 0.0% $0 0.0%

TOTAL $3,192 43.9% $4,101 40.1% $3,129 38.7%

2-story walk-up 2-story walk-up 2-story walk-up

50 to 100

EXPENSE COMPARABLES

Comparable 1 Comparable 2 Comparable 3

Confidential Confidential Confidential

Coventional family Coventional family Conventional family

Boise, ID Boise, ID Nampa, ID

1995 1991 1994

100 to 150 0 to 50 50 to 100

2 story walk-up 2-story walk-up 2 story walk-up

2015 2015 2015

Comparable 4 Comparable 5 Comparable 6

Confidential Confidential Confidential

Conventional family Conventional family Coventional family

Boise, ID Boise, ID Boise, ID

1993 2001 1991

0 to 70 0 to 50

2015 2015 2015



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 41 

 

Real Estate Taxes

Comparable Expense Range $922 to $1,903

Per Unit Conclusion

Annual Conclusion

Insurance
 

Comparable Expense Range $113 to $198

Per Unit Conclusion

Annual Conclusion

Utilities
 

Comparable Expense Range $281 to $401

Per Unit Conclusion

Annual Conclusion

Maintenance and Repairs
 

Comparable Expense Range $582 to $1,369

Per Unit Conclusion

Annual Conclusion

Payroll (Onsite Manager)
 

Comparable Expense Range $283 to $692

Per Unit Conclusion

Annual Conclusion

Professional Management
 

Comparable Expense Range 3.0% to 6.0%

% of EGI Conclusion

Annual Conclusion

Advertising

 

Comparable Expense Range $1 to $118

Per Unit Conclusion

Annual Conclusion

Ranges/Conclusion Analysis

Analysis

The subject is projected to have a part-time on-site manager;

this expense is loaded into the professional management

expense category.

Ranges/Conclusion Analysis

The valuation assumes the subject is at stabilized occupancy.

The advertising expense is projected to be $100 per unit to

account for turnover.$100

$3,400

$0

$0

$6,800

Ranges/Conclusion

Professional management fees vary based primarily on size,

condition, and rent levels. A typical range new premium rent

projects would be 3.0% to 4.0% of effective gross income,

trending to the high-end of the range for smaller properties.

Because we are including a part-time on-site manager, offset

partially by the high monthly unit rents, the professional

management expense is concluded at 6% of effective gross

income.

6.0%

$39,165

This category includes all maintenance and repair costs to the

buildings and common area, including turnover costs. Based

on such physical factors as age, quality, larger average unit

size, and minimal landscaping, we conclude a stabilized

maintenance and repairs expenses of $850 per unit, near the

average of the range.

$850

$28,900

Ranges/Conclusion

$79,995

Ranges/Conclusion

This includes electricity and gas for the common areas and

water, sewer and trash for the entire complex. We conclude

above the high-end of the comparable range at $450 per

unit. 

$450

$15,300

Ranges/Conclusion Analysis

Analysis

Considering finish quality, unit size, and overall project size,

the insurance expense for the subject is projected to be $200

per unit, at the high-end of the comparable range.$200

Analysis

EXPENSE ANALYSIS & CONCLUSIONS

Ranges/Conclusion Analysis

Stabilized real estate taxes were estimated at $79,995 or

$2,353 per unit. Refer to page 24 for projected stabilized

assessment and real estate tax discussion.$2,353



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 42 

 

 

Operating Expenses - Commercial Unit 
The market rent conclusion for the commercial unit assumes a NNN lease; in which the tenant reimburses 

the landlord or pays directly all or nearly all operating expenses.  Reimbursement income accrues from 

those expenses reimbursed by the tenant(s), including real estate taxes, insurance, utilities, maintenance, 

and management.  Because these expenses are equally offset by the reimbursement income, it is not 

necessary to include these in the income proforma.  For consistency, reimbursement income was also not 

included when calculating the capitalization rates of the capitalization rate comparables, thus, 

reimbursement income is inherently factored into the Income Approach value conclusion. 

 

 

   

General/Administrative
 

Comparable Expense Range $34 to $246

Per Unit Conclusion

Annual Conclusion

Reserves for Replacement
 

Comparable Expense Range $0 to $0

Per Unit Conclusion

Annual Conclusion

Summary

 

Expense Comps - Per Unit $3,129 to $5,289

Expense Comps - % of EGI 38.7% to 43.9%

Total

Per Unit

% of EGI

Ranges/Conclusion Analysis

The forecasted per unit operating expenses for the subject

are higher than for typical apartment units on a per unit

basis. This is largely due to higher property taxes,

management fees, and the assumption of funded

replacement reserves. The subject percentage expense ratio

is lower than typical, which is reasonable given the subject

will be new, of good quality/condition, and have premium

projected rents. Overall, the expenses are deemed

appropriate for use in this analysis.

28.9%

Ranges/Conclusion Analysis

Reserves for replacement are not typical annual cash

expenditures, but rather, the annualized cost of major

expenses incurred for repair and replacement of items, such

as roof systems, walls, parking lots, carpeting, appliances, etc.

Typical market allowances for replacement reserves range

from $250 to $500/unit per year for properties similar in age

and condition. Based on the subject's age, quality, larger unit

size, and moderate amenities, a per unit expense of $400 is

concluded.

$300

$10,200

Ranges/Conclusion Analysis

The cost of miscellaneous expenses such as legal services,

licensing, permits/fees, professional services, dues and

general office expenses must be accounted for. The reader

should note that this expense can vary widely from property

to property due to different accounting methods. This

expense is concluded to be $150 per unit.  

$150

$5,100

$188,860

$5,555



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 43 

Direct Capitalization 
The next step in the Income Capitalization Approach is capitalization of net income into an expression of 

value.  Direct capitalization is a method used to convert a single year’s income estimate into a value 

indication.  This conversion is accomplished in one step by dividing the income estimate by an 

appropriate income capitalization rate.  In direct capitalization no precise allocation is made between the 

return on and the return of capital because the method does not simulate investor assumptions or 

forecasts concerning the holding period, the pattern of income, or changes in value of the original 

investment. However, a satisfactory rate of return for the investor and recapture of the capital invested are 

implicit in the capitalization rates applied in direct capitalization because they are derived from similar 

investment properties. 

 

The income capitalization rates reflect the relationship between income and value and are derived from 

market data.  It is essential that the properties used as comparables reflect risk, income, expense, and 

physical and location characteristics that are similar to the property being appraised. Consequently, 

capitalization rates must be extracted from properties that reflect similar income-expense ratios, risk 

characteristics, and expectations as to change in income and value over a typical investment-holding 

period.  

 

In this analysis, the basic formula for direct capitalization is net annual income divided by overall rate of 

return (RO) equals value.  Various techniques are available to determine appropriate overall rates. These 

include: 

 

1. derivation from comparable sales 

2. derivation from effective gross income multipliers 

3. band of investment – mortgage and equity components 

4. band of investment – land and building components 

5. the debt coverage formula 

 

The derivation from comparable sales method was employed to estimate an appropriate capitalization rate 

for the subject.  The analysis is supplemented by data compiled by the latest Real Estate Research 

Corporation (RERC) Survey.   

 

Capitalization Rate Derivation from Comparable Sales – The capitalization rate comparables, 

presented in the following table, include recent confirmed sales of apartment complexes in the local 

market.  Note, project names and addresses are redacted for confidentiality purposes, but will be 

provided to the client separately if requested.  The capitalization rates were calculated using actual 

scheduled rent, less a vacancy allowance, and actual or appraiser estimated stabilized operating expenses 

to conclude net operating income.   



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 44 

 
 

In concluding a capitalization rate for the subject property, a bracketing process is used reflecting the 

superior or inferior income producing characteristics of each sale versus the subject.  The comparables 

indicate a range from 4.47% to 7.59%, with a mean and median of 5.99% and 5.91% respectively.  The 

most recent sales indicate a declining trend.  The 2015 sales exhibit an average capitalization rate of 

6.21%.  The 2016/2017 sales exhibit a lower average capitalization rate of 5.76%.   

 

Although the sales vary in size and project amenities, those differences can be accounted for in selecting 

the appropriate rate for the subject.  A project’s age and condition, quality of construction, location 

appeal, etc., all affect the price paid and thus, the capitalization rate.  The number of units in a project also 

appears to influence the capitalization rate; smaller projects exhibit lower rates.  Also influencing a rate 

would be undue motivation on the part of either buyer or seller.  Because capitalization rates are inversely 

correlated to sale prices, if the buyer is motivated, a lower capitalization rate typically results; conversely, if 

the seller is motivated, a higher capitalization rate results.  Lastly, in calculating capitalization rates, most 

projects have average rents that lag current market rents.  This factor tends to lower the capitalization rate 

(below average market contract rents) as buyers anticipate increasing rents upon turnover.  The subject 

with the assumption of all rents at market would exhibit a nominally higher capitalization rate other 

factors being equal.   

 

Name Location Size (# Units) Year Built Sale Date Sale Price OAR

Confidential Boise, ID <30 2014 Feb-15 Confidential 5.86%

Confidential Meridian, ID <75 2014 Mar-15 Confidential 6.51%

Confidential Boise, ID <70 1975 Apr-15 Confidential 7.59%

Confidential Boise, ID <50 1991 May-15 Confidential 6.31%

Confidential Boise, ID <50 1980 Jun-15 Confidential 7.30%

Confidential Nampa, ID <50 1978 Jul-15 Confidential 7.44%

Confidential Boise, ID <70 1978 Sep-15 Confidential 5.38%

Confidential Boise, ID <20 1969 Nov-15 Confidential 5.75%

Confidential Boise, ID <20 1969 Nov-15 Confidential 4.47%

Confidential Meridian, ID <100 2012 Nov-15 Confidential 5.53%

Confidential Boise, ID <125 1995 Jan-16 Confidential 5.23%

Confidential Boise, ID <20 1970 Feb-16 Confidential 6.26%

Confidential Boise, ID <20 1962 Feb-16 Confidential 5.04%

Confidential Boise, ID <200 1993 May-16 Confidential 5.11%

Confidential Boise, ID <30 2003 Jun-16 Confidential 5.84%

Confidential Boise, ID <20 2006 Jun-16 Confidential 6.00%

Confidential Boise, ID <125 1993 Oct-16 Confidential 5.92%

Confidential Boise, ID <50 2007/2016 Dec-16 Confidential 6.09%

Confidential Boise, ID <40 1990 Mar-17 Confidential 5.90%

Confidential Boise, ID <50 1998 Listing Confidential 6.20%

Mean 5.99%

Median 5.91%

Min 4.47%

Max 7.59%

Boise MSA Apartment Capitalization Rate Comparables



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 45 

Since mid-2012, capitalization rates have exhibited a general downward trend, fueled by stabilizing to 

improving market conditions and attractive mortgage interest rates.  This declining trend continued 

through 2014/2015.  In 2015/2016 capitalization rates began to stabilize and are projected to remain at 

their current low levels near-term.  Regarding timing, interest rates remain near historically low levels.    

 

Subject Market Position/Strengths and Weaknesses  

The following factors were considered in our selection of a capitalization rate for the subject. 
 

 The subject has a good location approximately ½ mile southwest of the center of the 

downtown pedestrian core.  The subject is a part of the downtown Boise submarket, which 

historically outperforms most other submarkets in the Boise MSA.   

 The subject will be of good quality and design, and will be new at completion.   

 The subject’s unit mix is competitive with other complexes in the local market.  The one 

commercial unit is a complementary use for the project.   

 Statistics indicate strong demand characterized by increasing rents and historically low 

vacancies.  The downtown submarket currently has an undersupply of multi-family rental 

units.  It is noted, two other apartment complexes are nearing completion which will add 

193 units to the downtown market.  However, these units are projected to be readily 

absorbed; minimal vacancies are projected for the downtown market by the time the 

subject is completed in 2018. 

 The subject is concluded to have good marketability. 

 

 

Capitalization Rate Conclusion - Considering the aforementioned factors, an appropriate capitalization 

rate near the mid-tier of the most recent comparable range is concluded at 5.75%.   

 

  



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 46 

RERC Survey Data - The market sales analysis is supplemented by data compiled by the Real Estate 

Research Corporation (RERC) Survey.  Capitalization rate data compiled by the Real Estate Research 

Corporation (RERC) surveys (4th Quarter 2016) were analyzed as a final indication of reasonableness for 

the capitalization rate selected.  National western region 1st-tier investment market capitalization rate 

data is summarized in the following table.  Apartment represents the most similar property category to 

the subject contained within the RERC surveys.   

 

 
 

The RERC survey indicates a range of 4.0% to 7.8% with an average of 5.2% for apartment capitalization 

rates within the national western region 1st-tier market.  Our capitalization rate conclusion of 5.75% is 

near the mid-tier of the range, lending further support to the analysis. 

 

  



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 47 

Income Capitalization Approach Conclusion – Upon Stabilization 
The final step is to summarize the previously estimated income and expense figures, and then capitalize 

the net operating income into an indication of value.  The Direct Capitalization Summation Table is 

presented following, concluding Market Value: Upon Stabilization via the Income Capitalization Approach. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Rental Income: Annual

Unit Type Qty Size (SF) Avg. Mkt Rent Income

Average 1 Bedroom 9 543 $1,050 $113,400

Average 2 Bedroom 2 1,130 $1,620 $38,880

Average 3 Bedroom 23 1,301 $1,875 $517,500

Total/Average 34 1,090 $1,642 $669,780

Ancillary Income:  

Source

Commercial Unit ($14.50/sf x 519 sf) $7,526

Other/Miscellaneous ($250/unit/year) $8,500

TOTAL POTENTIAL GROSS INCOME $685,806
Less Vacancy and Credit Loss 5.00% ($34,290)

EFFECTIVE GROSS INCOME (EGI) $651,515
 

Less Operating Expenses Total Total/Unit % EGI

Real Estate Taxes $79,995 $2,353 12.3%

Insurance $6,800 $200 1.0%

Utilities $15,300 $450 2.3%

Maintenance & Repairs $28,900 $850 4.4%

Professional Management/Payroll $39,091 $1,150 6.0%

Advertising $3,400 $100 0.5%

General/Administrative $5,100 $150 0.8%

Reserves for Replacement $10,200 $300 1.6%

Total $188,786 $5,553 29.0% ($188,786)

NET OPERATING INCOME $462,729
VALUATION OF INCOME NOI Divided by Cap Rate Equals Value

$462,729 ÷ 5.75% = $8,047,465

$8,050,000

DIRECT CAPITALIZATION SUMMATION TABLE

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION

Avg. Rent/SF/Mo.

$1.93

$1.44

$1.43

$1.51



503-647 ASH STREET 

MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 48 

PGIM Crosscheck 
A potential gross income multiplier (PGIM) is used as an indicator of value and takes into consideration 

the proportion of expense to every dollar of gross income.  It is derived by dividing the sale price by the 

gross annual income of the property.  This method has the advantages of simplicity and easy calculation.  

It is based on the premise that rents and sales prices move in the same direction and essentially in the 

same proportion as do net income and sales prices.   

 

As presented prior, the subject’s potential gross income was projected to be $685,806.  Market value for 

the subject was concluded to be $8,050,000, resulting in a PGIM of 11.7 ($8,050,000 ÷ $685,806).  To 

determine if the resulting PGIM is reasonable, we analyzed several recent apartment sales in the local 

market.  The comparables, presented in the table below, indicate a PGIM range of 9.1 to 12.8, with a mean 

and median of 10.4.  

 

 
 

At 11.7, the subject’s inferred PGIM is near the upper-tier of the comparable range, which is reasonable 

for a new, good quality complex in a good location.  As such, the PGIM analysis lends further support to 

our value conclusion for the subject. 

 

 

 

 

 

Name Location Size (# Units) Year Built Sale Date Sale Price GRM

Confidential Boise, ID <20 1969 Nov-15 Confidential 10.4

Confidential Boise, ID <20 1969 Nov-15 Confidential 12.8

Confidential Meridian, ID <100 2012 Nov-15 Confidential 10.6

Confidential Boise, ID <125 1995 Jan-16 Confidential 9.4

Confidential Boise, ID <20 1962 Feb-16 Confidential 11.2

Confidential Boise, ID <20 2006 Jun-16 Confidential 11.2

Confidential Boise, ID <125 1993 Oct-16 Confidential 9.3

Confidential Boise, ID <200 1993 May-16 Confidential 9.5

Confidential Boise, ID <30 2003 Jun-16 Confidential 11.0

Confidential Boise, ID <40 1990 Mar-17 Confidential 9.1

Confidential Boise, ID <50 1998 Listing Confidential 9.8

Mean 10.4

Median 10.4

Min 9.1

Max 12.8

Boise MSA Apartment GRM Comparables



503-647 ASH STREET 

RECONCILIATION - MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 49 

Reconciliation – Market Value: Upon Stabilization 

Summary of Value Indications 
The indicated values from the approaches used in the valuation of the subject are summarized in the 

following table. 

 

 
 

 

The Income Capitalization Approach resulted in a reliable conclusion of market value due to an 

adequate number of recent rent, operating expense, and capitalization rate comparables of similar 

properties utilized in the analyses.  Overall, the factors comprising the Income Capitalization Approach 

were well supported and yield what is considered to be a reliable conclusion.  Because the most probable 

buyer is an investor, the Income Capitalization Approach is an applicable method for estimating market 

value as it best reflects market participants’ expectations of current and future income streams.  

Accordingly, the Income Capitalization Approach was the only approach processed and was given full 

weight in the final value reconciliation.     

 

The Sales Comparison Approach was considered, but has been excluded as a primary valuation method.  

The Sales Comparison Approach is an applicable method for valuing owner-user properties or properties 

of similar financial characteristics.  No known sales of newer, high-quality, for rent townhome projects   

have occurred in the local market during the past several years.  Regional sales were considered, but 

performing comparative adjustments between markets is typically subjective.  Furthermore, the Sales 

Comparison Approach is a secondary method for valuing investment properties purchased for leased 

occupancy.  To check the reasonableness of the value conclusion via the Income Capitalization Approach, 

recent apartment sales were analyzed on a PGIM basis.  On a PGIM basis, our value conclusion for the 

subject was bracketed by the sales, lending further support to our value conclusion.   

 

The Cost Approach was not completed.  The Cost Approach is not applicable for a Re-Use appraisal. 

Upon Stabilization

Market Value

Sales Comparison Approach Not completed

Income Capitalization Approach $8,050,000

Cost Approach Not applicable

Reconciliation



503-647 ASH STREET 

RECONCILIATION - MARKET VALUE: UPON STABILIZATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 50 

Value Conclusion - Market Value: Upon Stabilization 
Our conclusion of Market Value: Upon Stabilization for the subject is presented in the following table.   

 
 

Exposure and Marketing Times 
The estimate of value in this appraisal assumes the subject would experience a marketing/exposure period 

that is typical of this market.  Marketing time estimates can be supported by analyzing the actual time the 

comparable sales used in the valuation analysis were exposed to the market before they sold.  For the 4th 

Quarter 2016, the PwC Real Estate Investor Survey reported an overall marketing time range of 1-9 

months, with an average of 4.1 months in the pacific region apartment market.  The local market has 

strengthened and stabilized over the past 2-3 years, mortgage rates are favorable, and sales/marketing 

activity is strong; these conditions are expected to continue near-term.  Considering all relevant factors, a 

marketing/exposure time of 6-9 months is concluded.   

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Value Value Interest Effective Value

Type Premise Appraised Date Conclusion

Market Value Upon Stabilization Fee Simple 12/1/2018 $8,050,000

Value Conclusion(s)



503-647 ASH STREET 

DEVELOPMENT COST ESTIMATES 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 51 

Development Cost Estimates 

Developer’s Cost Estimate:  The developer provided a detailed cost estimate for the construction of the 

improvements (included in addenda).  The developer’s cost estimate is summarized in the following table, 

and includes all typical hard and soft costs. Total cost during the construction phase is projected to be 

$7,623,675 or $168.30 per square foot.  Marketing/leasing costs will be applied in the final summary as 

costs to be incurred during the stabilization period.  The developer included line items for developer 

profit and a debt guarantee fee of $436,078 and $75,000 or approximately 6.7% (combined) of total 

construction costs.  The target profit is below market norms when considering the scope of the 

development and associated risk.  We have removed this cost and included it in a separate line item for 

developer profit (entrepreneurial incentive) in the final summary.  Note, the upfront land purchase price of 

$679,000 is included as a part of the total development cost.   

 

 
 

  

Site & Pre-development $97,300

Hard Costs $5,965,453

Soft Costs $890,343

Contingencies (5%) $379,379

Financing Costs $291,200

Total Cost $7,623,675

Size (GBA) 45,299

Total Cost/SF $168.30

Total Cost/Unit $224,225.74

Land Purchase Price $645,000

Alley Vacation Land Purchase Price $34,000

Total Development Cost $8,302,675

Appraiser Excluded Costs (Applied Later)

Marketing/Leasing (Lease-up phase) $32,791

Development Fee $436,078

Debt Guarantee Fee $75,000

Total Developer's Cost Estimate $8,846,544

 Developer's Cost Estimate



503-647 ASH STREET 

DEVELOPMENT COST ESTIMATES 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 52 

Construction Cost Comparables – To test the reasonableness of the developer’s cost estimate, three cost 

comparables of multi-family projects located in or near Boise’s downtown core were analyzed.  Specific 

names and details have been held confidential in our reporting.  Comparable 1 is an apartment project 

with a small commercial component.  Comparable 2 is a residential townhome project of inferior quality 

as the subject.  Comparable 3 is a residential condominium project with a commercial component and 

garage parking.  As summarized in the table presented below, the comparables exhibit construction costs 

ranging from $128.22 to $176.94, with an average of $146 per square foot.   

 

 
 

Improvement Cost New Conclusion 

The developer’s construction cost estimate of $168.30 per square foot is near the upper-tier of the 

comparable range.  Considering such factors as construction quality, project/unit sizes, garage parking, 

and increasing construction costs since 2014, the developer’s per square foot cost estimate near the 

upper-tier of the comparable range is reasonable.  Thus, the developer’s cost estimate is concluded to be 

reasonable and supportable for use in this appraisal. 

 

Lease-up Costs 
The initial analysis in this report concluded Market Value: Upon Stabilization.  The valuation assumed 

construction was complete and subject has reached stabilized occupancy.  The subject is not projected to 

be at stabilized occupancy at completion.  Out of pocket lease-up costs to be incurred by an owner in the 

process of reaching stabilization represent an addition to total development costs.  The costs include 

marketing costs, lease commissions, and holding costs (i.e. fixed and variable expenses for unleased 

space).  These costs will be detailed following.  Note, an allowance for lost rent was not deducted as an 

expense during lease-up.  It is not an out of pocket expense to a developer.  Instead, the risk of lost rent 

during lease up was considered as a part of the developer profit allowance and applied to total 

development cost. 

 

Absorption Period – The market has experienced strong absorption during the past two to three years.  

Absorption rates of several new apartment complexes were analyzed.  The best absorption comparable is 

the Owyhee Plaza Apartments, which absorbed all 36 units within 3-4 months of completion (completed 

in 2014).  The Watercooler Apartments, which is expected to be complete by August 2017, recently began 

preleasing.  Nine of the 37 units are preleased to-date.  We anticipate similar preleasing/absorption for 

the subject.  We project approximately 1/3 or 11 units will be preleased prior by the end of construction; it 

1 2 3

Project Name Confidential Confidential Confidential

Location Boise, ID Boise, ID Boise, ID

Effective Date of Cost Estimate Late 2015 Early 2017 Mid 2014

Type 3-story mixed use 3-story TH Multi-story mixed use

# Units <50 <20 <80

GBA >30,000 <15,000 >150,000

Parking Open/carport Garage Garage

Site Size (Acres) >1 acre >1 acre >1 acre

Total Cost* 5,706,458 1,138,934 21,904,322

Total Cost/SF $176.94 $128.22 $131.47

*Total cost includes all direct and indirect costs, but excludes developer profit

Construction Cost Comparables



503-647 ASH STREET 

DEVELOPMENT COST ESTIMATES 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 53 

is projected that the balance of the subject units will be leased within three months.  Note, with nearly 15 

months until the project will be completed, it is projected that the 519 square foot commercial unit will be 

leased by completion. 

 

Costs Incurred Prior to Stabilized Occupancy – Initial branding/marketing/advertising costs are 

estimated at $25,000.  Apartment lease commissions are estimated at $150 per unit.  Retail lease 

commissions are estimated at 6% of market rent over a five year term.  Holding costs for the unleased 

space include a prorated share of property taxes, insurance, utilities, repairs/maintenance, and 

management.  Holding costs are applied to the unleased units at $750 per unit per month over the 3 

month lease-up period (multiplied by 50% average lease-up during that period).   

 

Entrepreneurial Incentive/Developer Profit   
Entrepreneurial incentive or developer profit is a market-derived estimate separate and in addition to the 

builder/contractor fee.   The profit estimate is the amount an entrepreneur receives for his or her 

contribution to a project with consideration for the scope, cost, and risk in the venture.   

 

Several local developers were interviewed to determine the appropriate profit required to justify 

development.  According to those surveyed, required profit depends on the scope, overall cost, and 

anticipated risk associated with a development.  Most were consistent in stating a required profit range of 

10% to 20% of total development costs, depending on the level of perceived risk.  The following 

paragraphs summarize the comments from each developer who was interviewed. 

 

Bill Clark of Clark Development developed The Jefferson and Crescent Rim condominium projects in Boise.  

Mr. Clark stated they target an anticipated profit of 15% to 20% of total development costs to undertake a 

project.  Steve Meyer, the primary equity investor in The Jefferson and Crescent Rim, stated a range of 

10% to 20% of total development costs, with 10% representing lower-risk ventures which are leased or 

sold at completion. 

 

Clay Carley of Old Boise LLC is a local developer who owns Old Boise 6
th

 and Main.  Mr. Carley stated he 

targets an anticipated profit of 15% of total development costs to undertake a project. 

 

Tommy Ahlquist of Gardner Development has developed several projects within the Boise MSA including 

The 8
th

 & Main Building and City Center Plaza in downtown Boise, Portico at Meridian, Ventana Medical 

Center in Nampa, Eagle Island Crossing in Eagle.  Mr. Ahlquist stated that they target an anticipated profit 

of 11% of total development costs to undertake a project.  He stated their anticipated profit is less than 

other developers because they target projects with less perceived risk, which are generally in very good 

locations and are typically significantly pre-leased/sold prior to construction.  

 

Mike Fery of Rocky Mountain Development evaluates project development based on a target internal rate 

of return for a project.  Mr. Fery stated he generally goes into a project anticipating an internal rate of 

return of 20% for higher risk projects such as larger residential condominium developments, and as low as 

12% for projects leased or sold at completion. 

 

Mike Mussell of Mussel Construction Inc., the developer of the proposed Library Re-Use Project, stated he 

typically targets an anticipated profit of 12% to 15% to undertake a project.  Mr. Mussell further stated 

that renovation projects represent the upper-tier of the range due to a higher risk of unforeseen costs.  

He also stated that he would undertake a build-to-suit project with a tenant or user in-place for a lower 

target profit of 10%. 



503-647 ASH STREET 

DEVELOPMENT COST ESTIMATES 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 54 

Entrepreneurial Incentive/Developer Profit Conclusion   

The subject as a rental apartment project would have lower risk than speculative for sale or larger mixed 

use developments, but higher risk than built-to-suit properties that are preleased of presold prior to 

development.  Considering the developer responses, an entrepreneurial incentive of 12% of total 

construction and lease-up costs is concluded to be reasonable and probable for the subject venture.   

 

Development Cost Estimate Conclusion 

The following presents a summary of the prior elements to conclude our estimate of total development 

cost for the proposed development. 

 

 
 

Developer Cost Reimbursements 

As presented in the developer’s proforma, the developer expects some cost reimbursements from the 

CCDC and other government entities.  Reimbursements include $34,000 for local incentives and $35,000 

for green building incentives.  These reimbursements will be applied as a net positive in the final value 

summary.  Note, the developer also included other items which may or may not be reimbursed by the 

CCDC.  The potential reimbursements include all or part of $200,000 for street scape and public space 

improvements, and utilities extensions.  At the request of the client, we have excluded these potential 

reimbursements.  

 

 

 

Component Total Cost

Land Purchase Price $645,000

Alley Vacation Purchase Price $34,000

Construction Phase Costs $7,623,675

Lease-up Phase Costs $58,233

Developer Profit $921,600

Total Development Cost, rounded $9,280,000

Development Cost Estimate Conclusion



503-647 ASH STREET 

FAIR RE-USE VALUE CONCLUSION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 55 

Fair Re-Use Value Conclusion 

Fair Re-Use Value 
Net total development costs, including an allowance for developer profit/entrepreneurial incentive, are 

deducted from the “upon stabilization” market value to derive the conclusion of Fair Re-Use Value.  The 

calculations are detailed in the following table. 

 

 
 

  

Market Value: Upon Stabilization: $8,050,000

Deduct: Land Purchase Price

Land Purchase Price ($645,000)

Alley Vacation Land Purchase Price ($34,000)

Total Land Purchase Price ($679,000)

Deduct: Construction and Lease-up Costs

Construction Phase Costs ($7,623,675)

Branding/Marketing/Advertising Costs ($25,000)

Apartment Leasing Commissions @ $150 per unit x 34 units ($5,100)

Retail Leasing Commissions @ $14.50/sf x 519 sf x 5 years x 6%) ($2,258)

Holding Costs During Lease-up ($750 x 23 units x 3 months 50% avg. lease-up) ($25,875)

Total Construction and Lease-up Costs, rounded ($7,680,000)

Deduct: Developer Profit (Entrepreneurial Incentive)

Developer Profit (12% of Construction and Lease-up Costs) ($921,600)

Total Development Cost, rounded ($9,280,600) ($9,280,000)

Add: Non-CCDC Cost Reimbursements

Local Incentives $34,000

Green Building Incentives $35,000

Total Non-CCDC Cost Reimbursements, rounded $69,000 $70,000

Conclusion of Fair Re-Use Value ($1,160,000)

(Includes $679,000 land purchase price as a cost to the developer) Negative

Fair Re-Use Value



503-647 ASH STREET 

FAIR RE-USE VALUE CONCLUSION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 56 

Comment on Project Feasibility: Market Value: Upon Stabilization was concluded to be $8,050,000.  Net 

development costs were concluded at $9,210,000, which includes the land purchase price.  The resulting 

Fair Re-Use Value for the proposed project is a negative $1,160,000.  The negative Fair Re-Use Value 

indicates the project is less than a breakeven venture on development cost and will not return the target 

profit in the venture.   

 

Although our analyses and conclusions represent our most practical estimates based on current market 

data and market projections, there are several factors that could enhance the profitability in the venture.  

Cost savings in construction, higher lease rates, and possible additional shared cost reimbursements are 

all factors which could reduce the negative Fair Re-Use Value to a breakeven or marginally profitable 

venture. 



503-647 ASH STREET 

GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITING CONDITIONS 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 57 

General Assumptions & Limiting Conditions 

This appraisal is subject to the following limiting conditions: 

 

1. The legal description – if furnished to us – is assumed to be correct. 

 

2. No responsibility is assumed for legal matters, questions of survey or title, soil or subsoil 

conditions, engineering, availability or capacity of utilities, or other similar technical matters. The 

appraisal does not constitute a survey of the property appraised. All existing liens and 

encumbrances have been disregarded and the property is appraised as though free and clear, 

under responsible ownership and competent management unless otherwise noted. 

 

3. Unless otherwise noted, the appraisal will value the property as though free of contamination. 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. will conduct no 

hazardous materials or contamination inspection of any kind. It is recommended that the client 

hire an expert if the presence of hazardous materials or contamination poses any concern. 

 

4. The stamps and/or consideration placed on deeds used to indicate sales are in correct 

relationship to the actual dollar amount of the transaction. 

 

5. Unless otherwise noted, it is assumed there are no encroachments, zoning violations or 

restrictions existing in the subject property. 

 

6. The appraiser is not required to give testimony or attendance in court by reason of this appraisal, 

unless previous arrangements have been made. 

 

7. Unless expressly specified in the engagement letter, the fee for this appraisal does not include the 

attendance or giving of testimony by Appraiser at any court, regulatory, or other proceedings, or 

any conferences or other work in preparation for such proceeding. If any partner or employee of 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. is asked or required to 

appear and/or testify at any deposition, trial, or other proceeding about the preparation, 

conclusions or any other aspect of this assignment, client shall compensate Appraiser for the time 

spent by the partner or employee in appearing and/or testifying and in preparing to testify 

according to the Appraiser’s then current hourly rate plus reimbursement of expenses.  

 

8. The values for land and/or improvements, as contained in this report, are constituent parts of the 

total value reported and neither is (or are) to be used in making a summation appraisal of a 

combination of values created by another appraiser. Either is invalidated if so used.  

 

9. The dates of value to which the opinions expressed in this report apply are set forth in this report. 

We assume no responsibility for economic or physical factors occurring at some point at a later 

date, which may affect the opinions stated herein. The forecasts, projections, or operating 

estimates contained herein are based on current market conditions and anticipated short-term 

supply and demand factors and are subject to change with future conditions.  

  



503-647 ASH STREET 

GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITING CONDITIONS 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 58 

10. The sketches, maps, plats and exhibits in this report are included to assist the reader in visualizing 

the property. The appraiser has made no survey of the property and assumed no responsibility in 

connection with such matters. 

 

11. The information, estimates and opinions, which were obtained from sources outside of this office, 

are considered reliable. However, no liability for them can be assumed by the appraiser. 

 

12. Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication. Neither 

all, nor any part of the content of the report, or copy thereof (including conclusions as to property 

value, the identity of the appraisers, professional designations, reference to any professional 

appraisal organization or the firm with which the appraisers are connected), shall be disseminated 

to the public through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media without prior 

written consent and approval.  

 

13. No claim is intended to be expressed for matters of expertise that would require specialized 

investigation or knowledge beyond that ordinarily employed by real estate appraisers. We claim 

no expertise in areas such as, but not limited to, legal, survey, structural, environmental, pest 

control, mechanical, etc.  

 

14. This appraisal was prepared for the sole and exclusive use of the client for the function outlined 

herein. Any party who is not the client or intended user identified in the appraisal or engagement 

letter is not entitled to rely upon the contents of the appraisal without express written consent of 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. and Client. The Client 

shall not include partners, affiliates, or relatives of the party addressed herein. The appraiser 

assumes no obligation, liability or accountability to any third party.  

 

15. Distribution of this report is at the sole discretion of the client, but no third-parties not listed as 

an intended user on the face of the appraisal or the engagement letter may rely upon the 

contents of the appraisal. In no event shall client give a third-party a partial copy of the appraisal 

report. We will make no distribution of the report without the specific direction of the client.  

 

16. This appraisal shall be used only for the function outlined herein, unless expressly authorized by 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc.  

 

17. This appraisal shall be considered in its entirety. No part thereof shall be used separately or out of 

context. 

 

18. Unless otherwise noted in the body of this report, this appraisal assumes that the subject property 

does not fall within the areas where mandatory flood insurance is effective. Unless otherwise 

noted, we have not completed nor have we contracted to have completed an investigation to 

identify and/or quantify the presence of non-tidal wetland conditions on the subject property. 

Because the appraiser is not a surveyor, he or she makes no guarantees, express or implied, 

regarding this determination.   

  



503-647 ASH STREET 

GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITING CONDITIONS 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 59 

19. If the appraisal is for mortgage loan purposes 1) we assume satisfactory completion of 

improvements if construction is not complete, 2) no consideration has been given for rent loss 

during rent-up unless noted in the body of this report, and 3) occupancy at levels consistent with 

our “Income & Expense Projection” are anticipated. 

 

20. It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, or 

structures which would render it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such 

conditions or for engineering which may be required to discover them.  

 

21. Our inspection included an observation of the land and improvements thereon only. It was not 

possible to observe conditions beneath the soil or hidden structural components within the 

improvements. We inspected the buildings involved, and reported damage (if any) by termites, 

dry rot, wet rot, or other infestations as a matter of information, and no guarantee of the amount 

or degree of damage (if any) is implied. Condition of heating, cooling, ventilation, electrical and 

plumbing equipment is considered to be commensurate with the condition of the balance of the 

improvements unless otherwise stated.  

 

22. This appraisal does not guarantee compliance with building code and life safety code 

requirements of the local jurisdiction. It is assumed that all required licenses, consents, certificates 

of occupancy or other legislative or administrative authority from any local, state or national 

governmental or private entity or organization have been or can be obtained or renewed for any 

use on which the value conclusion contained in this report is based unless specifically stated to 

the contrary. 

 

23. When possible, we have relied upon building measurements provided by the client, owner, or 

associated agents of these parties. In the absence of a detailed rent roll, reliable public records, or 

“as-built” plans provided to us, we have relied upon our own measurements of the subject 

improvements. We follow typical appraisal industry methods; however, we recognize that some 

factors may limit our ability to obtain accurate measurements including, but not limited to, 

property access on the day of inspection, basements, fenced/gated areas, grade elevations, 

greenery/shrubbery, uneven surfaces, multiple story structures, obtuse or acute wall angles, 

immobile obstructions, etc. Professional building area measurements of the quality, level of detail, 

or accuracy of professional measurement services are beyond the scope of this appraisal 

assignment.  

 

24. We have attempted to reconcile sources of data discovered or provided during the appraisal 

process, including assessment department data. Ultimately, the measurements that are deemed 

by us to be the most accurate and/or reliable are used within this report. While the measurements 

and any accompanying sketches are considered to be reasonably accurate and reliable, we cannot 

guarantee their accuracy. Should the client desire a greater level of measuring detail, they are 

urged to retain the measurement services of a qualified professional (space planner, architect or 

building engineer). We reserve the right to use an alternative source of building size and amend 

the analysis, narrative and concluded values (at additional cost) should this alternative 

measurement source reflect or reveal substantial differences with the measurements used within 

the report.  

  



503-647 ASH STREET 

GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITING CONDITIONS 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 60 

25. In the absence of being provided with a detailed land survey, we have used assessment 

department data to ascertain the physical dimensions and acreage of the property. Should a 

survey prove this information to be inaccurate, we reserve the right to amend this appraisal (at 

additional cost) if substantial differences are discovered.  

 

26. If only preliminary plans and specifications were available for use in the preparation of this 

appraisal, then this appraisal is subject to a review of the final plans and specifications when 

available (at additional cost) and we reserve the right to amend this appraisal if substantial 

differences are discovered.  

 

27. Unless otherwise stated in this report, the value conclusion is predicated on the assumption that 

the property is free of contamination, environmental impairment or hazardous materials. Unless 

otherwise stated, the existence of hazardous material was not observed by the appraiser and the 

appraiser has no knowledge of the existence of such materials on or in the property. The 

appraiser, however, is not qualified to detect such substances. The presence of substances such as 

asbestos, urea-formaldehyde foam insulation, or other potentially hazardous materials may affect 

the value of the property. No responsibility is assumed for any such conditions, or for any 

expertise or engineering knowledge required for discovery. The client is urged to retain an expert 

in this field, if desired. 

 

28. The Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) became effective January 26, 1992. We have not made 

a specific compliance survey of the property to determine if it is in conformity with the various 

requirements of the ADA. It is possible that a compliance survey of the property, together with an 

analysis of the requirements of the ADA, could reveal that the property is not in compliance with 

one or more of the requirements of the Act. If so, this could have a negative effect on the value of 

the property. Since we have no direct evidence relating to this issue, we did not consider possible 

noncompliance with the requirements of ADA in developing an opinion of value. 

 

29. This appraisal applies to the land and building improvements only. The value of trade fixtures, 

furnishings, and other equipment, or subsurface rights (minerals, gas, and oil) were not 

considered in this appraisal unless specifically stated to the contrary.  

 

30. No changes in any federal, state or local laws, regulations or codes (including, without limitation, 

the Internal Revenue Code) are anticipated, unless specifically stated to the contrary.  

 

31. Any income and expense estimates contained in the appraisal report are used only for the 

purpose of estimating value and do not constitute prediction of future operating results. 

Furthermore, it is inevitable that some assumptions will not materialize and that unanticipated 

events may occur that will likely affect actual performance.  

 

32. Any estimate of insurable value, if included within the scope of work and presented herein, is 

based upon figures developed consistent with industry practices. However, actual local and 

regional construction costs may vary significantly from our estimate and individual insurance 

policies and underwriters have varied specifications, exclusions, and non-insurable items. As such, 

we strongly recommend that the Client obtain estimates from professionals experienced in 

establishing insurance coverage. This analysis should not be relied upon to determine insurance 

coverage and we make no warranties regarding the accuracy of this estimate.  



503-647 ASH STREET 

GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITING CONDITIONS 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 61 

33. Data gathered in the course of this assignment (except data furnished by the Client) shall remain 

the property of the Appraiser. The appraiser will not violate the confidential nature of the 

appraiser-client relationship by improperly disclosing any confidential information furnished to 

the appraiser. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Appraiser is authorized by the client to disclose 

all or any portion of the appraisal and related appraisal data to appropriate representatives of the 

Appraisal Institute if such disclosure is required to enable the appraiser to comply with the Bylaws 

and Regulations of such Institute now or hereafter in effect.  

 

34. You and Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. both agree 

that any dispute over matters in excess of $5,000 will be submitted for resolution by arbitration. 

This includes fee disputes and any claim of malpractice. The arbitrator shall be mutually selected. 

If Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. and the client 

cannot agree on the arbitrator, the presiding head of the Local County Mediation & Arbitration 

panel shall select the arbitrator. Such arbitration shall be binding and final. In agreeing to 

arbitration, we both acknowledge that, by agreeing to binding arbitration, each of us is giving up 

the right to have the dispute decided in a court of law before a judge or jury. In the event that the 

client, or any other party, makes a claim against Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. or 

any of its employees in connections with or in any way relating to this assignment, the maximum 

damages recoverable by Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, 

Inc. for this assignment, and under no circumstances shall any claim for consequential damages 

be made. 

 

35. Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. shall have no 

obligation, liability, or accountability to any third party. Any party who is not the “client” or 

intended user identified on the face of the appraisal or in the engagement letter is not entitled to 

rely upon the contents of the appraisal without the express written consent of Valbridge Property 

Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. “Client” shall not include partners, 

affiliates, or relatives of the party named in the engagement letter. Client shall hold Valbridge 

Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. and its employees harmless in 

the event of any lawsuit brought by any third party, lender, partner, or part-owner in any form of 

ownership or any other party as a result of this assignment. The client also agrees that in case of 

lawsuit arising from or in any way involving these appraisal services, client will hold Valbridge 

Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. harmless from and against any 

liability, loss, cost, or expense incurred or suffered by Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain 

States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. in such action, regardless of its outcome. 

 

36. The value opinion(s) provided herein is subject to any and all predications set forth in this report.  

 

37. The Valbridge Property Advisors office responsible for the preparation of this report is 

independently owned and operated by Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Neither 

Valbridge Property Advisors, Inc., nor any of its affiliates has been engaged to provide this report. 

Valbridge Property Advisors, Inc. does not provide valuation services, and has taken no part in the 

preparation of this report. 

  



503-647 ASH STREET 

GENERAL ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITING CONDITIONS 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 62 

38. If any claim is filed against any of Valbridge Property Advisors, Inc., a Florida Corporation, its 

affiliates, officers or employees, or the firm providing this report, in connection with, or in any way 

arising out of, or relating to, this report, or the engagement of the firm providing this report, then 

(1) under no circumstances shall such claimant be entitled to consequential, special or other 

damages, except only for direct compensatory damages, and (2) the maximum amount of such 

compensatory damages recoverable by such claimant shall be the amount actually received by 

the firm engaged to provide this report.  

 

39. This report and any associated work files may be subject to evaluation by Valbridge Property 

Advisors, Inc., or its affiliates, for quality control purposes. 

 

40. Acceptance and/or use of this appraisal report constitutes acceptance of the foregoing general 

assumptions and limiting conditions. 

 

 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

CERTIFICATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 63 

Certification 

I, Jeff Vance, MAI, certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

 

 The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 

 The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions 

and limiting conditions and are my personal, impartial, and unbiased professional analyses, 

opinions, and conclusions. 

 I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report and no 

personal interest with respect to the parties involved. 

 I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties 

involved with this assignment. 

 In August 2016, I appraised the subject site (Ash Street parcels) as vacant land.  In June 2017, I 

appraised the public alley portion of the subject as vacant land.  The appraisals were based on 

unrelated assumptions and involved different scopes of work.  I have performed no other services, 

as an appraiser or in any other capacity regarding the property that is the subject of this report 

within the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment.   

 My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting 

predetermined results. 

 My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or 

reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the a cause of the client, the 

amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a 

subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal. 

 My analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in 

conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice. 

 The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been 

prepared, in conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics & Standards of 

Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute. 

 The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to review 

by its duly authorized representatives. 

 I have made a current personal site inspection of the property that is the subject of this report.  

 The appraisal assignment was not based on a requested minimum valuation, a specific valuation, 

or the approval of a loan, and the appraiser’s state registration/certification has not been revoked, 

suspended, cancelled, or restricted. 

 This is to acknowledge the assistance of Moe Therrien, MAI, in preparation of this appraisal. 

 As of the date of this report, I, Jeff Vance, MAI, have completed the continuing education 

program for Designated Members of the Appraisal Institute. 

 Effective July 1, 1992, the State of Idaho implemented a mandatory program of 

licensing/certification of real estate appraisers.  I have met the qualifications to appraise all types 

of real estate and am currently certified.  My certification number is CGA-2828. 

 

Jeff Vance, MAI 

Senior Appraiser 

State of Idaho Certification No. CGA-2828 

 



503-647 ASH STREET 

CERTIFICATION 

ID02-17-0060-000 

 

 

VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. Page 64 

 

Certification 
I, Moe Therrien, MAI, certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

 

 The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 

 The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions 

and limiting conditions and are my personal, impartial, and unbiased professional analyses, 

opinions, and conclusions. 

 I have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report and no 

personal interest with respect to the parties involved. 

 I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties 

involved with this assignment. 

 In August 2016, I appraised the subject site as vacant land. The appraisal was based on unrelated 

assumptions and involved a different scope of work.  I have performed no other services, as an 

appraiser or in any other capacity regarding the property that is the subject of this report within 

the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment.   

 My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting 

predetermined results. 

 My compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or 

reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the a cause of the client, the 

amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a 

subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal. 

 My analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in 

conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice. 

 The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been 

prepared, in conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics & Standards of 

Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute. 

 The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to review 

by its duly authorized representatives. 

 I have made a current personal site inspection of the property that is the subject of this report.  

 The appraisal assignment was not based on a requested minimum valuation, a specific valuation, 

or the approval of a loan, and the appraiser’s state registration/certification has not been revoked, 

suspended, canceled, or restricted. 

 This is to acknowledge the assistance of Jeff Vance, MAI, in preparation of this appraisal. 

 As of the date of this report, I, Moe Therrien, MAI, have completed the continuing education 

program for Designated Members of the Appraisal Institute. 

 Effective July 1, 1992, the State of Idaho implemented a mandatory program of 

licensing/certification of real estate appraisers.  I have met the qualifications to appraise all types 

of real estate and am currently certified.  My certification number is CGA-8. 

 

Moe Therrien, MAI 

Senior Managing Director 

State of Idaho Certification No. CGA-8 

     



Qualifications of Jeff R. Vance, MAI 

Senior Appraiser 
Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting Inc. 

 

 

Independent Valuations for a Variable World 

Membership/Affiliations: 
Member:   Appraisal Institute - MAI Designation 

Appraisal Institute & Related Courses: 
Year - Course 

2006 to Present- USPAP; including updates every 2 years 

2006- Appraisal Principles  

2007- Real Estate Financing, Statistics, & Valuation Modeling 

2007- General Appraiser Income Approach Part 1 

2008- General Market Analysis & Highest and Best Use 

2008- General Sales Comparison Approach 

2008- General Site Valuation & Cost Approach 

2008- General Report Writing & Case Studies 

2009- General Appraiser Income Approach Part 2 

2009, 2014- Business Practices & Ethics 

2010- Foreclosure, Short Sale, Auction Price Seminar 

2010- Subdivision Valuation 

2011- Advanced Concepts & Case Studies 

2012- Advanced Income Capitalization 

2013- General Demonstration Report – Capstone Program 

2016- Uniform Appraisal Standards for Federal Land Acquisitions 

 

Experience: 
Senior Appraiser, MAI 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting Inc. 

(2013-Present) 

Appraiser, CGA 

Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting Inc. (2010-2013) 

Associate Appraiser, RT 

Haxton & Company (2008-2010) 

Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting Inc. (2007-2008) 

 

Appraisal/valuation and consulting assignments include: apartments; 

condominiums; retail; restaurants; shopping centers; professional and 

medical office; industrial; religious and special purpose properties 

including schools, churches, and daycares; residential and 

commercial subdivisions; and vacant industrial, commercial, and 

residential land.  Assignments have been concentrated in southwest 

Idaho. 

State Certifications 
 

State of Idaho, CGA-2828 
 

Education 
 

Bachelor of Science 

Business Marketing 

University of Idaho 

 

Contact Details 
 

208-336-1097 (p) 

208-345-1175 (f) 
 

Valbridge Property Advisors | 

Mountain States Appraisal & 

Consulting Inc. 

1459 Tyrell Lane, Suite B 

Boise, Idaho 83706 

 

www.valbridge.com 

jvance@valbridge.com 

http://www.valbridge.com/
http://www.valbridge.com/
http://www.valbridge.com/
http://www.valbridge.com/


Qualifications of Maurice J. ( Moe) Therrien, MAI 

Senior Managing Director 
Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal Inc. 

 

 

Independent Valuations for a Variable World 

Membership/Affiliations: 
Appraisal Institute - MAI Designation (since 1982) 

President of Southern Idaho Chapter of Appraisal Institute (1987) 

Idaho Real Estate Broker ( since 1991) 

 

Appraisal Institute & related Courses: 
Uniform Standards of Professional Practice   

Business Practices and Ethics    

Advanced Sales Comparison & Cost Approaches  

Income Capitalization 

Report Writing/Valuation Analysis 

Case Studies In Real Estate Valuation 

Highest & Best Use/Market Analysis  

Forecasting Revenue/Expenses 

Intro to Valuing Green Buildings 

Low Income Housing Tax Credits for Apartments  

Easement Valuation 

Litigation Valuation  

Other (transcript available on request) 

Experience: 
Principle/Owner 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal, Boise, ID 

(2013-Present) 

 

Principle/Owner 

Mountain States Appraisal & Consulting Inc., Boise ID, (1982-2013) 

 

Appraiser 

Appraisal/valuation and consulting assignments include: office; light-

industrial; retail, multi-family residential; service-commercial; special-

purpose (restaurants, fitness facilities, childcare); Land (retail, office, 

light-industrial, multi-family, residential subdivision, etc.); Market 

Studies for LIHTC Projects; Ad-valorem Assessment Consulting 

 

 

 

State Certifications 
 

State of Idaho 

 

 

Education 
 

Washington State University 

Bachelor of Arts degree-

Business Administration 

Summa Cum Laude (1977) 

 

 

Contact Details 
 

208-336-1097 (p) 

208-859-7935 (c) 

208-345-1175 (f) 

 

 

Valbridge Property Advisors | 

Mountain States Appraisal Inc. 

1459 Tyrell Lane, Suite B 

Boise, ID 83706 

 

www.valbridge.com 

mtherrien@valbridge.com 

http://www.valbridge.com/
http://www.valbridge.com/
http://www.valbridge.com/
http://www.valbridge.com/


2016 - 2019 On Call Professional Services Agreement: MOUNTAIN STATES APPRAISAL Page - 1 
TASK ORDER 16-002 RE-USE APPRAISAL:  503, 509, 511, 623 and 647 Ash Street. 

MOUNTAIN STATES APPRAISAL AND CONSULTING, INC. 
2016 - 2019 ON CALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

TASK ORDER 16-002 

Please use this Task Order number and Project Name on all project-related invoices. 

TO: Jeff Vance, MAI | Senior Appraiser 
Mountain States Appraisal and Consulting, Inc. (“CONSULTANT”) 
1459 Tyrell Lane, Suite B 
Boise, Idaho  83706 
208-336-1097, ext. 22 
jvance@valbridge.com  

FROM:  John Brunelle, Executive Director 
Capital City Development Corporation (“CCDC”) 
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, Idaho  83702 
208-384-4264 
jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com  

ORIGINAL AGREEMENT: 2016 - 2019 On-Call Professional Services Agreement 
(“Agreement”) 
AGREEMENT DATE:  November 21, 2016 

TASK ORDER DATE:  
NOT TO EXCEED: $7,500.00 

1. PROJECT NAME: Re-Use Appraisal: Ash Street Townhomes 

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
CCDC owns the real properties at 503, 509, 511, 623, and 647 Ash Street in Boise,
Idaho, which is in CCDC’s River Myrtle Old Boise Urban Renewal District.  Part of
CCDC’s urban renewal plan for the River Myrtle Old Boise District is to promote the
development of urban improvement projects. CCDC has received a proposal for the
development of the property into workforce housing that would include 31 residential
units and 1 retail/commercial space.  CCDC wishes to engage CONSULTANT to
prepare a re-use appraisal for CCDC.

3. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED (“SCOPE OF SERVICES”)
CCDC desires to obtain an opinion of “Fair Re-Use Value” from CONSULTANT for the
site.  CONSULTANT shall perform the services described in CONSULTANT’S proposal
dated March 3, 2017, attached hereto as Exhibit A.

CCDC’s signature on this Task Order serves as Notice to Proceed.  CONSULTANT shall
not make changes to this Task Order’s Scope of Services or completion date without
prior written approval from CCDC.

March 6, 2017

mailto:jvance@valbridge.com
mailto:jvance@valbridge.com
mailto:jvance@valbridge.com
mailto:jvance@valbridge.com
mailto:jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com
mailto:jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com
mailto:jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com
mailto:jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com


2016 - 2019 On Call Professional Services Agreement: MOUNTAIN STATES APPRAISAL Page - 2 
TASK ORDER 16-002 RE-USE APPRAISAL:  503, 509, 511, 623 and 647 Ash Street. 

4. SUBCONSULTANT(S)
Reserved; Not Applicable.

5. COST; INVOICES

(a) Amount & Method of Payment.  The lump sum total amount paid for this Task 
Order 16-002 shall not exceed SEVEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($7,500.00) for the Scope of Services.    

(b) Reimbursable Expenses.  Payment to CONSULTANT includes reimbursable 
expenses which shall include general out-of-pocket expenses such as long-
distance telephone charges, copying expenses, overnight or standard mailing 
expenses, and travel-related expenses and shall be billed to CCDC at the actual 
cost to CONSULTANT with no markup.  Reimbursable expenses are included in 
this Task Order’s not-to-exceed amount of $7,500.00. 

(c) Notice Required Prior to Overages.  CONSULTANT shall notify CCDC if, due to 
unforeseen or other circumstances, CONSULTANT anticipates that costs for the 
Scope of Services to exceed the not-to-exceed limit set for this Task Order.  
CCDC will determine in its sole judgment if a change to the not-to-exceed limit is 
appropriate.  Any such change shall be approved by CCDC in writing prior to the 
CONSULTANT incurring costs in excess of the not-to-exceed limit.  

(d) Invoices.  Each invoice submitted to CCDC by CONSULANT shall be in a format 
acceptable to CCDC and shall specify charges as they relate to the tasks in the 
Task Order.  Each invoice shall also specify current billing and previous 
payments, with a total of costs incurred and payments made to date.   

6. SCHEDULE
CONSULTANT shall begin work upon execution of this Task Order and complete the
entire Scope of Services on or before June 1, 2017, unless an extension is approved
and provided in writing by CCDC.

7. DELIVERABLES / COPIES OF PRODUCTS
CONSULTANT shall provide CCDC with the products as described in attached EXHIBIT
A.  CONSULTANT shall provide a draft report to CCDC for review before finalizing.
Documents shall be submitted in a format acceptable to CCDC, via email to CCDC
Property Development Project Manager Shellan Rodriguez at srodriguez@ccdcboise.com

unless requested to do otherwise by CCDC.  Documents shall also be submitted in hard
copy and delivered by a method acceptable to CCDC.

8. CONTRACT TERMS
Terms of the 2016 - 2019 On-Call Professional Services Agreement signed by CCDC
and CONSULTANT shall remain in effect and apply to the services performed and work
products created under this Task Order.

End of Task Order # 16-002 

Signatures appear on the following page. 

mailto:srodriguez@ccdcboise.com
mailto:srodriguez@ccdcboise.com
mailto:srodriguez@ccdcboise.com
mailto:srodriguez@ccdcboise.com




VALBRIDGE PROPERTY ADVISORS: AKRON ● ATLANTA ● BATON ROUGE ● BOISE ● BOSTON ● BOULDER ● CENTRAL VALLEY CA/CENTRAL COUNTIES ● CHARLESTON ● CHARLOTTE ● CINCINNATI ●  

COEUR D'ALENE ● DALLAS-FORT WORTH ● DAVENPORT ● EAST LANSING ● GREENVILLE ● HARTFORD ● HILTON HEAD ● HOUSTON ● INDIANAPOLIS ● JACKSONVILLE ● KANSAS CITY ● KNOXVILLE ● 

 LAS VEGAS ● LOS ANGELES ● ORANGE COUNTY ● LOUISVILLE ● LUBBOCK ● MEMPHIS ● MILWAUKEE ● MINNEAPOLIS ● MONTEREY/CARMEL ● MONTGOMERY ● NAPLES ● NASHVILLE ● NEW ORLEANS ● 

NORFOLK/VIRGINIA BEACH ● NORWALK/STAMFORD ● OLYMPIA ● ORLANDO ● PHILADELPHIA ● PITTSBURGH ● RALEIGH ● RICHMOND ● ROANOKE ● SACRAMENTO ● SALT LAKE CITY ● SAN ANTONIO ●  

SAN DIEGO ● SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA/EAST BAY ● SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA/SILICON VALLEY ● SEATTLE ● SHREVEPORT ● SPOKANE ● SOUTHERN UTAH ● TAMPA/ST. PETERSBURG ● TUCSON ●  

TULSA ● WASHINGTON DC/BALTIMORE  

March 3, 2017 

Shellan Rodriguez 

Project Manager – Property Development 

Capital City Development Corporation 

121 N. 9
th

 Street, Suite 501

Boise, Idaho 83702 

Re: Re-Use Appraisal of: 

       Ash Street Townhomes 

       Proposed Apartment/Townhome Project 

       503-647 Ash Street 

       Boise, Idaho 83702 

Dear Ms. Rodriguez: 

This letter serves as an outline describing the scope of work to be performed for the re-use appraisal of the above 

referenced property.  The subject is a proposed 31-unit apartment/townhome project to be situated on a 0.74 

acre site in downtown Boise.  The project will also include one commercial space.   

The purpose of this appraisal is to provide an opinion of Fair Re-Use Value for the CCDC owned site based on the 

proposed use.  Capital City Development Corporation is the client in this assignment.  The intended use of this 

appraisal is to provide a basis for negotiating a sale of the CCDC owned land subject to the specific development 

proposal.  The intended users of this report include the client and any duly appointed representatives of the client, 

specifically authorized by the client to view or use this appraisal in accordance with the stated purpose or function. 

The appraisal will be presented in Appraisal Report format, as defined by Uniform Standards of Professional 

Appraisal Practice under Standards Rule 2-2(a).  It will present a condensed narrative discussion of the pertinent 

data gathered, the techniques employed, and the reasoning leading to our value opinions.  The depth of the 

discussion contained in this report is specific to the needs of the client and the intended use.   

It is our understanding the project may be developed either as for rent townhomes or for sale townhomes.  The 

exact development scope has not been determined to-date.  Our fee will be $5,000 to appraise the property as 

either for rent or for sale townhomes (fee includes the one commercial unit).  The fee will be $7,500 if both 

scenarios are to be appraised.  Assuming we have the necessary data from the developer, CCDC, and the market, 

we anticipate delivery of the report no later than four weeks upon execution of the CCDC task order.  The fee is 

due within 30 days of delivery.  Moe Therrien, MAI, and Jeff Vance, MAI, will collaborate on the appraisal and 

cosign the report.   

Joe Corlett, MAI, SRA 

Moe Therrien, MAI 

Kevin Ritter, MAI 

Derek Newton, CGA 

Jeff Vance, MAI 

Dave Pascua, RT 

Paul Dehlin, MAI 

kwanner
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States Appraisal and Consulting, Inc. 

Thank you for the opportunity to be of service. 

Sincerely, 

Valbridge Property Advisors | Mountain States 

Appraisal & Consulting, Inc. 

Jeff Vance, MAI 

Idaho Certified General Appraiser 

CGA-2828 

Phone: 208-336-1097, ext. 22 

E-mail: jvance@valbridge.com 

















You are currently logged in as: (Joseph Corlett) on 10-Mar-2017  
511 Ash Street, Boise, ID
511 S ASH ST, BOISE, ID

MAP DATA
Map Number  :   16001C0277H
Panel Date     :   February 19,2003
FIPS Code     :   16001

Census Tract   :  0001.00
Geo Result      :   S8 (Most Accurate) -
single valid address match, point
located at a single known address
point candidate (Parcel)

© 2015 - STDB. All rights reserved
This Report is for the sole benefit of the Customer that ordered and paid for the Report and is based on the property information provided by that
Customer. That Customer's use of this Report is subject to the terms agreed to by that Customer when accessing this product. No third party is
authorized to use or rely on this Report for any purpose. THE SELLER OF THIS REPORT MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES
TO ANY PARTY CONCERNING THE CONTENT, ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THIS REPORT, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. The seller of this Report shall not have any liability to any third party for any
use or misuse of this Report.



Definitions of FEMA Flood Zone Designations  
Flood zones are geographic areas that the FEMA has defined according to varying levels of flood risk.   

These zones are depicted on a community's Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) or Flood Hazard Boundary 

Map.   Each zone reflects the severity or type of flooding in the area. 

Moderate to Low Risk Areas 
In communities that participate in the NFIP, flood insurance is available to all property owners and 

renters in these zones: 

ZONE  DESCRIPTION 

B and X (shaded)  Area of moderate flood hazard, usually the area between the limits of the 100‐
year and 500‐year floods. B Zones are also used to designate base floodplains of 
lesser hazards, such as areas protected by levees from 100‐year flood, or shallow 
flooding areas with average depths of less than one foot or drainage areas less 
than 1 square mile. 

C and X 
(unshaded) 

Area of minimal flood hazard, usually depicted on FIRMs as above the 500‐year 
flood level. Zone C may have ponding and local drainage problems that don't 
warrant a detailed study or designation as base floodplain. Zone X is the area 
determined to be outside the 500‐year flood and protected by levee from 100‐
year flood. 

 

High Risk Areas 
In communities that participate in the NFIP, mandatory flood insurance purchase requirements apply to 

all of these zones: 

ZONE  DESCRIPTION 

A  Areas with a 1% annual chance of flooding and a 26% chance of flooding over the life of 
a 30‐year mortgage. Because detailed analyses are not performed for such areas; no 
depths or base flood elevations are shown within these zones. 

AE  The base floodplain where base flood elevations are provided. AE Zones are now used 
on new format FIRMs instead of A1‐A30 Zones. 

A1‐30  These are known as numbered A Zones (e.g., A7 or A14). This is the base floodplain 
where the FIRM shows a BFE (old format). 

AH  Areas with a 1% annual chance of shallow flooding, usually in the form of a pond, with 
an average depth ranging from 1 to 3 feet. These areas have a 26% chance of flooding 
over the life of a 30‐year mortgage. Base flood elevations derived from detailed 
analyses are shown at selected intervals within these zones. 

AO  River or stream flood hazard areas, and areas with a 1% or greater chance of shallow 
flooding each year, usually in the form of sheet flow, with an average depth ranging 
from 1 to 3 feet. These areas have a 26% chance of flooding over the life of a 30‐year 
mortgage. Average flood depths derived from detailed analyses are shown within these 
zones. 

AR  Areas with a temporarily increased flood risk due to the building or restoration of a 
flood control system (such as a levee or a dam). Mandatory flood insurance purchase 
requirements will apply, but rates will not exceed the rates for unnumbered A zones if 
the structure is built or restored in compliance with Zone AR floodplain management 
regulations. 

A99  Areas with a 1% annual chance of flooding that will be protected by a Federal flood 
control system where construction has reached specified legal requirements. No depths 
or base flood elevations are shown within these zones. 



 

High Risk  Coastal Areas 
In communities that participate in the NFIP, mandatory flood insurance purchase requirements apply to 

all of these zones. 

ZONE  DESCRIPTION 

V  Coastal areas with a 1% or greater chance of flooding and an additional hazard 
associated with storm waves. These areas have a 26% chance of flooding over the life of 
a 30‐year mortgage. No base flood elevations are shown within these zones. 

VE, V1 ‐ 30  Coastal areas with a 1% or greater chance of flooding and an additional hazard 
associated with storm waves. These areas have a 26% chance of flooding over the life of 
a 30‐year mortgage. Base flood elevations derived from detailed analyses are shown at 
selected intervals within these zones. 

 

Undetermined Risk Areas 
ZONE  DESCRIPTION 

D  Areas with possible but undetermined flood hazards. No flood hazard analysis has been 
conducted. Flood insurance rates are commensurate with the uncertainty of the flood 
risk. 

 

From FEMA Map Service Center: 

http://msc.fema.gov/webapp/wcs/stores/servlet/info?storeId=10001&catalogId=10001&langId=‐

1&content=floodZones&title=FEMA%20Flood%20Zone%20Designations 









Addenda 
Glossary 
Definitions are taken from the Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5

th
 Edition (Dictionary), the Uniform Standards of 

Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) and Building Owners and Managers Association International (BOMA).  

Absolute Net Lease 

A lease in which the tenant pays all expenses 

including structural maintenance, building reserves, 

and management; often a long-term lease to a credit 

tenant. (Dictionary) 

Additional Rent 

Any amounts due under a lease that is in addition to 

base rent. Most common form is operating expense 

increases. (Dictionary) 

Amortization 

The process of retiring a debt or recovering a capital 

investment, typically though scheduled, systematic 

repayment of the principal; a program of periodic 

contributions to a sinking fund or debt retirement 

fund. (Dictionary) 

As Is Market Value 

The estimate of the market value of real property in its 

current physical condition, use, and zoning as of the 

appraisal date. (Dictionary) 

Base (Shell) Building 

The existing shell condition of a building prior to the 

installation of tenant improvements. This condition 

varies from building to building, landlord to landlord, 

and generally involves the level of finish above the 

ceiling grid. (Dictionary) 

Base Rent 

The minimum rent stipulated in a lease. (Dictionary) 

Base Year 

The year on which escalation clauses in a lease are 

based. (Dictionary) 

Building Common Area 

The areas of the building that provide services to 

building tenants but which are not included in the 

rentable area of any specific tenant. These areas may 

include, but shall not be limited to, main and auxiliary 

lobbies, atrium spaces at the level of the finished 

floor, concierge areas or security desks, conference 

rooms, lounges or vending areas food service 

facilities, health or fitness centers, daycare facilities, 

locker or shower facilities, mail rooms, fire control 

rooms, fully enclosed courtyards outside the exterior 

walls, and building core and service areas such as fully 

enclosed mechanical or equipment rooms. Specifically 

excluded from building common areas are; floor 

common areas, parking spaces, portions of loading 

docks outside the building line, and major vertical 

penetrations. (BOMA) 

Building Rentable Area 

The sum of all floor rentable areas. Floor rentable area 

is the result of subtracting from the gross measured 

area of a floor the major vertical penetrations on that 

same floor. It is generally fixed for the life of the 

building and is rarely affected by changes in corridor 

size or configuration. (BOMA) 

Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

A statement issued by a local government verifying 

that a newly constructed building is in compliance 

with all codes and may be occupied.  

Common Area (Public) Factor 

In a lease, the common area (public) factor is the 

multiplier to a tenant’s useable space that accounts 

for the tenant’s proportionate share of the common 

area (restrooms, elevator lobby, mechanical rooms, 

etc.).  The public factor is usually expressed as a 

percentage and ranges from a low of 5 percent for a 

full tenant to as high as 15 percent or more for a 

multi-tenant floor. Subtracting one (1) from the 

quotient of the rentable area divided by the useable 

area yields the load (public) factor. At times confused 

with the “loss factor” which is the total rentable area 

of the full floor less the useable area divided by the 

rentable area. (BOMA) 

Common Area Maintenance (CAM) 
 

The expense of operating and maintaining common 

areas; may or may not include management charges 

and usually does not include capital expenditures on 

tenant improvements or other improvements to the 

property.  

 

CAM can be a line-item expense for a group of items 

that can include maintenance of the parking lot and 

landscaped areas and sometimes the exterior walls of 

the buildings. CAM can refer to all operating 

expenses.  



 

 

CAM can refer to the reimbursement by the tenant to 

the landlord for all expenses reimbursable under the 

lease. Sometimes reimbursements have what is called 

an administrative load. An example would be a 15 

percent addition to total operating expenses, which are 

then prorated among tenants. The administrative load, 

also called an administrative and marketing fee, can be 

a substitute for or an addition to a management fee. 

(Dictionary) 

Condominium 

A form of ownership in which each owner possesses 

the exclusive right to use and occupy an allotted unit 

plus an undivided interest in common areas.  

 

A multiunit structure, or a unit within such a structure, 

with a condominium form of ownership. (Dictionary) 

Conservation Easement 

An interest in real property restricting future land use 

to preservation, conservation, wildlife habitat, or some 

combination of those uses. A conservation easement 

may permit farming, timber harvesting, or other uses 

of a rural nature to continue, subject to the easement. 

In some locations, a conservation easement may be 

referred to as a conservation restriction. (Dictionary) 

Contributory Value 

The change in the value of a property as a whole, 

whether positive or negative, resulting from the 

addition or deletion of a property component. Also 

called deprival value in some countries. (Dictionary) 

Debt Coverage Ratio (DCR) 
 

The ratio of net operating income to annual debt 

service (DCR = NOI/Im), which measures the relative 

ability to a property to meet its debt service out of net 

operating income. Also called Debt Service Coverage 

Ratio (DSCR). A larger DCR indicates a greater ability 

for a property to withstand a downturn in revenue, 

providing an improved safety margin for a lender. 

(Dictionary) 

Deed Restriction 

A provision written into a deed that limits the use of 

land. Deed restrictions usually remain in effect when 

title passes to subsequent owners. (Dictionary) 

Depreciation 

1) In appraising, the loss in a property value from any 

cause; the difference between the cost of an 

improvement on the effective date of the appraisal 

and the market value of the improvement on the 

same date. 2) In accounting, an allowance made 

against the loss in value of an asset for a defined 

purpose and computed using a specified method. 

(Dictionary) 

Disposition Value 

The most probable price that a specified interest in 

real property is likely to bring under the following 

conditions: 

 

 Consummation of a sale within a exposure time 

specified by the client; 

 The property is subjected to market conditions 

prevailing as of the date of valuation;  

 Both the buyer and seller are acting prudently 

and knowledgeably; 

 The seller is under compulsion to sell; 

 The buyer is typically motivated; 

 Both parties are acting in what they consider to 

be their best interests; 

 An adequate marketing effort will be made 

during the exposure time specified by the client; 

 Payment will be made in cash in U.S. dollars or in 

terms of financial arrangements comparable 

thereto; and 

 The price represents the normal consideration for 

the property sold, unaffected by special or 

creative financing or sales concessions granted by 

anyone associated with the sale. (Dictionary) 

Easement 

The right to use another’s land for a stated purpose. 

(Dictionary) 

EIFS  

Exterior Insulation Finishing System. This is a type of 

exterior wall cladding system. Sometimes referred to 

as dry-vit. 

Effective Date 

1) The date at which the analyses, opinions, and 

advice in an appraisal, review, or consulting service 

apply. 2) In a lease document, the date upon which 

the lease goes into effect. (Dictionary) 

Effective Rent 

The rental rate net of financial concessions such as 

periods of no rent during the lease term and above- 

or below-market tenant improvements (TIs). 

(Dictionary) 

EPDM  

Ethylene Diene Monomer Rubber. A type of synthetic 

rubber typically used for roof coverings. (Dictionary) 



 

Escalation Clause 

A clause in an agreement that provides for the 

adjustment of a price or rent based on some event or 

index. e.g., a provision to increase rent if operating 

expenses increase; also called an expense recovery 

clause or stop clause. (Dictionary) 

Estoppel Certificate 

A statement of material factors or conditions of which 

another person can rely because it cannot be denied 

at a later date. In real estate, a buyer of rental 

property typically requests estoppel certificates from 

existing tenants. Sometimes referred to as an estoppel 

letter. (Dictionary) 

Excess Land 

Land that is not needed to serve or support the 

existing improvement. The highest and best use of the 

excess land may or may not be the same as the 

highest and best use of the improved parcel. Excess 

land may have the potential to be sold separately and 

is valued separately. (Dictionary) 

Expense Stop 

A clause in a lease that limits the landlord’s expense 

obligation, which results in the lessee paying any 

operating expenses above a stated level or amount. 

(Dictionary) 

Exposure Time 

1) The time a property remains on the market. 2) The 

estimated length of time the property interest being 

appraised would have been offered on the market 

prior to the hypothetical consummation of a sale at 

market value on the effective date of the appraisal; a 

retrospective estimate based on an analysis of past 

events assuming a competitive and open market. 

(Dictionary) 

Extraordinary Assumption 

An assumption, directly related to a specific 

assignment, which, if found to be false, could alter the 

appraiser’s opinions or conclusions. Extraordinary 

assumptions presume as fact otherwise uncertain 

information about physical, legal, or economic 

characteristics of the subject property; or about 

conditions external to the property such as market 

conditions or trends; or about the integrity of data 

used in an analysis. (Dictionary) 

Fair Market Value 

The price at which the property should change hands 

between a willing buyer and a willing seller, neither 

being under any compulsion to buy or sell and both 

having reasonable knowledge of relevant facts. [Treas. 

Reg. 20.2031-1(b); Rev. Rul. 59-60. 1959-1 C.B. 237] 

Fee Simple Estate 

Absolute ownership unencumbered by any other 

interest or estate, subject only to the limitations 

imposed by the governmental powers of taxation, 

eminent domain, police power, and escheat. 

(Dictionary) 

Floor Common Area 

Areas on a floor such as washrooms, janitorial closets, 

electrical rooms, telephone rooms, mechanical rooms, 

elevator lobbies, and public corridors which are 

available primarily for the use of tenants on that floor. 

(BOMA) 

 

Full Service (Gross) Lease 

A lease in which the landlord receives stipulated rent 

and is obligated to pay all of the property’s operating 

and fixed expenses; also called a full service lease. 

(Dictionary) 

Going Concern Value 

 The market value of all the tangible and 

intangible assets of an established and operating 

business with an indefinite life, as if sold in 

aggregate; more accurately termed the market 

value of the going concern.  

 The value of an operating business enterprise. 

Goodwill may be separately measured but is an 

integral component of going-concern value when 

it exists and is recognizable. (Dictionary) 

Gross Building Area 

The total constructed area of a building. It is generally 

not used for leasing purposes (BOMA) 

Gross Measured Area 

The total area of a building enclosed by the dominant 

portion (the portion of the inside finished surface of 

the permanent outer building wall which is 50 percent 

or more of the vertical floor-to-ceiling dimension, at 

the given point being measured as one moves 

horizontally along the wall), excluding parking areas 

and loading docks (or portions of the same) outside 

the building line. It is generally not used for leasing 

purposes and is calculated on a floor by floor basis. 

(BOMA) 

Gross Up Method 

A method of calculating variable operating expense in 

income-producing properties when less than 100 



 

percent occupancy is assumed. The gross up method 

approximates the actual expense of providing services 

to the rentable area of a building given a specified 

rate of occupancy. (Dictionary) 

Ground Lease 

A lease that grants the right to use and occupy land. 

Improvements made by the ground lessee typically 

revert to the ground lessor at the end of the lease 

term. (Dictionary) 

Ground Rent 

The rent paid for the right to use and occupy land 

according to the terms of a ground lease; the portion 

of the total rent allocated to the underlying land. 

(Dictionary) 

HVAC 

Heating, ventilation, air conditioning. A general term 

encompassing any system designed to heat and cool 

a building in its entirety. 

Highest & Best Use 

The reasonably probable and legal use of vacant land 

or an improved property that is physically possible, 

appropriately supported, financially feasible, and that 

results in the highest value. The four criteria the 

highest and best use must meet are 1) legal 

permissibility, 2) physical possibility, 3) financial 

feasibility, and 4) maximally profitability. Alternatively, 

the probable use of land or improved –specific with 

respect to the user and timing of the use–that is 

adequately supported and results in the highest 

present value. (Dictionary) 

Hypothetical Condition 

That which is contrary to what exists but is supposed 

for the purpose of analysis. Hypothetical conditions 

assume conditions contrary to known facts about 

physical, legal, or economic characteristics of the 

subject property; or about conditions external to the 

property, such as market conditions or trends; or 

about the integrity of data used in an analysis. 

(Dictionary) 

Industrial Gross Lease 

A lease of industrial property in which the landlord 

and tenant share expenses. The landlord receives 

stipulated rent and is obligated to pay certain 

operating expenses, often structural maintenance, 

insurance and real estate taxes as specified in the 

lease. There are significant regional and local 

differences in the use of this term. (Dictionary) 

Insurable Value 

A type of value for insurance purposes. (Dictionary) 

(Typically this includes replacement cost less 

basement excavation, foundation, underground 

piping and architect’s fees). 

Investment Value 

The value of a property interest to a particular 

investor or class of investors based on the investor’s 

specific requirements. Investment value may be 

different from market value because it depends on a 

set of investment criteria that are not necessarily 

typical of the market. (Dictionary) 

Just Compensation 

In condemnation, the amount of loss for which a 

property owner is compensated when his or her 

property is taken. Just compensation should put the 

owner in as good a position as he or she would be if 

the property had not been taken. (Dictionary) 

Leased Fee Interest 

A freehold (ownership interest) where the possessory 

interest has been granted to another party by creation 

of a contractual landlord-tenant relationship (i.e., a 

lease). (Dictionary) 

Leasehold Interest 

The tenant’s possessory interest created by a lease. 

(Dictionary) 

Lessee (Tenant) 

One who has the right to occupancy and use of the 

property of another for a period of time according to 

a lease agreement. (Dictionary) 

Lessor (Landlord) 

One who conveys the rights of occupancy and use to 

others under a lease agreement. (Dictionary) 

Liquidation Value 

The most probable price that a specified interest in 

real property should bring under the following 

conditions: 

 

 Consummation of a sale within a short period. 

 The property is subjected to market conditions 

prevailing as of the date of valuation.  

 Both the buyer and seller are acting prudently 

and knowledgeably.  

 The seller is under extreme compulsion to sell. 

 The buyer is typically motivated. 

 Both parties are acting in what they consider to 

be their best interests. 



 

 A normal marketing effort is not possible due to 

the brief exposure time. 

 Payment will be made in cash in U.S. dollars or in 

terms of financial arrangements comparable 

thereto. 

 The price represents the normal consideration for 

the property sold, unaffected by special or 

creative financing or sales concessions granted by 

anyone associated with the sale. (Dictionary) 

Loan to Value Ratio (LTV) 

The amount of money borrowed in relation to the 

total market value of a property. Expressed as a 

percentage of the loan amount divided by the 

property value. (Dictionary) 

Major Vertical Penetrations 

Stairs, elevator shafts, flues, pipe shafts, vertical ducts, 

and the like, and their enclosing walls. Atria, lightwells 

and similar penetrations above the finished floor are 

included in this definition. Not included, however, are 

vertical penetrations built for the private use of a 

tenant occupying office areas on more than one floor. 

Structural columns, openings for vertical electric cable 

or telephone distribution, and openings for plumbing 

lines are not considered to be major vertical 

penetrations. (BOMA) 

Market Rent 

The most probable rent that a property should bring 

in a competitive and open market reflecting all 

conditions and restrictions of the lease agreement 

including permitted uses, use restrictions, expense 

obligations; term, concessions, renewal and purchase 

options and tenant improvements (TIs). (Dictionary) 

Market Value  

The most probable price which a property should 

bring in a competitive and open market under all 

conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller 

each acting prudently and knowledgeably, and 

assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. 

Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a 

sale as of a specified date and the passing of title 

from seller to buyer under conditions whereby: 

 

a. Buyer and seller are typically motivated; 

b. Both parties are well informed or well advised, 

and acting in what they consider their own best 

interests; 

c. A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the 

open market; 

d. Payment is made in terms of cash in United 

States dollars or in terms of financial 

arrangements comparable thereto; and 

e. The price represents the normal consideration for 

the property sold unaffected by special or 

creative financing or sales concessions granted by 

anyone associated with the sale. 

Market Value As If Complete 

Market value as if complete means the market value 

of the property with all proposed construction, 

conversion or rehabilitation hypothetically completed 

or under other specified hypothetical conditions as of 

the date of the appraisal. With regard to properties 

wherein anticipated market conditions indicate that 

stabilized occupancy is not likely as of the date of 

completion, this estimate of value shall reflect the 

market value of the property as if complete and 

prepared for occupancy by tenants.  

Market Value As If Stabilized 

Market value as if stabilized means the market value 

of the property at a current point and time when all 

improvements have been physically constructed and 

the property has been leased to its optimum level of 

long term occupancy. 

Marketing Time 

An opinion of the amount of time it might take to sell 

a real or personal property interest at the concluded 

market value level during the period immediately after 

the effective date of the appraisal. Marketing time 

differs from exposure time, which is always presumed 

to precede the effective date of an appraisal. 

(Advisory Opinion 7 of the Standards Board of the 

Appraisal Foundation and Statement on Appraisal 

Standards No. 6, “Reasonable Exposure Time in Real 

Property and Personal Property Market Value 

Opinions” address the determination of reasonable 

exposure and marketing time). (Dictionary) 

Master Lease 

A lease in which the fee owner leases a part or the 

entire property to a single entity (the master lease) in 

return for a stipulated rent. The master lessee then 

leases the property to multiple tenants. (Dictionary) 

Modified Gross Lease 

A lease in which the landlord receives stipulated rent 

and is obligated to pay some, but not all, of the 

property’s operating and fixed expenses. Since 

assignment of expenses varies among modified gross 

leases, expense responsibility must always be 

specified. In some markets, a modified gross lease 



 

may be called a double net lease, net net lease, partial 

net lease, or semi-gross lease. (Dictionary) 

Option 

A legal contract, typically purchased for a stated 

consideration, that permits but does not require the 

holder of the option (known as the optionee) to buy, 

sell, or lease real property for a stipulated period of 

time in accordance with specified terms; a unilateral 

right to exercise a privilege. (Dictionary) 

Partial Interest 

Divided or undivided rights in real estate that 

represent less than the whole (a fractional interest). 

(Dictionary) 

Pass Through 

A tenant’s portion of operating expenses that may be 

composed of common area maintenance (CAM), real 

estate taxes, property insurance, and any other 

expenses determined in the lease agreement to be 

paid by the tenant. (Dictionary) 

Prospective Future Value Upon Completion 

Market value “upon completion” is a prospective 

future value estimate of a property at a point in time 

when all of its improvements are fully completed. It 

assumes all proposed construction, conversion, or 

rehabilitation is hypothetically complete as of a future 

date when such effort is projected to occur. The 

projected completion date and the value estimate 

must reflect the market value of the property in its 

projected condition, i.e., completely vacant or partially 

occupied. The cash flow must reflect lease-up costs, 

required tenant improvements and leasing 

commissions on all areas not leased and occupied. 

Prospective Future Value Upon Stabilization 

Market value “upon stabilization” is a prospective 

future value estimate of a property at a point in time 

when stabilized occupancy has been achieved. The 

projected stabilization date and the value estimate 

must reflect the absorption period required to achieve 

stabilization. In addition, the cash flows must reflect 

lease-up costs, required tenant improvements and 

leasing commissions on all unleased areas. 

Replacement Cost 

The estimated cost to construct, at current prices as of 

the effective appraisal date, a substitute for the 

building being appraised, using modern materials and 

current standards, design, and layout. (Dictionary) 

Reproduction Cost 

The estimated cost to construct, at current prices as of 

the effective date of the appraisal, an exact duplicate 

or replica of the building being appraised, using the 

same materials, construction standards, design, layout, 

and quality of workmanship and embodying all of the 

deficiencies, super-adequacies, and obsolescence of 

the subject building. (Dictionary) 

Retrospective Value Opinion 

A value opinion effective as of a specified historical 

date. The term does not define a type of value. 

Instead, it identifies a value opinion as being effective 

at some specific prior date. Value as of a historical 

date is frequently sought in connection with property 

tax appeals, damage models, lease renegotiation, 

deficiency judgments, estate tax, and condemnation. 

Inclusion of the type of value with this term is 

appropriate, e.g., “retrospective market value opinion.” 

(Dictionary) 

Sandwich Leasehold Estate 

The interest held by the original lessee when the 

property is subleased to another party; a type of 

leasehold estate. (Dictionary) 

Sublease 

An agreement in which the lessee (i.e., the tenant) 

leases part or all of the property to another party and 

thereby becomes a lessor. (Dictionary) 

Subordination 

A contractual arrangement in which a party with a 

claim to certain assets agrees to make his or her claim 

junior, or subordinate, to the claims of another party. 

(Dictionary) 

Substantial Completion 

Generally used in reference to the construction of 

tenant improvements (TIs).  The tenant’s premises are 

typically deemed to be substantially completed when 

all of the TIs for the premises have been completed in 

accordance with the plans and specifications 

previously approved by the tenant. Sometimes used 

to define the commencement date of a lease.  

Surplus Land 

Land that is not currently needed to support the 

existing improvement but cannot be separated from 

the property and sold off. Surplus land does not have 

an independent highest and best use and may or may 

not contribute value to the improved parcel. 

(Dictionary) 



 

Triple Net (Net Net Net) Lease 

A lease in which the tenant assumes all expenses 

(fixed and variable) of operating a property except 

that the landlord is responsible for structural 

maintenance, building reserves, and management. 

Also called NNN, triple net leases, or fully net lease. 

(Dictionary) 

 

(The market definition of a triple net leases varies; in 

some cases tenants pay for items such as roof repairs, 

parking lot repairs, and other similar items.) 

Usable Area 

The measured area of an office area, store area or 

building common area on a floor. The total of all the 

usable areas or a floor shall equal floor usable area of 

that same floor. The amount of floor usable area can 

vary over the life of a building as corridors expand 

and contract and as floors are remodeled. (BOMA) 

Value-in-Use 

The value of a property assuming a specific use, which 

may or may not be the property’s highest and best 

use on the effective date of the appraisal. Value in use 

may or may not be equal to market value but is 

different conceptually. (Dictionary) 

 

 

 



 

 

  



 



Attachment 7 Form of Deed 



Attachment 7 Form of Deed 

Recording Requested By and 
When Recorded Return to: 
______________________________ 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR 
RECORDER’S USE ONLY 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE, IDAHO, also known as CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION (“Grantor”), for valuable consideration paid by ASH AND RIVER INVESTMENT, LLC, an 
Idaho limited liability company (“Grantee”), which has a current address of 4176 North Hackberry Way, 
Boise, Idaho, 83702, does hereby sell, transfer and convey unto Grantee, all of that certain real property 
located in Ada County, Idaho, and described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein 
(“Property”). 

Together with all and singular the tenements, hereditaments, and appurtenances thereunto 
belonging or in anywise appertaining, the reversion and reversions, remainder and remainders, rents, 
issues and profits thereof and all estate, right, title and interest in and to the Property.  

To have and to hold, all and singular the Property together with its appurtenances unto Grantee 
and Grantee’s successors and assigns forever. 

Grantor makes no covenants or warranties with respect to title, express or implied, other than 
that previous to the date of this instrument, Grantor has not conveyed the same estate to any person 
other than Grantee and that such estate is at the time of the execution of this instrument free from 
encumbrances done, made or suffered by the Grantor, or any person claiming under Grantor, subject to 
any and all easements, restrictions, agreements and encumbrances of record or appearing on the land as 
of the date of this instrument. 

1. The Property is conveyed subject to:

a. The Disposition and Development Agreement entered into by and between the
Grantor and Grantee and dated ______________, 20___, as implemented by any
subsequent implementation agreements between Grantor and Grantee (herein
collectively referred to as the “DDA”) and the Redevelopment Plan (as defined in
the DDA); the full text of the Redevelopment Plan, the DDA and such
implementation agreements are available for review at the offices of the Grantor
and the City of Boise.



 

 

 
2. The Grantee hereby covenants and agrees, for itself and its successors and assigns, that 

during construction and thereafter, the Grantee shall use, operate, and maintain the 
Property for the uses specified in the Deed Restriction, Redevelopment Plan and (unless 
expressly waived in writing by the Grantor) for the specific use as follows: 

 
The Property shall be used only for a mixed-use project constructed in accordance 
with the DDA until seven (7) years after the date of issuance by the Grantor of a 
Certificate of Completion. The period of time established by the Certificate of 
Completion shall be referred to hereinafter as the “Use Covenant Period.” 
 

3. Prior to commencement of construction of the improvements as required in the DDA and 
notwithstanding any provisions in the DDA to the contrary, the Grantee shall not enter 
into, create, or suffer any transfer of title, assignment, lien, or other encumbrances 
without the written consent of the Grantor. On or following commencement of 
construction of the improvements as required by the DDA, the following provisions of this 
paragraph shall apply. 

 
Prior to the recordation by the Grantor of a Certificate of Completion of 
construction as provided in the DDA, the Grantee shall not, except as permitted 
by the DDA, assign or attempt to assign or lease the whole or any part of the 
Property (or any portion thereof) or of the improvements to be constructed 
thereon without the prior written approval of the Grantor. This prohibition shall 
not be applicable to a transfer or transfers to any entity or entities owned or 
controlled by the Grantee transfer permitted by the DDA. This prohibition shall 
not apply to any of such Property (or any portion thereof) subsequent to the 
recordation of the Certificate of Completion with respect to the construction of 
the improvements thereon or to a sale of any such Property (or any portion 
thereof) at foreclosure (or to a conveyance thereof in lieu of a foreclosure) 
pursuant to a foreclosure thereof by a lender approved by the Grantor under the 
DDA. This prohibition shall not be deemed to prevent the granting of easements 
or permits to facilitate the development of such property or to prohibit or restrict 
the leasing or selling of any part or parts thereof or of any improvements 
constructed thereon with respect to which a Certificate of Completion has been 
issued by the Grantor or pre-leasing activities related to the Property. 

 
4. The Grantee covenants by and for itself, its heirs, executors, administrators, assigns, and 

all persons claiming under or through them that there shall be no discrimination against 
or segregation of any person or group of persons on account of race, color, creed, religion, 
sex, marital status, age, handicap, national origin, or ancestry in the sale, lease, sublease, 
transfer, use, occupancy, tenure, or enjoyment of the Property; nor shall the Grantee 
itself, or any person claiming under or through it establish or permit any such practice or 
practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, 
number, use, or occupancy of tenants, lessees, subtenants, sublessees or vendees in the 
Property. 

 
5. No violation or breach of the covenants, conditions, restrictions, provisions, or limitations 

contained in this Deed shall defeat or render invalid or in any way impair the lien or charge 



 

 

of any mortgage, deed of trust, or other financing or security instrument permitted by the 
DDA; provided, however, any successor of the Grantee to the Property shall be bound by 
such remaining covenants, conditions, restrictions, limitations, and provisions, whether 
such successor’s title was acquired by foreclosure, deed in lieu of foreclosure, trustee’s 
sale, or otherwise. 

 
6. Except as otherwise provided, the covenants contained in paragraph 2 of this Deed shall 

remain in effect until seven (7) years after Grantor issues its Certificate of Completion. 
The covenants contained in paragraphs 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 of this Deed shall be binding for 
the benefit of the Grantor, its successors and assigns, and any successor in fee interest to 
the Property, or any part thereof, and such covenants shall run in favor of the Grantor 
and such aforementioned parties for the entire period during which such covenants shall 
be in force and effect, without regard to whether the Grantor is or remains an owner of 
any land or interest therein to which such covenants relate. The Grantor and such 
aforementioned parties, in the event of any breach of any such covenants, shall have the 
right to exercise all of the rights and remedies and to maintain any actions at law or suits 
in equity or other proper proceedings to enforce the curing of such breach. The covenants 
contained in this Deed shall be for the benefit of and shall be enforceable only by the 
Grantor, its successors, and such aforementioned parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
if Grantee or any subsequent owner of any portion of the Property conveys any portion 
of the Property, such owner shall, upon the conveyance, be released and discharged from 
all of its obligations in connection with the portion of the Property conveyed by it arising 
under this Deed after the conveyance but shall remain liable for all obligations in 
connection with the portion of the Property so conveyed arising under this Deed prior to 
the conveyance. The new owner of any such portion of the Property shall be liable for all 
obligations arising under this Deed with respect to such portion of the Property after the 
conveyance. 

 
7. In the event of any express conflict between this Deed and the DDA, the provisions of this 

Deed shall control. 
 

8. Any amendments to the Redevelopment Plan which change the uses or development 
permitted on the Property as proposed in the DDA or otherwise change the restrictions 
or controls that apply to the Property or otherwise affect the Grantee’s obligations or 
rights with respect to the Property shall require the written consent of the Grantee. 
Amendments to the Redevelopment Plan applying to other property in the Project Area 
shall not require the consent of the Grantee. 

 
  
  



 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor and Grantee have caused this instrument to be executed on 
their behalf by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized. 

 
      GRANTOR: 
 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE, IDAHO, 
also known as CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 
 
By _____________________________ 
      John Brunelle, Executive Director  
Date:_________________________ 
 

 
The provisions of this Deed are hereby approved and accepted: 

 
GRANTEE: 
 
ASH AND RIVER INVESTMENT, LLC, an Idaho 
limited liability company 
 
 
By: ASH AND RIVER DEVELOPER, LLC, an Idaho 
limited liability company, Manager 
 
By:_______________________ 
       J. Dean Papé 
       Its: Manager 
Date:___________________ 
 

  



 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
 ) ss. 
County of ______________ ) 

On this _____ day of ___________________, 20__, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public 
in and for said State, personally appeared _____________________ known or identified to me to be the 
Executive Director of The Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Boise, also known as the Capital City 
Development Corporation, the entity that executed the within instrument or the person who executed 
the instrument on behalf of said entity, and acknowledged to me that such entity executed the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year 
in this certificate first above written. 

  
Notary Public for Idaho 
Residing at   
My commission expires   

 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   )  ss. 
County of ______ ) 
 
 On this _____ day of __________, 2017, before me, ____________________________, 
the undersigned notary public in and for said county and state, personally appeared J. Dean Papé, 
known or identified to me to be the manager of ASH AND RIVER DEVELOPER, LLC, an Idaho limited 
liability company, the manager of ASH AND RIVER INVESTMENT, LLC, an Idaho limited liability 
company, “Developer” herein, and acknowledged to me that he executed the within instrument 
on behalf of such Developer for the purposes herein contained. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 

  
Notary Public for Idaho 
Residing at   
My commission expires   



 

 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION EXHIBIT “A” 

[To be attached] 

  



 

 

Attachment 8  Form of Memorandum 
 
  



 
MEMORANDUM OF DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - 1  

Recording Requested By and 
When Recorded Return to: 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Attn:  Shellan Rodriguez 
121 N 9TH ST, Suite 501   
Boise, ID 83702 
 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 

MEMORANDUM OF DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Memorandum”) is 
made as of the ____ day of ____________________, 2017, by and between CAPITAL CITY 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (“Agency”) and ASH AND RIVER INVESTMENT, LLC, an Idaho limited 
liability company (“Developer”), collectively the “Parties.” 

1. Agency and Developer have previously entered into a Disposition and Development 
Agreement dated ________________, 2017, regarding the development of the real property (the “Site”) 
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.   

2. This Memorandum summarizes the Disposition and Development Agreement pursuant 
to Idaho Code Section 55-818 and incorporates by reference all of the terms and provisions of the 
Disposition and Development Agreement.   

3. The terms, conditions and provisions of the Disposition and Development Agreement 
relating to the development of the Site shall extend to and be binding upon the heirs, executors, 
administrators, grantees, successors and assigns of the Parties hereto.  The terms, conditions and 
provisions of the Disposition and Development Agreement relating to the development of the Site shall 
have no further application after the Agency has issued a Certificate of Completion, except as set forth 
in the Deed Restriction. 

4. This Memorandum shall have no further force or effect after Agency has issued a 
Certificate of Completion with respect to the Site described on Exhibit A attached hereto, except as set 
forth in the Deed Restriction and the Parties shall execute and record in the real property records a 
Termination of Memorandum at Developer’s expense. 

5. In the event of any conflict between the Disposition and Development Agreement and 
this Memorandum, the Disposition and Development Agreement shall control. 

6. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Memorandum shall have the same 
meanings ascribed for such capitalized terms in the Disposition and Development Agreement. 

[end of text] 



 
MEMORANDUM OF DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - 2  

 

 
AGENCY: 
 
THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION  
        
By ________________________________ 
     John Brunelle      
     Executive Director 
 
 
 
DEVELOPER: 
 
ASH AND RIVER INVESTMENT, LLC, 
an Idaho limited liability company 
 
By: ASH AND RIVER DEVELOPER, LLC, 
 an Idaho limited liability company, Manager 
 
 
 By        

    J. Dean Papé 
    Its: Manager 

  
 
       
 



 
MEMORANDUM OF DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT - 3  

 
 
STATE OF IDAHO   ) 
      )  ss. 
County of Ada    ) 
 
 On this _____ day of _______, 2017, before me, _________________________, the 
undersigned notary public in and for said county and state, personally appeared 
_______________________, known or identified to me to be the ________________ of the Capital City 
Development Corporation, the public body corporate and politic, that executed the within instrument, 
and known to me to be the persons that executed the within instrument on behalf of said Agency and 
acknowledged to me that such Agency executed the same for the purposes herein contained. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and 
year in this certificate first above written. 

  
Notary Public for   
Residing at   
My commission expires   

 
 
STATE OF ____________  ) 
      )  ss. 
County of _____________  ) 
 
  

On this _____ day of __________, 201 , before me, ____________________________, the 
undersigned notary public in and for said county and state, personally appeared Dean Papé, known or 
identified to me to be the __________ of ______________, an Idaho limited liability company, 
“Developer” herein, and acknowledged to me that he executed the within instrument on behalf of such 
Developer for the purposes herein contained. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and 
year in this certificate first above written. 

  
Notary Public for   
Residing at   
My commission expires   



EXHIBIT A - Page 1 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PREMISES 
 
 

 
4828-5504-9548, v. 2 



 

 

Attachment 9  Certificate of Completion  



CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
The Ash Street Disposition and Development Agreement -  1 
 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF 
CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 

(The Ash Street Disposition and Development Agreement) 
 

 The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, aka Capital City Development Corporation, (the 
“Agency”), an independent public body corporate and politic, exercising governmental functions and 
powers and organized and existing under the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965 (Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code), whose street address is 121 North Ninth Street, Suite 501, Boise, Idaho 83701-0987, 
hereby certifies that all the required improvements, construction and redevelopment regarding the Ash 
Street Development Project (collectively the “Project”) have been completed.  Ash and River 
Investment, LLC, having its principal office at 4176 North Hackberry Way, Boise, ID 83702, is the 
developer of Project located on that certain real property described in Exhibit A annexed hereto and by 
this reference incorporated herein (the “Site”).  The construction and completion of the Project on the 
Site have been completed in accordance with the provisions and conform with the uses specified in the 
River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Plan as adopted by the Agency and approved by the Boise City 
Council on December 6, 2004 (the “Plan”), which Plan is incorporated herein by reference.  The Project 
as constructed also met the requirements set forth in the Disposition and Development Agreement 
dated [____________________, 2017] (the “DDA”), between the Agency and the Developer, which DDA 
is incorporated herein by reference.  

 This Certificate is issued in accordance with Sections 9 and 10 of the Disposition and 
Development Agreement and only for said purposes of Sections 9 and 10.  This Certificate of Completion 
for the Project shall be a conclusive determination of the satisfaction of the agreements and 
requirements by both the Developer and the Agency as set forth in the DDA, provided that the Agency 
does not hereby relinquish any right to enforce the covenants that specifically survive such completion 
of construction and remain as terms of the DDA, the Special Warranty Deed, dated [_____________, 
2017], recorded on [______________, 2017] , bearing Instrument No. ____________ (the “Deed”) 
conveying the Site to Ash and River Investment, LLC from the Agency, or the Deed Restriction, dated 
[___________, 2017], recorded on [__________, 2017], bearing Instrument No. [__________________] 
(the “Deed Restriction”), setting forth the workforce housing rental rate for a specified period of time.   

[end of text] 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
The Ash Street Disposition and Development Agreement -  2 
 

 

 DATED this _____ day of ______________, 2017.  
  
      URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, 
      aka CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT 
      CORPORATION 
 
 
      By_______________________________________ 
           John Brunelle, Executive Director 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                                                 
Ryan Woodings, Secretary/Treasurer  
 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   ) ss: 
County of Ada  ) 
 

 On this _______ day of ______________  2017, before me, ____________________________, a 
notary public in and for said state, personally appeared John Brunelle and Ryan Woodings____________ 
known to me to be the Executive Director and Secretary/Treasurer of Urban Renewal Agency of Boise 
City, aka Capital City Development Corporation, who executed the within and foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that Capital City Development Corporation executed the same.   

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and 
year in this certificate first above written.   

 

 

      __________________________________________ 
      Notary Public for Idaho 
      Residing at Boise, Idaho 
      My Commission Expires:_____________________ 
 



CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
The Ash Street Disposition and Development Agreement -  3 
 

EXHIBIT  A 

Description of the Agency Site 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4828-8244-3341, v. 2 



 

 

Attachment 10  Green Building Certification 
 
  



Ash Street Workforce Housing Development Proposal 37

08  Green Building Certification Form
 



 

 

Attachment 11 Form of Deed Restriction 
  



DEED RESTRICTION - 1 

Recording Requested By and 
When Recorded Return to: 

Capital City Development Corporation 
Attn:  Shellan Rodriguez 
121 N 9TH ST, Suite 501   
Boise, ID 83702 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 

 
DEED RESTRICTION  

 
This DEED RESTRICTION (this “Deed Restriction”) is entered into as of 

___________________, 20__ by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise, 
Idaho, also known as Capital City Development Corporation (“Grantor”) with a mailing 
address of 121 N. 9th Street, Ste. 501, Boise, Idaho 83702 and Ash and River Investment, 
LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, with a mailing address of 4176 North Hackberry 
Way, Boise, Idaho, 83702 (“Grantee”), as such Deed Restriction may be amended from 
time to time. 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
A. Grantor owns certain real property described on Exhibit A, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein (the “Property”).  Grantor is conveying the Property to 
Grantee pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in that certain Disposition and 
Development Agreement with an effective date of __________________ (the “DDA”). 

 
B. Pursuant to the DDA, the Grantee shall construct a mixed-use 

development project, which includes thirty-four residential units of Workforce Housing, 
and 500 s.f. +/- retail space with patio, landscaping, public improvements and 
pedestrian supported amenities (the “Project”). 

 
C. The purpose of the Project is to create an urban mixed-use development 

that includes safe, decent and affordable workforce housing and is subject to certain 
terms and conditions imposed by the Grantor. 

 
D. Grantor is conveying the Property to Grantee by Special Warranty Deed 

(a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated by reference herein), 
pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the DDA. 

 
E. Grantor is a public body, corporate and politic, organized pursuant to the 

Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, title 50, chapter 20, Idaho Code, as amended (the 
“Law”), and undertaking projects under the authority of the Local Economic 



DEED RESTRICTION - 2 

Development Act, title 50, chapter 29, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Act”), has certain 
rights and obligations to assure compliance with the terms of the DDA.   
 

F. Pursuant to the DDA, Grantee agrees to certain use restrictions regarding 
the leasing of 100% of the residential units (the “Rental Units”) to lessees. 

 
G. Grantor has the authority to monitor compliance with the terms of this 

Deed Restriction as the “Monitoring Agent”.  In the event Grantor is no longer able to 
serve as the Monitoring Agent, Grantor and Grantee, agree any of the following entities 
may serve in that capacity: the City of Boise Housing and Community Development 
Department, Idaho Housing and Finance Association, The Boise City/ Ada County 
Housing Authority, NeighborWorks, or any other Grantor approved entity that is 
unrelated to the Grantee, its subsequent successors and assigns, or manager.  
 

AGREEMENT: 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of Grantor restricting the lease of the Rental 
Units and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which 
is acknowledged by the parties hereto, the parties hereto herby agree as follows: 

1. Recitals Incorporated by Reference.  The foregoing recitals are 
incorporated by reference herein and made a part hereof. 

2. Affordability Requirement. 
 

a. This Deed Restriction shall remain in effect until seven (7) years 
after the Grantor issues its Certificate of Completion as set forth in the DDA (the 
“Affordability Requirement Period”).  On and after the completion of the 
Affordability Requirement Period, this Deed Restriction shall be of no further 
force or effect.   

 
b. During the Affordability Requirement Period, the Rental Units 

shall be available for initial and subsequent lease at a “workforce rental price” 
(as hereinafter defined) (the “Affordability Requirements”).  A “workforce rental 
price” means a rental rate that does not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the gross 
annual household income for individuals or families earning between Eighty 
percent (80%) and One Hundred Twenty percent (120%) of the area median 
income (adjusted for household size). The area median income shall be 
established annually by the Department of Housing and Urban Development of 
the United States of America (“HUD”) for the Ada County – Boise City, Idaho 
Metropolitan Statistical Area.   

 



DEED RESTRICTION - 3 

c. The Rental Units shall remain affordable during the Affordability 
Requirement Period without regard to the term of any mortgage on the Property 
or to any transfer of ownership the Property. 

 
d. This Deed Restriction shall be monitored and enforced regarding 

compliance with the Affordability Requirements and the Affordability 
Requirement Period by the Monitoring Agent.  
 
3. Lease Provisions. The tenant leases shall be in writing and contain 

provisions consistent with this Deed Restriction and the Monitoring Agent shall review 
annually the executed tenant lease forms for the Rental Units (the “Tenant Leases”) to 
confirm they comply with the terms of the Deed Restriction.  The Monitoring Agent shall 
have no other approval rights regarding the Tenant Leases as set forth in this Section 3. 

 
4. Annual Rent Report.  During the Affordability Requirement Period, each 

year on or before February 28 (or within 60 days of the close of Grantee’s fiscal year), 
Grantee shall deliver to the Monitoring Agent a certified statement containing the 
following: 

 
a.  A sworn statement that Grantee has complied with the workforce 

rental price as defined in this Deed Restriction with respect to the leasing of the 
Rental Units; and 

 
b. A report of the vacancy or non-vacancy of each of the Rental Units 

for the immediately preceding calendar year and the rents charged for the Rental 
Units.  The report shall list all amounts received from tenants of the Rental Units 
per the respective Tenant Leases, including late fees and charges or other 
amounts paid by any tenant in connection with tenants residing in the Rental 
Units. The report shall be in the format of the Annual Rent Report attached hereto 
as Exhibit C. 

 
5. Right to Audit.  Grantor and the Monitoring Agent have the right, with 

reasonable notice and not more than once a calendar year except in the event of a 
reasonably suspected event default by Grantee, to access the business and financial 
records of Grantee for the purpose of conducting an audit to determine whether or not 
Grantee is in compliance with the Deed Restriction at the Grantor or Monitoring Agent’s 
sole cost and expense.  Such inspection shall not unreasonably interfere with the 
operations of Grantee or Grantee’s agent overseeing the business and financial records 
of Grantee.  Grantor and the Monitoring Agent will use best efforts to keep such 
information confidential except as required to enforce the Deed Restriction as provided 
herein.  

 
6. Penalty for Non-compliance.  In the event Grantor or Monitoring Agent 

determines Grantee leased a Rental Unit during the Affordability Requirement Period for 



DEED RESTRICTION - 4 

an amount that exceeds the workforce rental price, Grantee agrees to pay a fine of $5000 
per lease.  Grantee hereby grants to the Grantor, or its respective successors and assigns, 
a lien on the Property, junior to the lien of any mortgagee as holder of a first mortgage 
for indebtedness on the Property (or any successor mortgagee of a mortgage refinancing 
any first position mortgage for indebtedness on the Property), to secure payment of such 
fine or fines.  Grantor, or its respective successors and assigns, reserves the right, in its 
discretion, to waive any such fine or fines based on market conditions and overall success 
of the development of the Property. 

 
7. Rights of Mortgagees. 
 

a. With respect to all or any part of the Property, if the Affordability 
Restrictions are terminated before the expiration of the Affordability Requirement 
Period upon the occurrence of a "Termination Event" (as defined below), the 
Affordability Restrictions shall be reinstated upon the terms thereof in effect as of 
the Termination Event, , if the owner of record of such Property as of the date of 
the Termination Event or any entity that includes the former owner or those with 
whom the former owner has or has had family or business ties (the “Related 
Party”), obtains an ownership interest in the Property after the Termination Event. 
A "Termination Event" shall mean, with respect to all or any part of the Property: 
(i) a foreclosure thereof; or (ii) a transfer in lieu of foreclosure thereof. 

 
b. A certificate signed under penalties of perjury by a purchaser at a 

foreclosure sale (or any subsequent purchaser) certifying that such purchaser is 
not a Related Party shall, if recorded with the real property records for Ada 
County, be conclusive evidence that such purchaser is not a Related Party.   

8. Recording and Filing: Covenants to Run With the Property. 
 

a. Upon execution hereof by Grantor and Grantee, the Deed 
Restriction shall be recorded and filed in the real property records for Ada 
County.  A copy of this Deed Restriction shall also be provided to the City of Boise 
(the “City”). 

 
b. It is intended and agreed that all of the agreements, covenants, 

rights and restrictions set forth herein shall be deemed to be covenants running 
with the Property and shall be binding upon and enforceable against Grantee, 
Grantee's successors and assigns and any party holding title to the Property, for 
the benefit of and enforceable by Grantor or the Monitoring Agent or their 
respective successors and assigns, and any resident of the Rental Units (as limited 
herein), during the term of this Deed Restriction.  

 
c. Without limitation on any other rights or remedies of Grantor, 

Monitoring Agent, or their respective successors and assigns, any sale or other 



DEED RESTRICTION - 5 

transfer or conveyance of the Property in violation of the provisions of this Deed 
Restriction, shall, to the maximum extent permitted by law, be voidable by the 
Monitoring Agent, or their respective successors and assigns, by an action to 
enforce such rights, restrictions, covenants, and agreements. 

d.  If Grantee desires to sell, convey or otherwise transfer the 
Property, Grantee shall promptly notify the Monitoring Agent in writing of such 
intent (the “Notice of Intent to Transfer”) as provided in Section 11. 

e. Grantee by accepting the Special Warranty Deed to the Property 
intends, declares and covenants on behalf of Grantee and Grantee’s successors 
and assigns: (1) that this Deed Restriction and the covenants, agreements, rights 
and restrictions contained herein shall be and are covenants running with the 
land, encumbering the Property for the Affordability Requirement Period, and are 
binding upon Grantee’s successors in title, (ii) are not merely personal covenants 
of Grantee, and (iii) shall bind Grantee, and Grantee’s successors and assigns and 
ensure to the benefit of the Monitoring Agent, and its successors and assigns, for 
the Affordability Requirement Period.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Grantee 
or any subsequent owner of any portion of the Property conveys any portion of 
the Property, such owner shall, upon the conveyance, be released and discharged 
from all of its obligations in connection with the portion of the Property conveyed 
by it arising under this Deed Restriction after the conveyance but shall remain 
liable for all obligations in connection with the portion of the Property so 
conveyed arising under this Deed Restriction prior to the conveyance. The new 
owner of any such portion of the Property shall be liable for all obligations arising 
under this Deed Restriction with respect to such portion of the Property after the 
conveyance. 

f. Grantee hereby agrees that any and all requirements of the laws of 
the State of Idaho to be satisfied in order for the provisions of this Deed Restriction 
to constitute restrictions and covenants running with the land shall be deemed to 
be satisfied in full and that any requirements of privity of estate are also deemed 
to be satisfied in full.  

 
9. Enforcement. 
 
a. The rights hereby granted shall include the right of the Grantor or 

Monitoring Agent, or their respective successors and assigns, or any resident of the Rental 
Units, to enforce this Deed Restriction independently by appropriate legal proceedings or 
action and to obtain injunctive and other appropriate relief against any violations, 
including without limitation relief requiring restoration of the Rental Units to the 
workforce rental price or compelling Grantee and Grantee’s successors in title such 
compliance with the requirements of this Deed Restriction and shall be in addition to, and 
not in limitation of, any other rights and remedies available to the Grantor, Monitoring 
Agent, any resident of the Rental Units, or their respective successors and assigns. 



DEED RESTRICTION - 6 

 
b. Without limitation of any other rights or remedies of the Grantor, 

Monitoring Agent, or their respective successors and assigns, in the event of any sale, 
conveyance or other transfer or occupancy of the Property in violation of the provisions 
of this Deed Restriction, the Grantor, Monitoring Agent, any resident of the Rental Units, 
or their respective successors and assigns, shall be entitled to the following remedies, 
which shall be cumulative and not mutually exclusive:  

1. specific performance of the provisions of this Deed 
Restriction; 

2. money damages in an amount equal to the funds received 
by Grantee in violation of the requirements set forth in Section 1 with 
regard to the workforce rental price of the Rental Unit plus interest at the 
rate of 18% per year, compounded; and 

3. the right to void any lease, conveyance or other transfer of 
the Property in violation of the provisions of this Deed Restriction, by an 
action in equity to enforce this Deed Restriction. 

c. Grantee hereby agrees to pay all reasonable fees and expenses (including 
reasonable legal fees and costs) of the Grantor or Monitoring Agent, or their respective 
successors and assigns, or any aggrieved resident of the Rental Units, as the case may be, 
in the event successful enforcement action is taken against Grantee hereunder.   

d. Grantee for itself and its respective  heirs, transferees, successors and 
assigns, hereby grant to the Grantor and Monitoring Agent, or their respective successors 
and assigns, the right to enter upon the Property for the purpose of enforcing the 
restrictions herein contained, or of taking all actions with respect to the Property which 
such party may determine to be necessary or appropriate pursuant to court order, or with 
the consent of Grantee to prevent, remedy or abate any violation of this Deed Restriction. 
No other grant of any right of access is permitted pursuant to this Deed Restriction. 

10. Amendments. This Deed Restriction may only be amended by written 
agreement executed by each of the then current owner of the Property and the Grantor 
or Monitoring Agent. 

 
11. Notice.  Any notices, demands or requests that may be given under this 

Deed Restriction shall be sufficiently served if given in writing and delivered by hand or 
mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or via reputable overnight 
courier, in each case postage prepaid and addressed to the parties at their respective 
addresses set forth below.  All notices shall be deemed delivered and received two 
business days after the deposit in the United States mail if sent by certified or registered 
mail and on the next business day if sent by overnight courier: 

 



DEED RESTRICTION - 7 

To Grantee: 
 
J. Dean Pape’ 
Ash and River Investment, LLC 
4176 North Hackberry Way,  
Boise, Idaho, 83702 208-830-7071 
dean@dechase.com 
 
with a copy to: 
 
Anne C. Kunkel 
Varin Wardwell LLC 
242 N. 8th St., Suite 220 
Boise, Idaho 83701 
1.208.584.1266 (voice) 
1.866.717.1758 (fax) 
annekunkel@varinwardwell.com  
 
To Grantor:  

 
John Brunelle, Executive Director 
Capital City Development Corporation  
121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
Boise, Idaho 83702 
208-384-4264 (voice) 
208-384-4267 (fax) 
jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com 

 
with a copy to: 
 
Ryan Armbruster 
251 E. Front St., Ste. 300 
P.O. Box 1539 
Boise, ID 83701 
(208) 343-5454 (voice) 
(208) 384-5844 (fax) 
rpa@elamburke.com 
 
Any party may, by notice given as aforesaid, change its address for all subsequent 
notices.  

 
12. Further Assurances.  Each party agrees from time to time, as may be 

reasonably required by the Grantor and Monitoring Agent, to furnish the Grantor and 
Monitoring Agent, as the case may be, with a written statement, signed and, if requested, 



DEED RESTRICTION - 8 

acknowledged, setting forth the condition and occupancy of the Rental Units, information 
concerning the occupancy of the Rental Units, and all other material information 
pertaining to the Property or Grantee’s conformance with the terms of this Deed 
Restriction. 

13. Monitoring Agent.  The Monitoring Agent has the power and authority to 
monitor compliance of the Project with ongoing requirements of this Deed Restriction 
subject to the terms herein. 

14. Severability.  If any provisions hereof or the application thereof to any 
person or circumstance shall come, to any extent, to be invalid or unenforceable, the 
remainder hereof, or the application of such provision to the persons or circumstances 
other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected 
thereby, and each provision hereof shall be valid and enforced to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. 

15. Plural and Gender.  The use of the plural in this Deed Restriction shall 
include the singular and the plural and the use of any gender shall be deemed to include 
all genders. 

 
16. Waiver by Grantor or Monitoring Agent; Counterparts.  Waivers of any 

breach of obligations under this Deed Restriction must be in writing and signed by the 
waiving parties.  No waiver by either party or Monitoring Agent of any breach of this Deed 
Restriction shall be deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach.  This Deed 
Restriction may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement. 

 
17. Captions.  The captions used in this Deed Restriction are inserted only as a 

matter of convenience and for reference and in no way define, limit or describe the scope 
of the intent of this Deed Restriction. 

 
18. Binding Successors.  This Deed Restriction shall bind, and the benefits shall 

inure to, the respective parties hereto, their legal representatives, executors, 
administrators, successors in office or interest, and assigns. 

 
19. Governing Law. This Deed Restriction is being executed and delivered in 

the State of Idaho and shall in all respects be governed by, construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of said State without giving effect to its conflict of laws 
principles. 

20. Third Party Beneficiary.  The Monitoring Agent shall be a third party 
beneficiary of this Agreement and shall be entitled to enforce this Deed Restriction and 
may rely upon the benefits hereof. 



DEED RESTRICTION - 9 

21. Dispute Resolution. In the event that a dispute arises between the Parties, 
the Monitoring Agent, any resident of a Rental Unit, or their successors and assigns, 
concerning (i) the meaning or application of the terms of this Deed Restriction, or (ii) an 
asserted breach of this Deed Restriction, including the imposition of any fine or fines 
based on Grantor or Monitoring Agent’s determination Grantee violated the rent 
restriction provisions of this Deed Restriction, the applicable parties shall meet and confer 
in a good faith effort to resolve their dispute.  The first such meeting shall occur within 
thirty (30) days of the first written notice from a party evidencing the existence of the 
dispute.  If the applicable party shall have failed to resolve the dispute within thirty (30) 
days after delivery of such notice, the applicable parties agree to first consider settling 
the dispute in an amicable manner by mediation, as the applicable parties may mutually 
agree before resorting to litigation.  The costs of such mediation shall be equally split 
amongst the applicable parties.  Should the applicable parties be unable to resolve the 
dispute to their mutual satisfaction within thirty (30) days after such completion of 
mediation, or if the applicable parties cannot mutually agree to attempt to settle any 
dispute by mediation, any party shall have the right to pursue any rights or remedies as 
provided herein. 

[signatures on next page] 
 
 
 
 
  



DEED RESTRICTION - 10 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto each caused this Deed Restriction to be 
duly executed and delivered by their respective duly authorized representatives as of the 
day and year set forth above. 
 
GRANTEE 
ASH AND RIVER INVESTMENT, LLC, 
an Idaho limited liability company 
 
By: ASH AND RIVER DEVELOPER, LLC, 
an Idaho limited liability company, Manager 
 
 
 By        

    J. Dean Papé 
    Its: Manager 

 
 
____________, 201  
 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   )  ss. 
County of ______ ) 
 
 On this _____ day of __________________________, 201___, before me, 
____________________________, the undersigned notary public in and for said county 
and state, personally appeared J. Dean Papé, known or identified to me to be the manager 
of ASH AND RIVER DEVELOPER, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, the manager of 
ASH AND RIVER INVESTMENT, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, “Developer” herein, 
and acknowledged to me that he executed the within instrument on behalf of such 
Developer for the purposes herein contained. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 
the day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Notary Public for Idaho 
      Residing at __________________________ 
      Commission Expires __________________ 
 
 
  



DEED RESTRICTION - 11 

GRANTOR 
The Capital City Development Corporation  
 
        
By ________________________________ 
     John Brunelle      
     Executive Director 
 
____________, 201  
 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   )  ss. 
County of ______ ) 
 
 On this _____ day of ______________________, 201__, before me, 
_________________________, the undersigned notary public in and for said county and 
state, personally appeared John Brunelle, known or identified to me to be the Executive 
Director of THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF BOISE, IDAHO, ALSO KNOWN 
AS THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, the public body, corporate and 
politic, that executed the within instrument on behalf of said Agency, and acknowledged 
to me that such Agency executed the same for the purposes herein contained. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 
the day and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Notary Public for Idaho 
      Residing at __________________________ 
      Commission Expires __________________  

 



DEED RESTRICTION - 12 

Exhibit A 
 

Legal Description 
 



DEED RESTRICTION - 13 

Exhibit B 
 

Special Warranty Deed 
 

 
 



DEED RESTRICTION - 14 

Exhibit C 
 

Annual Rent Report 
 

4830-3708-0906, v. 13 



 

 

Attachment 12 Form of Annual Rent Report 
 
  



Project Name:  Ash Street Townhomes
Address530 Ash Street, Boise, ID
County Ada County

Date:

Property Manager:

List of Rents provided by: 

The following findings are correct:

Total Units being Rented on a monthly basis: 

This is confirm that the list of rents charged and certified by the owner meet the Rent Limits for FY ______ based on _______ Department of Housing and Urban Development 
of the United States of America determination for the Ada County‐Boise City, Idaho Metropolitan Statistical Area. A complete list of units and Rent limits serviced at the  Ash 
Street Townhomes is below.

Annual Rent Report

Un
it

# 
of
 
Be
dr
oo
m
s

Re
nt
 C
ha
rg
ed

Re
nt
 Li
m
it

Am
ou
nt
 

Re
ce
iv
ed
 

fro
m
 Te
na
nt
 

(in
clu
di
ng
 la
te
 

fe
es
 a
nd
 

ch
ar
ge
s o
r 

ot
he
r 

am
ou
nt
s p
ai
d 

by
 Te
na
nt
)

FO
R 
CC
DC
 

US
E 
(C
on
fir
m
 

80
%‐
12
0%
)

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34

Name:
SIGNATURE
Title

NOTE:  The Developer may have to execute a hold harmless agreement in order to obtain these annual certifications from the City Of Boise Housing and Community 
Development.



 

 

Attachment 13 Form of Landscape License Agreement 
  

srodriguez
Typewritten Text

srodriguez
Typewritten Text

srodriguez
Typewritten Text
AGREEMENT WILL BE FINALIZED BEFORE EXECUTION.

srodriguez
Typewritten Text

srodriguez
Typewritten Text



6'-0"

16
'-0

"

12'-0"

EXTENTS OF TEMPORARY BERM TO BE
REMOVED/MODIFIED UPON INITIATION OF
ARTS AND HISTORY PROJECT. MAXIMUM
12' WIDTH AND MINIMUM 6' WIDTH FROM
FACE OF SOUTH WALL. 

10
9'

-5
"

14'-7" 6'-2"

5'-8" 8'-6"

12'-9"

SECTION 1

SECTION 2

SECTION 3

srodriguez
Text Box
RETAIL



 

 

Attachment 14  Form of Construction License Agreement 
 
  



TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION LICENSE AGREEMENT - 1 

 
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 
 
 This Temporary Construction License Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into between Ash 
and River Developer, LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, hereinafter “Licensee”, and THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE, IDAHO, also known as the Capital City Development Corporation, a public 
body, politic and corporate, of the State of Idaho, exercising governmental functions and powers and 
organized and existing under the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of the State of Idaho, title 50, chapter 20, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, title 50, chapter 29, Idaho Code, hereinafter 
“Licensor”.  Licensor and Licensee may be referred to as a Party, individually, and as Parties, collectively 
in this Agreement. 
 
 

RECITALS: 
 
 A. Licensor is the owner of that certain parcel of real property consisting of the real 
property depicted on Exhibit A and labelled as 617 Ash Street, Boise, Idaho (aka Hayman House) (the 
“Licensed Area”).   
 
 B. Licensee is the owner of those certain adjacent properties (503, 509, 511, 623 and 647 
Ash Street) depicted on Exhibit A and labelled “Project Area” upon which Licensee intends on 
constructing the the “Project”, as those terms are defined in the Disposition and Development 
Agreement executed by Licensee and Licensor with an effective date of __________, 2017 (the “DDA”). 
Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings as set forth in the 
DDA. 
 
 C. Licensee desires to obtain a license for the use of the Licensed Property as a 
construction staging area and construction office during the construction of the Project. 
 
 D. Licensor finds it in the best interest of the public to grant an exclusive license to 
Licensee for the purposes described herein and subject to the limitations set forth below, because it will 
promote the development of downtown Boise. 
 

AGREEMENT: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Licensor grants to Licensee an exclusive license (the “License”) to use the 
Licensed Property on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  This grant is made on the 
following terms:   
 

1. Authorized Uses By Licensee:  Licensee’s use of the License granted herein shall be in 
connection with the construction of the Project, for: use of the Licensed Property for construction 
materials storage and as a construction office; construction staging; for placement of a dumpster and 
construction equipment in approved locations, such approval to be provided in writing; for temporary 
storage of materials thereon; for surveying, and for all other reasonable uses that are necessary, 
advisable or convenient to Licensee in connection with such construction project, and for ingress and 
egress to and from the Project (the “Licensed Purposes”). 

 



TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION LICENSE AGREEMENT - 2 

2. Access to and Security of Licensed Property 
 

a.  Access to Licensed Property:  
1) Both the Licensor and Licensee shall have access to the Licensed 
Property.  If the area is blocked or closed off by fencing or any other materials 
as required by Code or contract or as required to secure the License Property 
for the Licensed Purposes, keys will be furnished to the Licensor.   

 
2) Licensor currently utilizes the structure located on the Licensed 
Property (the Hayman House) to store property.  Licensor may store other items 
on the Licensed Property so long as Licensee’s general contractor determines 
that the storage will not interfere with the Licensee’s use of the Licensed 
Property.  Licensor shall coordinate its access to the Licensed Property with the 
Licensee’s general contractor and abide by any reasonable access restrictions 
and safety procedures that such general contractor may impose. 

 
3) Licensor anticipates performing small projects including, but not limited 
to, moving sprinkler lines and undergrounding the power on the Licensed 
Property before, or concurrently with the Project.  Licensee agrees to allow 
Licensor access, and to move any construction materials or the like, if they are 
impeding the work by the Licensor. 

 
b.  Security of Licensed Property:   

1) Licensor and Licensee mutually agree to take all reasonable measure to 
secure the Licensed Property from entry by unauthorized persons during the 
term of the License, including but not limited to keeping any perimeter fencing 
locked when neither the Licensor nor Licensee are present on the Licensed 
Property.  Licensee shall be responsible for requiring its employees, contractors 
and agents to comply with this Section 2.b. 

 
2) During the term of the License, Licensee and Licensor shall assume sole 
responsibility for safety, security and protection of their respective materials, 
supplies, equipment, and all other items (“Personal Property”) located on the 
Licensed Property, and shall take all reasonable and necessary precautions to 
secure the same. 

 
3) Licensee shall not be responsible for any lack of security to Licensor’s 
personal property arising from Licensor’s continued use of the Licensed 
Property.   
 
4)   Licensor shall not be responsible for any lack of security to Licensee’s 
property arising from Licensee’s use of the Licensed Property. 

 
5) The Licensed Property contains the structure known as the “Hayman 
House”.  The Licensee shall take extra commercially reasonably precautions to 
ensure that License Purposes affiliated with the use of the Licensed Property do 
not harm or damage the Hayman House in any way. 

 



TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION LICENSE AGREEMENT - 3 

 
3. Maintenance of Licensed Property:   
 

a.  Maintenance of the Licensed Property by the Licensee:   
During the term of the License, Licensee agrees to maintain the Licensed Property in a 
clean and safe condition during the term of this Agreement, and keep it free of trash 
and other debris, excepting reasonable wear and tear damage by casualty and damage, 
trash and debris arising from Licensor’s continued use of the Licensed Property. 
Sediment, rock, mud and other debris from the Project shall be cleaned as soon as 
commercially reasonable.  Licensee agrees to maintain and protect existing landscaping, 
sprinkler lines, sprinkler heads, concrete pad, concrete/paving stone/stone walkway, 
and metal clothes-lines poles to the fullest extent possible. 

 
b.  Maintenance of the Licensed Property by the Licensor:  
Licensor contracts the maintenance of the irrigation system and the Licensed Property 
to a third party (“Pro Care Landscape Management, Inc.”) who shall continue the 
maintenance services during the term of this agreement.  Licensee agrees that Pro Care 
Landscape Management, Inc. shall have continued access to the Licensed Property as 
needed, provided, however, Licensee shall have no obligation to pay for the services of 
Pro Care Landscape Management, Inc. 
 

4. Use by Others Under Licensee:  Licensee’s right to use the Licensed Property during the 
term of the License shall extend to use by Licensee’s employees, contractors and agents. 
 

5. Term:  This License shall be for a term commencing on the Effective Date of this 
Agreement and terminating on the completion of the Project per the terms of the DDA. Provided, if the 
DDA is terminated by either Licensee or Licensor, the License shall terminate immediately. On the 
expiration of the term of this Agreement, the rights and privileges granted to Licensee hereunder shall 
cease and terminate and this Agreement shall be null and void and no further force and effect provided, 
however, Licensee shall have a reasonable time to remove all staging and equipment on the Licensed 
Property after such termination. 

 
6. Fees:  No rent will be charged.  Licensor has the right to invoice Licensee on a monthly 

basis for additional utility and other operational costs incurred by Licensor and related to the occupancy 
of the Licensed Property by the Licensee during the term of the License.  Proof of additional costs by 
way of utility bills will be made available upon request by Licensee and shall be prorated by any users of 
the Licensed Property. 

 
7. Indemnification and Insurance:  Licensee and Licensor agree the insurance and 

indemnity provisions in the DDA apply to this License Agreement. Licensor shall not enter the Licensed 
Property until after Licensee provides Licensor proof of insurance as set forth in the DDA.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall have no obligation to indemnify and hold Licensor and its 
respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against any matter to the extent it arises 
from Licensor’s actions or omissions damage arising from the use of Licensor, any other government 
body, or the general public of the Licensed Property 
 

8. Restoration on Expiration of Term:  Upon the expiration of the term of this License, 
Licensee shall repair any damage to the Licensed Property arising from Licensee’s exercise of this 



TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION LICENSE AGREEMENT - 4 

License, excepting reasonable wear and tear, damage by casualty, and damage arising from the use of 
Licensor, any other government body, or the general public of the Licensed Property.    Provided further, 
this Section 8 shall not impact Licensor’s rights under the DDA in the event Licensee defaults on its 
obligations under the DDA.  During the term of this License, Licensor shall maintain its existing property 
insurance covering the Licensed Property naming Licensee as an additional insured. 

 
9. Binding Effect:  This License, and the covenants and agreements herein contained, shall 

during the entire term hereof, be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Licensee and Licensor, 
respectively, and their successors and assigns. 

 
10. No Recordation:  This Agreement shall not be recorded. 
 
11. Attorney Fees:  Should any of the parties to this Agreement be required to retain legal 

counsel to enforce any of the terms and/or conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to reasonable attorney fees and costs. 

 
12. Effective Date:  This Agreement shall be effective as of the date it is signed and executed 

by Licensor (the “Effective Date”). 
 

[end of text] 



TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION LICENSE AGREEMENT - 5 

 
 Dated as of the Effective Date set forth above. 
 
LICENSOR: 
 
 THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION  
 
        

By ________________________________ 
     John Brunelle  
     Executive Director 

 
____________, 2017 

 
 

LICENSEE: 
 
 ASH AND RIVER INVESTMENT, LLC, 
 an Idaho limited liability company 
 
 By: ASH AND RIVER DEVELOPER, LLC, 
  an Idaho limited liability company, Manager 
 
 
  By        

     J. Dean Papé 
     Its: Manager 
 

____________, 2017    
 



 

 

Attachment 15 Form of Escrow Instruction Letter 
  



 
 

____________, 2017 
 
VIA EMAIL AND FEDERAL EXPRESS 

TitleOne Corporation 
1101 W. River St. 
Suite 201 
Boise, ID 83702 

Re: Disposition and Development Agreement dated as of _________ (the “DDA”), by and 
between Capital City Development Corporation, as seller (“Agency”), and Ash and River 
Investment, LLC, as purchaser (“Developer”), with respect to certain real property and 
improvements thereon located in Ada County, as described more particularly in the DDA 
(the “Property”) 

Dear _____________: 
 
TitleOne Corporation has been designated to act as Escrow Agent in connection with 
Developer’s acquisition of the Property from Agency.  All capitalized terms not defined herein 
shall have the respective meanings set forth in the DDA. This closing instruction letter sets forth 
the joint closing instructions from the Agency and Developer concerning your handling of said 
closing, which is scheduled to occur on ______________, 2017. 

A. Closing Documents:   

Agency and Developer have delivered to you or will deliver to you in escrow the closing 
documents described on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Acquisition 
Documents”) to be held in escrow pending satisfaction of the conditions precedent described in 
Paragraph C below.  

In addition to the Acquisition Documents, Agency and Developer will be executing a settlement 
statement (the “Settlement Statement”) setting forth the adjustments to the Purchase Price, as 
agreed to by Agency and Developer. The Settlement Statement may be executed in counterparts 
and by facsimile or e-mail at closing.  Agency and Developer may request separate Settlement 
Statements for each party. 

B. Conditions Precedent.  The following conditions must be satisfied before you may 
release the recordable Closing Documents from escrow and record and file them in accordance 
with Section C: 
 



Page 2 
 

 

(1) You have confirmed that the Acquisition Documents and the Settlement Statement(s) 
are in the form that have been approved by the undersigned, as applicable and you have 
confirmed that each has been fully signed and notarized, as applicable, and, where necessary: (a) 
you have dated the Acquisition Documents as of the Closing Date, and (b) you have assembled 
counterpart signature pages and appended all exhibits to the Acquisition Documents, each of 
which shall have been approved by the undersigned.   

(2) You have received from Developer the amount of the Purchase Price, subject to those 
adjustments and prorations set forth on the Settlement Statement. 

(3) Either (a) the conditions set forth in the closing instruction letter from Developer’s 
counsel, or any lender of Developer (the “Lender”), if any, have been satisfied; or (b) you have 
otherwise received authorization from Developer or Developer’s counsel, or Lender or Lender’s 
counsel to proceed with the closing of this transaction. 

(4) You have received the written authorization of each the undersigned (which may be 
provided by e-mail) to proceed with the closing and all other pre-closing conditions under the 
DDA have been satisfied. 

(5) You have executed this closing instruction letter and returned a signed copy of to 
each of the undersigned, thereby confirming your agreement to comply with these instructions. 

(6) You are unconditionally prepared to issue the Title Policy in the name of Developer 
in the form of the pro-forma dated [INSERT DATE] delivered to Developer’s counsel, and with 
all endorsements previously approved by Buyer and Lender, if any; 

 
(7) You have all internal documents necessary for you to perform your obligations under 

the DDA, any instructions of the Lender to close the acquisition and related financing, and these 
instructions; and 

(8) You are prepared to deliver to the undersigned by hand delivery, Federal Express or 
other nationally known overnight courier service for next business morning delivery an original 
of the Settlement Statement, and a photocopy of each of the Acquisition Documents.  

C. Recording.  Following the transfer of funds, the following Acquisition Documents shall 
be recorded in the Official Records in the following order: Memorandum, Deed Restriction and 
Special Warranty Deed. 

D. Closing.  You acknowledge that the Title Policy shall be deemed to have been issued and 
shall be effective and in full force and effect as of the date of recordation of the Special Warranty 
Deed. 



Page 3 
 

 

E.   Inability to Satisfy Conditions.  If for any reason you are unable to follow the above 
instructions on or before 5:00 p.m. mountain time on _________, 2017, TitleOne (i) may not 
release any of the Acquisition Documents or the Settlement Statement executed by Agency or 
Developer, (ii) shall not take any further actions under these instructions, and (iii) shall 
immediately notify each of the undersigned and await further instructions from each the 
undersigned. 

G. Post-Closing.  Within seven (7) days after the Closing, TitleOne shall forward to each of 
the each undersigned a file-stamped copy of the Closing Documents evidencing recordation and 
filing of the same in the Official Records and provided hereinabove.  TitleOne shall forward the 
original Deed to Developer and the original Memorandum and Deed Restriction to Agency.  
TitleOne shall deliver the original Title Policy to Developer.  All deliveries shall be to those 
addresses indicated by each of the undersigned 

H. Acceptance of Escrow.  The signature of TitleOne set forth below will confirm its 
agreement to comply with these instructions.   

This closing instruction letter may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. Facsimile and e-mail signatures shall be deemed originals for purposes of 
determining the enforceability of this closing instruction letter. 

Please acknowledge your receipt of this letter and your acceptance of the obligations set forth 
herein by executing this letter in the place provided below, and returning a copy to each of the 
undersigned by facsimile or e-mail. 

Sincerely,  
 
 
Matt C. Parks,     Anne C. Kunkel, 
Counsel for Agency     Counsel for Developer 
MCP@elamburke.com   annekunkel@varinwardwell.com 
 
ACKNOWLEDGED, ACCEPTED AND AGREED: 
 
TitleOne Corporation 
 
By:  _____________________________________ 
        Name: _______________________________ 
        Title: ________________________________ 
        Dated:    , 201  

mailto:MCP@elamburke.com
mailto:annekunkel@varinwardwell.com


Page 4 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Acquisition Documents 
 

1. One (1) original Disposition and Development Agreement, executed by Agency and 
Developer 

2. One (1) original Memorandum of Disposition and Development Agreement, executed by 
Agency and Developer 

3. One (1) original of a Special Warranty Deed with respect to the Property, executed by 
Agency and Developer 

4. One (1) original of a Deed Restriction, executed by Agency and Developer  

5. One (1) original of a Construction License Agreement, executed by Agency and 
Developer 

6. One (1) original of a Landscape Easement, executed by Agency and Developer 

7. One (1) original set of Developer’s construction loan documents, executed by Developer 

 

4814-6450-4652, v. 5 
 



 

 

Attachment 16 Alley Vacation Map 
  



srodriguez
Typewritten Text

srodriguez
Typewritten Text

srodriguez
Typewritten Text
Attachment 16 - Alley Vacation Map

srodriguez
Typewritten Text

srodriguez
Typewritten Text

srodriguez
Typewritten Text



 

 

Attachment 17 Public Project Improvements Map and Description 
  



12

UPUPUPUPUPUPUPUPUP

UPUPUPUP

UP

B1
L-301

A1
L-301

C1
L-301

TYP
1'-0"

TYP

20'-0"
19'-0"

22
'-0

"

TY
P6"

TY
P

1'-
0"

TY
P

8'-
0"

TY
P

6'-
0"2'-

6"

TY
P

1'-
0"

CIP CONCRETE SIDEWALK
PER CCDC TYPE 4 
NEIGHBORHOOD STREETSCAPE 
STANDARDS, TYP

1'X4' CIP CONCRETE PAVEMENT, 
COLOR PER ARCHITECT, TYP

PLANTING AREA WITH NATIVE, 
DROUGHT-TOLERANT PALETTE, TYP

CIP CONCRETE STAIRS
WITH METAL HANDRAILS AND
WALL, TYP

CIP CONCRETE PAVEMENT
SIDEWALK

18" HT CIP CONCRETE
SEAT WALL WITH STONE 
VENEAR FACE, TYP

S ASH STREET

PIONEER PATHWAY

EXISTING PIONEER PATHWAY IMPROVEMENTS
TO REMAIN, TYP

NEW STRIPING FOR 
S ASH STREET PARKING, TYP

CIP CONCRETE STRIP PER
CCDC STANDARDS, TYP

PEDESTRIAN POLE LIGHT
PER CCDC STANDARDS, TYP

TYP

6'-0"

TY
P

6'-
0"

6'-6" TO 10'-0" CIP CONCRETE
CAR PORT WITH
GREEN ROOF, TYP

ACCESSIBLE VAN PARKING STALL

(4) COMPACT PARKING STALLS, 
(6) STANDARD PARKING STALLS

CIP CONCRETE VEHICULAR
CURB RAMP, TYP

SIDEWALK PLANTING 
PER CCDC STANDARDS, TYP

BOISE CITY PARK PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING TREE TO BE REMOVED

TY
P

20
'-0

"

TYP

20'-0"

CONNECT TO EXISTING PIONEER
PATHWAY, TYP

TYP

5'-6"

TYP

4'-0"

STRUCTURAL COLUMN, TYP

NATIVE COLUMNAR TREE AT 
AUTO COURT, TYP

3'-6" HT METAL UNIT
IDENTIFIER, TYP

CIP CONCRETE RETAINING WALL;
6" TO1'-6" HT

6'-0"

4'-
0"

TYP

3'-6"

TYP

4'-0"

TYP

12'-0"

4'-
0"

TY
P

1'-
0"

TYP

8'-0"

TYP
1'-0"

TYP
2'-0"

5'-
9"

1'-
0" 9'-

6"1'-
0"

9'-
6"1'-

0"

TYP
1'-0"

TYP

8'-0"

TYP

10'-6"4'-0" 11'-3"

METAL TREE GRATE AT 
EXISTING TREE, MATCH 
EXISTING TREE GRATE, TYP

BUILDING ROOF LINE, TYP

NON-RESIDENTIAL
USE

TYP

5'-6"

HAYMAN HOUSE
PROPERTY

TRASH
ENCLOSURE

MIN

10'-0"

TYP

20'-0"

TYP

20'-0"

TYP

10'-0" MIN

TYP

25'-0"

TYP

25'-0"

36'-0"

PA

HR PG MWSTPA

PA

PG

CS

CP

PA

PV PV PV PAPAPA

PA PA

PAPA

PA

ME
PC

ME

PA

PA PA PAPAPAPAPA

PA

PA

PA

PA

PG

WS

MW

PG

PG

PG PC PV

MOVEABLE FURNITURE
BY OWNER, TYP

PA

PG

RC

PG

PG

PG PG

PG

PG

PG

PA

TYP
2'-0"

TY
P

2'-
0"

MW

GS GS PG GS GS GS GS GS GS

GS

PG PG PG PG PG PGGS

WS

CU WS

CU

TY
P

3'-
3"

TY
P

4'-
9"

TY
P

8'-
0"

TY
P

6'-
0"

TYP

7'-5"

TYP

3'-0"

TYP
1'-7"

TYP

4'-0"

8' HT CIP CONCRETE
WALL

16 15 14 13 12 11 10 9 8

6

5

7

4 3 2 1

F

E

D

C

B

A

WS

CU CU

9'-6"

WS

CU

WS

CU

WS

CU CU WS

BUILDING ROOF LINE, TYP

PG

PG

MP

WS

20'-0" TYP

TYP

4'-0" 11'-3"

TYP

12'-0"

EXISTING PAVEMENT TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREE GRATES TO REMAIN, TYP

EXISTING LIGHT TO REMAIN, TYP

ME ME ME ME ME ME ME

PAPAPAPAPA
PA PA

ME ME

CU WS

PC CU

WS

PG ME

PG PA
PASTPGPAPAPAPAPAPA

PA

20'-0" MAX

PA
PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV PV

PV

PV

PV PV PV

PVPV

PV

PV

PV PV PV

PV

PV

PV PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV

PV PV

PV PV

PV PV

PVPV

PV

PG

PG

PG

PG PG
PGPGPG

PG
PGPGPGPG

PG PG
PG

PG PG

PG

PV

PV

TY
P

4'-
6"

TYP

4'-0"

GUARDRAIL, TYP

8'-0" 8'-0"

18
'-0

"

4'-0" MIN

BD

8'-
0"

 M
AX

12' HT STRING 
LIGHT, TYP

TYP
2'-0"

6'-0"

3'-
0"

TY
P

2'-
0"

BR

PV PV

PG PG

PV

PV

PV

PVPGPVPG

LAYOUT AND MATERIALS LEGEND
TAG VISUAL DESCRIPTION DETAIL

CG

WG

WS

MW

TAG VISUAL DESCRIPTION DETAIL

PG

PA

CP

RCST

HR

CIP CONCRETE CURB ON GRADE

CIP CONCRETE WALL ON GRADE

18" HT CIP CONCRETE SEAT WALL ON GRADE

6" TO 24" HT METAL PLANTER WALL

CIP CONCRETE STAIR

HANDRAILS

CIP CONCRETE PAVING ON GRADE

PLANTING AREA

6"X12" SAND-SET CONCRETE PAVERS

CRUSHED ROCK

CONTROL JOINT

CIP CONCRETE VEHICULAR PAVING ON GRADEPV

PC 4"X8" CONCRETE PERMEABLE PAVER BANDME 6" METAL PLANTER WALL

GS 8' HT METAL MESH GREEN SCREEN

CU 3' HT CIP CONCRETE UNIT IDENTIFIER

6'X18"X30" METAL PLANTERMP

METAL BOLLARDBD

BIKE RACKBR

A

B

C

E

A

B

C

E

1 2 3 4 5

1 2 3 4 5

COPYRIGHT GGLO. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE IS 30"x42"

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

GGLO PROJECT MANAGER:
GGLO PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE:
PROJECT NO.:

OWNER APPROVAL:

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUE INFORMATION

REVISIONS

PROJECT:

OWNER:

PROJECT ADDRESS:

PL
OT

 D
AT

E/
TI

M
E:

A 03/24/2017 CUP/VARIANCE APPLICATION

6

6

D

D

1301 First Avenue, Suite 301
Seattle, WA 98101

http://www.gglo.com

3/
23

/2
01

7 
4:

24
:2

4 
PM

JENNIFER M WATT
TOM SHELDON

2017001.00

503, 509, 511, 623, 647 ASH STREET
BOISE, IDAHO 83702

L-111

LAYOUT AND
MATERIALS PLAN -
GROUND LEVEL

ASH STREET WORKFORCE
HOUSING

CU
P/

VA
RI

AN
CE

 A
PP

LI
CA

TI
ON

 3/
24

/20
17

DEAN PAPE, DECHASE MIKSIS
P.O. BOX 11942
EUGENE, OR 97440

PLAN
NORTH

0' 5' 10' 20'

 1" = 10'-0"B1 LAYOUT AND MATERIALS PLAN - GROUND LEVEL

1. IT IS THE INTENT OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS THAT ALL WORK COMPLY WITH THE IDAHO STATE BUILDING CODE, 
THE IDAHO STATE ENERGY CODE, AND OTHER APPLICABLE CODES, RULES, AND REGULATIONS OF JURISDICTIONS HAVING
AUTHORITY.

2. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY PORTION OF THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
IMMEDIATELY WHEN FOLLOWING ISSUES ARE NOTED: ANY DISCREPANCIES NOTED AMONG OR BETWEEN THE CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS, OWNER-PROVIDED INFORMATION, SITE CONDITIONS, MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDATIONS, OR CODES, 
REFULATIONS, OR RULES OF JURISDICTIONS HAVING AUTHORITY.

3. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY PORTION OF THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BECOME FAMILIAR WITH THE CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS, OWNER-PROVIDED INFORMATION, AND SITE CONDITIONS, INCLUDING TAKING FIELD MEASUREMENTS AS 
NECESSARY.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE AND PAY FOR ALL GOVERNMENTAL PERMITS, FEES, LICENSES, AND INSPECTIONS NECESSARY 
FOR PROPER EXECUTION AND COMPLETION OF THE WORK, EXCEPT FOR THE GENERAL BUILDING PERMIT.

5. REPETITIVE FEATURES NOT INDICATED IN THE DRAWINGS EVERYWHERE THAT THEY OCCUR SHALL BE PROVIDED AS IF DRAWN
IN FULL.

6. DO NOT SCALE THE DRAWINGS.

7. SITE PLAN INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO DIMENSIONS AND LOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES, 
IS BASED UPON SURVEY INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE OWNER. THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT TAKES NO RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR ITS ACCURACY.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES. CARE SHOULD BE TAKEN TO AVOID DAMAGE TO OR 
DISTURBANCE OF EXISTING UTILITIES.

9. WHERE POSSIBLE, RUN IRRIGATION AND ELECTRICAL CONDUIT UNDER DECKING OR PLANTING AREAS.

10. DRAINAGE FEATURES WITH PROPOSED ON-SITE RETENTION PER CIVIL.

LANDSCAPE GENERAL NOTES:

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

TY
P

8'-
0"

TY
P

6'-
0"2'-

6"

TYP

5'-6"

TYP

4'-0"

TYP

3'-6"

TYP

4'-0"

TYP

12'-0" 36'-0"

PV PV PAPAPA
TYP
2'-0"

TY
P

2'-
0"

TYP

4'-0"
PG PGPV

PV

PVPGPVPG

P

12OUSE
TY

PA

PA

PA

BD

12HO
RT

P

666

#7 - Sewer Supply (Hayman House)

#7 - Sewer Supply

#2 Public
Improvements on
Pioneer Pathway

#1 Public Improvements
on Ash Street

#4 Berm at
Hayman House

#8 Power Supply#6 Water Supply



Attachment 18 Schedule of Eligible Public Improvement Costs 



# ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE QUANTITY TOTAL COST

STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS ‐                    

1 Public Improvements on Ash Street LS 134,000.00  1 134,000           

2 Public Improvements on Pioneer Pathway LS 24,000.00     1 24,000             

3 Other ‐                    

‐                    

HAYMAN HOUSE IMPROVEMENTS ‐                    

4 Berm LS 35,000.00     1 35,000             

5 Other ‐                    

‐                    

UTILITIES  ‐                    

6 Water Supply  LS 29,000.00     1 29,000             

7 Sewer System LS 15,000.00     1 15,000             

8 Power Supply LS 54,000.00     1 54,000             

9 Other ‐                    

‐                    

‐                    

OTHER ‐                    

10 Contingency LS 27,000 1 27,000             

11 Other ‐                    

12 Other ‐                    

318,000

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

Project Name:

Attachment 18 ‐ Schedule of Eligible Public Improvement Costs

Plan Date:

Ash Street Townhomes 3/24/2017

TOTAL ELIGIBLE COSTS (Not to Exceed):

Important Note: 



 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution 1508: Approval of 11th & Myrtle – Pioneer Corner – 
Type Four Participation Agreement with BVGC Parcel B, LLC 

Date: 
September 11, 
2017 

Staff Contact: 
Matt Edmond 

Attachments: 
1) Resolution 1508 

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1508, approving the Type 4 Participation Agreement with BVGC 
Parcel B, LLC to construct Pioneer Corner improvements. 

 
Background: 
Through the Front and Myrtle Alternatives Analysis, CCDC staff and agency partners 
identified a number of near term improvements along the Front and Myrtle corridor that 
could be accomplished either as part of or concurrently with the ITD resurfacing project 
on Front, Myrtle, and Broadway scheduled to occur in the summer/fall of 2017. One of 
the near term improvements identified was an improved connection between the 
existing Pioneer Pathway and the intersection of 11th and Myrtle Streets. This 
improvement will include a widened pathway paver section, modified landscaping with 
two additional trees, two benches, and a waste receptacle. 
 
At the July 10 board meeting, the CCDC board approved a preliminary agreement of up 
to $100,000 with BVGC Parcel B LLC to construct the improvements. This agreement 
was before the developer’s contractor had a chance to review the plans and submit their 
own cost estimates based on their own determination of material and subcontractor 
quotes. The contractor has subsequently submitted a cost estimate of $110,906. 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
The project is estimated to include eligible costs of $110,906. The 2018 budget 
approved by the CCDC Board of Commissioners on August 29, 2017 included $125,000 
for this project. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1508, approving the Type 4 Participation Agreement with BVGC 
Parcel B, LLC to construct Pioneer Corner improvements. 
 
Suggested Motion:  
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1508, approving the Type 4 Participation Agreement 
with BVGC Parcel B, LLC to construct Pioneer Corner improvements. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1508 - 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 1508 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF 
THE CITY OF BOISE, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, 
IDAHO, APPROVING THE TYPE 4 PARTICIPATION 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND BVGC 
PARCEL B, LLC; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND ANY 
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS OR AGREEMENTS SUBJECT 
TO CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY 
TECHNICAL CORRECTIONS TO THE AGREEMENT; 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 1502; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban 
Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and 
politic, authorized under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as 
amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, 
as amended and supplemented, Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the 
“Act”), as a duly created and functioning urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”); and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after 
notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the River Street-Myrtle Street 
Urban Renewal Plan (the “River Street Plan”), and following said public hearing the City 
adopted its Ordinance No. 5596 on December 6, 1994, approving the River Street Plan 
and making certain findings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on 
the First Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban 
Renewal Project (annexation of the Old Boise Eastside Study Area and Several Minor 
Parcels) and Renamed River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “River 
Myrtle-Old Boise Plan”); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 
6362 on November 30, 2004, approving the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan and making 
certain findings; and, 
  

WHEREAS, the Agency staff is working in collaboration with representatives from 
the Ada County Highway District, the City of Boise, the Community Planning 
Association of Southwest Idaho, and the Idaho Transportation Department on the “Front 
and Myrtle Street Alternatives Analysis Project” (the Study); and, 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1508 - 2 

WHEREAS, the Study identified improvements to the Pioneer Pathway at the 
southwest corner of 11th and Myrtle Streets (the “Project”) as a Quick Win/near term 
improvement; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency has funds programmed in its 2018-2022 Capital 
Improvement Plan for 11th & Myrtle – Pioneer Corner Improvements as determined by 
the Study; and 

 
WHEREAS, BVGC Parcel B, LLC is currently developing a project called Pioneer 

Crossing on the property known as Parcel B in the vicinity of the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency has in place a Participation Program which includes 

Type-4 Assistance Program under which the Agency reimburses developers for 
construction of public improvements contained in the Agency’s Capital Improvement 
Program; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency approved a preliminary Type-4 Participation Program 

Agreement (“Preliminary Agreement”) with BVGC Parcel B LLC through Resolution 
1502 on July 10, 2017 under which BVGC Parcel B LLC would construct the Project 
and the Agency would reimburse BVGC Parcel B LLC up to $100,000; and, 

 
WHEREAS, BVGC Parcel B, LLC has determined the cost to construct the 

Project would exceed the $100,000 amount allowed in the Preliminary Agreement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Agency deems it appropriate to proceed with a revised Agreement 

(“Revised Agreement”) with the new schedule of values as determined by BVGC Parcel 
B LLC and execute it with BVGC Parcel B, LLC; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in the best public interest to rescind 

Resolution 1502 which approved the Preliminary Agreement and to authorize the 
Executive Director to execute the Revised Agreement for construction of the Project 
once negotiations are finalized by the parties. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1:  That the above statements are true and correct. 
 

Section 2:  That the Revised Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Attachment 1 in its draft form and incorporated herein by reference, be and the same is 
hereby approved. 

 
Section 3:  That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to 

sign and enter into the Revised Agreement to execute all necessary documents 
required to implement the actions contemplated by the Revised Agreement once 



RESOLUTION NO. 1508 - 3 

finalized with agreement language, plan set, and schedule of values, subject to 
representations by the Agency staff and Agency legal counsel that all conditions 
precedent to actions have been met; and further, any necessary technical changes to 
the Revised Agreement or other documents are acceptable upon advice from the 
Agency's legal counsel that said changes are consistent with the provisions of the 
Revised Agreement and the comments and discussions received at the September 11, 
2017, Agency Board meeting; and further, the Agency is authorized to appropriate any 
and all funds contemplated by the Revised Agreement and to perform any and all other 
duties required pursuant to said Revised Agreement. 

 
 Section 4: That Resolution No. 1502, approved July 10, 2017, is hereby 
rescinded. 
 

Section 5:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption and approval. 

 
PASSED By the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on September 11, 

2017. Signed by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners, and attested by the 
Secretary to the Board of Commissioners on September 11, 2017. 

 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY   

 
 
     By:         
           John Hale, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
      Ryan Woodings, Secretary 

 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

BY AND BETWEEN 
 

THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 

AND 
 

BVGC PARCEL B, LLC, AN IDAHO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 
 
 

PIONEER CORNER PROJECT 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 2 

TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT  
 

 THIS TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
(“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of 
Boise, also known as the Capital City Development Corporation, a public body, 
corporate and politic, of the State of Idaho (“CCDC”), and BVGC Parcel B, LLC, an 
Idaho limited liability company (“Developer”).  CCDC and Developer may be collectively 
referred to as the “Parties” and individually referred to as a “Party.” 

 
RECITALS 

 
 A. CCDC is an urban renewal agency created by and existing pursuant to the 
Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, being Idaho Code, Title 50, Chapter 20, and the 
Local Economic Project Act, being Idaho Code, Title 50, Chapter 29, as amended and 
supplemented (collectively the "Act").   
 
 B. BVGC Parcel B, LLC (the “Developer”) owns or controls certain real 
property, more commonly known as Parcel B, located at 1150 W. Myrtle Street, Boise, 
ID 83702. Parcel B is undergoing redevelopment as a project called Pioneer Crossing 
(the “Developer’s Project”), which is more accurately depicted on attached Exhibit A. 
 
 C. Based on early findings from the Front and Myrtle Alternatives Analysis, 
CCDC has developed plans to expand the Pioneer Pathway in a public easement at the 
southwest corner of 11th and Myrtle Streets (the “Pioneer Corner Project”), in the 
immediate vicinity of the Developer’s Project. The Pioneer Corner Project is more 
accurately depicted in Exhibit B, and the Developer agrees to construct these 
improvements as part of the Developer’s Project and in accordance with the plans 
provided by CCDC. 
 

D. The Developer’s Project and the Pioneer Corner Project are located in the 
River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal District (“RM District”), as created by the River 
Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Plan, as subsequently amended (the “Plan”).  The 
Pioneer Corner Project includes improvements to the public right-of-way or within a 
public easement that are consistent with the Pioneer Corridor Design Standards.  The 
Project will contribute to enhancing and revitalizing the RM District.    
 
 E. If Developer constructs the Pioneer Corner Project, CCDC deems it 
appropriate to reimburse Developer for certain eligible public improvements as detailed 
in this Agreement to achieve the objectives set forth in the Plan and in accordance with 
CCDC’s Participation Program and upon execution of this Agreement shall set aside 
sufficient funds to meet its obligations under this Agreement.   
  

AGREEMENTS 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, which are 
incorporated into this Agreement; the mutual covenants contained herein; and other 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 3 

good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:  
 
 1. Effective Date and Term.  The effective date (“Effective Date”) of this 
Agreement shall be the date when this Agreement has been signed by Developer and 
CCDC (last date signed) and the term of the Agreement shall continue until: (1) the 
completion of all obligations of each Party; or (2) December 31, 2017, whichever comes 
first.  Provided Developer is diligently constructing the Pioneer Corner Project, upon 
written request from Developer to CCDC, CCDC shall grant one extension for a period 
not to exceed six (6) months.   
 
 2. Construction of the Pioneer Corner Project.  As a condition to CCDC’s 
reimbursement under the terms of this Agreement, Developer shall construct the 
Pioneer Corner Project consistent with the following: 
 

a. The Pioneer Corner Project shall be constructed in accordance with 
the overall City of Boise (“City”) infrastructure plans, policies, and 
design standards and with the Pioneer Corner Plan and 
specifications included in Exhibit B. 
 

b. Developer shall obtain all permits and secure all agreements 
required by City, the Ada County Highway District (“ACHD”), and 
the Idaho Transportation Department (“ITD”) to construct the 
Pioneer Corner Project. 

 
c. Developer shall schedule final construction inspection and meeting 

with CCDC to ensure that the Pioneer Corner Project is constructed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
The Parties agree that the Pioneer Corner Project is depicted on Exhibit B, with 

cost details described on Exhibit C.  Any other public improvements that are 
constructed by Developer as part of the Developer’s Project are not eligible for 
reimbursement pursuant to this Agreement, but are eligible for reimbursement pursuant 
to a separate agreement between the Parties.  Nothing contained in this Agreement 
shall modify or amend any other agreement between the Parties.   

 
 3. Initial Construction Funding.  Developer shall pay for all of the costs of 
construction for the Pioneer Corner Project.  The reimbursement payment to Developer 
by CCDC shall be made pursuant to Section 7.  CCDC acknowledges that the schedule 
of values for the eligible streetscape and infrastructure costs (“Pioneer Corner Project 
Cost Details”) attached as Exhibit C is an estimate and that actual total costs, as well 
as each line item of cost for the Pioneer Corner Project, may be more or less than is 
shown on Exhibit C. 
 

4. Review of Construction Plans.  Upon CCDC’s request, CCDC shall 
have the right and the opportunity to review Developer’s construction plans, budgets, 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 4 

and bids for the eligible streetscape and infrastructure costs identified in Exhibit C 
(collectively the “Public Improvement Construction Documents”).  Developer will utilize 
commercially reasonable contracting, budgeting, and bidding practices to ensure that 
the Pioneer Corner Project is constructed consistent with the Public Improvement 
Construction Documents and are undertaken in a reasonable manner.  For purposes of 
this Section 4, Developer shall be presumed to have utilized commercially reasonable 
contracting, budgeting, and bidding practices if its general contractor solicits or solicited 
competitive bids for the Pioneer Corner Project and such work is not performed by an 
affiliate or subsidiary of Developer.   

 
5. Notification of Completion; Inspection.  Upon completion of 

construction, Developer shall notify CCDC in writing and request a final construction 
inspection and a meeting with CCDC evaluate whether Pioneer Corner Project adheres 
to the requirements of this Agreement.  Following a satisfactory inspection by CCDC, 
CCDC shall provide Developer with written confirmation that the Pioneer Corner Project 
has been completed in compliance with this Agreement.  If such inspection identifies 
issues that shall be required to be addressed, then CCDC shall provide Developer with 
written notice of such, and Developer shall have a reasonable period of time to work 
with its contractor to complete and correct such.   

  
6. Determining Actual Eligible Costs.  Developer is responsible for 

submitting invoices or receipts for work performed as part of the Pioneer Corner Project 
(the “Cost Documentation”) with any invoices delivered to CCDC.  The Cost 
Documentation shall include the following: 

 
a. An updated schedule of values that includes line items for the 

Pioneer Corner Project improvements approved by CCDC for 
reimbursement so they are identifiable separate from other line 
items (“Updated Schedule of Values”). 

 
b. Invoices from Developer’s general contractor, subcontractor(s), 

design professionals, and material suppliers for each type of 
eligible cost item (e.g. concrete, pavers, benches, historic street 
lights).  Invoices shall specify quantities and unit costs of installed 
materials, and a percentage estimate of how much installed 
material was used for the Pioneer Corner Project in comparison to 
the amount used for the remainder of the Developer’s Project 
(“Invoices”). 

 
c. Explanation of any significant deviation between the Pioneer 

Corner Project Cost Details in Exhibit C, any Updated Schedule of 
Values previously submitted, and the actual costs in the most 
recently submitted Cost Documentation. 

 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 5 

d. An affidavit by Developer that all materials have been paid for, all 
subcontractors have been paid, and that no liens exist on the work 
performed. 

 
CCDC shall have the right to review the Cost Documentation and to obtain 

independent verification that the quantities of work claimed, the unit costs and the total 
costs for eligible costs are commercially reasonable and consistent with the cost 
estimates provided by Developer to CCDC prior to construction.  In the event Developer 
fails to timely deliver the Cost Documentation, CCDC may elect to terminate its payment 
obligations under this Agreement only after providing Developer with written notice of 
such default and affording Developer a period of forty-five (45) days from such written 
notice to cure the default. If Developer fails to cure such a default, CCDC may terminate 
its payment obligations under this Agreement. 
 

Within fifteen (15) days of CCDC’s receipt of the Cost Documentation, CCDC will 
notify Developer in writing of CCDC’s acceptance or rejection of the Cost 
Documentation and CCDC’s determination of the “Actual Eligible Costs” to be 
reimbursed.  CCDC shall determine the Actual Eligible Costs following its review of the 
Cost Documentation, verification of the commercial reasonableness of the costs and 
expenses contained in such Cost Documentation, and comparison of the amounts in the 
Cost Documentation to the amounts in the Pioneer Corner Project Cost Details.  In no 
event will the Actual Eligible Costs exceed the amount set forth on the Pioneer 
Corner Project Cost Details. 

 
If Developer disagrees with CCDC’s calculation of the Actual Eligible Costs, 

Developer must respond to CCDC in writing within five (5) days explaining why 
Developer believes CCDC’s calculation was in error and providing any evidence to 
support any such contentions Developer wants CCDC to consider.  CCDC shall 
respond to Developer within three (3) days with a revised amount for the Actual Eligible 
Costs or notify Developer CCDC will not revise the initial amount calculated.  At that 
point, the determination of the Actual Eligible Costs will be final.   

 
CCDC’s determination of the Actual Eligible Costs is within its discretion, 

to be exercised in a commercially reasonable manner.  Provided, any dispute over 
the Actual Eligible Costs is subject to Section 22, herein. 

 
7. Conditions Precedent to CCDC’s Reimbursement Obligation.  CCDC 

agrees to reimburse Developer in the amount as determined in compliance with 
Paragraphs 5 and 6 as follows: 

 
a. City issues a Certificate of Occupancy or Temporary Certificate of 

Occupancy for the Project. 
 

b. CCDC provides written confirmation to the Developer that the Pioneer 
Corner Project has been constructed in compliance with this 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 6 

Agreement.  CCDC may require proof of completion at CCDCs sole 
discretion. 

 
Failure to comply with all Agreement provisions shall be a basis for termination of 

CCDC’s reimbursement obligation. 
 
8. Subordination of Reimbursement Obligations.  The Parties agree this 

Agreement does not provide Developer with a security interest in any CCDC revenues 
for the River Myrtle District or any other urban renewal plan area, including but not 
limited to revenue from any “Revenue Allocation Area” (as defined in Title 50, Chapter 
29 of the Idaho Code) or any revenue from CCDC’s parking garages.  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the obligation of CCDC to make the 
payments as specified in this Agreement shall be subordinate to all CCDC obligations 
that have committed or in the future commit available CCDC revenues, including but not 
limited to revenue from any Revenue Allocation Area or any revenue from CCDC’s 
parking garages, and may be subject to consent and approval by CCDC lenders; 
provided, however, that CCDC (a) shall not grant any other person or entity a security 
interest in CCDC’s tax increment revenues for the River Myrtle District, except as may 
be related to loans, issuance of credit, or the issuance of bonds related to the 
maintenance, operation, or purchase of parking facilities or any other urban renewal 
project; (b) except as permitted in the previous clause, shall not enter into any 
agreement committing the tax increment generated from or relating to the Pioneer 
Corner Project to any other person or entity; and (c) shall not, without prior notice to 
Developer, modify the Plan in such a way as would (i) adversely affect the 
implementation of the Plan, (ii) adversely affect the ability of CCDC to obtain revenue 
anticipated under the Plan, or (iii) result in the resetting of the base value of the 
properties that are subject to the Plan.  Upon reasonable request from the Developer, 
CCDC will provide updates on the availability of funds for the CCDC Reimbursement 
and the most recently adopted annual budget for the River Myrtle District. 

 
9.  Default.  Neither Party shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement 

except upon the expiration of forty-five (45) days (ten [10] days in the event of failure to 
pay money) from receipt of written notice from the other Party specifying the particulars 
in which such Party has failed to perform its obligations under this Agreement; unless 
such Party, prior to expiration of said 45-day period (ten [10] days in the event of failure 
to pay money), has rectified the particulars specified in said notice of default.  In the 
event of a default, the nondefaulting Party may do the following: 

 
a. The nondefaulting Party may terminate this Agreement upon written 

notice to the defaulting Party and recover from the defaulting Party 
all direct damages incurred by the nondefaulting Party. 

 
b. The nondefaulting Party may seek specific performance of those 

elements of this Agreement which can be specifically performed, in 
addition, recover all damages incurred by the nondefaulting Party.  
The Parties declare it to be their intent that elements of this 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 7 

Agreement requiring certain actions be taken for which there are 
not adequate legal remedies may be specifically enforced. 

 
c. The nondefaulting Party may perform or pay any obligation or 

encumbrance necessary to cure the default and offset the cost 
thereof from monies otherwise due the defaulting Party or recover 
said monies from the defaulting Party. 

 
d. The nondefaulting Party may pursue all other remedies available at 

law, it being the intent of the Parties that remedies be cumulative 
and liberally enforced so as to adequately and completely 
compensate the nondefaulting Party. 

 
e. In the event Developer defaults under this Agreement, CCDC (the 

nondefaulting Party) shall have the right to suspend or terminate its 
payment under this Agreement, as more specifically defined in this 
Agreement, for so long as the default continues and if not cured 
prior to the end of the term of the Agreement as set forth in Section 
1, CCDC’s obligation for payment may be deemed extinguished by 
CCDC.   

 
 10. Captions and Headings.  The captions and headings in this Agreement 
are for reference only and shall not be deemed to define or limit the scope or intent of 
any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or agreements contained herein. 
 
 11. No Joint Venture or Partnership.  CCDC and Developer agree that 
nothing contained in this Agreement or in any document executed in connection with 
this Agreement shall be construed as making CCDC and Developer a joint venture or 
partners. 
 
 12. Successors and Assignment.  This Agreement is not assignable except 
that the Developer may assign Developer’s rights or obligations under this Agreement to 
a third party only with the written approval of CCDC, which approval may be granted or 
denied in CCDC’s sole discretion.   
 
 13. Notices and Receipt.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall 
be in writing and shall be given by personal service, by United States mail, or by United 
States express mail or other established express delivery service (such as Federal 
Express), postage or delivery charge prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to 
the appropriate Party at the address set forth below: 
 
If to Developer: BVGC Parcel B, LLC 

Attn: J. Thomas Ahlquist 
101 S. Capitol Blvd., Suite 1700 
Boise, Idaho 83702 

 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 8 

If to CCDC:  John Brunelle, Executive Director 
Capital City Development Corporation 

   121 N. 9th Street, Suite 501 
   Boise, Idaho  83702 
       
 The person and address to which notices are to be given may be changed at any 
time by any Party upon written notice to the other Party.  All notices given pursuant to 
this Agreement shall be deemed given upon receipt.  For the purpose of this 
Agreement, the term “receipt” shall mean the earlier of any of the following: 
 

a. date of delivery of the notice or other document to the address 
specified above as shown on the return receipt; 
 

b. date of actual receipt of the notice or other document by the person 
or entity specified above; or 
 

c. in the case of refusal to accept delivery or inability to deliver the 
notice or other document, the earlier of: 
 
(i) date of the attempted delivery or refusal to accept delivery, 

 
(ii) date of the postmark on the return receipt, or 

 
(iii) date of receipt of notice of refusal or notice of non-delivery 

by the sending Party. 
 
 14. Applicable Law/Attorney Fees.  This Agreement shall be construed and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho.  Should any legal action be 
brought by either Party because of breach of this Agreement or to enforce any provision 
of this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees, 
court costs, and such other costs as may be found by the court. 
 
 15. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding 
and agreement of the Parties.  Exhibits to this Agreement are as follows: 
 

Exhibit A Developer’s Project Site Map 
Exhibit B Pioneer Corner Project Plan 
Exhibit C Pioneer Corner Project Cost Details 

    
 16. Indemnification.  Developer shall indemnify, defend, and hold CCDC and 
its respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against all liabilities, 
obligations, damages, penalties, claims, costs, charges, and expenses, including 
reasonable architect and attorney fees (collectively referred to in this section as 
“Claim”), which may be imposed upon or incurred by or asserted against CCDC or its 
respective officers, agents, and employees relating to the construction or design of the 
Pioneer Corner Project.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer shall have no 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 9 

obligation to indemnify and hold CCDC and its respective officers, agents, and 
employees harmless from and against any matter to the extent it arises from the active 
negligence or willful act of CCDC or its respective officers, agents, or employees.  In the 
event an action or proceeding is brought against CCDC or its respective officers, 
agents, and employees by reason of any such claim, Developer, upon written notice 
from CCDC, shall, at Developer’s expense, resist or defend such action or proceeding.  
Developer’s obligation under this Section 16 shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

17. Insurance Requirements.  Developer shall, or through its contractor, 
agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors, at its sole cost, obtain and 
maintain in force for the duration of the construction of the improvements to the Project 
Site as part of the Developer’s Project, insurance of the following types, with limits not 
less than those set forth below and in a form acceptable to CCDC, against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from, or in connection with, 
the performance of the services hereunder by Developer, its agents,  representatives, 
employees, or subcontractors:   

 
 a. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a minimum combined 

single limit liability of $1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury and property 
damage; with a minimum limit of liability of $1,000,000 each person for personal and 
advertising injury liability.  Such policy shall have a general aggregate limit of not less 
than $2,000,000, which general aggregate limit will be provided on a per project basis.  
The policy shall be endorsed to name CCDC and City as additional insureds.   

 
 b. Workers’ Compensation Insurance, including occupational illness or 

disease coverage, in accordance with the laws of the nation, state, territory, or province 
having jurisdiction over Developer’s employees, and Employer’s Liability Insurance.  
Developer shall not utilize occupational accident or health insurance policies, or the 
equivalent, in lieu of mandatory Workers’ Compensation Insurance or otherwise attempt 
to opt out of the statutory Workers’ Compensation system.   

 
c. Automobile Liability Insurance covering use of all owned, non-

owned, and hired automobiles with a minimum combined single limit of liability for bodily 
injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per occurrence.  This policy shall be 
endorsed to name CCDC, including its respective affiliates, directors, and employees, 
as additional insureds.   

 
 d. All insurance provided by Developer under this Agreement shall 

include a waiver of subrogation by the insurers in favor of CCDC.  Developer hereby 
releases CCDC, including its respective affiliates, directors, and employees, for losses 
or claims for bodily injury, property damage covered by Developer’s insurance or other 
insured claims arising out of Developer’s performance under this Agreement or 
construction of the Project.   

 
 e. Certificates of insurance satisfactory in form to CCDC (ACORD 



 
TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 10 

form or equivalent) shall be supplied to CCDC evidencing that the insurance required 
above is in force, that, to the extent commercially reasonable, not less than thirty (30) 
days’ written notice will be given to CCDC prior to any cancellation or restrictive 
modification of the policies, and that the waivers of subrogation are in force.  Developer 
shall also provide, with its certificate of insurance, executed copies of the additional 
insured endorsements and dedicated limits endorsements required in this Agreement.  
At CCDC’s request, Developer shall provide a certified copy of each insurance policy 
required under this Agreement.   

 
 f. The foregoing insurance coverage shall be primary and 

noncontributing with respect to any other insurance or self-insurance that may be 
maintained by CCDC.  The fact that Developer has obtained the insurance required in 
this Section shall in no manner lessen or affect Developer’s other obligations or 
liabilities set forth in this Agreement.   

 
18. Antidiscrimination During Construction.  Developer, for itself and its 

successors and assigns, agrees that in the rehabilitation and/or construction of 
improvements on the Project Site provided for in this Agreement, Developer will not 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, national origin or 
ancestry, age, or handicap. 
 
 19. Maintenance.  Developer acknowledges and agrees CCDC has no 
obligations to maintain the improvements constructed as part of the Pioneer Corner 
Project or any other maintenance obligations under this Agreement. 
 
 20. Promotion of Project.  Developer agrees CCDC may promote the 
Pioneer Corner Project and CCDC’s involvement with the Pioneer Corner Project.  Such 
promotion includes reasonable signage at the Project Site notifying the public of 
CCDC’s involvement with the Pioneer Corner Project. 
 
 21. Warranty.  Developer warrants that the materials and workmanship 
employed in the construction of the Pioneer Corner Project are of good quality and 
conform to generally accepted standards within the construction industry.  Such 
warranty shall extend for a period of two (2) years after completion of the Pioneer 
Corner Project, being the date CCDC acknowledged the completion of the Pioneer 
Corner Project.  Provided, nothing herein shall limit the time within which CCDC may 
bring an action against Developer on account of Developer’s failure to otherwise 
construct such improvements in accordance with this Agreement. 
 
 22. Dispute Resolution.  In the event that a dispute arises between CCDC 
and Developer regarding the application or interpretation of any provision of this 
Agreement, the aggrieved Party shall promptly notify the other Party to this Agreement 
of the dispute within ten (10) days after such dispute arises.  If the Parties shall have 
failed to resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days after delivery of such notice, the 
Parties agree to first endeavor to settle the dispute in an amicable manner by mediation 



TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 11 

or other process of structured negotiation under the auspices of a nationally or 
regionally recognized organization providing such services in the Northwestern States 
or otherwise, as the Parties may mutually agree before resorting to litigation.  Should 
the Parties be unable to resolve the dispute to their mutual satisfaction within thirty (30) 
days after such completion of mediation or other process of structured negotiation, each 
Party shall have the right to pursue any rights or remedies it may have at law or in 
equity. 

23. Entire Agreement, Waivers.  This Agreement, including Exhibits A
through C, inclusive, incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the entire 
understanding and agreement of the Parties.  This Agreement integrates all of the terms 
and conditions mentioned herein or incidental hereto and supersedes all negotiations or 
previous agreements between the Parties with respect to all or any part of the subject 
matter thereof.  All waivers of the provisions of this Agreement must be in writing and 
signed by the appropriate authorities of CCDC and Developer. 

24. Amendments to this Agreement.  CCDC and Developer agree to
mutually consider reasonable requests for amendments to this Agreement and any 
attachments hereto which may be made by any of the Parties hereto, lending 
institutions, bond counsel, financial consultants, or underwriters to CCDC, provided said 
requests are consistent with this Agreement and would not alter the basic business 
purposes included herein or therein.  Any such amendments shall be in writing and 
agreed to by the Parties. 

25. Severability.  If any provisions of this Agreement shall for any reason be
held to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other 
provisions of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if 
such illegal or invalid provisions had not been contained herein. 

26. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in
several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.   

27. Forced Delay; Extension of Times of Performance.  In addition to the
specific provisions of this Agreement, performance by any Party hereunder shall not be 
deemed to be in default where delays or defaults are due to war; insurrection; strikes; 
lock-outs; riots; floods; earthquakes; fires; casualties; acts of God; acts of the public 
enemy; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; freight embargoes; lack of transportation; 
lack of materials or labor at commercially reasonable prices or in commercially 
reasonable quantities; governmental restrictions or priority; litigation; unusually severe 
weather; acts of another party; environmental analysis, or removal of hazardous or toxic 
substances; acts or the failure to act of any public or governmental agency or entity 
(except that acts or the failure to act of CCDC shall not excuse performance by CCDC); 
or any other causes beyond the control or without the fault of the Party claiming an 
extension of time to perform.  An extension of time for any such cause shall only be for 
the period of the forced delay, which period shall commence to run from the time of the 



TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 12 

commencement of the cause, if notice is delivered by the Party claiming such extension 
no later than forty-five (45) days after the commencement of the cause.  If, however, 
notice by the Party claiming such extension is sent to the other Party more than forty-
five (45) days after the commencement of the cause, the period shall commence to run 
only forty-five (45) days prior to the giving of such notice.  Times of performance under 
this Agreement may also be extended in writing by CCDC and Developer. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed this Agreement the day 
and year below written. 

CCDC: CCDC: Urban Renewal Agency of the City of 
Boise, a public body, corporate and politic 

By   
John Brunelle, Executive Director 

Date:   

DEVELOPER: BVGC PARCEL B, LLC 
an Idaho limited liability company 
by its Operations Manager 

KC Gardner Company, L.C., a Utah limited 
liability company 

By: _______________________________ 
 Christian K. Gardner 
Its: Manager 

Date: ______________________________  



TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 13 

Exhibit A 

Developer’s Project Site 



ऑऑ
ฌ

ऑऑ
ฌ

ऑ
ऑฌ

ऑऑ
ฌ

⇡ ֭кฌ

⇡֭кฌ

⇡֭к

⇡ ֭кฌ

⇡⑾ ਙฌ ⇡ ⑾ਙ ⇡⑾ਙฌ ⇡ ⑾ਙฌ
⇡⑾ਙฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ
⇡⑾ਙฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡⑾ਙ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡ ⑾
ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡֭
кฌ

⇡
֭
кฌ

⇡
к֭

⇡
֭
кฌ

⇡
к֭ฌ

⇡ ֭
кฌ

⇡֭к⇡֭к⇡֭кฌ⇡к֭ฌ⇡֭кฌ⇡֭к⇡к֭⇡֭к⇡֭кฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡ ⑾
ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡⑾
ਙฌ

⇡⑾ਙฌ
⇡⑾ਙ

⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ ⇡⑾ਙฌ

⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙ
⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙ

⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡⑾ਙ⇡⑾ਙฌ

⇡⑾ਙฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡⑾ਙฌ
⇡⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡ ⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
7

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡
⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙฌ

⇡֭к7 ⇡֭к7 ⇡֭к7 ⇡ ֭к ⇡ ֭кฌ ⇡ ֭кฌ

⇡֭
кฌ

⇡ ⑾ਙ
ฌ

⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡ ⑾ਙ ⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡ ⑾ਙ ⇡⑾ਙฌ ⇡⑾ਙฌ ⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡ ⑾ਙฌ ⇡⑾ਙ7 ⇡⑾ਙฌ⇡֭к7 ⇡֭к7 ⇡ ֭к ⇡֭кฌ ⇡֭к7 ⇡֭к7

ฌففฌفف

ف
7

ف
7

ف
ف
7

ف
7

ف
7

ف
7

ف
7

ف
ฌ

ف
ฌ

ف
ف
ฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
⎯⎯

ฎƥ
ƥ7⎯
⎯

ฎ
ƥƥ7⎯
⎯

ฎ ƥ
ƥ7⎯
⎯

ฎƥ
ƥ7⎯
⎯ฌ

ฎ ƥ
ƥ7⎯
⎯
7

ฎ
ƥ ƥ 7
⎯
⎯
7

ฎ
ƥƥ 7
⎯
⎯
7

ฎ
ƥ ƥ7
⎯
⎯
ฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
⎯⎯

ฎ
ƥƥ7
⎯⎯

ฎ
ƥƥ7
⎯⎯

ฎƥ
ƥ7⎯
⎯ฌ

ں
ธ
ƥƥ7
⎯
₡
ฌ

ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦں
ƥƥ7⎯₡7 ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں

ㄦں
ƥƥ7⎯₡7 ںㄦƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7 ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں

ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7 ฎƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ฎƥƥ7⎯₡ฌںฎƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں

ธㅡ
ƥƥ7⎯₡

ธㅡ
ƥƥ7⎯₡

ฌ

ں
ㄦ
ƥƥ7
⎯
₡
ฌ

ธں ƥƥ7⎯₡

ธƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں

ㄦں ƥƥ7⎯₡7 ㄦں
ƥƥ7⎯₡7 ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7 ㄦں

ƥƥ7⎯₡7 ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں

ں
ธƥƥ7⎯

₡

ธں
ƥƥ7⎯₡

ฌ

ธں
ƥƥ7⎯₡ฌ

ں ธƥƥ7⎯₡ฌ

⎯₡

₡⎯ฎƥƥ7ں

₡⎯ฎƥƥ7ں

ฎƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں

ں
ธ
ƥƥ7
⎯
₡
ฌ

ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں

ں
ธ
ƥƥ7
⎯
₡
ฌ

ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7ں ں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡7 7ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں ㄦƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

ธں ƥƥ7⎯₡

ں ธƥƥ7⎯₡

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

ں ธƥƥ7⎯₡

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

ธƥƥ7⎯₡ฌں

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

₡⎯ธƥƥ7ں

ں
ㄦ
ƥƥ7
⎯
₡
ฌ

ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธں
ƥƥ7ʉ7 ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں

ธں
ƥƥ7ʉ7 ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ںธƥƥں ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7 ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں ธƥƥ7ʉ7ں

ʉ
ฌ

ʉฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ
ฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ
ฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
ʉ
ฌ

ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉฌ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉ ฎƥƥ7ʉ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉฌ ฎ ƥƥ7ʉฌ

ԱǲՁ7 ԱǲՁฌ ԱǲՁ ԱǲՁฌ

Ա
ǲ
Ձ
ฌ

╗7
b╗ฌ

ḚǲЌฌ

Ա
ǲ
Ձ
ฌ

Ա
ǲ Ձ
ฌ

Ա
ǲ
Ձ
ฌ

ں ｘƥƥ7ƆＣ7

ｘƥƥ7ƆＣฌں

Ɔ Ｃฌ

ƆＣฌ

ƆＣฌ

ฎƥƥ7ƆƆฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
Ɔ
Ɔ
ฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
Û

ฎƥƥ7Ûฌ ฎƥƥ7Û7 ฎƥƥ7Û7 ฎƥƥ7Û7 ฎƥƥ7Ûฌ

ฎ
ƥƥ7
Û
ฌ

ㅡ
ƥƥ7
Û
ฌ

″
ฌ ƥƥ7
Û
ฌ

●Ő
Ő
ฌ

ｘ7 ̶ｘ7 ″ｘฌںㄦ7

$Ⓢ╗ⓈŐǲ7

$Ⓢ╗ⓈŐǲฌ

ОAŐì●ЌḚ7ḚAŐAḚǲฌ
Ḷ$$●bǲ7

Őǲ╗A●Ձฌ

ҜùŐ╗Ձǲ7Ɔ╗Őǲǲ╗7

$ŐḶЌ╗7Ɔ╗Őǲǲ╗ฌ

ں
ں
γש
7Ɔ
╗
Ő
ǲ
ǲ
╗
ฌ

ں
̶
γש
7Ɔ
╗
Ő
ǲ
ǲ
╗
ฌ

ں
ธ
γש
7Ɔ
╗
Ő
ǲ
ǲ
╗

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐฌ

●Ќ$●Ձ╗ŐA╗●ḶЌ7╗ŐǲЌbĠ7

Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣฌ

ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣฌ

ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜ7

Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣฌ

ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣฌ

ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

ＣḶҜǲƆ╗●b7ÛA╗ǲŐ7bḶЌЌǲb╗●ḶЌฌ

ＣḶҜǲƆ╗●b7ÛA╗ǲŐ7bḶЌЌǲb╗●ḶЌฌ

ƆAЌ●╗AŐù7ƆǲÛǲŐ7bḶЌЌǲb╗●ḶЌฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ҜAЌĠḶՁǲฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ƆAЌ●╗AŐù7ƆǲÛǲŐ7ḚŐǲAƆǲ7╗ŐAОฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆAЌＣ7ִ7ḚŐǲAƆǲ7╗ŐAО7ӧ╗ùОỏฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ƆAЌ●╗AŐù7ƆǲÛǲŐฌ

bḶЌЌǲb╗●ḶЌ7╗Ḷ7ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7ҜAЌĠḶՁǲฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣฌ

╗ŐAƆĠ7ǲЌbՁḶƆⓈŐǲฌ

ธㅡƥฌ
$●Őǲฌ

AbbǲƆƆฌ

ธںƥ7$●Őǲ7AbbǲƆƆฌ

ธںƥฌ
$●Őǲฌ

AbbǲƆƆฌ

̶ｘƥฌ

$●Őǲ7AbbǲƆƆฌ

ḶЌƆ●╗ǲ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐฌ

bḶՁՁǲb╗●ḶЌ7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

ӧ╗Ḷ7●Ќ$●Ձ╗ŐA╗●ḶЌ7╗ŐǲЌbĠỏฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ḶЌƆ●╗ǲ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐฌ

bḶՁՁǲb╗●ḶЌ7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

ӧ╗Ḷ7●Ќ$●Ձ╗ŐA╗●ḶЌ7╗ŐǲЌbĠỏฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ḶЌƆ●╗ǲ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐฌ

bḶՁՁǲb╗●ḶЌ7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

ӧ╗Ḷ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣ7ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜỏ

$Ⓢ╗ⓈŐǲ7ḶЌƆ●╗ǲ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐฌ

bḶՁՁǲb╗●ḶЌ7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

ӧ╗Ḷ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣ7ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜỏฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ḶЌƆ●╗ǲ7Ɔ╗ḶŐҜÛA╗ǲŐฌ

bḶՁՁǲb╗●ḶЌ7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜฌ

ִ7ƆAЌＣ7ִ7ḚŐǲAƆǲ7╗ŐAОฌ

ӧ╗Ḷ7ƆⓈƆОǲЌＣǲＣ7ОAЋǲҜǲЌ╗7ƆùƆ╗ǲҜỏฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7●ŐŐ●ḚA╗●ḶЌ7Ҝǲ╗ǲŐฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7●ŐŐ●ḚA╗●ḶЌ7Ձ●Ќǲฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗7

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗7

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7●ŐŐ●ḚA╗●ḶЌ7Ҝǲ╗ǲŐ7

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ḚǲЌǲŐA╗ḶŐฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ＣḶҜǲƆ╗●b7ÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆǲŐЋ●bǲฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7$●Őǲ7ÛA╗ǲŐ7ƆǲŐЋ●bǲฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ƆAЌ●╗AŐù7ƆǲÛǲŐ7ƆǲŐЋ●bǲฌ

ӧִ7ḚŐǲAƆǲ7●Ќ╗ǲŐbǲО╗ḶŐỏฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣฌ

ǲՁǲb╗Ő●bAՁฌ

╗ŐAЌƆ$ḶŐҜǲŐฌОŐḶОḶƆǲＣ7ǲՁǲb╗Ő●bAՁ7Ҝǲ╗ǲŐฌ

ธｘｘｘ7ḚAՁՁḶЌฌ

ḚŐǲAƆǲ7●Ќ╗ǲŐbǲО╗ḶŐฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣฌ

╗ŐAƆĠ7ǲЌbՁḶƆⓈŐǲ7

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗7 ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗ฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗ฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗ฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗ฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7$●Őǲ7ĠùＣŐAЌ╗ฌ

″�������	
ӧ777 ������ฌ


	�������ں̬77777�����

ں
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

ӧ

77
7
�
�
	
��
�
�ฌ

″
�
�
�
�
�
��


̬

77
7
�
�
�
��
�
�ฌ

″	�������
ӧฌ

ธں㈠ｘฎƥฌ

″������	�
̬ฌ

ธں㈠̶ɱƥฌ

″�	������
̬ฌ

ㅡƥฌںㅡ㈠ں

Ձएธㄦㅡ㈠″ՙƥฌ
Őएںｘฎｘ㈠ｘｘƥฌ

ִ੧ں����	����
̬ฌ

bＣएธㄦㅡ㈠ｘฎƥฌ
ӕ�����	���
ฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7ŐḶÛ7

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7ŐḶÛฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7ŐḶÛฌ

ǲṲ●Ɔ╗●ЌḚ7ŐḶÛฌ

ɱƥฌ
ӧ╗ùОỏฌ

ธｘƥ7

ธㅡƥฌ

ธ̶ƥฌ

ธㅡ㈠ㄦƥฌ

ธㄦƥฌ

ОŐḶОḶƆǲＣฌ

ǲՁǲb╗Ő●bAՁฌ

╗ŐAЌƆ$ḶŐҜǲŐฌ

TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 14 



TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 15 

Exhibit B 

Pioneer Corner Project 



HORIZONTAL SCALE:  1" = 10'

Site & Landscape Plan 10' 20'0

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e:

Fi
le

 L
oc

at
io

n:
g:

\2
01

7\
11

70
46

\c
ad

\1
17

04
6 

zc
 l1

00
 s

ite
 &

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
pl

an
.d

w
g

La
st

 P
lo

tte
d 

By
:d

ar
ia

n 
w

es
tri

ck
Da

te
 P

lo
tte

d:
Tu

es
da

y,
 M

ay
 3

0 
20

17
 a

t 0
9:

46
 A

M

Re
vi

si
on

s

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
he

re
in

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

co
pi

ed
 o

r r
ep

ro
du

ce
d

w
ith

ou
t e

xp
re

ss
 w

rit
te

n 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 o
f T

he
 L

an
d 

Gr
ou

p,
 In

c.

Un
au

th
or

ize
d 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 o

r c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
us

e 
ar

e 
pr

oh
ib

ite
d 

by
 c

op
yr

ig
ht

 la
w

.

Date of Issuance:

Project No.:

Designed by:

Checked by:

Sheet No.:

Sh
ee

t T
itl

e:

PRELIMINARY

L1.00
DW

MD/MRT

05.30.17

117046

Zo
ni

ng
 C

er
tif

ic
at

e
Si

te
 &

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 P

la
n

Pi
on

ee
r 

Pa
th

w
ay

 A
dd

iti
on

11
th

 A
nd

 M
yr

tle

Bo
is

e
Id

ah
o

Vicinity Map:

TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 11TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MYRTLE ST. / U.S. HWY 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE LAND GROUP

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCORPORATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
462 East Shore Drive, Suite 100 Eagle, Idaho 83616 Ph. 208.939.4041  Fax.208.939.4445 www.thelandgroupinc.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16796



TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 17 

Exhibit C 

Pioneer Corner Project Cost Details 



POTENTIAL CHANGE ORDER #030

PROJECT: CONTRACTOR

PROJECT NO. 1672

PRINTED 8/30/2017

PCO DESCRIPTION:

SOURCE:

PCO NOTES:

OKLAND CONCRETE SELF-PERFORMED ITEMIZED DETAILS:

CE # DESCRIPTION OF SCOPE PERFORMED BY OKLAND CONCRETE CODE CAT AMOUNT

102.04 OCC General Requirements Several $2,375.00

See Summary Below

Okland Concrete Subtotal $2,375.00

Okland Concrete Self-Performed Markup 5.00% $119.00

Okland Concrete Self-Performed Total $2,494.00

SUBCONTRACTOR ITEMIZED DETAILS:

CE # SUBCONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION OF SCOPE CODE CAT AMOUNT

102.01 Alta Construction 10-0250 S $11,148.50

102.02 Franz Witte 10-0295 S $89,975.00

102.03 Power Plus 10-1600 S $1,208.00

General Requirements Above: CODE AMT

Temp Protection 02-0287 $550.00 

Dumpster (1 pull) 01-5200 $650.00 

Temp Toilet 01-2100 $150.00 

Traffic Control 02-0282 $375.00 

Final Clean 01-5100 $250.00 

SWPPP 02-0250 $400.00 

This PCO will increase the Contract by $110,906.

Subcontractor Subtotal $102,331.50

Potential Change Order Subtotal $104,825.50

General Liability Insurance 0.72% $799.00

Contractor Fee 5.00% $5,281.00

Potential Change Order Total $110,905.50

This PCO shall extend the Contract Time Period by the following number of calendar days: 0

OWNER APPROVAL: ARCHITECT APPROVAL: CONTRACTOR APPROVAL:

BVGC Parcel B, LLC The Land Group, Inc. Okland Construction Company, Inc.

Pioneer Pathway Addition (Demo and Concrete)

Pioneer Pathway Addition (Landscape and Pavers)

Pioneer Pathway Addition (Electrical)

PIONEER CROSSING PARKING GARAGE

1101 W FRONT STREET

BOISE, ID  87302

Pioneer Pathway Addition (Demo and Concrete)

By:_________________________________

Date:_______________________________

By:_________________________________

Date:_______________________________

By:_________________________________

Date:_______________________________ 8-30-17

TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 18 



TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 19 



TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 20 



Estimate 

DATE: July 28, 2017 

TO: Okland Construction 

PROJECT: Pioneer Pathway Addition – 11th & Myrtle 

Provide labor, materials, and equipment to complete the following items of 
work, per plans and specs:  

• Pavers
o Base Course & Bedding Sand – Sub-base received at +/-.10”
o Bio Root Barrier

• Irrigation System
• Repair & Retrofit of Existing Irrigation

• Plant Material
• Finish Grade Site Received at +/-.10”
• Amendments
• Bark Mulch
• Benches

• Trash Receptacle
• Resetting of Existing Bollards
• Taxes, Insurance, Closeout Documents

Total $89,975.00 

Not Included: 
Demo or Excavation of Existing Landscape or Hardscapes 
Sub-base prep work for pavers 

Boring, cutting or patching asphalt or concrete 

Traffic Control or Temporary Job Site Fencing 
Concrete Containment Curbing 

This estimate is valid for 30 days. 

Submitted By: 

Andrew M. Gates 
Andrew M. Gates 
FWLC Project Manager/Estimator 

TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 21 



Progress Payments and Billings 
Franz Witte Landscape Contracting, Inc. (FWLC, Inc.) will submit progress billings on 
the 25th of each month, projected through the end of the month, including completed 
work and materials stored on site.  Payment will be due by the 10th of the following 
month.  Interest shall accrue at a rate of 1.5% per month on all payments not 
received within 15 days of the due date. 

Upon payment of invoice, FWLC, Inc. waives all lien rights and will provide Owner 
with a written lien release upon request. 

Insurance 
FWLC, Inc. will carry insurance during the term of his Agreement in the following 
amounts: 

Commercial General Liability: 
General Aggregate:  $2,000,000 
Bodily Injury & Property Damage: $1,000,000 per occurrence 
Personal & Advertising Injury: $1,000,000 per occurrence 

Auto Liability: 
Combined Single Limit: $1,000,000 per accident or occurrence 

Umbrella Policy: $2,000,000 per occurrence 

Workers Compensation: Statutory Limits 
Employers Liability:  $500,000 each accident per employee 

Warranty 
Warranty of all work, equipment and materials shall be for one year from date of 
installation.  FWLC, Inc. is not responsible for losses beyond our control such as 
neglect, lack of maintenance, vandalism, and/or acts of God.  Warranty is void if 
invoice payment(s) are not received by FWLC as outlined in contract.  

This estimate and terms, if accepted, will become a part of any contract arising from 
acceptance of same. 

Sales Tax 

All charges will include sales tax if applicable 

TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 22 



TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 23

ben.petzinger
Callout
Power Plus Electric



TYPE 4 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT - 24 

Jeff.Hinckley
Highlight

Jeff.Hinckley
Highlight

Jeff.Hinckley
Rectangle

Jeff.Hinckley
Text Box
J-Box placed beneath the pavers



 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA BILL 

Agenda Subject: 
Resolution 1507: Approval of Master License Agreement 
between CCDC, City of Boise, and ACHD for Installation and 
Maintenance of Wayfinding Signage 

Date: 
September 11, 
2017 

Staff Contact: 
Matt Edmond 

Attachments: 
1) Resolution 1507 

Action Requested: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1507, approving the Master License Agreement between 
CCDC, City of Boise, and ACHD for Installation and Maintenance of Wayfinding 
Signage 

 
Background: 
The downtown wayfinding system is an economic development focused infrastructure 
project to help drive business and development downtown. Sea Reach, the CCDC 
consultant for the downtown wayfinding effort, has completed the wayfinding design 
package and fabrication of a prototype vehicular sign. Before CCDC can install the 
prototype or any other wayfinding signs within ACHD right-of-way, CCDC and the City 
of Boise need to execute a master license agreement with ACHD for installation and 
maintenance of wayfinding signage within the right-of-way. 
 
Fiscal Notes: 
CCDC has $1,093,400 budgeted for installation of the wayfinding program within the 
four urban renewal districts in FY2018. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Adopt Resolution No. 1507, approving the Master License Agreement between CCDC, 
City of Boise, and ACHD for installation and maintenance of wayfinding signage. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to adopt Resolution No. 1507, approving the Master License Agreement 
between CCDC, City of Boise, and ACHD for installation and maintenance of 
wayfinding signage. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 1507 - 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 1507 
 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY 
OF BOISE, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, 
APPROVING THE MASTER LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR 
INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF WAYFINDING 
SIGNAGE BETWEEN THE AGENCY, THE CITY OF BOISE, AND 
THE ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND 
TO MAKE ANY NECESSARY TECHNICAL CHANGES TO THE 
AGREEMENT SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized 
under the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, 
Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, 
Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning 
urban renewal agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”); and,  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly 
published, conducted a public hearing on the 1987 Amended and Restated Urban Renewal 
Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “Boise 
Central District Urban Renewal Plan”) and, following said public hearing, the City adopted its 
Ordinance No. 5026 on August 19, 1987, approving the Boise Central District Urban Renewal 
Plan and making certain findings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 1994 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, 
and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “1994 Amended Urban Renewal Plan”) and, following said public 
hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 5597 on December 6, 1994, approving the 1994 
Amended Urban Renewal Plan and making certain findings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 2007 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the Boise Central District Project I, Idaho R-4, 
and Project II, Idaho R-5 (the “Central District Plan”) and, following said public hearing, the City 
adopted its Ordinance No. 6576 on June 26, 2007, effective upon publication on July 23, 2007, 
approving the Central District Plan; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the River 
Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Plan (the “River Street Plan”), and following said public 
hearing the City adopted its Ordinance No. 5596 on December 6, 1994, approving the River 
Street Plan and making certain findings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First 
Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, River Street-Myrtle Street Urban Renewal Project 
(annexation of the Old Boise Eastside Study Area and Several Minor Parcels) and Renamed 
River Myrtle-Old Boise Urban Renewal Project (the “River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan”); and, 



RESOLUTION NO. 1507 - 2 

 
 WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6362 on 
November 30, 2004, approving the River Myrtle-Old Boise Plan and making certain findings; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 
Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Plan (the “Westside Plan”), and following said public 
hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6108 on December 4, 2001, approving the 
Westside Plan and making certain findings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the 30th 
Street Area Urban Renewal Plan (the “30th Street Plan”), and following said public hearing, the 
City adopted its Ordinance No. 6868 on December 4, 2012, approving the 30th Street Plan and 
making certain findings; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, the River Myrtle-Old 
Boise Plan, the Westside Plan, and the 30th Street Plan are collectively referred to as the 
“Downtown Urban Renewal Plans”; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency and the City desire to install wayfinding signage along public 

rights-of-way in and around downtown Boise; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Ada County Highway District, a body politic and corporate of the State 

of Idaho (“ACHD”), has, with some limited exceptions, jurisdiction over the right-of-way in and 
around the greater downtown Boise area; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency, the City, and ACHD have negotiated an agreement (the Master 
License Agreement for Installation and Maintenance of Wayfinding Signage, attached hereto as 
Exhibit A and referred to herein as the “Agreement”) whereby ACHD will grant to CCDC a 
limited, non-exclusive license to install and maintain wayfinding signage for the purpose of 
directing visitors to popular destinations in and around downtown Boise, and to set forth the 
purposes, powers, rights, objectives, and responsibilities of each party; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in the best interests of the Agency and public to 

approve the Agreement, and authorize the Executive Director to execute and the Secretary Pro-
tern to attest the Agreement. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1:  That the above statements are true and correct. 
 

Section 2:  That the Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein as if set out in full, is hereby approved and adopted. 

 
Section 3:  That the Executive Director of the Agency is hereby authorized to sign 

and enter into the Agreement and, further, is hereby authorized to execute all necessary 
documents required to implement the actions contemplated by the Agreement, subject to 
representations by Agency legal counsel that there is no default under the Agreement and that 
all conditions precedent to actions and any necessary technical changes to the Agreement or 



RESOLUTION NO. 1507 - 3 

other documents are acceptable and consistent with the provisions of the Agreement and the 
comments and discussions received at the September 11, 2017 Agency Board meeting. 

 
Section 4:  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

adoption and approval. 
 
PASSED By the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on September 11, 2017. 

Signed by the Chair of the Board of Commissioners, and attested by the Secretary to the Board 
of Commissioners on September 11, 2017. 

 
 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY   

 
 
     By:         

John Hale, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:        
       Ryan Woodings, Secretary 

 



MASTER LICENSE AGREEMENT 
FOR INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE  

OF WAYFINDING SIGNAGE 
 

THIS MASTER LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR INSTALLATION AND 
MAINTENANCE OF WAYFINDING SIGNAGE (“Agreement”) is entered into this 
_____ day of ___________________, 2017 (“Effective Date”), by and between the 
ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT, a body politic and corporate of the State of 
Idaho (“ACHD”) and the CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, an 
independent public body, corporate and politic, exercising governmental functions and 
powers, organized and existing under the Idaho Urban Renewal Law, Chapter 20, Title 
50, Idaho Code (“CCDC”), and the CITY OF BOISE, a municipal corporation of the 
State of Idaho (“BOISE”). 

RECITALS 

A. ACHD is a single county-wide highway district organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of Idaho, with the jurisdiction over public rights-of-way in 
Ada County. 

B. CCDC is an urban renewal agency, a public entity, organized and existing 
pursuant to Idaho Code Title 50, as amended and supplemented, with the power to 
undertake and carry out urban renewal projects and related activities within its urban 
renewal districts. 

C.  BOISE is a municipal corporation with the police power to regulate and 
control encroachments and activities upon sidewalks within its boundaries. 

D. ACHD and Valley Regional Transit (“VRT”) entered into a Cooperative 
Governmental Agreement, dated July 1, 2007, granting a limited, non-exclusive license 
within certain public rights-of-way to construct, install, maintain, repair and control 
transit structures, benches, signage and other related structures and improvements 
(“VRT Agreement”).  

E. ACHD and CCDC entered into a Master License Agreement for 
Installation and Maintenance of Interlocking Pavers within Sidewalks in the Greater 
Downtown Area, dated June 21, 2013, granting a limited, non-exclusive license within 
certain public rights-of-way to install and control the size, placement, operation and 
maintenance of interlocking pavers on sidewalks (“CCDC Agreement”). 

F. ACHD and BOISE entered into (i) a Master License Agreement for 
Installation and Maintenance of Cultural Assets Located in the City of Boise City, dated 
October 15, 2014, granting a limited, non-exclusive license within certain public rights-
of-way to install, maintain, repair, remove and replace physical assets relating to the 
culture or history of the City of Boise; and (ii) a Master License Agreement for 
Regulation and Control of Sidewalk and Parking Facilities in the Greater Downtown 
Area, dated February 25, 2015, granting a limited, non-exclusive license within certain 



public rights-of-way to (a) regulate and control the size, placement, operation and 
maintenance of all newsstands, ATM’s, signs, planters, benches, fountains, fences, 
streetlights, sidewalk cafes, outdoor eateries and similar commercial and public 
structures, objects and uses on the sidewalks; (b) regulate and control the size, placement, 
area, operation and maintenance of any and all valet parking operations; (c) install, 
maintain and remove parking meters and facilities; and (d) maintain the necessary and/or 
desired landscaping and streetscaping upon sidewalks (collectively, 
“Boise Agreements”). 

G. The parties desire by this Agreement that ACHD will grant to CCDC and 
BOISE a limited, non-exclusive license to install and control the size, placement, 
operation and maintenance of wayfinding signage within ACHD’s public rights-of-way, 
and to set forth the purposes, powers, rights, objectives, and responsibilities of each party. 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, which are made a 
part of this Agreement and not mere recitals, and for good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, it is mutually 
agreed as follows: 
 
1. License Grant.  ACHD hereby grants a license to CCDC and BOISE to install 
and control the size, placement, operation, and maintenance of no more than one hundred 
ninety-one (191) wayfinding signs, medallions, maps, kiosks and/or directionals 
(collectively, “Signs”) within or upon ACHD’s public rights-of-way, of which no greater 
than eighty-four (84) shall be motorist-oriented. 
 

CCDC and BOISE shall have no right, title, or interest in or to the public rights-
of-way other than the right to use the same pursuant to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and pursuant to the authority granted in the Idaho Code.  This Agreement 
does not extend to CCDC or BOISE the right to use the public rights-of-way to the 
exclusion of ACHD for any use within its jurisdiction, authority, and discretion or of 
others to the extent authorized by law to use the public rights-of-way.  If the public right-
of-way has been opened as a public Highway (as used herein, the term “Highway” is as 
defined in Idaho Code § 40-109(5)), CCDC’s and BOISE’s authorized use is subject to 
the rights of the public to use the right-of-way for Highway purposes.  CCDC’s and 
BOISE’s authorized use is also subject to the rights of holders of easements of record or 
obvious physical limitations upon inspection of the public right-of-way, and to the 
statutory rights of utilities to use the public right-of-way.  This Agreement is subject to 
and shall not supersede or conflict with licenses or rights granted under the VRT 
Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit B, the CCDC Agreement, attached hereto as 
Exhibit C, or the Boise Agreements, attached hereto as Exhibit D. This Agreement is not 
intended to, and shall not preclude or impede (i) the ability of ACHD to enter into other 
similar agreements in the future allowing other third parties to also use the public right-
of-way, provided that written notice is provided to CCDC and BOISE and that such use 
does not unreasonably interfere with CCDC’s and BOISE’s rights set forth in this 
Agreement and contained in Idaho Code, or (ii) the ability of ACHD to redesign, 



reconstruct, relocate, maintain and improve the public right-of-way and Highways as 
authorized by and in accordance with state law.  Where ACHD’s retained rights, as stated 
herein, affect CCDC’s and/or BOISE’s authorized placement of Signs within the public 
right-of-way, ACHD and CCDC and/or BOISE will work in good faith to resolve any 
conflicts. 

 
a. CCDC and BOISE agree to freely and promptly exchange information 
reasonably necessary to comply with the terms of this Agreement. 
b. CCDC and BOISE shall consult with representatives of ACHD to 
determine any traffic operations or motorist and pedestrian safety issues 
associated with the installation or maintenance of any Signs.   
c. Under no circumstances may Signs interfere with or obstruct ACHD 
traffic operations, motorist or pedestrian safety, street improvement activities, 
construction activities, cleaning efforts, or other similar activities. 
d. All Signs shall be designed, constructed, and maintained in accordance 
with generally accepted engineering practices and the prevailing standard of care 
in the industry. 

 
For all inquiries and correspondence related to the license herein granted, the 

point of contact shall be ACHD’s Traffic Design Engineer or such other individual as 
may be designated by ACHD from time to time. 
 
2. Compliance with Laws; No Waste or Nuisance.  CCDC and BOISE, in the 
performance of their rights and responsibilities under this Agreement, shall (i) comply 
with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, 
including ACHD policies and ordinances and the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(“ADA”), as amended from time to time (collectively, “Laws”); and (ii) commit no waste 
or allow any nuisance on ACHD’s public rights-of-way. 
 
3. Maintenance and Repair.  CCDC and/or BOISE shall be responsible for and 
shall control the size, placement, removal, operation, maintenance, and repair of all Signs 
which it causes to be placed in ACHD’s public rights-of-way, except to the extent any 
repairs are necessitated by damage caused by ACHD, its agents, contractors, or 
employees, which repairs shall be the responsibility of ACHD.  CCDC and/or BOISE 
shall keep or require the operation, maintenance, and repair of the Signs in good repair 
and in compliance with all Laws.  If, in ACHD’s discretion, CCDC and/or BOISE fails to 
comply with the foregoing maintenance obligations, such that certain Signs pose a danger 
to the public, the same may be removed or repaired by ACHD at any time and may be 
replaced with concrete or other hardscape, without notice to CCDC or BOISE and 
without liability for any damage to the Signs when so removed or repaired.  CCDC 
and/or BOISE shall reimburse ACHD for all actual costs associated with the removal or 
repair of such Signs and the installation of any hardscape replacement.  Removal or 
repair of Signs not posing a safety hazard shall require reasonable notice to CCDC and 
BOISE prior to action to repair or remove on behalf of ACHD.     
 



Without limiting any obligation to comply with the foregoing and to reimburse ACHD 
for certain costs associated with the removal or repair of such Signs, nothing contained 
herein shall be construed to substitute CCDC or BOISE in the place of ACHD or 
property owners for the construction, replacement, or reconstruction of rights-of-way as 
may be provided in the Laws.  The intent of this Agreement is to provide a license 
authorizing installation of Signs and control of the size, placement, removal, operation, 
and maintenance of Signs as noted herein upon ACHD’s public rights-of-way.  Nothing 
herein shall conflict with the licensed uses set forth in the VRT Agreement, the CCDC 
Agreement and the Boise Agreements, and CCDC and BOISE must coordinate any work 
in the public rights-of-way with those entities.   
 
4. Indemnification.  CCDC will defend, indemnify and hold harmless ACHD and, 
as applicable, ACHD’s directors, commissioners, managers, employees, contractors, 
agents and representatives (collectively, “Related Parties”) from and against any and all 
claims or actions for loss, injury, death, costs, damages, mechanics and other liens, 
liabilities, losses, costs or damages (collectively, “Losses”), including attorneys’ fees, 
incurred by ACHD or its Related Parties resulting from (i) the failure or neglect of 
CCDC, its agents, contractors, employees and sublicensees (collectively or individually, 
“CCDC Party”) to properly maintain and/or regulate the Signs; (ii) damage to any public 
right-of-way caused by a CCDC Party; and (iii) a CCDC Party’s non-compliance with 
any Laws. 
 

BOISE will defend, indemnify and hold harmless ACHD and its Related Parties 
from and against any and all claims or actions for Losses, including attorneys’ fees, 
incurred by ACHD or its Related Parties resulting from (i) the failure or neglect of 
BOISE, its agents, contractors, employees and sublicensees (collectively or individually, 
“BOISE Party”) to properly maintain and/or regulate the Signs; (ii) damage to any 
public right-of-way caused by a BOISE Party; and (iii) a BOISE Party’s non-compliance 
with any Laws. 
 
5. Liability Insurance; Self-Insurance.  At all times during the term of this 
Agreement, CCDC shall carry general liability insurance in a sum equal to Five Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) against all liability of CCDC arising out of and in 
connection with its use or occupancy of the Right-of-Way hereunder.  CCDC agrees to 
provide notice to ACHD of such coverage(s), with ACHD as an additional insured, on an 
annual basis.   
 

At all times during the term of this Agreement, BOISE, as a self-insured public 
entity, shall have ready access to a minimum of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($500,000.00) against all liability of BOISE arising out of and in connection with its use 
or occupancy of the Right-of-Way hereunder.   
 
6. Future Changes.  CCDC and/or BOISE may submit the location of any proposed 
Sign to ACHD and request comment regarding the potential impact, if any, of ACHD’s 
programmed projects upon such location.  ACHD agrees to use its best efforts to provide 
CCDC and/or BOISE with a good faith assessment of the location for the proposed Sign; 



provided, however, that ACHD’s assessment shall in no way operate as a guarantee or 
warranty.  If ACHD determines that a Highway on and/or adjacent to a public right-of-
way requires widening, realignment, redesign, improvement, or reconstruction as would 
necessitate the relocation, modification, or other adaptation of any Signs, CCDC and/or 
BOISE, at its sole cost and expense, shall be responsible for relocating, modifying, or 
otherwise adapting the affected Signs to such widening, realignment, relocation, or 
reconstruction as required by ACHD and in compliance with Laws.  ACHD shall give 
CCDC and BOISE at least ninety (90) days’ prior written notice of the need for any such 
relocation, modification or adaptation.  In response to such notice, CCDC and/or BOISE 
may also elect to remove affected Signs in lieu of any such relocation, modification, or 
adaptation. 
 
7. Licensing Fee.  Throughout the term of this Agreement, neither CCDC nor 
BOISE shall be obligated to pay ACHD a fee for the authorization to use the public right-
of-way as set forth herein.   
 
8. Term of Agreement.  The initial term of this Agreement commences on the 
Effective Date and shall continue in effect for a period of five years (“Initial Term”).  
The Initial Term automatically will be extended for successive one-year periods (each a 
“Renewal Term”) unless either party notifies the other at least thirty (30) days before the 
expiration of the Initial Term or any Renewal Term, as the case may be, that it does not 
wish to extend the Agreement.  The Initial Term and any Renewal Terms are collectively 
referred to as the “Term.”  Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be 
terminated  by any party upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to the other parties. or (ii) 
by ACHD upon five (5) days’ written notice to CCDC and BOISE if, in ACHD’s 
discretion, CCDC and/or BOISE has failed to allocate sufficient resources and/or funds to 
ensure the Signs are properly maintained or to timely repair Signs representing a hazard 
to motorist or pedestrian safety. Other than a default by another party, as defined in 
Section 10, ACHD shall not terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of a Term 
unless said termination (i) is required for ACHD’s roadway operations or necessitated by 
future planned roadway projects; and (ii) cannot be avoided by relocating, modifying, or 
adapting Signs as provided in Section 6. 
 

 
Upon termination of this Agreement, ACHD may elect to remove any and all 

Signs and to replace the same with concrete or other hardscape at the sole cost and 
expense of CCDC and/or BOISE. 
 
9. Waiver and Estoppel.  CCDC and BOISE acknowledge and agree that the 
authorized use granted herein is temporary, non-transferable (subject to Section 13.3), 
and merely a permissive use of the public right-of-way pursuant to this Agreement.  
CCDC and BOISE further acknowledge and agree that they specifically assume the risk 
that the right that is granted pursuant to this Agreement may be terminated as provided 
herein before CCDC and/or BOISE has realized the economic benefit of the cost of 
installing, constructing, repairing, or maintaining the Signs, and CCDC and BOISE 
hereby waive and are estopped from asserting any claim that this Agreement is in any 



way irrevocable because CCDC and/or BOISE has expended funds on the Signs and this 
Agreement has not been in effect for a period sufficient for CCDC and/or BOISE to 
realize the economic benefit from such expenditures.  Any and all costs and expenses 
associated with CCDC’s or BOISE’s use of the public right-of-way, or the repair, 
maintenance and removal of the Signs, shall be at the sole cost and expense of CCDC or 
BOISE. 
 
10. Default.  No party shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement except upon 
the expiration of thirty (30) days from receipt of written notice from another party 
specifying the particulars in which the allegedly defaulting party has failed to perform its 
obligations (or breached any of its representations or warranties) under this Agreement 
unless the allegedly defaulting party, prior to expiration of said thirty (30) day period has 
rectified the particulars specified in said notice of default; provided, however, that if the 
nature of the alleged default is such that it cannot reasonably be cured within such thirty 
(30) days period, the commencement of the cure within such time period and the diligent 
prosecution to completion of the cure shall be deemed a cure within such period. 
 
11. Force Majeure.  Performance by any party hereunder shall not be deemed to be 
in default where delays or defaults are due to war, insurrection, strikes, lockouts, 
walkouts, riots, flood, earthquakes, fire or other casualty, the elements or acts of God or 
other causes, other than financial, beyond a party’s reasonable control. 
 
12. Third Party Construction.  If, as a result of any construction, improvement, 
repair, or maintenance by or caused by a third party (such as, by way of example and not 
limitation, third party new construction or third party relocation of sewer or utility lines), 
it is determined by ACHD that relocation, modification or other adaptation of any of the 
Signs will be required, ACHD shall require that the third party, at such third party’s sole 
cost and expense, be responsible for such relocation, modification or other adaptation, as 
ACHD deems to be appropriate under the circumstances. 

 
13. Miscellaneous 
 

13.1 Authority.  The parties hereby warrant that the person executing this 
Agreement on behalf of each party is, at the time of its execution, duly authorized to do 
so by its governing body and is fully vested with the authority to bind that party in all 
respects. 
 

13.2 Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, the remainder shall be construed to conform to the intent of the parties, 
and shall survive the severed provisions. 
 

13.3 Assignment.  A party shall be entitled to assign this Agreement to an 
entity which is either statutorily authorized to be its successor or is an entity controlled by 
the assigning party, provided that such assignee assumes all the obligations, warranties, 
covenants, and agreements of the assigning party herein contained.  Otherwise, no party 
shall be entitled to sell, assign, or otherwise transfer this Agreement or any of its rights 



hereunder without the prior written consent of the other parties, which consent will not be 
granted unless such assignee or transferee assumes all the obligations, warranties, 
covenants, and agreements of the assigning party herein contained. 
 

13.4 Further Assurances.  Each party shall cooperate fully with the others and 
execute such further instruments, documents, and agreements and give such further 
written assurances as may be reasonably requested by the others to better evidence and 
reflect the transactions described herein and contemplated hereby, and to carry into effect 
the intents and purposes of this Agreement. 

 
13.5 Captions and Headings.  The captions and headings in this Agreement are 

solely for reference purposes and shall not affect the interpretation of any provision of 
this Agreement. 

13.6 Third Parties.  This Agreement is not intended to create, nor shall it in any 
way be interpreted or construed to create, any third party beneficiary rights in any person 
not a party hereto. 

13.7 Successors and Assigns.  The terms and conditions hereof shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the respective parties, their administrators, executors, 
successors, and assigns. 

13.8 Attorney Fees.  Should any party find it necessary to employ an attorney 
for representation in any action seeking enforcement of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement, to recover damages for the breach of this Agreement, to resolve any 
disagreement in interpretation of this Agreement, or to obtain assistance in any litigation, 
the unsuccessful party in any final judgment or award entered therein by a court of 
competent jurisdiction shall reimburse the prevailing party for all reasonable costs, 
charges, and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, expended or incurred by the prevailing 
party in connection therewith and in connection with any appeal, and the same may be 
included in such judgment or award. 

 
13.9 Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in 

accordance with, the laws of the State of Idaho. 
 
13.10 Exhibits.  All exhibits to this Agreement are incorporated by reference and 

made a part of this Agreement as if the exhibits were set forth in their entirety in this 
Agreement. 

 
13.11 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the exhibits hereto constitute the 

full and entire understanding and agreement between the parties with regard to the 
transaction contemplated herein, and no party shall be liable or bound to any other in any 
manner by any representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements except as 
specifically set forth herein. 

 



13.12 Acknowledgments and Modifications.  No acknowledgments required 
hereunder, and no modification or waiver of any provision of this Agreement or consent 
to departure therefrom, shall be effective unless in writing and signed by the parties. 

 

 

End of Agreement  |  Signatures on the following page. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 
the date first set forth above. 

 
CCDC: 
 
CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
 
      
By: John Hale, President 

ATTEST: 
 
       
By: John Brunelle, Executive Director 
 
 

 
BOISE: 
 
CITY OF BOISE 
 
 
      
By: David Bieter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

       
By: Linda Lowry, Ex-Officio City Clerk 
 

 
 
 

ACHD: 
 
ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT 
 
      
By:  ________________________ 
Its:  ________________________ 
 

ATTEST: 
 
      
By:  ________________________ 
Its:  ________________________ 



EXHIBITS 
 
Exhibit A Depiction of Signs 
Exhibit B VRT Agreement 
Exhibit C CCDC Agreement 
Exhibit D Boise Agreements 



EXHIBIT A 
(Depiction of Signs) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT B 
(VRT Agreement) 

 



EXHIBIT C 
(CCDC Agreement) 

 



EXHIBIT D 
(Boise Agreements) 

 



1 
 

 

 

 
TO:   John Hale, Chairman, CCDC Board Executive Committee 
FM: John Brunelle, Executive Director  
RE:   CCDC Operations Report – September 2017 

 

ANOTHER BUDGET SEASON IN-THE-BOOKS 

Many thanks to the Executive Committee and Board of Commissioners for another successful 
budget development process.  As the current fiscal year draws to a close and the coming year 
fast approaches the Agency is in an excellent financial position thanks in no small part to the 
vigilance, diligence and professionalism of Controller Joey Chen and Accountant Kevin Martin.  
With strong revenues fueling all types and sizes of public infrastructure improvement projects in 
CCDC’s four districts, this is a historic and exciting time.  Staff would be pleased to provide 
granular details for all budgeted projects and expenses beyond the Board-level budget 
summary adopted last month to any interested Commissioner.   
 

BOISE STARTUP WEEK 
CCDC is pleased to support this year’s Boise Startup Week, taking place in downtown Boise on 
Oct. 4-6.  Boise Startup Week is a community-driven, entrepreneur-focused event that brings 
people together to learn, support, and celebrate Idaho’s growing entrepreneurial ecosystem and 
culture of innovation. We’re part of the Block Party, which will take place Oct. 5th on The Grove 
Plaza. Hope to see you there! 

 

 

  



2 
 

 

 

STAFF IN ACTION 
Congratulations and a hearty 
Well Done! to Contracts 
Specialist Kathy Wanner, 
President of the Idaho Public 
Purchasing Association.  At this 
year’s national NIGP Institute for 
Public Procurement Forum, held 
last week in Salt Lake City, the 
Kathy-led IPPA won the Small 
Chapter of the Year award.   

The NIGP Forum is the largest 
educational conference exclusively for public procurement professionals.  As NIGP's showcase 
educational event, it provided more than 70 workshops, inspiring and motivational general 
session speakers and an ideal environment for networking with fellow professionals and over 
200 suppliers.  

 

New Budget Software 

In order to make future processes faster, more efficient and more collaborative, Finance is busy 
researching, testing and evaluating budgeting and reporting software to find the best application 
for CCDC.  The right system will make it easy to upload our structure and historicals, work 
seamlessly with our General Ledger to track actuals to budget is real-time, integrate the CIP 
process directly into the budget development process, provide opportunities to collaborate as 
the budget evolves, and provide the ability to quickly produce accurate, informative reports with 
appropriate levels of detail for project managers, management and Board of Commissioners.   

 

COMPETITIVE BIDDING and QUALIFICATION-BASED SELECTIONS 

2017 Streetscape Improvements Project – RFQ and Invitation to Bid 

Construction of 2017 streetscape improvements.   

• January: RFQ issued. 
• March:  Four contractors pre-qualified by Board to bid the project. 
• June:   Invitation to Bid issued to the four pre-qualified contractors. 
• July 10: Contract awarded to Guho Corp by Board. 
• August 7: Notice to Proceed – construction is underway. 
• By Oct 30:  Substantial Completion within 84 days of NTP. 
• By Nov 20:  Final Completion within 21 days after Substantial Completion. 

Finance Team: Ross Borden, Joey Chen, Kevin Martin, Kathy Wanner, and 
Mary Watson 



3 
 

ParkBOI Garage Signage – Invitation to Bid 

New parking garage signage to implement the ParkBOI brand identity. 

• April 10: Public works construction contract awarded to YESCO by Board. 
• May 16:  Contract executed.  
• Summer:  Permitting and fabrication underway.  
• Sept 13:  Substantial completion (120th day). 

 

9th & Front Garage Exterior Painting Project – Invitation to Bid 

Informally bid due to estimated project cost less than $200k. 

• July 17:  Invitation to Bid.  
• July 25:  Pre-Bid Meeting at CCDC. 
• August 3:  Bids received. Low Bid: Color Craft Painting, $72,040. 
• August 14:  Contract executed, construction scheduled. 
• Sept 5:  Notice to Proceed issued.   
• Dec 4:  Substantial Completion (90th day). 
• Dec 25:  Final Completion (21st day after Substantial Completion).  

 

ParkBOI Garage Painting – Invitation to Bid 

Paint interior stairwells and lobbies to achieve a clean, simple, uniform, and helpful public 
parking garage aesthetic.  Two separate painting projects each estimated at less than $200k so 
two separate informal bids.  

     Project One: two parking garages – Capitol & Main, 9th & Main. 

     Project Two: three parking garages – Capitol & Myrtle, 9th & Front, 10th & Front. 

• August 1: Invitation to Bid issued. 
• August 8: Pre-Bid meeting  
• August 23: Bids due for both Project One and Project Two.   

• Merit Professional Coatings lowest responsive bid for both 
projects: $70,303 for Project One, $55,800 for Project Two.  

• Aug / Sept: Contract to be executed and construction schedule planned. 
• TBD:   Substantial Completion within 60 days.  
• TBD:   Final Completion within 21 days of Substantial Completion.  

 

CM/GC Central District Improvements Project 

Selection of a Construction Manager / General Contractor (CM/GC) for final year / pre-Sunset 
Central District improvements. 

• August 9: Request for Qualifications issued; public notice in Idaho Statesman.  
• Sept 7:  Submissions due from licensed CM/GC’s.  
• Sept 11-29:  CM/GC reference checks and/or interviews.  
• October 9: Board consideration and tentative CM/GC selection.  

 



4 
 

Other Contracts Activity 

Quadrant Consulting – Task Order to draft easements for Idaho Power transformers in the 
alleys between Main & Idaho and 3rd to 5th streets. 

Synoptek – Task Order to continue with the development, implementation, and training on the 
new ParkBOI website. 

Downtown Boise Association - annual Agency co-sponsorship of the Bronco Shuttle that 
operates on days of home BSU football games and is managed by the DBA. 

Frontier Fence Company - contract with to install 8-foot chain link fence around Agency-owned, 
currently vacant property at 429 S. 10th Street. 

Pro Care Landscape Services 

• Task Order for irrigation system repairs at 10th & Front 
• Work Order to re-level and girdle tree grates in the Central and Westside Districts to 

prevent trip hazards. 
 

Public Records Requests (PRR): 

1. Don Day requesting emails on specific dates between specific people. 
2. Don Day requesting Taylor Adams’ PRR re Gardner Company / Tommy Ahlquist. 
3. Jim Andrew requesting 2017 streetscape project construction drawings. 
4. Davison, Copple, Copple & Copple requesting records regarding the currently under 

discussion multi-use stadium. 
 

 

 

 
INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS 

 
1402 W. Front Street - Verraso - PP Type 1 
Project is under construction. The developer is considering extended-stay rental options in place 
of long term (1-year) leases, or potentially a combination.  
 
301 N 29th - Whittier Elementary School - Potential Type 2/4 
Staff has requested a description of the eligible public costs in order to determine if some level 
of participation is possible. Staff continues to follow up regularly with the developer but has not 
yet received necessary documentation. Upon receipt and review of documentation staff will 
request a participation designation from the Board assuming it meets the existing Participation 
Policy. 
 
 

Development Team:  Todd Bunderson, Matt Edmond, Shellan Rodriguez, & 
Laura Williams, Karl Woods, and Doug Woodruff 



5 
 

Broad Street - Fiber Optic Expansion - CIP Project 
Fiber optic expansion construction is substantially complete with the exception of the area 
adjacent to the Fowler.  
 
2017 Streetscape Improvements - CIP Project 
Streetscape Improvements have been approved by Design Review, bid and awarded. 
Construction started on August 7 Project to be substantially complete by the end of October, 
2017. 
 
Grove Street, 16th to 10th and 6th to 3rd - Pedestrian Improvement Plan - CIP Project 
CCDC to prepare RFP for schematic design services in FY18.  
 
8th Street, State - Bannock, Both Sides (Split w RM) 
CCDC is pausing on the project to align the design and construction with ACHD's DBIP work in 
the area in 2019. Design effort will resume in FY18. 
 
T4 Participation: Idaho Historical Museum Streetscapes at Julia Davis Park 
DPW's contractor began work on the streetscape improvements in mid-August and should be 
complete early October. CCDC worked with DPW and its architect (LKV) to relocate a fire 
hydrant that was proposed to be in the middle of the sidewalk, to better align a curb ramp at 
Capitol/Fulton, and to make accommodations for a VRT bus stop. CCDC is working with Boise 
Fire Department and Suez to finalize details and costs of relocating fire hydrant. 
 
State Street, 16th - 8th, Both Sides (Joint Project with ACHD) 
Project is programmed in 2020 in 2018-2022 CIP, to coincide with ACHD pavement 
rehabilitation project. Design efforts will begin in 2019. 
 
515 W. Idaho - Paulsen - PP Type 1 
The participant completed the improvements to the alley in June 2017 and met all conditions 
precedent to reimbursement by CCDC in August 2017. CCDC will issue reimbursement in the 
amount of $150,000 the week of September 11 for the completed Type 1 project, in accordance 
with the amended Type 1 agreement with Five One Five LLC. 

 
MOBILITY PROJECTS 

 
9th & Front Garage Painting 
Glancey Rockwell Associates prepared construction documents for the repainting of the garage. 
The project has been bid and CCDC has completed the contract with Color Craft. Painting 
started on September 5. Painting to be completed fall 2017. 
 
ParkBOI Garage Painting 
CCDC is working to repaint stairwells and elevator lobbies as a part of the Park BOI rebranding 
effort. (5) Garages to receive painting. The project has been bid and awarded to Merit 
Professional Coatings. Construction schedule to be established and painting to begin. 
 
1101 Front - 11th & Front Garage 
CCDC will be purchasing a portion of the Pioneer Crossing Garage. The Agency has worked 
with the Pioneer Crossing team on signage, parking equipment, water proofing and finishes. 
Signage package approval is currently in progress. Gardner has submitted to DR to add a level 
of parking, pushing back substantial completion to the end of 2017. 



6 
 

 
Bike Rack Infill 
On August 24, CCDC relocated the bike corral from in front of The Egyptian Theatre to 1519 W 
Main St. in response to a business request and to make way for the final phase of the City Hall 
Plaza project.  
 
Wayfinding Project Installation 
Sea Reach has completed the prototype wayfinding sign and is shipping to Boise for installation. 
Staff is working to finalize a master license agreement with ACHD and City of Boise for 
installation and maintenance in ACHD right-of-way. Staff will provide an update to the CCDC 
board at the September 11 Board meeting. 
 
Front & Myrtle Alternatives Analysis 
CCDC is awaiting the final signal re-timing report from ACHD in order to evaluate the feasibility 
of incorporating changes to long signal cycle times as part of the preferred alternative. ACHD 
expects the report to be completed in the near future. 
 
Boise GreenBike Station Sponsorship at Red Lion Downtowner 
Boise GreenBike station racks (bank of five) were installed August 25. Sign panels are still on 
back order, with delivery date to be determined. 
 
5th & Myrtle New Signalized Crossing 
CCDC has hired Kittelson to conduct a signal warrant analysis as required by ITD before a new 
signal can be considered on a state highway. COMPASS and ACHD will be collecting traffic and 
pedestrian data at and around the intersection after construction at the Fowler is complete, this 
winter or next spring. 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
503 - 647 S. Ash Street – Ash Street RFP - PP Type 5 
A final draft of the Disposition and Development Agreement will be presented to the CCDC 
Board for approval in September. This includes 34 workforce rental housing units, 500 s.f. of 
retail and substantial public improvements. Staff is recommending a complete site write down 
upon completion as well as just over $300,000 in eligible public improvements reimbursed upon 
project completion. Staff is requesting approval of the DDA at the September 11, 2017 Board 
meeting. 
 
500 S. Capitol - Inn at 500 - PP Type 2, 4 
Staff visited the project for Site Inspection on August 31 and has received some of the 
necessary cost documentation from the developer. The required public easement for the Type 2 
reimbursement was recorded in April 2016. Staff will continue to work with the developer to get 
the necessary cost documentation and aims to reimburse the Type 4 Agreement in September 
in the amount of $202,000. The Type 2 agreement payments will be based on the TIF received 
in 2019, with the first payment by September 30, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 



7 
 

918 W. Idaho - Athlos - PP Type 3 
The developer has been working with the City to dedicate a perpetual façade easement to the 
City as required in CCDC's Type 3 Agreement. The façade easement application will be 
presented at the September 26 Historic Preservation Committee meeting. CCDC staff will visit 
Athlos for site inspection on September 15 and expects to have the cost documentation by that 
time. Once the façade easement has been granted to the City, CCDC staff will finalize the 
necessary documentation. A reimbursement will likely be paid out in October. 
 
503 5th Street - 5th and Idaho Apartments - PP Type 2/ Type 4 
The participant completed the improvements to the alley and 5th St in June 2017 and met all 
conditions precedent to reimbursement by CCDC in August 2017. CCDC will issue 
reimbursement in the amount of $260,700 the week of September 11 for the completed utilities 
sub-project, in accordance with the amended Type 4 agreement with 5th & Idaho. 
 
25th & Fairview - Adare Manor Development - Potential PP 
Staff has requested an application and scorecard and hopes to bring the project to the CCDC 
board for Type Designation in the coming months. 
 
32nd & Moore - Housing Authority Development – PP Type 1 
Staff will finalize the Type 1 Agreement for final Board approval after the development receives 
approval of a financing application from the state to complete the project, expected in late 2017. 
 
Multi-Purpose Stadium Assessment 
Continue working with the City, GBAD and the Developer to determine a critical path for this 
project, development budget and schedule and financing plan. 
 
620 S. 9th - The Afton - PP Type 5 
Upon completion of a Phase 2 design revisions the developer hopes to close on Phase 2 land 
before contractually obligated, the end of 2017.   
 

PLACE MAKING PROJECTS 
 
Broad Street - Central Addition Improvements - CIP Project 
Phase 2 (Capitol - 5th) is anticipated to be complete in October 1. 
 
South 8th Street District Plan - CIP Project 
CCDC hired CTY and The Land Group as design professionals for 8th & Fulton intersection and 
Simplot Alley work. CoB has contracted with an artist for a mural at 8th and Fulton and has 
received an RFP response for the 8th Street pedestrian bridge lighting. CTY has provided 
schematic design concepts for overhead infrastructure at Simplot Alley and a landmark at 8th & 
Fulton intersection. Projects to be presented as informational items at the September 11 Board 
Meeting. Artists for the mural will be selected through City Arts and History Department. 
Projects anticipated to be completed in 2017 with the exception of the Simplot Alley work which 
will align with ACHD's permeable alley project in 2018. 
 
8th Street Event Bollards 
CCDC has ordered bollards (8-10 week lead time) and JBA has submitted permit plans to 
ACHD. JBA and CCDC staff will finalize construction and bid documents for informal bidding, to 
occur late September/early October. 
 



8 
 

11th & Myrtle - Pioneer Corner – PP Type 4 
The CCDC Board approved a preliminary Type 4 agreement in July with BVGC Parcel B LLC to 
construct the improvements concurrent with the Pioneer Crossing project. Since then, 
subcontractor bids have come back exceeding the $100,000 not-to-exceed amount. CCDC 
board will consider an updated Type 4 agreement on September 11 with BVGC Parcel B LLC to 
construction improvements for $111,000. 
 

SPECIAL PROJECTS 
Traffic Box Artwork - Public Art 
2016 Traffic Boxes have been completed. Call to artists was released in fall 2016 with a 
deadline of February 2017. Artist selection panel occurred 4/7. Artists have been selected and 
have completed design work. Installation of wraps is underway. Boxes to be wrapped by fall. 

 
Shoreline District 
Consultant, Geoff Dickinson, will present the Eligibility Study and his findings to the CCDC 
Board at the September meeting as an informational item.  
 
 

 
 

Parking Survey 
The Board requested CCDC conduct a Parking Outreach Survey in order to better understand 
the ParkBOI customer. The survey was created to collect data on customer usage, preferred 
alternatives to driving, and opinion on rates. This information will inform any future Board 
determination about rate increases. The survey closed on Monday, August 28 with 748 
completed surveys, including 260 monthly, 104 waitlist, 116 full day, and 268 hourly 
respondents. This exceeded our initial goal of 600 responses. The Survey Consultant is putting 
together the final report which will be presented to the Board on October 9. 
 
Parking Website 
CCDC is creating a new parking website to reflect the ParkBOI co-branding for CCDC-owned 
parking garages and the City of Boise's on-street metered parking. CarewCo. designed the new 
website and Synoptek will be programming the website. BoiseParking.com will continue to be 
maintained by CCDC as a Boise wide informational website for ParkBOI and privately owned 
lots. CarewCo has finished the new website design and has transferred all relevant information 
to Synoptek. Synoptek has begun the programming of the new website. CCDC staff will work 
with Synoptek to test the new website. ParkBOI.com is scheduled to launch this fall. 
 
Rebranding Parking System 
Concerted application of the new brand will occur for our garages around the installation of the 
new garage signs and painting of garage elevator lobbies and stairwells in the Fall of 2017.  We 
will also emphasize the updated garage names at that time.   
 
 
 
 

Parking & Facilities Team: Max Clark & Ben Houpt 



9 
 

Park & Ride Shuttle 
The service is being adjusted to accommodate gaps between shuttle vans and VRT busses.  
The existing MOU will expire at the end of September, so staff is working on solidifying the level 
of service desired, then memorializing those service commitments in a new MOU for at least six 
months.   
 
HOA Meetings Update 
Staff is scheduling meetings with all our condos to prepare for the winter and solidify budgets.   
The Downtown Parking Condos (those surrounding 9th & Main) will be meeting with new retail 
owners, with the Idaho and Main Street businesses transitioning to new ownership in the past 
few months.   

 
 

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT UPDATES 
 
8th Street 
There are currently 2 patio approvals pending: Funky Taco (former Mongolian Grill) and Diablo 
(Pollo Rey). 

Parking System 
ParkBOI Sign project underway, YESCO has submitted for permits. Working on 3rd Party 
inspector. 

Trailhead 
Quarterly HVAC PMCS performed September 1. 

Ash Street Properties 
Bids received for improvements to Hayman House including electric, roof, windows and 
plumbing. 

The Grove Plaza 
New recycle receptacles being placed by September 11.  


	09-11-2017 Board Meeting Agenda
	August Paid Invoice Report
	08-29-2017 Special Meeting Minutes
	Action A - Ash Street DDA
	Att 1 site map
	Reso - DDA Ash Street Resolution
	Ash Street DDA used in AB with Attachments.pdf
	Ash Street DDA
	Attachment 1 - Site Plan
	Attachment 2 - Legal Description
	Attachment 3 - Schedule of Performance
	Attachment 4 - Design Development Plan
	Attachment 5 - Title Report
	Attachment 6 - Reuse Appraisal
	Attachment 7 - Form of Deed
	Attachment 8 - Form of Memorandum
	Attachment 9 - Certificate of Completion
	Attachment 10 - Green Building Certification
	Attachment 11 - Form of Deed Restriction
	Attachment 12 - Form of Annual Rent Report
	Attachment 13 - Form of Landscape License Agreement
	Attachment 14 - Form of Construction License Agreement
	Attachment 15 - Form of Escrow Instruction Letter
	Attachment 16 - Alley Vacation Map
	Attachment 17 - Public Project Improvements
	Attachment 18 - Schedule of Eligible Costs


	Action B - Reso 1508 Pioneer Corner T4
	Action C - Wayfinding MLA 20170911
	September Ops Report FINAL

